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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Managet's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditemd Results of Operations"
in Item 7, contains forward-looking statements fihablve risks, uncertainties and assumptionshéfiisks or uncertainties ever materialize or
the assumptions prove incorrect, the results of ldgsiPackard Company and its consolidated subsidga("HP") may differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such forward-looktiagements and assumptions. All statements otharstatements of historical fact are
statements that could be deemed forward-lookingstants, including but not limited to any projent®f revenue, margins, expenses,
effective tax rates, net earnings, net earningsspare, cash flows, benefit plan funding, sharairepases, currency exchange rates or other
financial items; any projections of the amount,itighor impact of cost savings or restructuring ches; any statements of the plans, strate
and objectives of management for future operatiomdyding the previously announced separation sigstion and the future performances of
the post-separation companies if the separatiaroiapleted, as well as the execution of restructuplans and any resulting cost savings or
revenue or profitability improvements; any statetaeroncerning the expected development, performanaeket share or competitive
performance relating to products or services; atateaments regarding current or future macroeconotréads or events and the impact
those trends and events on HP and its financidiguerance; any statements regarding pending invastgs, claims or disputes; any
statements of expectation or belief; and any statégsnof assumptions underlying any of the foregdrigks, uncertainties and assumptions
include the need to address the many challengésgfatP's businesses; the competitive pressuresifagdiP's businesses; risks associated
with executing HP's strategy, including the planseg@aration transaction; the impact of macroecorward geopolitical trends and events;
the need to manage third-party suppliers and tiséritiution of HP's products and the delivery of kiBérvices effectively; the protection of
HP's intellectual property assets, including inéelual property licensed from third parties; riskssociated with HP's international operatio
the development and transition of new productsserdices and the enhancement of existing produnttsarvices to meet customer needs an
respond to emerging technological trends; the etieatand performance of contracts by HP and itspdigps, customers, clients and partners;
the hiring and retention of key employees; inteigratind other risks associated with business coatlmn and investment transactions; the
execution, timing and results of the separatiom$@ction or restructuring plans, including estinmtind assumptions related to the cost
(including any possible disruption of HP's businessd the anticipated benefits of implementingsygaration transaction and restructuring
plans; the resolution of pending investigationgjmis and disputes; and other risks that are desctiberein, including but not limited to t
items discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A oftPaf this report and that are otherwise descritmrdipdated from time to time in HP's
Securities and Exchange Commission reports. HPrasswo obligation and does not intend to updatsdlierward-looking statements.

PART |
ITEM 1. Business.

We are a leading global provider of produtgchnologies, software, solutions and servigésdividual consumers, small- and medium-
sized businesses ("SMBs") and large enterprisekiding customers in the government, health anda&ihn sectors. Our offerings span the
following:

. personal computing and other access devices;
. imaging- and printing-related products and services
. enterprise information technology ("IT") infrasttuoe, including enterprise server and storage t@cigly, networking products

and solutions, technology support and maintenance;

. multi-vendor customer services, including tedbgy consulting, outsourcing and support serviaFess infrastructure,
applications and business process domains; and
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. IT management software, application testing anivelgl software, information management solutiong,data analytics,
security intelligence and risk management solutions

HP was incorporated in 1947 under the lafitbe state of California as the successor tormeeship founded in 1939 by William R.
Hewlett and David Packard. Effective in May 199& ehanged our state of incorporation from Califartai Delaware.

October 2014 Announcement of HP Separation Transaicin

On October 6, 2014, we announced plansparsite into two independent publicly-traded congsarone comprising our enterprise
technology infrastructure, software, services anarfcing businesses, which will conduct busineddeaslett-Packard Enterprise and one that
will comprise our printing and personal systemsfesses, which will conduct business as HP Inc.Sdparation is subject to certain
conditions, including, among others, obtaining ffimgproval from HP's Board of Directors, receiptadavorable opinion and/or rulings with
respect to the tax-free nature of the transactiofiefderal income tax purposes and the effectivenéa Form 10 filing with the SEC. The
separation is expected to be completed by the &fisical 2015. Under the separation plan, HP shaldsrs will own shares of both Hewlett-
Packard Enterprise and HP Inc. The following cpaot/ides an overview of the planned separationsagmient revenues of the respective
businesses based on HP's fiscal 2014 results,d®glCorporate Investments and intercompany elitiana.

Revenue Mix ' Emterprize Group 48%
(based on B Enterprise Servicas 399 B Personal Systems 80%
] o Software 7% — .
fiscal 2014 resul . 4 B Prinfing 409,
e L) Financial Services B%
I ELHEIN G (=0 - Segment Revenue: $57.68 « Segment Revenue: $57.38

HP Products and Services; Segment Information

We offer one of the IT industry's broadasittfolios of products and services that bring tbhgeinfrastructure, software, and services
through innovation to enable our customers to ereatue and solve business problems. As consumdrsraerprises shift the way technology
is created, delivered, consumed and paid for, #neydemanding a foundation that will support muaater agility, lower cost, facilitate
quicker time-to-market, and provide a higher degregccessibility by end-users to that technoldye. design our solutions to provide that
foundation, particularly in the areas of securitypud, mobility and big data, by leveraging thedufhn of our offerings and the strengths and
capabilities of our individual business units.

Our operations are organized into seveinbas segments: Personal Systems; Printing; treritige Group ("EG"); Enterprise Services
("ES"); Software; HP Financial Services ("HPFS'f)daCorporate Investments. In each of the past tiseal years, notebook personal
computers ("PCs"), printing supplies, infrastruettechnology outsourcing services, desktop PCsrahbtry standard servers each accountec
for more than 10% of our consolidated net revenue.

The Personal Systems segment and therRriséigment are structured beneath a broader Ryiatid Personal Systems Group ("PPS").
While PPS is not a reportable segment, we may geofinancial
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data aggregating the Personal Systems and Prsgigigents to provide a supplementary view of iténess.

A summary of our net revenue, earnings fogerations and assets for our segments alongawd#scription of our fiscal 2014
organizational realignments can be found in Note the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemt8ch is incorporated herein by
reference. A discussion of factors potentially etfifeg our operations is set forth in "Risk Factdrsitem 1A, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Printing and Personal Systems Grot

The mission of PPS is to leverage the mspestrengths of the Personal Systems segmentheariérinting segment by creating a unified
business that is customer-focused and poised itatiap on rapidly shifting industry trends. Eadttlee business segments within PPS is
described in detail below.

Personal Systems

Personal Systems provides commercial P@sumer PCs, workstations, thin client PCs, tabtetail point-of-sale ("POS") systems,
calculators and other related accessories, softwapport and services for the commercial and coesunarkets. We group commercial
notebooks, commercial desktops, commercial tabhaisgistations and thin clients into commercial its&eand consumer notebooks, consumer
desktops and consumer tablets into consumer ckeimts describing performance in these markets. Bothmercial and consumer PCs and
tablets are based predominately on the Microsoftddlivs operating system and use processors fromGotporation (“Intel") and Advanced
Micro Devices, Inc. ("AMD"). Personal Systems atsaintains a multi-operating system, multi-archiseetstrategy using the Google Chrome
and Android operating systems for notebooks anieétstrespectively.

Commercial PCs. Commercial PCs are optimized for use by custenmeluding enterprise and SMB customers, and@dmmectivity,
reliability and manageability in networked enviroemts. Commercial PCs include the HP ProBook andktEBook lines of notebooks and
hybrids (detachable tablets), the HP Pro and Hfe Hfies of business desktops and all-in-onesil @S systems, HP Thin Clients, HP
ElitePad and HP Pro Tablet PCs. Commercial PCsiatsade workstations that are designed and opéthipr high-performance and
demanding application environments including Z deskvorkstations, Z all-in-ones and Z mobile wosatiins.

Consumer PCs. Consumer PCs include the HP Spectre, HP ENWY Ptavilion, HP Chromebook, HP Split and HP Slatesef multi-
media consumer notebooks, consumer tablets, hyandslesktops, including the TouchSmart line otbteanabled notebooks and all-in-one
desktops.

Printing

Printing provides consumer and commeraigter hardware, supplies, media, software andisesyas well as scanning devices. Printing
is also focused on imaging solutions in the comimaémarkets. These solutions range from managed pervices to areas such as industrial
applications, outdoor signage and the graphictarsiness. HP groups LaserJet, large format priatggdscommercial inkjet printers into
Commercial Hardware and consumer and SMB inkjetters into Consumer Hardware when describing perdoice in these markets.

LaserJet and Enterprise SolutionsLaserJet and Enterprise Solutions delivers tJaseand enterprise products, services and sokitmn
the SMB and enterprise segments including Laserigers and supplies (toner), Officejet Pro X etkgnterprise products and supplies, multi
function devices, scanners, web-connected hardwapaged services, and enterprise software sotusoch as
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Web Jetadmin. Managed Print Services providesipgregquipment, supplies, support, workflow optiniaa and security features for SMB
and enterprise customers around the world, utgiziroprietary HP tools and fleet management saistias well as third-party software.

Inkjet and Printing Solutions. Inkjet and Printing Solutions deliver consuraad SMB inkjet solutions (hardware, supplies, mealnal
web-connected hardware and services) and includgesfunction and all-in-one inkjet printers. Onggiinitiatives and programs, such as Ink
in the Office and Ink Advantage, and newer initia$i, such as Instant Ink, are intended to providevative printing solutions to consumers
and SMBs. Our Ink in the Office initiative is fo@dson providing high value inkjet printing solutioto SMBs through our Officejet Premium
and Officejet Pro inkjet portfolios. Our Ink Advage program aims to provide savings on the oveoall of printing in emerging markets.
Instant Ink is an ink replacement service thatvedl@ustomers to pay a monthly fee to print a sptifiumber of pages per month.

Graphics Solutions. Graphics Solutions deliver large format prigtéDesignjet, Large Format Production and Scitekitrial),
specialty printing, digital press solutions (Indigiad Inkjet Webpress), supplies and services tu parvice providers and design and renderin
customers. The solutions cover a wide range otipgrapplications such as technical design, phatigs, and display, direct mail, marketing
collateral, labels and packaging, and publishing.

Software and Web ServicesSoftware and Web Services delivers a suitdfefings, including photstorage and printing offerings (st
as Snapfish), document storage, entertainmentcas,wveb-connected printing, and PC back-up amatleckervices.

Enterprise Group

EG provides a broad portfolio of enterptisehnology infrastructure solutions for a variefyoperating environments that address a wide
range of customer challenges, including the neédd®ase agility and accelerate innovation in ptdalrive revenue, manage risk and lower
costs. HP Helion, our enterprise technology infrastire portfolio of servers, storage, networkimgl &echnology services combined with HP's
cloud services and software, allows customers ¢ptaa holistic approach to building a technologyastructure that supports their current
business and consumer demands and next generpfibcadions and web services. HP's Converged Syspantfolio (servers, storage and
networking) simplifies IT through quick deploymeimttuitive management and system-level supportifiiped for key workloads such as
virtualization, cloud and big data, these completiegrated solutions enable organizations ofialisto efficiently utilize IT staffing resources
and deploy applications faster.

Industry Standard Servers.Industry Standard Servers offers a range adyxcts from entry-level servers through premium Faot
servers, which run primarily Windows, Linux andtualization platforms from software providers sashMicrosoft Corporation ("Microsoft")
and VMware, Inc. ("VMware"), and open source sofeviiom other major vendors while leveraging x86gassors from Intel and AMD. The
business spans a range of server product lindsding microservers, towers, traditional rack, dgnsptimized rack and blades, solutions for
large, distributed computing companies who buy @eploy nodes at a massive scale. Industry Stargkemeers also offers HP Moonshot
servers operating on ARM, AMD and Intel Atom-bagpedcessors which offer reduced cost, space, ersrdyomplexity compared to
traditional servers.

Business Critical Systems.Business Critical Systems delivers our missiotieal systems through a portfolio of HP Integriervers
based on the Intel Itanium processor that run tReEX and OpenVMS operating systems, as well asrtytity NonStop solutions and
mission-critical x86 ProLiant servers.
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Storage. Our storage offerings include platforms forezptise and SMB environments. Our flagship produtiie 3PAR StoreServ
Storage Platform, which is designed for virtuali@at cloud and IT-as-a-service. Traditional Storagkitions include tape, storage networking
and legacy external disk products such as EVA aRdConverged Storage solutions include 3PAR StaveS¢oreOnce and StoreVirtual
products. These offerings enable customers to @itheir existing storage systems, build new wilization solutions and facilitate their
transition to cloud computing.

Networking. Our networking offerings include switches, engt wireless local area network ("WLAN") and netlvonanagement
products that deliver open, scalable, secure, agideconsistent solutions that span the data geraempus and branch environments and de
softwaredefined networking and unified communications cafiads. Our unified wired and wireless networkiofferings include both WLA!
access points, controllers and switches. Our néiwgrsolutions are based on our FlexNetwork archite, which is designed to enable
simplified server virtualization, unified communimms and multi-media application delivery for theterprise. Software-defined networking
provides an end-to-end solution to automate theorétfrom data center to campus and branch.

Technology Services. Technology Services provides support serviogkstechnology consulting, focused on cloud, mapditd big data
and provides IT organizations with advice, desigmplementation, migration and optimization of E@latforms: servers, storage, networking
and converged infrastructure. Support servicegiofie span various levels of customer support naedsnclude: HP Foundation Care, our
portfolio of reactive hardware and software supgertices; HP Proactive Care, which combines resapport technology for real-time
monitoring with rapid access to our technical eiqeiP Datacenter Care, a comprehensive and feegdgbacity end-tend support for HP ar
multi-vendor systems that enables customers ta pboerate or consume IT in traditional, cloud yoiid cloud environments; and Lifecycle
Event services, which are event-based servicesimffeur technology expertise and consulting fathephase of the technology life cycle.
These services are available in the form of serstigdracts, pre-packaged offerings (HP Care Paskces) or on a customized basis.

Enterprise Service

ES provides technology consulting, outsmgr@and support services across infrastructurdjagijns and business process domains. ES
delivers to our clients by leveraging investmentsansulting and support professionals, infrastmgctechnology, applications, standardized
methodologies and global supply and delivery. B aleates opportunities to sell additional hardveard software by offering solutions that
encompass both products and services.

Infrastructure Technology Outsourcing.nfrastructure Technology Outsourcing delivessprehensive services that streamline and
optimize our clients' technology infrastructuresticiently enhance performance, reduce costsgatii risk and enable business change. The:
services encompass the management of data cdtses;urity, cloud computing, workplace technologgtworks, unified communications
and enterprise service management. We also offet af managed services that provide a cross-seatiour broader infrastructure services
for smaller, discrete engagements.

Application and Business ServicesApplication and Business Services helps o@ntdi develop, revitalize and manage their apptioati
and information assets. This full application lifgcle approach encompasses application developmestityg, modernization, system
integration, maintenance and management for batkgueed and custom-built applications and cloudrifégs. The Application and Business
Services portfolio also includes intellectual prapédased industry solutions, along with technodsgand related services all of which help
clients better manage their critical industry pssees for customer relationship management, finandeadministration, human resources,
payroll and document processing.
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Software

Software provides IT management, applicatésting and delivery, information management,daitp analytics, security intelligence and
risk management solutions for businesses and eigesf all sizes. Our software offerings incllidenses, support, professional services ant
software-as-a-service ("SaaS"). Described belovoarglobal business capabilities within Software.

Application Delivery Managementhich is part of HP's IT management offerings, jles software that enables organizations to delivel
high performance applications by automating antinigshe processes required to ensure the qualiysaalability of desktop, web, mobile and
cloud-based applications.

Big Dataprovides a full suite of software designed to haiganizations store, explore, govern, protect amndesinformation and insights
that fundamentally improve the outcomes of busieessd the environment, while managing risk andimgégal obligations. The group's
suite includes HP Vertica, the leading analytictfpkm for machine, structured and sestriactured data, HP IDOL, a unique analytics plai
for human information from Autonomy, as well as ketrleading solutions for archiving, data protectieDiscovery, information governance
and Enterprise Content Management.

Enterprise Securitgoftware is designed to disrupt fraud, hackersayher criminals by scanning software and websibesécurity
vulnerabilities, improving network defenses andvydimg real-time warning of threats as they emerge.

IT Operations Managementhich is part of HP's IT management offerings, jies software required to automate routine IT tasicto
pinpoint IT problems when they occur, helping eptises to reduce operational costs and improvediiebility of applications running in a
traditional, cloud or hybrid environment.

Marketing Optimizatioriocuses on delivering solutions that help busiressgage audiences, reach new customer segmentsaakets
and deliver compelling content across channels.grbep provides solutions for augmented realityitaot center analytics, customer
communications management and digital experiencegement.

Software's big data platform, HAVER, prossdunique assets for processing and understandiobine and sensor data, business data ar
unstructured human information. A growing ecosystéroustomers, partners and developers use thi®ptato build big data driven analytic
applications. Software also leverages HAVEN's uaigoalytic assets to deliver market-leading, puegmnslt solutions for a variety of markets,
including application testing and delivery, bigaanalytics and applications, IT operations managegnmarketing optimization and enterprise
security. These solutions are designed for buséisesisd enterprises of all sizes, and are availadlen-premises, SaaS and hybrid delivery
models. Software's HAVEn big data platform and psgbuilt applications are augmented by supportpeofiéssional services in order to
provide an end-to-end solution to customers.

HP Financial Services

HPFS provides flexible investment solutiosisch as leasing, financing, utility programs asget management services, for customers tc
enable the creation of unique technology deploymasdels and acquisition of complete IT solutionsjuding hardware, software and serv
from HP and others. Providing flexible services aagabilities that support the entire IT lifecydRFS partners with customers globally to
help build investment strategies that enhance theimess agility and support their business tansition. HPFS offers a wide selection of
investment solution capabilities for large entesprcustomers and channel partners, along withrag af financial options to SMBs,
educational and governmental entities.
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Corporate Investments

Corporate Investments includes HP Labscamthin cloud-related business incubation projanisng others.
Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We manage our business and report ourdinhresults based on the business segments ded@iimve. Our customers are organized by
consumer and commercial groups, and purchases gfdtRicts, solutions and services may be fulfidle@ectly by HP or indirectly through a
variety of partners, including:

. retailers that sell our products to the public thgio their own physical or Internet stores;

. resellers that sell our products and servicesugatly with their own value-added products or sa8j to targeted customer
groups;

. distribution partners that supply our solutibosesellers;

. original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") thategrate our products and services with their ovalpcts and services, and

sell the integrated solution;

. independent software vendors that provide theéntd with specialized software products and oftaisaus in selling our
products and services to clients purchasing theuyorcts;

. systems integrators that provide expertise in aésggand implementing custom IT solutions and oftartner with us to extend
their expertise or influence the sale of our prdsland services; and

. advisory firms that provide various levels ofmagement and IT consulting, including some syst@ategration work, and
typically partner with us on client solutions thatjuire our unique products and services.

The mix of our business conducted by disad¢s or channel differs substantially by busimegsregion. We believe that customer buying
patterns and different regional market conditiatpuire us to tailor our sales, marketing and distion efforts accordingly. We are focused on
driving the depth and breadth of our coveragediiteon to identifying efficiencies and productivijains, in both our direct and indirect
businesses. While each of our business segmen@gasithe execution of its own goftarket and distribution strategy, our business seqs
also collaborate to ensure strategic and procegmaént where appropriate. For example, we typicadlsign an account manager, generally
from EG or ES, to manage relationships across osinkss with large enterprise customers. The atepanager is supported by a team of
specialists with product and services expertise offter customers and for consumers, PPS typioadigages direct online sales as well as
channel relationships with retailers, while ourihess segments collaborate to manage relationshipsommercial resellers targeting SMBs
where appropriate.

Manufacturing and Materials

We utilize a significant number of outsedananufacturers ("OMs") around the world to maotufile HP-designed products. The use of
OMs is intended to generate cost efficiencies addice time to market for HP-designed products. ¥éemultiple OMs to maintain flexibility
in our supply chain and manufacturing processesoine circumstances, third-party OEMs produce prisdihat we purchase and resell under
the HP brand. In addition to our use of OMs, weaently manufacture a limited number of finisheddrots from components and
subassemblies that we acquire from a wide rangerndors.
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We utilize two primary methods of fulfilindemand for products: building products to ordet eonfiguring products to order. We build
products to order to maximize manufacturing andskics efficiencies by producing high volumes o$iggproduct configurations.
Alternatively, configuring products to order enabimits to match a customer's particular hardwadesaftware customization requirements.
Our inventory management and distribution practindsoth building products to order and configurprgducts to order seek to minimize
inventory holding periods by taking delivery of inleentory and manufacturing shortly before the galdistribution of products to our
customers.

We purchase materials, supplies and praslilzassemblies from a substantial number of ven&orsmost of our products, we have
existing alternate sources of supply or such adiersources of supply are readily available. Howewve do rely on sole sources for laser
printer engines, LaserJet supplies, certain cugtednparts and parts for products with short lifeley (although some of these sources have
operations in multiple locations in the event afisruption). We are dependent upon Intel and AMBwgspliers of x86 processors and
Microsoft for various software products; howevee believe that disruptions with these suppliersidoesult in industrywide dislocations ar
therefore would not disproportionately disadvantageelative to our competitors. See "Risk Factdrée-depend on third-party suppliers, and
our financial results could suffer if we fail to mage suppliers properly,” in Item 1A, which is ingorated herein by reference.

Like other participants in the IT industwye ordinarily acquire materials and componentsubh a combination of blanket and schedulec
purchase orders to support our demand requirenf@nperiods averaging 90 to 120 days. From timgnte, we may experience significant
price volatility or supply constraints for certaiomponents that are not available from multiplerses. Frequently, we are able to obtain sc
components for somewhat higher prices on the opskety which may have an impact on our gross margtrdoes not generally disrupt
production. We also may acquire component invenitognticipation of supply constraints or entepitdnger-term pricing commitments with
vendors to improve the priority, price and avallisépof supply. See "Risk Factors—We depend onddmarty suppliers, and our financial
results could suffer if we fail to manage suppligrsperly,” in Item 1A, which is incorporated herdiy reference.

International

Our products and services are availablddwide. We believe this geographic diversity allougsto meet demand on a worldwide basis
for both consumer and enterprise customers, dravimisiness and technical expertise from a worldwidekforce, provides stability to our
operations, provides revenue streams that maytafésmgraphic economic trends and offers us an oppidy to access new markets for
maturing products. In addition, we believe thatifetgrowth is dependent in part on our ability éwelop products and sales models that targe
developing countries. In this regard, we belie\a thur broad geographic presence gives us a sadie bn which to build such future growth.

A summary of our domestic and internatiametirevenue and net property, plant and equipises#t forth in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorpedaterein by reference. Approximately 65% of ougrall net revenue in fiscal 2014 came
from outside the United States ("U.S.").

For a discussion of risks attendant to HRé&rnational operations, see "Risk Factors—Dug¢ointernational nature of our business,
political or economic changes or other factors ddwdrm our future revenue, costs and expensedijrarttial condition,” in Item 1A,
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about MarRisk," in ltem 7A and Note 11 to the Consolidefénancial Statements in Item 8, which
are incorporated herein by reference.
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Research and Development

Innovation is a key element of our cultu@elr development efforts are focused on designitthdeveloping products, services and
solutions that anticipate customers' changing naadslesires, and emerging technological trendse@orts also are focused on identifying
the areas where we believe we can make a uniquaeladion and the areas where partnering with otbading technology companies will
leverage our cost structure and maximize our custsnexperiences.

HP Labs, together with the various researuhdevelopment groups within our business segnare responsible for our research and
development efforts. HP Labs is part of our Corfotavestments segment.

Expenditures for research and developmenée 3.4 billion in fiscal 2014, $3.1 billion irstial 2013 and $3.4 billion in fiscal 2012. We
anticipate that we will continue to have significa@search and development expenditures in thegfutusupport the design and developme
innovative, high-quality products and services tmntain and enhance our competitive position.

For a discussion of risks attendant toresearch and development activities, see "RiskoFsetif we cannot successfully execute on our
strategy and continue to develop, manufacture aawtteh products, services and solutions that mestbmer requirements for innovation and
quality, our revenue and gross margin may suffaritem 1A, which is incorporated herein by referen

Patents

Our general policy has been to seek pgietéection for those inventions likely to be incorgted into our products and services or where
obtaining such proprietary rights will improve aompetitive position. At October 31, 2014, our wiaride patent portfolio included over
34,000 patents, which represents a decrease avauthber of patents in our portfolio at the enfisafal 2013 and fiscal 2012. This decrease i
attributable, in part, to the sale of a portfolfammobile computing intellectual property ("IP") danuary 2014.

Patents generally have a term of twentys/&am the date they are filed. As our patentfpbat has been built over time, the remaining
terms of the individual patents across our paternfqio vary. We believe that our patents and pa#pplications are important for maintaining
the competitive differentiation of our products amivices, enhancing our freedom of action to@allproducts and services in markets in
which we choose to participate, and maximizing retmrn on research and development investmentsimgte patent is in itself essential to
as a whole or to any of HP's business segments.

In addition to developing our patent pditfowe license IP from third parties as we deemprapriate. We have also granted and continue
to grant to others licenses, and other rights, unde patents when we consider these arrangemebis in our interest. These license
arrangements include a number of cross-licensésthiitd parties.

For a discussion of risks attendant toiglts, see "Risk Factors—Our revenue, cost of salesd expenses may suffer if we cannot
continue to license or enforce the IP rights onaolwtgur business depends or if third parties adisattwe violate their IP rights,” in Item 1A,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Backlog

We believe that backlog is not a meaningfdicator of future business prospects due todbterse products and services portfolio,
including the large volume of products delivereshirfinished goods or channel partner inventoriesthe shortening of product life cycles.
Therefore, we believe that backlog informationas material to an understanding of our overall bess.
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Seasonality

General economic conditions have an impaatur business and financial results. From timgme, the markets in which we sell our
products and services experience weak economidtcamgithat may negatively affect sales. We experdesome seasonal trends in the sale o
our products and services. For example, Europdas aee often weaker in the summer months and cosissales are often stronger in the
fourth calendar quarter. Demand during the sprimjearly summer months also may be adversely iragddnt market anticipation of seasonal
trends. See "Risk Factors—Our sales cycle makesmiplg and inventory management difficult and futfinancial results less predictable,” in
Item 1A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Competition

We encounter strong competition in all arebour business activity. We compete primarilytlom basis of technology, performance, pi
quality, reliability, brand, reputation, distribati, range of products and services, ease of ugergroducts, account relationships, customer
training, service and support, security, availtypilif application software and internet infrasturet offerings.

The markets for each of our business setgvan characterized by strong competition amornjgmearporations with long-established
positions and a large number of new and rapidlyvgrg firms. Most product life cycles are short, dademain competitive we must develop
new products and services, periodically enhanceristing products and services and compete effegton the basis of the factors listed
above. In addition, we compete with many of ourent and potential partners, including OEMs thaigie manufacture and often market tl
products under their own brand names. Our sucdassfuiagement of these competitive partner relatigsswill be critical to our future
success. Moreover, we anticipate that we will haveontinue to adjust prices on many of our proslacid services to stay competitive.

We have a broad technology portfolio spagmiersonal computing and other access devicegjrigand printing-related products and
services, enterprise IT infrastructure products smidtions, multi-vendor customer services and Bhagement software and solutions. We ar
the leader or among the leaders in each of ounbssisegments.

The competitive environments in which eaegment operates are described below:

Personal Systems. The markets in which Personal Systems opesaaitehighly competitive and are characterized byepciompetition
and inventory obsolescence. The decline in the RBfkeh and the ongoing shift among customers to litypproducts has further intensified
competition in the PC market. Our primary compesitare Lenovo Group Limited ("Lenovo"), Dell InéDgll"), Acer Inc., ASUSTeK
Computer Inc., Apple Inc., Toshiba Corporation &aansung Electronics Co., Ltd. ("Samsung"). In paldir regions, we also experience
competition from local companies and from genelyebianded or "white box" manufacturers. Our coritpet advantages include our broad
product portfolio, our innovation and research dadelopment capabilities, our brand and procureneserage, our ability to cross-sell our
portfolio of offerings, our extensive service anghgort offerings and the accessibility of our pretdithrough a broad-based distribution
strategy from retail and commercial channels tedisales.

Printing. The markets for printer hardware and associstgglies are highly competitive. Printing's kegtomer segments each face
competitive market pressures in pricing and theothiction of new products. Our primary competitoidude Canon U.S.A., Inc., Lexmark
International, Inc., Xerox Corporation Ltd., Seikpson Corporation, The Ricoh Company Ltd., SamsunthBrother Industries, Ltd. In
addition, independent suppliers offer refill anthemufactured alternatives for HP original inkjetiaaner supplies, which are often available
for lower prices but generally offer lower printajity and reliability. Other competitors also have

12




Table of Contents

developed and marketed new compatible cartridgesl®ds laser and inkjet products, particularly aesf the U.S. where IP protection is
inadequate or ineffective. Our competitive advaesaigclude our comprehensive solutions for the hafiiee and publishing environments,
our innovation and research and development capeilour brand, and the accessibility of our prtd through a broad-based distribution
strategy from retail and commercial channels tealisales.

Enterprise Group. EG operates in the highly competitive entegptechnology infrastructure market that is charad by rapid and
ongoing technological innovation and price compmtitOur primary competitors include technology ders such as International Business
Machines Corporation ("IBM"), Dell, EMC CorporatigtEMC"), Cisco Systems, Inc. ("Cisco"), Lenovo,a0ke Corporation ("Oracle"),
Fujitsu Limited ("Fujitsu"), Inspur, Huawei Techwoglies Co. Ltd., NetApp, Inc., Hitachi Ltd., Junipéetworks, Inc., Arista Networks, Inc.,
Extreme Networks, Inc., Brocade Communications &wst Inc., VMware, Microsoft, Google Inc., Racksp#uc., and Amazon.com, Inc.
("Amazon"). In certain regions, we also experieaompetition from local companies and from genelyebfanded or "white-box"
manufacturers. Our strategy is to deliver supaoducts, high-value technology support servicekdifierentiated integrated solutions that
combine our infrastructure, software and serviegmbilities. Our competitive advantages includelwoad end-to-end solutions portfolio,
supported by our strong IP portfolio and researahdevelopment capabilities, coupled with our glabach and partner ecosystem.

Enterprise Services. ES competes in the IT services, consultingiatedyration, infrastructure technology outsourcingsiness process
outsourcing and application service markets. Oumanry competitors include IBM Global Services, Cartgy Sciences Corporation, systems
integration firms such as Accenture plc. and offsftmmpanies such as Fujitsu and India-based caongetVipro Limited, Infosys Limited
and Tata Consultancy Services Ltd. We also compitkeother traditional hardware providers, suctbad, which are increasingly offering
services to support their products, new playeenierging areas like cloud such as Amazon, and smattal players. Many of our competitors
offer a wide range of global services, and somauofcompetitors enjoy significant brand recognitiB® teams with many companies to offer
services, and those arrangements allow us to extenceach and augment our capabilities. Our cotygehdvantages include our deep
technology expertise, especially in complex muttietry, multi-vendor and/or multi-language enviramts, differentiated IP, our strong track
record of collaboration with clients and partnensg the combination of our expertise in infrastioetmanagement with skilled global resou
on platforms from SAP AG ("SAP"), Oracle and Miaoofts among others.

Software. The markets in which Software operates aresflibly rapidly changing customer requirements aclohtglogies. We design
and develop enterprise IT management softwarermpetition with IBM, CA Technologies, Inc., VMwarBMC Software, Inc. and others. C
big data solutions, which include data analytinfyrimation governance and digital marketing offgsiincorporating both structured and
unstructured data, compete with products from camgsdike Adobe Systems Inc., IBM, EMC, Open Terr@bration, Oracle and Symantec
Corporation. We also deliver enterprise securg/intelligence solutions that compete with proddobm EMC, IBM, Cisco and Intel. As
customers are becoming increasingly comfortabla wéwer delivery mechanisms such as SaaS, wea@ng feompetition from smaller, less
traditional competitors, particularly for customerish smaller IT organizations. Our differentiatibes in the breadth and depth of our softwar
and services portfolio and the scope of our markeerage.

HP Financial Services. In our financing solution business, our compesi are captive financing companies, mainly BNzl
Financing, as well as banks and other financiditut®ns. We believe our competitive advantagéhis business over banks and other finar
institutions is our ability to deliver flexible imgstment solutions and expertise that help custoaretgpartners create unique technology
deployments based on specific business needs.
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For a discussion of risks attendant toghmsmpetitive factors, see "Risk Factors—Competigvessures could harm our revenue, gross
margin and prospects,” in Item 1A, which is incaogied herein by reference.

Environment

Our operations are subject to regulatioteurvarious federal, state, local and foreign lamscerning the environment, including laws
addressing the discharge of pollutants into theuadt water, the management and disposal of hazasldastances and wastes, and the cleanu
of contaminated sites. We could incur substantiats; including cleanup costs, fines and civilmmaal sanctions, and third-party damage or
personal injury claims, if we were to violate ocbme liable under environmental laws.

Many of our products are subject to varifaderal, state, local and foreign laws governihgniical substances in products and their safe
use, including laws regulating the manufacture distfibution of chemical substances and laws r&#tg the presence of certain substances i
electronics products. Some of our products alsparmay in the future be, subject to requiremepiglicable to their energy consumption. In
addition, we face increasing complexity in our proddesign and procurement operations as we adjugw and future requirements relating
to the chemical and materials composition of owdpcts, their safe use, and their energy efficienmmtuding requirements relating to climate
change. We are also subject to legislation in aremsing number of jurisdictions that makes prockioéelectrical goods, including computers
and printers, financially responsible for specifadlection, recycling, treatment and disposal astpand future covered products (sometimes
referred to as "product take-back legislation")tHa event our products become non-compliant viiglseé laws, our products could be restricte
from entering certain jurisdictions and we couldeather sanctions, including fines.

Our operations and ultimately our produts expected to become increasingly subject ta&dsate, local and foreign laws, regulations
and international treaties relating to climate d®rAs these laws, regulations, treaties and sinmigatives and programs are adopted and
implemented throughout the world, we will be regdito comply or potentially face market accesstéitions or other sanctions, including
fines. However, we believe that technology willfbedamental to finding solutions to achieve comptwith and manage those requireme
and we are collaborating with industry, businessigs and governments to find and promote waysHPRatechnology can be used to address
climate change and to facilitate compliance witlated laws, regulations and treaties.

We are committed to maintaining compliandth all environmental laws applicable to our opienas, products and services and to
reducing our environmental impact across all aspefcour business. We meet this commitment witbragrehensive environmental, health
and safety policy, strict environmental managenoéioiur operations and worldwide environmental pamgs and services.

A liability for environmental remediatioméh other environmental costs is accrued when weidenit probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonatim&ed. Environmental costs and accruals areptigsnot material to our operations, cash
flows or financial position. Although there is nesarance that existing or future environmental lapglicable to our operations or products
will not have a material adverse effect on our afiens, cash flows or financial condition, we da carrently anticipate material capital
expenditures for environmental control facilities.

For a discussion of risks attendant toghas/ironmental factors, see "Risk Factors—Unfaesmnvironmental costs could adversely
affect our business and results of operationslteim 1A, which is incorporated herein by refererioeaddition, for a discussion of our
environmental contingencies see
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Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statementiemn 8, which is also incorporated herein by refee.
Executive Officers
The following are our current executiveicdfs:
Martin Fink; age 50; Executive Vice President and @ief Technology Officer

Mr. Fink has served as Executive Vice Riesi, Chief Technology Officer and Director of HRds since November 2012. Prior to tha
served as Senior Vice President and General Mamdidlee Business Critical Systems and Convergedigaon Systems from April 2005 to
October 2012. During his almost 30 year careerRtMr. Fink has worked in a wide range of roleoasrHP. He also serves as a director of
Hortonworks, Inc.

Henry Gomez; age 51; Executive Vice President, CHi&larketing and Communications Officer

Mr. Gomez has served as Executive Vicei@eas and Chief Marketing and Communications Offisiace August 2013. Previously, he
served as Chief Communications Officer and Exeeutfice President from January 2012 to July 201@&rRo that, he ran HSG
Communications, a consulting business that he fedma September 2008. He also served on the Idage¢esam of Ms. Whitman's
gubernatorial campaign from February 2009 to Noven20®10. For most of the previous decade, he woskeday Inc. in a variety of roles
including Senior Vice President for Corporate Cominations and President of Skype. From Septembkt 6 September 2013 he served
director of BJ's Restaurants, Inc.

John M. Hinshaw; age 44; Executive Vice President,echnology and Operations

Mr. Hinshaw has served as Executive ViaskRent, Technology and Operations since Novembgt . 2Previously, Mr. Hinshaw served
as Vice President and General Manager of Informeiolutions at The Boeing Company, an aerospac@aoyn from January 2011 to Octo
2011 and as Global Chief Information Officer forddmg from June 2007 to December 2010. He also sa&va director of Bank of New York
Mellon.

Abdo George Kadifa; age 55; Executive Vice PresidénStrategic Relationships

Mr. Kadifa has served as Executive VicesRient, Strategic Relationships since May 2014viBusly, Mr. Kadifa served as Executive
Vice President, Software from May 2012 to May 20R#or to that, he served as a director of Silvake, a private equity firm, from June 2(
to May 2012.

Tracy S. Keogh; age 53; Executive Vice President,utfnan Resources

Ms. Keogh has served as Executive Viceifeas Human Resources since April 2011. Previgudly. Keogh served as Senior Vice
President of Human Resources at Hewitt Associatespvider of human resources consulting services) May 2007 until March 2011.

Catherine A. Lesjak; age 55; Executive Vice Preside and Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Lesjak has served as Executive VicsiBemit and Chief Financial Officer since Janua20s. Lesjak served as interim Chief
Executive Officer from August 2010 until Novemb&1B. She also serves as a director of SunPowenGipn.
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Todd R. Morgenfeld; age 42; Treasurer and Senior \de President, Corporate Development and Corporate dalytics

Mr. Morgenfeld has served as TreasurerSardor Vice President, Corporate Development ang@ate Analytics since November 20
Previously, Mr. Morgenfeld served as Senior Viceditent, HP Mobility, supporting our strategy ofyiding integrated solutions for the
rapidly changing information technology landscdpam June 2013 to October 2013. Prior to that, Morgenfeld served in several roles at
Silver Lake, a private equity firm, from 2004 urilay 2013, most recently serving as a director.

Michael G. Nefkens; age 45; Executive Vice PresiderEnterprise Services

Mr. Nefkens has served as Executive Viasigent, Enterprise Services since December 2G&gidRsly, he served in that role in an
acting capacity since August 2012. Prior to that, Nefkens served as Senior Vice President and i@ekkanager of Enterprise Services in
EMEA region from November 2009 to August 2012, aftaving served in client-facing roles for somecaterprise Services' largest clients
since joining the business in 2001. He also semges director of Riverbed Technology, Inc.

Jeff T. Ricci; age 53; Senior Vice President, Contiler and Principal Accounting Officer

Mr. Ricci has served as Senior Vice Pragtidéontroller and Principal Accounting Officer sApril 2014. Previously, Mr. Ricci served
as Controller and Principal Accounting Officer aniaterim basis from November 2013 to April 2014ioPto that, Mr. Ricci served as Vice
President of Finance for our Technology and Opemnatbrganization from May 2012 to November 2013. Ricci served as Vice President of
Finance for Global Accounts and HP Financial Sewiitom March 2011 to May 2012 and Vice Presidéiimance for HP Software from
March 2009 to March 2011. Prior to joining HP, MRicci served as Senior Vice President of Financ®fA Systems, Inc., an enterprise
software company, from 2000 until June 2008.

John F. Schultz; age 50; Executive Vice PresiderGeneral Counsel and Secretary

Mr. Schultz has served as Executive ViesBent, General Counsel and Secretary since 2ptiP. Previously, he served as Deputy
General Counsel for Litigation, Investigations &@ldbal Functions from September 2008 to April 20@m March 2005 to September 2008,
Mr. Schultz was a partner in the litigation praetat Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP, where, among ottleents, he supported HP as external
counsel on a variety of litigation and regulatorgttars.

William L. Veghte; age 47; Executive Vice Presidenand General Manager, Enterprise Group

Mr. Veghte has served as Executive Viceident and General Manager of the Enterprise Gsinge August 2013. Previously, he servec
as Chief Operating Officer from May 2012 to Aug@6t.3. Prior to that, Mr. Veghte served as Execudiee President of HP Software from
May 2010 to May 2012. Prior to joining HP, Mr. Veglserved as Senior Vice President of the Windavssness group at Microsoft
Corporation, a software company, from February 200 January 2010.

Dion J. Weisler; age 47; Executive Vice PresidenBrinting and Personal Systems Group

Mr. Weisler has served as Executive VicesRient of the Printing and Personal Systems Gsge June 2013. Previously, he served as
Senior Vice President and Managing Director, Pnopeind Personal Systems, Asia Pacific and JapanJamuary 2012 to June 2013. Prior to
joining HP, he was Vice President and Chief Opega@fficer of the Product and Mobile Internet DagiHome Groups at Lenovo Group Lt
a technology company, from January 2008 to Decer2bet .
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Margaret C. Whitman; age 58; Chairman, President al Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Whitman has served as Chairman sinlye2Di4, President and Chief Executive Officer siseptember 2011 and as a member of
our Board of Directors since January 2011. Fromdid@011 to September 2011, Ms. Whitman servedpasteime strategic advisor to
Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers, a private eqdityn. Previously, Ms. Whitman served as President @hief Executive Officer of eBay Inc.,
from 1998 to March 2008. Prior to joining eBay, Mghitman held executive-level positions at Haslmo,|FTD, Inc., The Stride Rite
Corporation, The Walt Disney Company, and Bain &@any. Ms. Whitman also serves as a director ofAtleeter & Gamble Company and
is a former director of Zipcar, Inc.

Robert Youngjohns; age 63; Executive Vice Presiderand General Manager, HP Software

Mr. Youngjohns has served as Executive Woesident and General Manager of HP Software $taye2014. Previously,
Mr. Youngjohns served as Senior Vice President@eaderal Manager of the HP Autonomy /Information lsigement business unit, within HP
Software from September 2012 to May 2014. Prigoitting HP, he was President of Microsoft North Aia from September 2007 to
September 2012 and was President and Chief ExecDfiicer of Callidus Software from August 20053eptember 2007. Prior to that, he
spent 10 years at Sun Microsystems, where he hadety of leadership positions in sales and gémeeemagement both regionally and
globally.

Employees
We had approximately 302,000 employeesdwdde as of October 31, 2014.
Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, QuarterlypRrts on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-tkamendments to reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(dh@Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedyaitable on our website at
http://www.hp.com/investor/home, as soon as reddgrmaacticable after HP electronically files suelports with, or furnishes those reports to
the Securities and Exchange Commission. HP's Catp@overnance Guidelines, Board of Directors' cdtemcharters (including the chart
of the Audit Committee, Finance and Investment Cdtteis, HR and Compensation Committee, Technology@itee, and Nominating,
Governance and Social Responsibility Committee)@utk of ethics entitled "Standards of Businessd@ot! are also available at that same
location on our website. Stockholders may request €opies of these documents from:

Hewlett-Packard Company
Attention: Investor Relations
3000 Hanover Street
Palo Alto, CA 94304
http://www.hp.com/investor/informationrequest

Additional Information

Microsoft® and Windows® are U.S.-registetetiemarks of Microsoft Corporation. Intel®, Itami® , Intel®AtomTM, and Intel®
Itanium® are trademarks of Intel Corporation in W@ted States and other countries. AMD is a traaténof Advanced Micro Devices, Inc.
ARM® is a registered trademark of ARM Limited. UN&Xis a registered trademark of The Open Group.

17




Table of Contents
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.

The following discussion of risk factorsntains forward-looking statements. These risk fiectoay be important for understanding any
statement in this Form 10-K or elsewhere. The faithg information should be read in conjunction wiart I, Item 7, "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operation” and the Consolidated Findr8ta@tements and related notes in Pa
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplemental'DHtthis Form 10-K.

Because of the following factors, as wslbgher variables affecting our results of operetjgast financial performance may not be a
reliable indicator of future performance, and histal trends should not be used to anticipate tesultrends in future periods.

If we are unsuccessful at addressing our businebaltenges, our business and results of operationaynibe adversely affected and ¢
ability to invest in and grow our business could lmited.

We are in the process of addressing maaifesiges facing our business. One set of challeredates to dynamic and accelerating marke
trends, such as the decline in the PC market,ihwwth of multi-architecture devices running compgtoperating systems, the market shift
towards tablets within mobility, the market shdtdloud-related infrastructure, software, and s and the growth in software-as-a-service
business models. Another set of challenges refatelsanges in the competitive landscape. Our ntajmpetitors are expanding their product
and service offerings with integrated products smidtions; our business-specific competitors aerting increased competitive pressure in
targeted areas and are going after new marketsroarging competitors are introducing new techniekgnd business models; and our
alliance partners in some businesses are incrdggiagoming our competitors in others. A third skthallenges relates to business model an
go-to-market execution. In addition, we are facnggries of significant macroeconomic challengeduiding weakness across many
geographic regions, particularly in the United &aCentral Eastern Europe and Russia, and cedairtries and businesses in Asia. We may
experience delays in the anticipated timing ofvéiigis related to these efforts and higher thareetgd or unanticipated execution costs. In
addition, we are vulnerable to increased risks@ased with these efforts given our large portfaidusinesses, the broad range of geograph
regions in which we and our customers and partoeesate, and the integration of acquired busine#seg do not succeed in these efforts, or
if these efforts are more costly or time-consunthan expected, our business and results of opesatiay be adversely affected, which could
limit our ability to invest in and grow our busises

In May 2012, we announced a company-wid&weturing plan. The restructuring plan includethbvoluntary early retirement programs
and non-voluntary workforce reductions. Significaeks associated with these actions that may inqai ability to achieve anticipated cost
reductions or that may otherwise harm our busimedade delays in implementation of anticipated kiorce reductions in highly regulated
locations outside of the United States, particylarlEurope and Asia, decreases in employee maralghe failure to meet operational targets
due to the loss of employees. In addition, ouritgttib achieve the anticipated cost savings andrdblenefits from these actions within the
expected time frame is subject to many estimatdsaagumptions. These estimates and assumptiosalgezt to significant economic,
competitive and other uncertainties, some of whiehbeyond our control. If these estimates andnasians are incorrect, if we experience
delays, or if other unforeseen events occur, osinass and financial results could be adversebcsdtl.

Competitive pressures could harm our revenue, groggin and prospects.

We encounter aggressive competition fromenous and varied competitors in all areas of ogirtess, and our competitors may target
our key market segments. We compete primarily erbisis of technology, performance, price, qualéiiability, brand, reputation,
distribution, range of products and services, @hsise of our products, account relationships,arast training, service and support,
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security, availability of application software, aimdernet infrastructure offerings. If our produydservices, support and cost structure do not
enable us to compete successfully based on ampseé tcriteria, our results of operations and praspeould be harmed.

We have a large portfolio of businessesrandt allocate resources across all of those bssésewhile competing with companies that
have much smaller portfolios or specialize in onenore of these product lines. As a result, we magst less in certain areas of our busine
than our competitors do, and these competitorshmasg greater financial, technical and marketingueses available to them than our
businesses that compete against them. Industrnplidason also may affect competition by creatiaggler, more homogeneous and potentially
stronger competitors in the markets in which we peta, and our competitors also may affect our lassiby entering into exclusive
arrangements with existing or potential customersuppliers.

Companies with whom we have alliances meareas may be competitors in other areas. Itiaddcompanies with whom we have
alliances also may acquire or form alliances with@mpetitors, which could reduce their busineitb us. If we are unable to effectively
manage these complicated relationships with alégrartners, our cash flows and results of operationld be adversely affected.

We face aggressive price competition fargeducts and services and, as a result, we mag toecontinue lowering the prices of man'
our products and services to stay competitive, avaiilthe same time trying to maintain or improweereie and gross margin. In addition,
competitors who have a greater presence in sortieeddwer-cost markets in which we compete maytbe & offer lower prices than we are
able to offer. Our cash flows, results of operatiand financial condition may be adversely affettgthese and other industry-wide pricing
pressures.

Because our business model is based omdmmgvnnovative and higleuality products, we may spend a proportionategatgr amount o
research and development than some of our compzetifave cannot proportionately decrease our strscture on a timely basis in respons
competitive price pressures, our gross margin dredefore, our profitability could be adverselyesfied. In addition, if our pricing and other
factors are not sufficiently competitive, or if teds an adverse reaction to our product decisiwegnay lose market share in certain areas,
which could adversely affect our revenue and protspe

Even if we are able to maintain or incre@seket share for a particular product, revenuddcdacline because the product is in a matu
industry or market segment or contains technolbgy is becoming obsolete. For example, our Stobag@aess unit is experiencing the effects
of a market transition towards converged productssolutions, which has led to a decline in denfandur traditional storage products. In
addition, the performance of our Business Critgdtems business unit has been affected by thindécldemand for UNIX servers and
concerns about the development of new versionsfof/are to support our Itaniufmased products. Revenue and margins also couloheettle
to increased competition from other types of prasiu€eor example, growing demand for an increasingyaof mobile computing devices and
the development of cloublased solutions has reduced demand for some @xiating hardware products. In addition, refill amthanufacture
alternatives for some of HP's LaserJet toner aki@ticartridges compete with our printing supphesiness.

If we cannot successfully execute on our strategydacontinue to develop, manufacture and market pusts, services and solutions th
meet customer requirements for innovation and quwgliour revenue and gross margin may suffer.

Our long-term strategy is focused on legar@ our portfolio of hardware, software and seegias we adapt to a changing and hybrid
model of IT delivery and consumption driven by grewing adoption of cloud computing and increaseghand for integrated IT solutions. To
successfully execute
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on this strategy, we need to continue evolvingfoaus towards the delivery of integrated IT soloidor our customers and to continue to
invest and expand into cloud computing, security,data and mobility. Any failure to successfulkeeute this strategy, including any failure
to invest sufficiently in strategic growth areasuld adversely affect our business, results of ager and financial results.

The process of developing new high-techgwloroducts, software, services and solutions am@iecing existing hardware and software
products, services and solutions is complex, c@stly uncertain, and any failure by us to anticigattomers' changing needs and emerging
technological trends accurately could significamidym our market share and results of operatiomse¥ample, as the transition to an
environment characterized by cloud-based compuatimfsoftware being delivered as a service progsessemust continue to successfully
develop and deploy cloud-based solutions for ostarners. We must make long-term investments, dpv@@btain, and protect, appropriate
intellectual property, and commit significant resteand development and other resources beforeikgamhether our predictions will
accurately reflect customer demand for our prodwetsrices and solutions. In addition, after weedgy a product, we must be able to
manufacture appropriate volumes quickly while atsmnaging costs and preserving margins. To accomitiis, we must accurately forecast
volumes, mixes of products and configurations thaet customer requirements, and we may not suateduing so within a given product's
life cycle or at all. Any delay in the developmemtpduction or marketing of a new product, sengcesolution could result in us not being
among the first to market, which could further hayan competitive position.

In the course of conducting our businessnwst adequately address quality issues assoeidtedur products, services and solutions,
including defects in our engineering, design andufacturing processes and unsatisfactory performander service contracts, as well as
defects in third-party components included in owrdpicts and unsatisfactory performance or evencioabk acts by third-party contractors or
subcontractors or the employees of those contmctosubcontractors. In order to address quaktyds, we work extensively with our
customers and suppliers and engage in produahgetstidetermine the causes of problems and to dpewald implement appropriate solutions.
However, the products, services and solutionsweabffer are complex, and our regular testing amality control efforts may not be effective
in controlling or detecting all quality issues oraga, particularly with respect to faulty compotgemanufactured by third-parties. If we are
unable to determine the cause, find an appropsiztdion or offer a temporary fix (or "patch") tddress quality issues with our products, we
may delay shipment to customers, which would dedagnue recognition and could adversely affectreuenue and reported results.
Addressing quality issues can be expensive andresayt in additional warranty, replacement and otusts, adversely affecting our profits. If
new or existing customers have difficulty operating products or are dissatisfied with our servimesolutions, our results of operations coulc
be adversely affected, and we could face possialms if we fail to meet our customers' expectatidn addition, quality issues can impair our
relationships with new or existing customers aneeagkely affect our brand and reputation, which dpid turn, adversely affect our results of
operations.

Our plan to separate into two independent publi¢ghgded companies is subject to various risks anctertainties and may not be completed
in accordance with the expected plans or anticipétténeline, or at all, and will involve significantime and expense, which could disrupt or
adversely affect our business.

On October 6, 2014, we announced plansparsite into two independent publicly-traded congmThe separation, which is currently
targeted to be completed by the end of fiscal 2&l8ubject to approval by our Board of Directorshe final terms of the separation and
market, regulatory and certain other conditionsatiitipated developments, including changes irctdmpetitive conditions of Hewlett-
Packard Enterprise's and HP Inc.'s respective rgrkessible delays in obtaining various tax opisior rulings, regulatory approvals or
clearances, the uncertainty of the financial markeid challenges in executing the separation, atelid or prevent the
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completion of the proposed separation, or causerbgosed separation to occur on terms or conditibat are different or less favorable than
expected.

We have established a Separation Manage@féne tasked with driving the separation procé¥s. expect that the process of completing
the proposed separation will be time-consumingiandive significant costs and expenses, which magignificantly higher than what we
currently anticipate and may not yield a discemibénefit if the separation is not completed. EXaguhe proposed separation will require
significant time and attention from our senior mgeraent and employees, which could adversely affecbusiness, financial results and
results of operations. We may also experience asa@ difficulties in attracting, retaining and mating employees during the pendency of th
separation and following its completion, which @bblarm our businesses.

The separation may not achieve some or all of thiieipated benefits.

We may not realize some or all of the apéited strategic, financial, operational, marketingther benefits from the separation. As
independent publicly-traded companies, Hewlett-BatEnterprise and HP Inc. will be smaller, leaediified companies with a narrower
business focus and may be more vulnerable to chgmgarket conditions, which could materially andexdely affect their respective busin
financial condition and results of operations. Rart there can be no assurance that the combiee @bthe common stock of the two
publicly-traded companies will be equal to or greater thhatwihe value of our common stock would have beehthe proposed separation
occurred.

The proposed separation may result in disruptions and negatively impact our relationships with, iocustomers and other business
partners.

Uncertainty related to the proposed sefmarahay lead customers and other parties with whietcurrently do business or may do
business in the future to terminate or attemptegatiate changes in existing business relationsbipsonsider entering into business
relationships with parties other than us. Thesaigitons could have a material and adverse effectus businesses, financial condition, result:
of operations and prospects. The effect of sudlupli|ons could be exacerbated by any delays irctinepletion of the separation.

The separation could result in substantial tax lidity.

We intend to obtain an opinion of outsidesel to the effect that, for U.S. federal incamepurposes, the separation will qualify, for
both HP and its stockholders, as a reorganizatidnmthe meaning of Sections 368(a)(1)(D) and 8b8e U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. In addition, we intend to ol#ginvate letter ruling from the Internal Revenwge (the "IRS") and/or one or more
opinions of outside counsel regarding certain maitapacting the U.S. federal income tax treatnodihe separation for HP and certain rel
transactions as transactions that are generaHljréaxfor U.S. federal income tax purposes. Thaiopis of outside counsel and any IRS privat:
letter ruling will be based, among other thingsyvanious factual assumptions we have authorized-@mesentations we have made to outside
counsel or the IRS. If any of these assumptiongresentations are, or become, inaccurate or iplgtey reliance on the opinions and/or IRS
private letter ruling may be affected. An opinidroatside counsel represents their legal judgmaentsbnot binding on the IRS or any court.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that thewl$iot challenge the conclusions reflected ia tipinions or that a court would not sustain
such a challenge. In addition, we may incur ceraxcosts in connection with the separation, iditig non-U.S. tax expense resulting from
separations in multiple non-U.S. jurisdictions thatnot legally provide for tax-free separationbjckt may be material.
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Economic weakness and uncertainty could adversdfge our revenue, gross margin and expens

Our revenue and gross margin depend sagmifiy on worldwide economic conditions and the dadhfor technology hardware, software
and services in the markets in which we competen&ic weakness and uncertainty have resultedmaydresult in the future, in decreased
revenue, gross margin, earnings or growth ratesramtreased expenses and difficulty in managmegmtory levels. For example, we are
continuing to experience macroeconomic weaknessaenany geographic regions, particularly in theoge, the Middle East and Africa
("EMEA") region, China and other higirowth markets. The U.S. federal government spendins that went into effect on March 1, 2013 |
further reduce demand for our products, servicessatutions from organizations that receive fundimagn the U.S. government and could
negatively affect macroeconomic conditions in theteéd States, which could further reduce demana@womproducts, services and solutions.
Economic weakness and uncertainty may adverseadgtademand for our products, services and solutimay result in increased expenses du
to higher allowances for doubtful accounts and pidégoodwill and asset impairment charges, ang make it more difficult for us to make
accurate forecasts of revenue, gross margin, ¢asis find expenses.

We also have experienced, and may expearignihe future, gross margin declines in certaisitesses, reflecting the effect of items suct
as competitive pricing pressures and increasesnponent and manufacturing costs resulting frorhdridabor and material costs borne by
manufacturers and suppliers that, as a resultopetitive pricing pressures or other factors, wewarable to pass on to our customers. In
addition, our business may be disrupted if we a@ble to obtain equipment, parts or components fsansuppliers—and our suppliers from
their suppliers—due to the insolvency of key sugyglior the inability of key suppliers to obtaindite

Economic weakness and uncertainty couldeaurr expenses to vary materially from our expigects. Any financial turmoil affecting the
banking system and financial markets or any sigaift financial services institution failures counklatively impact our treasury operations, a:
the financial condition of such parties may detetie rapidly and without notice in times of marketatility and disruption. Poor financial
performance of asset markets combined with lower@st rates and the adverse effects of fluctuatimgency exchange rates could lead to
higher pension and post-retirement benefit experistssest and other expenses could vary mateffi@in expectations depending on changes
in interest rates, borrowing costs, currency exgeamates, costs of hedging activities and theviaine of derivative instruments. Economic
downturns also may lead to restructuring actiortsassociated expenses.

The revenue and profitability of our operations havwistorically varied, which makes our future finanal results less predictable.

Our revenue, gross margin and profit vampag our products and services, customer groupgeaographic markets and therefore will
likely be different in future periods than our amt results. Our revenue depends on the overaladdrfor our products and services. Delays ¢
reductions in IT spending could have a materiakask effect on demand for our products and serweaeish could result in a significant
decline in revenue. In addition, revenue declimesome of our businesses, particularly our senbcsinesses, may affect revenue in our othe
businesses as we may lose cross-selling oppodantiverall gross margins and profitability in ajiyen period are dependent partially on the
product, service, customer and geographic mix ctftkin that period's net revenue. Competitionslatg, investigations and other risks
affecting those businesses therefore may havendisant impact on our overall gross margin andfipability. Certain segments have a higher
fixed cost structure and more variation in grossgims across their business units and productga$f than others and may therefore
experience significant operating profit volatiliy a quarterly basis. In addition, newer geograptackets may be relatively less profitable due
to investments associated with entering those nseed local pricing pressures, and we may havieulify establishing and
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maintaining the operating infrastructure necestasupport the high growth rate associated withesofrthose markets. Market trends, indu
shifts, competitive pressures, commoditization roidoicts, seasonal rebates, increased componehippirgy costs, regulatory impacts and
other factors may result in reductions in revenupressure on gross margins of certain segmeraginen period, which may lead to
adjustments to our operations. Moreover, our effartaddress the challenges facing our businedd swuease the level of variability in our
financial results because the rate at which weabke to realize the benefits from those efforts wery from period to period.

If we fail to manage the distribution of our prodiis and services properly, our revenue, gross masgimd profitability could suffer

We use a variety of distribution methodsédl our products and services, including thirdypaesellers and distributors and both direct
and indirect sales to enterprise accounts and co@su Successfully managing the interaction ofdigct and indirect channel efforts to reach
various potential customer segments for our pradant services is a complex process. Moreovere gach distribution method has distinct
risks and gross margins, our failure to implemantrmost advantageous balance in the delivery nfodelur products and services could
adversely affect our revenue and gross margingterdfore our profitability. Other distribution ks are described below.

. Our financial results could be materially adedysaffected due to channel conflicts or if theaficial conditions of our channel
partners were to weaken.

Our results of operations may be adversely affelofeany conflicts that might arise between ourmasisales channels, the loss
or deterioration of any alliance or distributiomeargement or the loss of retail shelf space. Moge@mome of our wholesale and
retail distributors may have insufficient financiasources and may not be able to withstand chandmssiness conditions,
including economic weakness and industry consatidaMany of our significant distributors operate marrow product margir
and have been negatively affected by businessyresssConsiderable trade receivables that areawetred by collateral or
credit insurance are outstanding with our distidouind retail channel partners. Revenue from @adlisales could suffer, and
could experience disruptions in distribution, ifr alistributors' financial conditions, abilities borrow funds in the credit marke
or operations weaken.

. Our inventory management is complex as we contiawgell a significant mix of products through distitors.

We must manage inventory effectively, particulavigh respect to sales to distributors, which inesforecasting demand and
pricing issues. Distributors may increase orderindwperiods of product shortages, cancel ordetseif inventory is too high or
delay orders in anticipation of new products. Distrors also may adjust their orders in respongbhdsupply of our products
and the products of our competitors and seasametifitions in end-user demand. Our reliance updineiat distribution
methods may reduce visibility to demand and pri¢cgsyies, and therefore make forecasting more diffitf we have excess or
obsolete inventory, we may have to reduce our pracel write down inventory. Moreover, our use dliract distribution
channels may limit our willingness or ability tojast prices quickly and otherwise to respond taipg changes by competitors.
We also may have limited ability to estimate futpreduct rebate redemptions in order to price eadpcts effectively.

We depend on third-party suppliers, and our finaatresults could suffer if we fail to manage supets properly.

Our operations depend on our ability tacmate our needs for components, products andcgsryvas well as our suppliers' ability to
deliver sufficient quantities of quality componemisoducts and services at reasonable prices atiménfor us to meet critical schedules. Gi
the wide variety
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of systems, products and services that we offerlatge number of our suppliers and contract martwifars that are located around the world,
and the long lead times required to manufactusssrable and deliver certain components and prodpiciblems could arise in production,
planning, and inventory management that could aslyoharm us. In addition, our ongoing efforts piimize the efficiency of our supply che
could cause supply disruptions and be more expentie-consuming and resource intensive than eégge©ther supplier problems that we
could face include component shortages, excesdysufgks related to the terms of our contractshweitippliers, risks associated with conting
workers, and risks related to our relationshipsiwihgle source suppliers, as described below.

. Shortages. Occasionally we may experience a shortage o, d®lay in receiving, certain components as ate$strong
demand, capacity constraints, supplier financiadkmesses, inability of suppliers to borrow fundghia credit markets, disputes
with suppliers (some of whom are also customeisjugtions in the operations of component supplietiser problems
experienced by suppliers or problems faced dutiegransition to new suppliers. For example, ouB€iness relies heavily
upon OMs to manufacture its products and is thegedlependent upon the continuing operations ofetlids to fulfill demand
for our PC products. HP represents a substantiéibpoof the business of some of these OMs, andchayges to the nature or
volume of business transacted by HP with a pagicOM could adversely affect the operations andrfaial condition of the
OM and lead to shortages or delays in receivinglyets from that OM. If shortages or delays persiig,price of certain
components may increase, and we may be exposedlitygssues or the components may not be availabhll. We may not
able to secure enough components at reasonabéss iof acceptable quality to build products avjde services in a timely
manner in the quantities or according to the spetibns needed. Accordingly, our revenue and gneagyin could suffer as we
could lose timesensitive sales, incur additional freight costb@unable to pass on price increases to our cussoth@e cannc
adequately address supply issues, we might haneetmineer some products or services offeringsgiwbould result in further
costs and delays.

. Oversupply. In order to secure components for the provisioproducts or services, at times we may make advaagments t
suppliers or enter into non-cancelable commitmeritts vendors. In addition, we may purchase comptssinategically in
advance of demand to take advantage of favoralmmgror to address concerns about the availallitjuture components. If
we fail to anticipate customer demand properlgragorary oversupply could result in excess or @isaomponents, which
could adversely affect our gross margin.

. Contractual terms. As a result of binding price or purchase committaevith vendors, we may be obligated to purchase
components or services at prices that are higlaer ttose available in the current market and bieddrin our ability to respond
to changing market conditions. If we commit to ghasing components or services for prices in exceti®e theneurrent marke
price, we may be at a disadvantage to competitbsivave access to components or services at lavegspour gross margin
could suffer, and we could incur additional chargeating to inventory obsolescence. In additioapgof our competitors
obtain products or components from the same OMssapgliers that we utilize. Our competitors mayaitobetter pricing, mor
favorable contractual terms and conditions, andenfavorable allocations of products and componeutig periods of limited
supply, and our ability to engage in relationshigith certain OMs and suppliers could be limitedeTiractice employed by our
PC business of purchasing product components andfarring those components to its OMs may creaelsupplier
receivables with the OMs that, depending on tharfaial condition of the OMs, may create collectipitisks. In addition,
certain of our OMs and suppliers may decide toatisaue conducting business with us. Any of thes@as by our competitol
OMs or suppliers could adversely affect our futtgsults of operations and financial condition.
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. Contingent workers.We also rely on third-party suppliers for thepson of contingent workers, and our failure torrage our
use of such workers effectively could adverselgetfbur results of operations. We have been expwsearious legal claims
relating to the status of contingent workers ingihst and could face similar claims in the futiie may be subject to shortag
oversupply or fixed contractual terms relating emtingent workers. Our ability to manage the sizeand costs associated with,
the contingent workforce may be subject to addélamonstraints imposed by local laws.

. Single source suppliersOur use of single source suppliers for certamponents could exacerbate any supplier issues. We
obtain a significant number of components from kbrsgpurces due to technology, availability, prigeality or other
considerations. For example, we rely on Intel twvfte us with a sufficient supply of processorsrfany of our PCs,
workstations and servers and AMD to provide us w&igufficient supply of processors for other praduSome of those
processors are customized for our products. Newymts that we introduce may utilize custom comptsebtained from only
one source initially until we have evaluated whethere is a need for additional suppliers. Replg@ single source supplier
could delay production of some products as replacgrsuppliers may be subject to capacity consgainbther output
limitations. For some components, such as custahiaenponents and some of the processors that vaandbdm Intel,
alternative sources either may not exist or mayr@ble to produce the quantities of those companegtessary to satisfy our
production requirements. In addition, we sometim@&ghase components from single source suppligtsrushort-term
agreements that contain favorable pricing and d#vens but that may be unilaterally modified omarated by the supplier wi
limited notice and with little or no penalty. Therformance of such single source suppliers unaeetlagreements (and the
renewal or extension of those agreements uponaiteitms) may affect the quality, quantity and @€ components to HP. T
loss of a single source supplier, the deterioradioour relationship with a single source suppl@rany unilateral modification
the contractual terms under which we are suppliedponents by a single source supplier could adiyeastect our revenue,
gross margin and cash flows.

Business disruptions could seriously harm our furirevenue and financial condition and increase otwsts and expense

Our worldwide operations could be disrupgtgcearthquakes, telecommunications failures, pawevater shortages, tsunamis, floods,
hurricanes, typhoons, fires, extreme weather cammdit medical epidemics or pandemics and otheralabu manmade disasters or catastrophi
events, for which we are predominantly self-insufBee occurrence of any of these business disnuptiould result in significant losses,
seriously harm our revenue, profitability and fineh condition, adversely affect our competitivesjpion, increase our costs and expenses, an
require substantial expenditures and recovery timoeder to fully resume operations. Our corpofraadquarters and a portion of our researct
and development activities are located in Califarmind other critical business operations and sufroar suppliers are located in California
and Asia, near major earthquake faults known faansie activity. In addition, six of our principaloidwide IT data centers are located in the
southern United States, making our operations mulreerable to natural disasters or other businessgtions occurring in that geographical
area. The manufacture of product components, tta fissembly of our products and other criticakapens are concentrated in certain
geographic locations, including Shanghai, SingapoikIndia. We also rely on major logistics hubisgrily in Asia to manufacture and
distribute our products and in the southwesterrtddnStates to import products into the AmericasoregOur operations could be adversely
affected if manufacturing, logistics or other opinas in these locations are disrupted for anyaeamcluding natural disasters, information
technology system failures, military actions ormmmic, business, labor, environmental, public leatgulatory or political issues. The
ultimate impact on us, our significant suppliersl @ar general
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infrastructure of being located near locations madaerable to the occurrence of the aforementidnesiness disruptions, such as near major
earthquake faults, and being consolidated in gegaographical areas is unknown and remains uicerta

Our sales cycle makes planning and inventory managgat difficult and future financial results less jpdictable.

In some of our segments, our quarterlyssafeen have reflected a pattern in which a dispridgnate percentage of each quarter's total
sales occurs towards the end of such quarter.urt@gen sales pattern makes predicting revenueingarrcash flow from operations and
working capital for each financial period difficuibhcreases the risk of unanticipated variationguarterly results and financial condition and
places pressure on our inventory management angtitsgsystems. If predicted demand is substaptgakater than orders, there may be ex
inventory. Alternatively, if orders substantiallya=ed predicted demand, we may not be able tdlfallfiof the orders received in the last few
weeks of each quarter. Depending on when they ancuquarter, developments such as a systemsdadamponent pricing movements,
component shortages or global logistics disrupticnald adversely impact inventory levels and rissod operations in a manner that is
disproportionate to the number of days in the quatfected.

We experience some seasonal trends irateeo§ our products that also may produce variatiargquarterly results and financial conditi
For example, sales to governments (particularlgsstad the U.S. government) are often strongerarihird calendar quarter, consumer sales al
often stronger in the fourth calendar quarter, maghy customers whose fiscal and calendar yeathargame spend their remaining capital
budget authorizations in the fourth calendar quantier to new budget constraints in the first calar quarter of the following year. European
sales are often weaker during the summer monthwadd during the spring and early summer also magdbersely impacted by market
anticipation of seasonal trends. Moreover, to ttterd that we introduce new products in anticipatid seasonal demand trends, our
discounting of existing products may adversely@ftir gross margin prior to or shortly after spechduct launches. Typically, our third fiscal
quarter is our weakest and our fourth fiscal quasteur strongest. Many of the factors that creaue affect seasonal trends are beyond our
control.

Due to the international nature of our business, lgal or economic changes or other factors coutérm our future revenue, costs ar
expenses, and financial condition.

Sales outside the United States make upappately 65% of our net revenue. In additionjreereasing portion of our business activit
being conducted in emerging markets, including Br&ussia, India and China. Our future revenuesgmmargin, expenses and financial
condition could suffer due to a variety of intefoatl factors, including:

. ongoing instability or changes in a country's g@iea's economic or political conditions, includiimglation, recession, interest
rate fluctuations and actual or anticipated mi#itar political conflicts;

. longer collection cycles and financial instabilitsnong customers;

. trade regulations and procedures and actioestaify production, pricing and marketing of produict

. local labor conditions and regulations, inclugllocal labor issues faced by specific HP suppbed OMs;
. managing a geographically dispersed workforce;

. changes in the regulatory or legal environment;
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. differing technology standards or customer requéets;

. import, export or other business licensing requésts or requirements relating to making foreigecliinvestments, which
could increase our cost of doing business in aejtaisdictions, prevent us from shipping productgarticular countries or
markets, affect our ability to obtain favorablenterfor components, increase our operating codtsadrto penalties or
restrictions;

. difficulties associated with repatriating earnimgserated or held abroad in a tax-efficient maanerchanges in tax laws; and

. fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shiipg and receiving capacity, and other disruptionthe transportation and
shipping infrastructure at important geographimpebf exit and entry for our products and shipraent

The factors described above also couldugdisour product and component manufacturing andskgpliers located outside of the United
States. For example, we rely on manufacturers iwdrafor the production of notebook computers atieosuppliers in Asia for product
assembly and manufacture.

Currencies other than the U.S. dollar,udaig the euro, the British pound, Chinese yuamiehi and the Japanese Yen, can have an
impact on our results (expressed in U.S. dolldnsparticular, the economic uncertainties relatmguropean sovereign and other debt
obligations and the related European financialuestiring efforts may cause the value of the earfiuctuate. Currency variations also
contribute to variations in sales of products aendises in impacted jurisdictions. For exampletha event that one or more European cour
were to replace the euro with another currency saies into such countries, or into Europe gengrabuld likely be adversely affected until
stable exchange rates are established. Accordifigbtuations in foreign currency rates, most nbtabe strengthening of the dollar against
euro, could adversely affect our revenue growttuiare periods. In addition, currency variations eaversely affect margins on sales of our
products in countries outside of the United State$ margins on sales of products that include corpis obtained from suppliers located
outside of the United States. We use a combinatidarward contracts and options designated as ftashhedges to protect against foreign
currency exchange rate risks. The effectivenessiohedges depends on our ability to accuratelyctast future cash flows, which is
particularly difficult during periods of uncertaitemand for our products and services and highlgtilelexchange rates. We may incur
significant losses from our hedging activities dai¢éactors such as volatility and currency variasioln addition, our hedging activities may be
ineffective or may not offset any or more than aipa of the adverse financial impact resultingnfrourrency variations. Losses associated
with hedging activities also may impact our reveand to a lesser extent our cost of sales anddiaboondition.

In many foreign countries, particularlytihose with developing economies, it is common tagre in business practices that are prohil
by laws and regulations applicable to us, suctheg$-breign Corrupt Practices Act (the "FCPA"). Egample, as discussed in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, the German ®Bbtisecutor's Office has been investigating afiega that certain current and former
employees of HP engaged in bribery, embezzlemeahtanevasion. In addition, the Polish Central ABirruption Bureau is conducting
investigations into potential FCPA violations bfoamer employee of an HP subsidiary in connectidgth wertain public-sector transactions in
Poland. Although we implement policies and proceduwtesigned to facilitate compliance with theses|awr employees, contractors and
agents, as well as those companies to which weonas certain of our business operations, mayaakens in violation of our policies. Any
such violation, even if prohibited by our policiesuld have an adverse effect on our businessemdation.
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Any failure by us to identify, manage, complete aimegrate acquisitions, divestitures and other sificant transactions successfully coul
harm our financial results, business and prospecasid the costs, expenses and other financial anérmional effects associated with
managing, completing and integrating acquisitionsay result in financial results that are differenhan expected.

As part of our business strategy, we mapme companies or businesses, divest businessessets, enter into strategic alliances and
ventures and make investments to further our basifmllectively, "business combination and invesittransactions"). In order to pursue
strategy successfully, we must identify candidédesnd successfully complete business combinatiahinvestment transactions, some of
which may be large or complex, and manage postrgassues such as the integration of acquirednlessies, products, services or employee:s
Risks associated with business combination andstment transactions include the following, any dieh could adversely affect our revenue,
gross margin, profitability and financial results:

. Managing business combination and investmens#retions requires varying levels of managemewouress, which may divert
our attention from other business operations.

. We may not fully realize all of the anticipated béts of any business combination and investmemtsaction, and the
timeframe for realizing benefits of a business coration and investment transaction may dependggrtipon the actions of
employees, advisors, suppliers or other third-parti

. Business combination and investment transactiane resulted, and in the future may result, gnificant costs and expenses
and charges to earnings, including those relatasgverance pay, early retirement costs, employeefibeosts, goodwill and
asset impairment charges, charges from the elinmaf duplicative facilities and contracts, assgpairment charges, inventc
adjustments, assumed litigation and other liabgitiegal, accounting and financial advisory feesl, required payments to
executive officers and key employees under retarglans.

. Any increased or unexpected costs, unanticipaddalys or failure to meet contractual obligationald make business
combination and investment transactions less @ia#tor unprofitable.

. Our ability to conduct due diligence with respecbtisiness combination and investment transact&rgspur ability to evaluate
the results of such due diligence, is dependent tpe veracity and completeness of statements iantbsures made or actions
taken by third-parties or their representatives.

. Our due diligence process may fail to identifynificant issues with the acquired company's pobdwality, financial
disclosures, accounting practices or internal abuteficiencies.

. The pricing and other terms of our contractsbiesiness combination and investment transactieqsine us to make estimates
and assumptions at the time we enter into theseagis, and, during the course of our due diligemeemay not identify all of
the factors necessary to estimate accurately aisciiming and other matters or we may incur cibstdusiness combination is
not consummated.

. In order to complete a business combinationianelstment transaction, we may issue common stoatientially creating
dilution for existing stockholders.

. We may borrow to finance business combination amdstment transactions, and the amount and termsyopotential future
acquisition-related or other borrowings, as welbtser factors, could affect our liquidity and fireaal condition.

. Our effective tax rate on an ongoing basis is uaggrand business combination and investmenta@ims could adversely
impact our effective tax rate.
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. An announced business combination and investmansaiction may not close timely or at all, which mayse our financial
results to differ from expectations in a given dear

. Business combination and investment transactionsleaa to litigation.

. If we fail to identify and successfully completrd integrate business combination and investinemsactions that further our
strategic objectives, we may be required to experdurces to develop products, services and teagypahternally, which may
put us at a competitive disadvantage.

We have incurred and will incur additiodabpreciation and amortization expense over theuubeés of certain assets acquired in
connection with business combination and investrtransactions, and, to the extent that the valugootiwill or intangible assets acquired in
connection with a business combination and investritfansaction becomes impaired, we may be requér@ttur additional material charges
relating to the impairment of those assets. Fomgte, in our third fiscal quarter of 2012, we radsu an $8.0 billion impairment charge
relating to the goodwill associated with our entesg services reporting unit within our former Sees segment and a $1.2 billion impairment
charge as a result of an asset impairment analf$ie "Compaq" trade name acquired in 2002. Intewtd in our fourth fiscal quarter of 2012,
we recorded an $8.8 billion impairment charge nmet¢pto the goodwill and intangible assets assodiatith Autonomy. If there are future
decreases in our stock price or significant chamgése business climate or results of operatidrmuo reporting units, we may incur additional
charges, which may include goodwill impairmentriangible asset charges.

Integration issues are often complex, teoasuming and expensive and, without proper planaird implementation, could significantly
disrupt our business and the acquired businesscHaléenges involved in integration include:

. combining product and service offerings and emgeor expanding into markets in which we are exjjerienced or are
developing expertise;

. convincing customers and distributors that thagaction will not diminish client service stardkaor business focus, persuading
customers and distributors to not defer purchadewisions or switch to other suppliers (which caelsult in our incurring
additional obligations in order to address custoumertainty), minimizing sales force attrition agpanding and coordinating
sales, marketing and distribution efforts;

. consolidating and rationalizing corporate ITrastructure, which may include multiple legacy syss from various acquisitions
and integrating software code and business progesse

. minimizing the diversion of management attentimnfrongoing business concerns;

. persuading employees that business cultures arpatdite, maintaining employee morale and retaikieg employees,
engaging with employee works councils represerdimgcquired company's ndhS. employees, integrating employees into
correctly estimating employee benefit costs andementing restructuring programs;

. coordinating and combining administrative, manufeia, research and development and other opegtsubsidiaries, facilitie
and relationships with third-parties in accordawith local laws and other obligations while mainiag adequate standards,
controls and procedures;

. achieving savings from supply chain integratiorg an

. managing integration issues shortly after or pemdlire completion of other independent transactions.

While we do not currently plan to divesyar our major businesses, we do regularly evalttedgpotential disposition of assets and
businesses that may no longer help us meet ouctolge. When we decide to sell assets or a busimesmay encounter difficulty in finding
buyers or alternative exit strategies on acceptaias in a timely manner, which could delay theieeement of our strategic
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objectives. We may also dispose of a businesg&ta or on terms that are less desirable thanaseanticipated. In addition, we may
experience greater dis-synergies than expectedhanichpact of the divestiture on our revenue ghomty be larger than projected. After
reaching an agreement with a buyer or seller feratquisition or disposition of a business, wesalgect to satisfaction of pre-closing
conditions as well as to necessary regulatory avemmental approvals on acceptable terms, whictotisatisfied or obtained, may preven
from completing the transaction. Dispositions mksp anvolve continued financial involvement in tiwested business, such as through
continuing equity ownership, guarantees, indemsitieother financial obligations. Under these ageaments, performance by the divested
businesses or other conditions outside of our cbntiuld affect our future financial results.

Our revenue, cost of sales, and expenses may sifffge cannot continue to license or enforce theétiectual property rights on which our
businesses depend or if third parties assert thatwiolate their intellectual property rights.

We rely upon patent, copyright, trademarlt rtade secret laws in the United States, sirtalas in other countries, and agreements with
our employees, customers, suppliers and otheregatt establish and maintain intellectual propedhts in the products and services we sell,
provide or otherwise use in our operations. Howgeany of our intellectual property rights coulddi®llenged, invalidated, infringed or
circumvented, or such intellectual property rigmiay not be sufficient to permit us to take advaatafjcurrent market trends or to otherwise
provide competitive advantages, either of whichl@¢wasult in costly product redesign efforts, distbtouance of certain product offerings or
other harm to our competitive position. Furthee limws of certain countries do not protect proprigtights to the same extent as the laws of
the United States. Therefore, in certain jurisditsi we may be unable to protect our proprietafygrtelogy adequately against unauthorized
third-party copying or use; this, too, could adedysaffect our competitive position.

Because of the rapid pace of technologibahge in the information technology industry, ma€bur business and many of our products
rely on key technologies developed or licensedhingltparties. We may not be able to obtain or gcargito obtain licenses and technologies
from these third-parties at all or on reasonalriese or such third-parties may demand cross-licetseur intellectual property. In addition, it
is possible that as a consequence of a mergeqaisdtion, third-parties may obtain licenses to soofiour intellectual property rights or our
business may be subject to certain restrictionsvileae not in place prior to the transaction. Cosatly, we may lose a competitive advant
with respect to these intellectual property righttsve may be required to enter into costly arrangi@snin order to terminate or limit these
rights.

Third-parties also may claim that we ortoogers indemnified by us are infringing upon thetellectual property rights. For example,
individuals and groups may purchase intellectuapprty assets for the purpose of asserting clafrirfringement and attempting to extract
settlements from companies such as HP and itsroesso The number of these claims has increaseztént periods and may continue to
increase in the future. If we cannot or do notrigeinfringed intellectual property at all or omasenable terms, or if we are required to
substitute similar technology from another soucee,operations could be adversely affected. Evereibelieve that intellectual property
claims are without merit, they can be time-consunand costly to defend against and may divert mamagt's attention and resources away
from our business. Claims of intellectual propénfyingement also might require us to redesignaiéfd products, enter into costly settlement
or license agreements, pay costly damage awards¢®ia temporary or permanent injunction prohibitiis from importing, marketing or
selling certain of our products. Even if we haveagnreement to indemnify us against such costdnttemnifying party may be unable or
unwilling to uphold its contractual obligationsus.
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Finally, our results of operations and cfieWvs have been and could continue to be afferrtegrtain periods and on an ongoing basis by
the imposition, accrual and payment of copyrighitds or similar fees. In certain countries (prirhaim Europe), proceedings are ongoing or
have been concluded involving HP in which grougsesenting copyright owners have sought or areisge impose upon and collect from
HP levies upon equipment (such as PCs, MFDs amtieps) alleged to be copying devices under apgdkciaivs. Other such groups have also
sought to modify existing levy schemes to incrdageamount of the levies that can be collected fusmOther countries that have not impose
levies on these types of devices are expectedtiémexexisting levy schemes, and countries thatdd@urrently have levy schemes may decide
to impose copyright levies on these types of deviéhe total amount of the copyright levies wilpead on the types of products determine
be subject to the levy, the number of units of éhpsoducts sold during the period covered by thg, land the per unit fee for each type of
product, all of which are affected by several festincluding the outcome of ongoing litigation @twing us and other industry participants anc
possible action by the legislative bodies in thpligable countries, and could be substantial. Comestly, the ultimate impact of these
copyright levies or similar fees, and our abilityrecover such amounts through increased pricemins uncertain.

Our revenue and profitability could suffer if we deot manage the risks associated with our servibasiness properly.
The risks that accompany our services lassimliffer from those of our other businesses addadle the following:

. The success of our services business is to a mignifdegree dependent on our ability to retainsigmificant services clients
and maintain or increase the level of revenues fitse clients. We may lose clients due to thengereor acquisition, business
failure, contract expiration or their selectionaofompeting service provider or decision to in-sewgervices. In addition, we
may not be able to retain or renew relationshigh wiur significant clients. As a result of busindssvnturns or for other
business reasons, we are also vulnerable to requoedssing volumes from our clients, which canuoedthe scope of services
provided and the prices for those services. We naiye able to replace the revenue and earningsdrty such lost clients or
reductions in services. In addition, our contrawts/ allow a client to terminate the contract foneenience, and we may not be
able to fully recover our investments in such ainstances.

. The pricing and other terms of some of our IT sEgiagreements, particularly our long-term IT outsing services
agreements, require us to make estimates and assomat the time we enter into these contractsdbald differ from actual
results. Any increased or unexpected costs or igigated delays in connection with the performaotthese engagements,
including delays caused by factors outside ourrobntould make these agreements less profitablenprofitable, which could
have an adverse effect on the profit margin ofldwservices business.

. Some of our IT services agreements require sigrifimvestment in the early stages that is expdotée recovered through
billings over the life of the agreement. These agrents often involve the construction of new ITisys and communications
networks and the development and deployment ofteetinologies. Substantial performance risk existsich agreement with
these characteristics, and some or all elemergsrefce delivery under these agreements are depeagen successful
completion of the development, construction andaiepent phases. Any failure to perform satisfatyannder these agreeme
may expose us to legal liability, result in thesla$ customers and harm our reputation, which cdaktease the revenues and
profitability of our IT services business.
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. Some of our outsourcing services agreements coptaimg provisions that permit a client to requadtenchmark study by a
mutually acceptable third-party. The benchmarkingepss typically compares the contractual priceusfservices against the
price of similar services offered by other spedffgoviders in a peer comparison group, subjeagreed upon adjustment and
normalization factors. Generally, if the benchmagkstudy shows that our pricing has a differendsida a specified range, and
the difference is not due to the unique requiresenthe client, then the parties will negotiateyood faith any appropriate
adjustments to the pricing. This may result inréduction of our rates for the benchmarked serjiegformed after the
implementation of those pricing adjustments, whiohld decrease the cash flows of our IT serviceiness.

. If we do not hire, train, motivate and effectivatilize employees with the right mix of skillsid experience in the right
geographic regions to meet the needs of our sexraloents, our profitably could suffer. For exampfeur employee utilization
rate is too low, our profitability and the level@figagement of our employees could suffer. If thidization rate is too high, it
could have an adverse effect on employee engageandrttrition and the quality of the work perfodnas well as our ability
to staff projects. If we are unable to hire andiret sufficient number of employees with the skilf backgrounds to meet
current demand, we might need to redeploy exigigrgonnel, increase our reliance on subcontraotdrerease employee
compensation levels, all of which could also nagdyi affect our profitability. In addition, if wedve more employees than we
need with certain skill sets or in certain geogiapfwe may incur increased costs as we work talaele our supply of skills
and resources with client demand in those geogeaphi

Failure to comply with our customer contracts or gernment contracting regulations could adverselyfedt our revenue and results of
operations.

Our contracts with our customers may ineludique and specialized performance requirembnparticular, our contracts with federal,
state, provincial and local governmental custoraegssubject to various procurement regulationstraonprovisions and other requirements
relating to their formation, administration andfpemance. Any failure by us to comply with the sifieqrovisions in our customer contracts
any violation of government contracting regulatieosild result in the imposition of various civildariminal penalties, which may include
termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits spension of payments and, in the case of our govemhcontracts, fines and suspension from
future government contracting. In addition, we hawvthe past been, and may in the future be, sutgegui tam litigation brought by private
individuals on behalf of the government relatingto government contracts, which could includerokafor up to treble damages. Further, any
negative publicity related to our customer congagtany proceedings surrounding them, regardleiss accuracy, may damage our business
by affecting our ability to compete for new contsadf our customer contracts are terminated, ifanesuspended or disbarred from
government work, or if our ability to compete faw contracts is adversely affected, we could suferduction in expected revenue.

HP's stock price has historically fluctuated and ma&ontinue to fluctuate, which may make future pés of HP's stock difficult to predic
HP's stock price, like that of other tedlagy companies, can be volatile. Some of the factioat could affect our stock price are:

. speculation, coverage or sentiment in the medth@mvestment community about, or actual changesur business, strategic
position, market share, organizational structuperations, financial condition, financial reportiagd results, effectiveness of
cost-cutting efforts, value or liquidity of our iestments, exposure to market volatility, prospdmisjness combination or
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investment transactions, future stock price pertoree, board of directors, executive team, our coitope or our industry in
general;

. the announcement of new, planned or contemplatediupts, services, technological innovations, adtis, divestitures or
other significant transactions by HP or its conmpesi;

. quarterly increases or decreases in revenussgnargin, earnings or cash flows, changes in aggrby the investment
community or financial outlook provided by HP aratiations between actual and estimated financsallts

. announcements of actual and anticipated finanegllts by HP's competitors and other companidsanT industry;
. developments relating to pending investigationsines and disputes; and
. the timing and amount of share repurchases by HP.

General or industry specific market comis or stock market performance or domestic ornatégonal macroeconomic and geopolitical
factors unrelated to HP's performance also maytffie price of HP stock. For these reasons, iovesthould not rely on recent or historical
trends to predict future stock prices, financiatdition, results of operations or cash flows. Idiidn, as discussed in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, we are involnesveral securities class action litigation mattéddditional volatility in the price of our
securities could result in the filing of additiors&curities class action litigation matters, whgohild result in substantial costs and the diversio
of management time and resources.

Failure to maintain our credit ratings could adveedy affect our liquidity, capital position, borrowg costs and access to capital markets.

Our credit risk is evaluated by the majatdpendent rating agencies. Two of those ratingage, Moody's Investors Service and
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, downgradedatimgs once during fiscal 2012, and a third ratiggncy, Fitch Ratings, downgraded our
ratings twice during that fiscal year. In additidbmoody's Investors Service downgraded our ratirgggrain November 2012. Our credit ratings
remain under negative outlook by Moody's InvesBesvice. Past downgrades have increased the cbstr@iwing under our credit facilities,
have reduced market capacity for our commerciakpand may require the posting of additional ¢efia under some of our derivative
contracts. There can be no assurance that we evdble to maintain our current credit ratings, ang additional actual or anticipated changes
or downgrades in our credit ratings, including anpouncement that our ratings are under furtheewefor a downgrade, may further impact
us in a similar manner and may have a negative étrgraour liquidity, capital position and accessapital markets.

We make estimates and assumptions in connectiom wie preparation of HP's Consolidated Financial & ments, and any changes to
those estimates and assumptions could adverselcafbur results of operations.

In connection with the preparation of HB&nsolidated Financial Statements, we use certdimates and assumptions based on historic
experience and other factors. Our most criticabanting estimates are described in "Managemengsu3sion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" in Iltem 7to$ report. In addition, as discussed in Note 1héoConsolidated Financial Statements, we
make certain estimates, including decisions reltdguovisions for legal proceedings and other iogreincies. While we believe that these
estimates and assumptions are reasonable undar¢hmstances, they are subject to significant ttaggies, some of which are beyond our
control. Should any of these estimates and assangthange or prove to have been incorrect, itdcadVersely affect our results of
operations.
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Unanticipated changes in our tax provisions, thegation of new tax legislation or exposure to additial tax liabilities could affect our
profitability.

We are subject to income and other taxéisdérnited States and numerous foreign jurisdisti®ur tax liabilities are affected by the
amounts we charge in intercompany transactionsf@ntory, services, licenses, funding and otremg. We are subject to ongoing tax audits
in various jurisdictions. Tax authorities may digwith our intercompany charges, cross-jurisoli@l transfer pricing or other matters and
assess additional taxes. We regularly assesskilg butcomes of these audits in order to deterrtireappropriateness of our tax provision.
However, there can be no assurance that we willrately predict the outcomes of these audits, hagitmounts ultimately paid upon resolu
of audits could be materially different from the@mts previously included in our income tax expearse therefore could have a material
impact on our tax provision, net income and casWdl In addition, our effective tax rate in theufie could be adversely affected by changes f
our operating structure, changes in the mix of iegsin countries with differing statutory tax retehanges in the valuation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws andligmovery of new information in the course of tax return preparation process. In particular,
the carrying value of deferred tax assets, whiehpgedominantly in the United States, is dependerdur ability to generate future taxable
income in the United States. In addition, therepaoposals for tax legislation that have been ghiced or that are being considered that could
have a significant adverse effect on our tax e carrying value of deferred tax assets, or eferded tax liabilities. Any of these changes
could affect our profitability.

In order to be successful, we must attract, retairgin, motivate, develop and transition key empgeg, and failure to do so could seriou:
harm us.

In order to be successful, we must attr@tain, train, motivate, develop and transitioalified executives and other key employees,
including those in managerial, technical, salegketing and IT support positions. Identifying, degng internally or hiring externally,
training and retaining qualified executives, engise skilled solutions providers in the IT supdarsiness and qualified sales representatives
are critical to our future, and competition for expnced employees in the IT industry can be imtehsorder to attract and retain executives
and other key employees in a competitive markegplae must provide a competitive compensation pgekiacluding cash- and share-based
compensation. Our share-based incentive awardsdedtock options, restricted stock units and perémce-based restricted units, some of
which contain conditions relating to HP's stoclcpmperformance and HP's long-term financial peréoroe that make the future value of those
awards uncertain. If the anticipated value of ssitdre-based incentive awards does not materidliaer share-based compensation otherwise
ceases to be viewed as a valuable benefit, ifaal tompensation package is not viewed as beinmgpettive, or if we do not obtain the
shareholder approval needed to continue grantiageshased incentive awards in the amounts we leeties necessary, our ability to attract,
retain, and motivate executives and key employeakide weakened. The failure to successfully éiecutives and key employees or the los
of any executives and key employees could havgréfisiant impact on our operations. Further, chanigeour management team may be
disruptive to our business, and any failure to sastully transition and assimilate key new hirepramoted employees could adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

System security risks, data protection breache$geryattacks and systems integration issues couktufit our internal operations o
information technology services provided to custasjend any such disruption could reduce our expettrevenue, increase our expenses,
damage our reputation and adversely affect our &quice.

Experienced computer programmers and hackay be able to penetrate our network securitynaisdppropriate or compromise our
confidential information or that of third-partieggate system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Cemprogrammers and hackers also may be
able to develop and
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deploy viruses, worms, and other malicious softwaograms that attack our products or otherwisdoéx@ny security vulnerabilities of our
products. In addition, sophisticated hardware gretating system software and applications thatmdyxe or procure from third-parties may
contain defects in design or manufacture, includmggs" and other problems that could unexpectedérfere with the operation of the
system. The costs to us to eliminate or allevigteec or other security problems, bugs, virusesmgmalicious software programs and
security vulnerabilities could be significant, amat efforts to address these problems may not teessful and could result in interruptions,
delays, cessation of service and loss of existirgptential customers that may impede our salesufaaturing, distribution or other critical
functions.

We manage and store various proprietagrinétion and sensitive or confidential data refatim our business. In addition, our
outsourcing services business routinely processeres and transmits large amounts of data fockemts, including sensitive and personally
identifiable information. Breaches of our securitgasures or the accidental loss, inadvertent discdoor unapproved dissemination of
proprietary information or sensitive or confidehtiata about us, our clients or customers, inclgdire potential loss or disclosure of such
information or data as a result of fraud, trickeryother forms of deception, could expose us, astamers or the individuals affected to a risk
of loss or misuse of this information, result itiglation and potential liability for us, damage dwand and reputation or otherwise harm our
business. We also could lose existing or potentiatomers of outsourcing services or other IT gmhstor incur significant expenses in
connection with our customers' system failuresnyractual or perceived security vulnerabilitieour products and services. In addition, the
cost and operational consequences of implementirnigefr data protection measures could be significan

Portions of our IT infrastructure also negperience interruptions, delays or cessationgwice or produce errors in connection with
systems integration or migration work that takexplfrom time to time. We may not be successfuhjplementing new systems and
transitioning data, which could cause businessigigsns and be more expensive, time-consumingyplisde and resource intensive. Such
disruptions could adversely impact our ability wdfifl orders and respond to customer requestsiatgdrupt other processes. Delayed sales,
lower margins or lost customers resulting from ¢éheisruptions could reduce our expected revengeg@se our expenses, damage our
reputation and adversely affect our stock price.

Terrorist acts, conflicts, wars and geopolitical oertainties may seriously harm our business andesue, costs and expenses and financial
condition and stock price.

Terrorist acts, conflicts or wars (whereleated around the world) may cause damage angtisn to our business, our employees,
facilities, partners, suppliers, distributors, tess or customers or adversely affect our abilitynanage logistics, operate our transportatior
communication systems or conduct certain otheicatibusiness operations. The potential for fuattacks, the national and international
responses to attacks or perceived threats to rsts@curity, and other actual or potential cordliat wars have created many economic and
political uncertainties. In addition, as a majorltimational company with headquarters and signiftaaperations located in the United States,
actions against or by the United States may impacbusiness or employees. Although it is impossiblpredict the occurrences or
consequences of any such events, if they occur,dbeld result in a decrease in demand for our yetsj make it difficult or impossible to
provide services or deliver products to our custenoe to receive components from our suppliersateréelays and inefficiencies in our supply
chain and result in the need to impose employeeltrastrictions. We are predominantly uninsureddsses and interruptions caused by
terrorist acts, conflicts and wars.
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Unforeseen environmental costs could adversely etffieur business and results of operations.

We are subject to various federal, statealland foreign laws and regulations concerningrenmental protection, including laws
addressing the discharge of pollutants into theadr water, the management and disposal of hazasidistances and wastes, the cleanup of
contaminated sites, the content of our productst@decycling, treatment and disposal of our potsiuncluding batteries. In particular, we
face increasing complexity in our product desigd procurement operations as we adjust to new andefuiequirements relating to the
chemical and materials composition of our produtisir safe use, the energy consumption assocmitbdhose products, climate change laws
and regulations, and product take-back legislafione were to violate or become liable under eonmental laws or if our products become
non-compliant with environmental laws, we could incubstantial costs or face other sanctions, which imelyde restrictions on our produ
entering certain jurisdictions. Our potential expp@sincludes fines and civil or criminal sanctiotigrd-party property damage, personal injury
claims and clean-up costs. Further, liability unsieme environmental laws relating to contaminatex$ €an be imposed retroactively, on a
joint and several basis, and without any findingnohcompliance or fault. The amount and timingasts to comply with environmental la
are difficult to predict.

Some ant-takeover provisions contained in our certificate wfcorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions@élaware law, could impair
takeover attempt.

We have provisions in our certificate afanporation and bylaws, each of which could haeegffect of rendering more difficult or
discouraging an acquisition of HP deemed undesrbiplour Board of Directors. These include provisio

. authorizing blank check preferred stock, whiah aould issue with voting, liquidation, dividenddamther rights superior to our
common stock;

. limiting the liability of, and providing indemnifation to, our directors and officers;

. specifying that our stockholders may take actioly aha duly called annual or special meeting otkholders and otherwise in
accordance with our bylaws and limiting the abitfyour stockholders to call special meetings;

. requiring advance notice of proposals by our stotikrs for business to be conducted at stockhofgstings and for
nominations of candidates for election to our Baafr®irectors; and

. controlling the procedures for conduct of our Boaf@irectors and stockholder meetings and electgpointment and remoy
of our directors.

These provisions, alone or together, coelgr or delay hostile takeovers, proxy contestsciianges in control or management of HP. A
a Delaware corporation, we are also subject toipiavs of Delaware law, including Section 203 of thelaware General Corporation Law,
which prevents some stockholders from engagin@itat business combinations without approval efttblders of substantially all of our
outstanding common stock.

Any provision of our certificate of incomation or bylaws or Delaware law that has the ¢féédelaying or deterring a change in control
of HP could limit the opportunity for our stockheld to receive a premium for their shares of Hekstmd also could affect the price that sc
investors are willing to pay for HP stock.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
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ITEM 2. Properties.

As of October 31, 2014, we owned or leaggatoximately 66 million square feet of space woitte, a summary of which is provided
below. We believe that our existing propertiesiargood condition and are suitable for the conadicur business.

As of October 31, 201+«

Owned Leased Total
Square feet in millions
Administration and suppo 11 19 30
37% 63%  10(%
Core data centers, manufacturing plants, researdiilevelopment
facilities, and warehouse operatic 15 14 29
52% 48%  10(%
Total @ 26 33 58

44% 56€%  100C%

@ Excludes 7 million square feet of vacated spactoth 2 million square feet is leased to thirdtjesr:
We have seven business segments: Persystah®s, Printing, the Enterprise Group, Enterggisevices, Software, HP Financial Services

and Corporate Investments. Because of the int¢iorlaf these segments, a majority of these segnese substantially all of the properties at
least in part, and we retain the flexibility to wessch of the properties in whole or in part forreatthe segments.

Principal Executive Offices

Our principal executive offices, includiogr global headquarters, are located at 3000 Harfgiveet, Palo Alto, California, United States
of America.

Headquarters of Geographic Operations

The locations of our geographic headqusudeOctober 31, 2014 were as follows:

Americas Europe, Middle East, Africe Asia Pacific
Houston, United States Geneva, Switzerland Singapore
Miami, United States Tokyo, Japan

Mississauga, Canac
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Product Development, Services and Manufacturing

The locations of our major product develepith manufacturing, data centers, and HP Labstfasit October 31, 2014, were as follows:

Americas Europe, Middle East, Africe
Canada—Markham, Mississauga France—Grenoble

Puerto Ricc—Aguadilla Ireland —Leixlip

United States—Alpharetta, Andover, Auburn Hills, Austin, Blue Israel—Kiryat-Gat, Nes Ziona, Netanya
Ash, Boise, Charlotte, Colorado Springs, Corvalliss Moines, Fol

Collins, Hockley, Houston, Indianapolis, LaVergRalo Alto, Spain—Sant Cugat del Valles

Plano, Rancho Cordova, Roseville, San Diego, SandSuwanee,

Tulsa United Kingdomn—aBillingham, Erskine, Norwich, Sunderla
Asia Pacific HP Labs

India—Udham Singh Nagar Israel—Haifa

Japan—Tokyo United Kingdom—Bristol

New Zealan—Auckland United States—Palo Alto

Singapore—Singapore
Taiwan—Taipei
ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

Information with respect to this item mayfound in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financiat&3hents in Item 8, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.

Information regarding the market price$ddf common stock and the markets for that stock beafipund in the "Quarterly Summary" in
Item 8 and on the cover page of this Annual Reporftorm 10-K, respectively, which are incorporatedein by reference. We have declared
and paid cash dividends each fiscal year since.1D&%dends declared and paid per share by fisoaltgr in 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Dividends declare — $ 0.32 — $ 0.2¢ — $ 0.2¢ — $ 0.2¢
Dividends paic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.1% $ 0.1

As of November 30, 2014, there were appnaxely 95,719 stockholders of record. Additiond&bimation concerning dividends may be
found in "Selected Financial Data" in Item 6 anddN®d3 to the Consolidated Financial Statementgeim B, which are incorporated herein by
reference.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
There were no unregistered sales of eaityrities in fiscal 2014.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of

Shares Purchased Approximate
as Part of Publicly Dollar Value of Shares
Total Number Average Announced that May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Plans or Purchased under the
Period Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs
In thousands, except per share amount
Month #1
(August 2014) — $ — — 8 5,666,44.
Month #2
(September 2014) — $ — — 8 5,666,44.
Month #3
(October 2014) 21,66 $ 34.6] 21,66. $ 4,916,79:
Total 21,66. $ 34.6] 21,66

On July 21, 2011, HP's Board of Directartharized a $10.0 billion share repurchase progtdfimay choose to repurchase shares whe
sufficient liquidity exists and the shares are itngdat a discount relative to estimated intrinsaue. This program, which does not have a
specific expiration date, authorizes repurchas¢isdropen market or in private transactions. Adirslrepurchases settled in the fourth quart
fiscal 2014 were open market transactions. As dbter 31, 2014, HP had remaining authorization4® ®illion for future share repurchases.
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

The graph below shows the cumulative tstatkholder return assuming the investment of $itGie market close on October 31, 2009
(and the reinvestment of dividends thereafter)aicheof HP common stock, the S&P 500 Index, ands#e Information Technology Index.
The comparisons in the graph below are based ¢oricial data and are not indicative of, or intentteforecast, future performance of our
common stock.

$250
5200
5150
100
550
50 . . . . . .
10/2009 1072010 1072011 10/2012 1V2013 1v2014
—- Hewlett-Packard Company =t S&P 500 [ndex —0— S&P Information Technology Index
10/09 10/10 10/11 10/12 10/13 10/14
Hewlet-Packard Compan 100.0( 89.1¢ 57.1i 30.4¢ 55.1( 82.6¢
S&P 500 Inde» 100.0C 116.5 125.9¢ 145.0¢ 184.4¢ 216.3:

S&P Information Technology Inde ~ 100.0C  118.2¢ 128.5¢ 142.37 170.7: 214.6(
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

The information set forth below is not nesarily indicative of results of future operati@rsl should be read in conjunction with Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanC@idition and Results of Operations," and the Clifsied Financial Statements and
notes thereto included in Item 8, "Financial Statata and Supplementary Data," of this Annual Repoifform 10-K, which are incorporated
herein by reference, in order to understand furttheifactors that may affect the comparabilityhaf financial data presented below.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Selected Financial Data

For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

In millions, except per share amount:

Net revenue $ 111,45 $ 112,29¢ $ 120,35 $ 127,24! $ 126,03
Earnings (loss) from operatiodd $ 7,188 $ 7,131 $ (11,05) $ 9,677 $ 11,47¢
Net earnings (los<?) $ 501 $ 511 $ (12650 $ 7,074 $ 8,761
Net earnings (loss) per shz

Basic $ 266 $ 264 $ (640 % 3.3t $ 3.7¢

Diluted $ 26z $ 26z $ (640 % 332 % 3.6¢
Cash dividends declared persh ~ $ 061 $ 05t $ 0.5C $ 04C $ 0.32
At yearend:

Total asset®) $ 103,20t $ 105,67¢ $ 108,76f $ 129,51° $ 124,50:

Long-term debt $ 16,03¢ $ 16,60¢ $ 21,78 $ 2255. $ 15,25¢

Total debt®) $ 19,52t $ 22,587 $ 28,43t $ 30,63¢ $ 22,30
@ Earnings (Loss) from operations and net earnirggsflinclude the following item

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

In millions
Amortization of intangible asse $ 1,00 $ 1,37 $ 1,78 $ 1,607 $ 1,48¢
Impairment of goodwill and

intangible assel — — 18,03t 88t —
Wind down of webOS device

busines: — — (36€) 75E —
Wind down of non-strategic

businesse — — 10¢ — —
Restructuring charge 1,61¢ 99C 2,26¢ 64E 1,14«
Acquisitior-related charge 11 22 45 182 293
Total charges before tax $ 2,630 $ 2,38 $ 22,20 $ 4,07/ $ 2,921
Total charges, net of tax $ 213: $ 1,82¢ $ 20,68 $ 3,13( $ 2,10¢

@ Total assets decreased in fiscal 2012 due primgrigoodwill and intangible asset impairment charggsociated with tt
Autonomy reporting unit within the Software segmengoodwill impairment charge associated withEhéerprise
Services segment and an intangible asset impairaiemge associated with the "Compaq" trade nantémitihe Personal
Systems segment. Total assets increased in fi6@adl @ue primarily to the acquisition of Autonomy.

® In fiscal 2014 and 2013, total debt decreased oluesturities. Total debt increased in fiscal 20L& drimarily to
acquisitions and repurchas
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fiancial Condition and Results of Operations.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management's Discussion and AnalysKimancial Condition and Results of Operations D&KA") is organized as follows:

. Overview. A discussion of our business and overall analg&ffnancial and other highlights affecting thergmany to provide
context for the remainder of MD&A. The overview &rsas compares fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2013.

. Critical Accounting Policies and EstimatesA discussion of accounting policies and estim#tas we believe are important to
understanding the assumptions and judgments incgabin our reported financial results.

. Results of Operations An analysis of our financial results comparirgril 2014 and fiscal 2013 to the prior years. Awlsion
of the results of operations at the consolidatedlles followed by a more detailed discussion @& tasults of operations by
segment.

. Liquidity and Capital ResourcesAn analysis of changes in our cash flows andsaudision of our financial condition and
liquidity.

. Contractual and Other ObligationsAn overview of contractual obligations, retirerhand postetirement benefit plan fundin

restructuring plans, uncertain tax positions arfebafance sheet arrangements.

We intend the discussion of our financiahdition and results of operations that followstovide information that will assist the reade
understanding our Consolidated Financial Statem#mschanges in certain key items in those firerstatements from year to year, and the
primary factors that accounted for those changesiedl as how certain accounting principles, pebcand estimates affect our Consolidated
Financial Statements. This discussion should be ireaonjunction with our Consolidated Financiat®8tments and the related notes that af
elsewhere in this document.

October 2014 Announcement of HP Separation Transaicin

On October 6, 2014, we announced plansparsite into two independent publicly-traded congsarone comprising our enterprise
technology infrastructure, software, services anarfcing businesses, which will conduct busineddaslett-Packard Enterprise and one that
will comprise our printing and personal systemsesses, which will conduct business as HP Inc.Sdparation is subject to certain
conditions, including, among others, obtaining lfimgproval from HP's Board of Directors, receiptadavorable opinion and/or rulings with
respect to the tax-free nature of the transactorfieideral income tax purposes and the effectivenéa Form 10 filing with the SEC. The
separation is expected to be completed by the £fisical 2015. Under the separation plan, HP shaldshs will own shares of both Hewlett-
Packard Enterprise and HP Inc. The following clpast/ides an overview of the planned separationsaginent revenues of the respective
businesses based on HP's fiscal 2014 results,d®glCorporate Investments and intercompany elitiona.
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W Enterprise Group A8%

Revenue Mix

(based on B Enterprise Services 3% ® Personal Systems 80%
: u Software % P
fiscal 2014 resul B Prinfing 409,
scal 20 asults) = ial Sorvi &%
FALEGEERUE(E - Segment Revenue: $57.6B + Segment Revenue: $57.3B

The following Overview, Results of Operascand Liquidity discussions and analysis compaoalff 2014 to fiscal 2013 and fiscal 201
fiscal 2012, unless otherwise noted. The CapitaloReces and Contractual and Other Obligations d&ons present information as of
October 31, 2014, unless otherwise noted.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading global provider of produtgchnologies, software, solutions and servigésdividual consumers, small- and medium-
sized businesses ("SMBs") and large enterprisekiding customers in the government, health anda&ihn sectors. Our offerings span the
following: personal computing and other accessasjiimaging- and printing-related products andises; enterprise information technology
("IT") infrastructure, including enterprise sengard storage technology, networking products anatisols, technology support and
maintenance; multi-vendor customer services, irnwtechnology consulting, outsourcing and suppervices across infrastructure,
applications and business process domains; andallagement software, application testing and deliseftware, information management
solutions, big data analytics and security intellige/risk management solutions. We have seven segfioe financial reporting purposes:

Personal Systems, Printing, the Enterprise GroE®{), Enterprise Services ("ES"), Software, HP Riial Services ("HPFS") and Corporate
Investments.
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The following provides an overview of owykfinancial metrics by segment for fiscal 2014:

Printing and Personal
Systems Group

Corporate
Investments

HP Personal Enterprise  Enterprise @

Consolidated  Systems  Printing Total Group Services  Software  HPFS
Dollars in millions, except per share amount:

Net
revenue

@ $ 111,45 $ 3430: $ 22,97¢ $ 57,28: $ 27,81« $ 2239 $ 3,93% $ 349 $ 302
Year-

over-

year

change

% 0.9% 6.6% BO%  2.% (1.0% 6.9%  (229% (3.6% NM
Earnings

from

operatic

@ $ 718 $ 127C $ 4,18 $ 5458 $§ 4006 §$ 80: $ 87z $ 38 $ (19¢)
Earnings

from

operatic

asa

% of ne

revenue 6.4% 3.% 18.2% 9.£% 14./% 3.€% 22.2% 11.1% NM
Year-

over-

year

change

percent )

points 0.Cpts 0.7pts 1.7pts 0.7pts (0.&pts 0.&pts 0.€pts 0.1pts NM
Net

earning $ 5,01:

Net

earning

per

share

Basic $ 2.6¢€

Diluted $ 2.62

@ HP consolidated net revenue excludes intersegnezmenenue and other. Segment earnings from opesatixclude corporate and unallocated costs, dtaske
compensation expense, amortization of intangibdetas restructuring charges and acquisition-relettedges.

@ "NM" represents not meaningful.

HP net revenue declined 0.8% (decreaséd Orla constant currency basis) in fiscal 2014oaspared to fiscal 2013. The leading
contributors to the HP net revenue decline weredapunt runoff in ES and lower Printing supplietume. Partially offsetting the net revel
decline was growth in Personal Systems from comialgoersonal computers ("PCs"), which experienaexavth across all product categories,
along with growth in consumer notebooks. HP's gmaggin increased by 0.8 percentage points inlfd@a4 due primarily to service delivery
efficiencies and improvements in underperformingtcacts in ES and favorable currency impacts froendapanese Yen and continued cost
structure improvements in Printing. We continuexperience gross margin pressures resulting froomgpetitive pricing environment across
our hardware portfolio. HP's operating margin wasfbr fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 tiutine gross margin increase, improved
business performance primarily in Printing, ES Redsonal Systems, and lower intangible asset amatidi, offset by higher restructuring
charges, investments in research and developmR&("), and higher selling, general and administrat{"SG&A") expenses. The increase in
SG&A expenses was patrtially offset by gains frotesaf real estate.

Our business continues to produce sigmificash flow from operations, generating $12.3dsilin fiscal 2014. Additionally, we invested
$3.0 hbillion in property, plant and equipment nepmceeds from sales, repurchased $2.7 billiocomimon stock and paid dividends of
$1.2 billion to stockholders. As of October 31, 2pdash and cash equivalents and short- and longiteestments were $15.5 billion,
representing an increase of approximately $3.@hifrom October 31, 2013.

We continue to experience challenges treatepresentative of trends and uncertaintiesntiagt affect our business and results of
operations. One set of challenges relates to agntirdynamic and accelerating market trends. Arragbeof challenges relates to changes in
the competitive landscape. Our major competitoeseapanding their product and service offerings witegrated products ai



44




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Corihued)

solutions, our business-specific competitors amtg increased competitive pressure in targetedsaand are entering new markets, our
emerging competitors are introducing new technelegind business models, and our alliance partmexsie businesses are increasingly
becoming our competitors in others. A third setledllenges relates to business model changes argbdo-market execution. The
macroeconomic weakness we have experienced hasated@é some geographic regions but remains arathwhallenge. A discussion of
some of these challenges at the segment level fersie below.

. In Personal Systems, we have been negatively iragdmt the market shift towards tablet products withobility products,
which has reduced the demand for PCs, particutamgsumer notebooks. If benefits from our new producestments in this
area do not materialize, we will continue to beatagly impacted by this trend. However, the patcthe market decline is
slowing with signs of stabilization and HP is gamimarket share. In Personal Systems, we are rrangaur strategic focus i
profitable growth through improved market segmeatatvith respect to multi-OS, multi-architectureagraphy, customer
segments and other key attributes. In fiscal 2@bfsonal Systems experienced revenue growth in esoth PCs with growth
across all product categories, particularly notéispalong with growth in consumer notebooks. Theaase in demand was due
in part to customers migrating from the Windows offerating system, benefits from the delayed ireddbase refresh cycle and
new product introductions.

. In Printing, we are experiencing the impact of ghewth in mobility and demand challenges in consuamel commercial
markets, as well as an overall competitive pri@ngironment. To be successful in addressing theskenges, we need to
continue to execute on our key initiatives of fangson products targeted at high usage categat@sloping emerging market
opportunities and introducing new revenue delivandels to consumer customers. In fiscal 2014, Rgrexperienced a
revenue decline and an increase in operating @sfite continued our print strategies, with a famusiriving high value printer
unit placements. In the consumer market, our InkéOffice products are driving unit volume dueltamand for our OfficeJet
Pro product lines, particularly our OfficeJet Prgdnters which leverage our Pagéde Array technology. The Ink in the Offi
initiative targets shifting ink into SMBs more pitably. In the commercial market, our focus is dacpg higher value printer
units which also offer a positive annuity of tonéfe are accomplishing this in two growth areasninti-function printers with
recently introduced products that are increasingai® and in managed print services, which presestiiong after-market
supplies opportunity. We plan to continue this foom replenishing the installed base with valueedddhits, and expanding our
innovative ink and laser programs.

. In EG, we are experiencing revenue challengesausuttiple market trends, including the increasilggnand for hyperscale
computing infrastructure products, the transitiortlbud computing and a highly competitive pricengvironment. In addition,
demand for our Business Critical Systems ("BCStdpicts continues to weaken along with the overallket for UNIX
products and the effect of lower BCS revenue isaictipg Technology Services ("TS"). To be successfolvercoming these
challenges, we must address business model shidtg@to-market execution challenges, and contioyrirsue new product
innovation in areas such as cloud and data ceatepuating, software-defined networking, storagedblaervers and wireless
networking. In fiscal 2014, EG experienced a decimrevenue and operating profit due to the prestipmentioned challengir
market environment, in particular weak market detnarBCS and market shifts impacting Storage. Elsaw in EG, we
experienced areas of
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growth in Industry Standard Servers ("ISS"), Netwitog and TS, due in part to product innovation aed/ product introductior
in cloud and data center computing. These produgtd on our existing capabilities in cloud, seturbig data and converged
infrastructure and include CloudSystem 8, HP HelléR Apollo and support solutions such as Proadtata center and flexible
capacity services.

. In ES, we are facing execution challenges, inclgdiranaging the revenue runoff from several largereats, pressured public
sector spending, a competitive pricing environnart market pressures from a mixed economic recamdeyrope, the Middle
East and Africa ("EMEA"). To be successful in addiag these challenges, we must execute on theuiBymar turnaround
plan, which includes a cost reduction initiativeatign our costs to our revenue trajectory, a famusiew logo wins and Strate
Enterprise Services ("SES") and initiatives to ioy@ execution in sales performance and accourttghlibntracting practices
and pricing. In fiscal 2014 these factors continteonpact both ES revenue and operating profit.

. In Software, we are facing challenges, includingiarket shift to software-as-a-service ("SaaSt)gmto-market execution
challenges. To be successful in addressing thedkeobes, we must improve our go-to-market exeoutitth multiple product
delivery models which better address customer naedschieve broader integration across our overatiuct portfolio as we
work to capitalize on important market opporturstie cloud, big data and security. In fiscal 20lidse factors continued to
impact Software revenue and operating profit.

To address these challenges, we continpargue innovation with a view towards developiegvrproducts and services aligned with
market demand, industry trends and the needs afusiomers and partners. In addition, we needntirage to improve our operations, with a
particular focus on enhancing our end-to-end pseeand efficiencies. We also need to continu@tionize our sales coverage models, align
our sales incentives with our strategic goals, mmprchannel execution, strengthen our capabilitiesir areas of strategic focus, and develop
and capitalize on market opportunities.

For a further discussion of trends, undetiizs and other factors that could impact our apirg results, see the section entitled "Risk
Factors" in Item 1A, which is incorporated herejnrbference.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
General

The Consolidated Financial Statements ofrPprepared in accordance with United StatesS("Jgenerally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP"), which require management tok@astimates, judgments and assumptions that dffeceported amounts of assets,
liabilities, net revenue and expenses, and thdadise of contingent liabilities. Management bagesstimates on historical experience and ot
various other assumptions that it believes to beaeable under the circumstances, the results iohvirm the basis for making judgments
about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are not readily apparent from other sourgsiagement has discussed the developmen
selection and disclosure of these estimates wihAtidit Committee of HP's Board of Directors. Maaaugnt believes that the accounting
estimates employed and the resulting amounts asmnable; however, actual results may differ frbase estimates. Making estimates and
judgments about future events is inherently unptadlie and is subject to significant uncertaintsgsne of which are beyond our cont
Should any of these estimates and assumptions el@mmgove to have been incorrect, it could hameagerial impact on our results of
operations, financial position and cash flows.
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A summary of significant accounting poliis included in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinanStatements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference. An accountingcgas deemed to be critical if it requires an aauting estimate to be made based on
assumptions about matters that are highly unceatsdine time the estimate is made, if differeninegtes reasonably could have been used, or
changes in the estimate that are reasonably pessibld materially impact the financial statemelanagement believes the following critir
accounting policies reflect the significant estiesadnd assumptions used in the preparation ofthedlidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue when persuasive ev@ehan arrangement exists, delivery has occuraervices are rendered, the sales price ¢
fee is fixed or determinable and collectibilityresasonably assured, as well as other revenue riioogprinciples, including industry specific
revenue recognition guidance.

We enter into contracts to sell our prodwid services, and while many of our sales agnetsngentain standard terms and conditions,
there are agreements we enter into which contairsteandard terms and conditions. Further, manyoforangements include multiple
elements. As a result, significant contract intetation may be required to determine the apprapeatounting, including the identification of
deliverables considered to be separate units afieting, the allocation of the transaction priceoamelements in the arrangement and the
timing of revenue recognition for each of thoseraats.

We recognize revenue for delivered elemastseparate units of accounting when the deliveledents have standalone value to the
customer. For elements with no standalone valuggaggnize revenue consistent with the patterh@fissociated deliverables. If the
arrangement includes a customer-negotiated refunetarn right or other contingency relative to thedivered items and the delivery and
performance of the undelivered items is considerettable and substantially within our control, tiedivered element constitutes a separate
unit of accounting. In arrangements with combinaidsuof accounting, changes in the allocation eftitansaction price between elements may
impact the timing of revenue recognition for theract but will not change the total revenue redogghfor the contract.

We establish the selling prices used fahedeliverable based on vendor-specific objectivdence ("VSOE") of selling price, if
available, third-party evidence ("TPE"), if VSOEg#Iling price is not available, or estimated sgllprice ("ESP"), if neither VSOE of selling
price nor TPE is available. We establish VSOE difrggprice using the price charged for a delivéealvhen sold separately and, in rare
instances, using the price established by managdmging the relevant authority. TPE of sellingcpris established by evaluating largely
similar and interchangeable competitor productsepvices in standalone sales to similarly situatexfomers. ESP is established based on
management's judgment considering internal factock as margin objectives, pricing practices amdrots, customer segment pricing
strategies and the product life cycle. Considenaisaalso given to market conditions such as coitgugdricing strategies and industry
technology life cycles. We may modify or developvgo-to-market practices in the future, which meguit in changes in selling prices,
impacting both VSOE of selling price and ESP. Irstranrangements with multiple elements, the traimaprice is allocated to the individual
units of accounting at inception of the arrangentasted on their relative selling price. Howevee, diforementioned factors may result in a
different allocation of the transaction price tdivkrables in multiple element arrangements enteredin future periods. This may change the
pattern and timing of revenue recognition for ideadt
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arrangements executed in future periods, but willamange the total revenue recognized for anyngareangement.

We reduce revenue for customer and digtriprograms and incentive offerings, includingcprprotection, promotions, other volume-
based incentives and expected returns. Future meokelitions and product transitions may requiréouske actions to increase customer
incentive offerings, possibly resulting in an intental reduction of revenue at the time the ingens offered. For certain incentive programs,
we estimate the number of customers expected eemadhe incentive based on historical experiendettaa specific terms and conditions of
the incentive.

For hardware products, we recognize revgauerated from direct sales to end customersraticett sales to channel partners (including
resellers, distributors and value-added soluti@viders) when the revenue recognition criteriasatisfied. For indirect sales to channel
partners, we recognize revenue at the time of eliwhen the channel partner has economic substparefrom HP and HP has completer
obligations related to the sale.

For the various software products we geli.( operating system software, network enabliigvaire, IT and management software and
enterprise security software), we assess whetkeesdfiware products were sold standalone or witbvisare products. If the software sold with
a hardware product is not essential to the funatignof the hardware and is more-than-incidentad,treat it as a software deliverable.

We recognize revenue from the sale of gegdeoftware licenses at inception of the licetesen, assuming all revenue recognition crit
have been satisfied. Term-based software licensmue is generally recognized ratably over the tefrthe license. We use the residual
method to allocate revenue to software licens@scaption of the arrangement when VSOE of fair edhr all undelivered elements, such as
post-contract support, exists and all other reveraegnition criteria have been satisfied. Revenam maintenance and unspecified upgrades
or updates provided on an if-and-when-availablésbagecognized ratably over the period duringalihguch items are delivered.

For hosting or SaaS arrangements, we réoegevenue as the service is delivered, geneoally straight-line basis, over the contractual
period of performance. In hosting arrangements ekeftware licenses are sold, license revenuenisrghly recognized according to whether
perpetual or term licenses are sold, when all aeznue recognition criteria are satisfied. Intimgsarrangements that include software
licenses, we consider the rights provided to thgtaraer (e.g., ownership of a license, contract iteation provisions and feasibility of the
customer to operate the software) in determiningmio recognize revenue for the licenses.

We recognize revenue from fixed-price suppomaintenance contracts, including extendedavdy contracts and software post-contrac
customer support agreements, ratably over the attiperiod. For certain fixed-price contracts, sasttonsulting arrangements, we recognize
revenue as work progresses using a proportionédnpeance method. We estimate the total expecteat lkedists in order to determine the
amount of revenue earned to date. We apply a ptiopaf performance method because reasonably dapkndstimates of the labor costs
applicable to various stages of a contract can &gemOn fixed-price contracts for design and bpitgjects (to design, develop and construct
software infrastructure and systems), we recogrizenue as work progresses using the percentagergbletion method. We use the cost-to-
cost method to measure progress toward completiaietermined by the percentage of cost incurrethite compared to the total estimated
costs of the project. Total project costs are slierevision throughout the life of a fixed-pricentract. Provisions for estimated losses on
fixed-price contracts are recognized in the peviben such
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losses become known and are recorded as a compufrest of sales. In circumstances when reasoratileeliable cost estimates for a
project cannot be made we recognize revenue usengdmpleted contract method.

Outsourcing services revenue is generaltpgnized in the period when the service is pravated the amount earned is not contingent o
the occurrence of any future event. We recognizemee using an objective measure of output foupérpriced contracts. Revenue for fixed-
price outsourcing contracts with periodic billinggecognized on a straight-line basis if the sens provided evenly over the contract term.
Provisions for estimated losses on outsourcinghgements are recognized in the period when suslesdsecome probable and estimable anc
are recorded as a component of cost of sales.

Warranty

We accrue the estimated cost of productamties at the time we recognize revenue. We etalua warranty obligations on a product
group basis. Our standard product warranty termermgédly include post-sales support and repaireplacement of a product at no additional
charge for a specified period of time. While we &g in extensive product quality programs and m®e® including actively monitoring and
evaluating the quality of our component suppliers,base our estimated warranty obligation on cotued warranty terms, repair costs,
product call rates, average cost per call, cugperiod product shipments and ongoing product failates, as well as specific product class
failure outside of our baseline experience. Wayraetms generally range from 90 days to three ylargarts and labor, depending upon the
product. Over the last three fiscal years, the ahwarranty expense and actual warranty costs heeeged approximately 2.7% and 2.9% of
annual net product revenue, respectively.

Restructuring

We have engaged in restructuring actionighviequire management to estimate the timing anoluat of severance and other employee
separation costs for workforce reduction and enbdmarly retirement programs, fair value of assgtde redundant or obsolete, and the fair
value of lease cancellation and other exit costs.adtrue for severance and other employee sepacatsts under these actions when it is
probable that benefits will be paid and the amdsinéasonably estimable. The rates used in detérgy@everance accruals are based on
existing plans, historical experiences and negadiaettlements. For a full description of our ngstring actions, refer to our discussions of
restructuring in "Results of Operations" below améllote 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statemanmitem 8, which are incorporated herein
by reference.

Retirement and Pc-Retirement Benefits

Our pension and other pestirement benefit costs and obligations dependasious assumptions. Our major assumptions relateapily
to discount rates, mortality rates, expected irsgedn compensation levels and the expected lang+iturn on plan assets. The discount rate
assumption is based on current investment yieldsgbi-quality fixedincome securities with maturities similar to thepested benefits payme
period. Mortality rates help predict the expeciéa df plan participants and are based on a hisabdemographic study of the plan. As a result
of a historical study of the U.S. plans, in fis2all4, HP adopted a new mortality rate table whittoiporated newly released mortality rates
published by the Society of Actuaries. This resiiltean increase to the projected benefit obligatibapproximately $870 million for the U.S.
defined benefit plans. The

49




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Corihued)

expected increase in the compensation levels aggampflects our long-term actual experience arntdre expectations. The expected long-
term return on plan assets is determined baseds®t allocations, historical portfolio results thigcal asset correlations and management's
expected returns for each asset class. In any fieaa, significant differences may arise betwdendactual return and the expected long-term
return on plan assets. Historically, differencesveen the actual return and expected lterga return on plan assets have resulted from &s
in target or actual asset allocation, short-ternfigpmance relative to expected long-term perforneaand to a lesser extent, differences
between target and actual investment allocatidmestiming of benefit payments compared to expemtatiand the use of derivatives intende
effect asset allocation changes or hedge certagstment or liability exposures. For the recognitid net periodic benefit cost, the calculation
of the expected long-term return on plan assets tiigefair value of plan assets as of the beginafribe fiscal year.

Our major assumptions vary by plan, andabghted-average rates used are set forth in Altdehe Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8, which is incorporated herein by refererithe following table provides the impact changebe weighted-average assumptions of
discount rates, the expected increase in compendatiels and the expected lotegm return on plan assets would have had on dyseredic
benefit cost for fiscal 2014:

Change in
Net Periodic

Change in Benefit Cost

percentage points in millions

Assumptions

Discount rate (25) $ 83
Expected increase in compensation le' 2t 3 20
Expected lon-term return on plan asse (25 $ 68

Taxes on Earnings

We calculate our current and deferred taxigions based on estimates and assumptionsdhbt differ from the final positions reflected
in our income tax returns. We adjust our curremnt deferred tax provisions based on income taxmstwhich are generally filed in the third or
fourth quarters of the subsequent fiscal year.

We recognize deferred tax assets and ili@sifor the expected tax consequences of temypdiifferences between the tax bases of asset
and liabilities and their reported amounts usingoted tax rates in effect for the year in whichexpect the differences to reverse.

We record a valuation allowance to redusfered tax assets to the amount that we are rikalg than not to realize. In determining the
need for a valuation allowance, we consider futnaeket growth, forecasted earnings, future taxadgeme, the mix of earnings in the
jurisdictions in which we operate and prudent arakible tax planning strategies. In the event wewedetermine that it is more likely th
not that we will be unable to realize all or pdrbar deferred tax assets in the future, we wontidéase the valuation allowance and recogn
corresponding charge to earnings or other compe@heimcome in the period in which we make suclemination. Likewise, if we later
determine that we are more likely than not to meathe deferred tax assets, we would reverse tleabple portion of the previously
recognized valuation allowance. In order for usst@lize our deferred tax assets, we must be algenerate sufficient taxable income in the
jurisdictions in which the deferred tax assetslacated.
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Our effective tax rate includes the impafatertain undistributed foreign earnings for whigé have not provided U.S. federal taxes
because we plan to reinvest such earnings indeffjratutside the U.S. We plan distributions of fgreearnings based on projected cash flow
needs as well as the working capital and long-termastment requirements of our foreign subsidiasied our domestic operations. Based on
these assumptions, we estimate the amount we eixpctefinitely invest outside the U.S. and theoamts we expect to distribute to the U.S.
and provide the U.S. federal taxes due on amowpiscted to be distributed to the U.S. Further, Bssalt of certain employment actions and
capital investments we have undertaken, income franufacturing activities in certain jurisdictiosssubject to reduced tax rates and, in s
cases, is wholly exempt from taxes for fiscal yghreugh 2024. Material changes in our estimatesaeh, working capital and long-term
investment requirements in the various jurisdigionwhich we do business could impact how fut@eimgs are repatriated to the U.S., and
our related future effective tax rate.

We are subject to income taxes in the 8. approximately 105 other countries, and we @alogest to routine corporate income tax au
in many of these jurisdictions. We believe thatifimss taken on our tax returns are fully supportad tax authorities may challenge these
positions, which may not be fully sustained on exeation by the relevant tax authorities. Accordinglur income tax provision includes
amounts intended to satisfy assessments that realt fimm these challenges. Determining the inctemeprovision for these potential
assessments and recording the related effectsesquanagement judgments and estimates. The amdtimiately paid on resolution of an
audit could be materially different from the amaupteviously included in our income tax provisiomatherefore, could have a material
impact on our income tax provision, net income eash flows. Our accrual for uncertain tax positi@attributable primarily to uncertainties
concerning the tax treatment of our internationgdrations, including the allocation of income amdifterent jurisdictions, intercompany
transactions and related interest. For a furthgrudision on taxes on earnings, refer to Note Be@bnsolidated Financial Statements in Ite
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Inventory

We state our inventory at the lower of aosinarket on a first-in, firsbut basis. We make adjustments to reduce the Eastentory to its
net realizable value at the product group levekfstimated excess, obsolescence or impaired balaRaetors influencing these adjustments
include changes in demand, technological changedupt life cycle and development plans, compogest trends, product pricing, physical
deterioration and quality issues.

Goodwill

We review goodwill for impairment annuadlpd whenever events or changes in circumstancesatedhe carrying amount of goodwiill
may not be recoverable. While we are permittecbtudact a qualitative assessment to determine whitisenecessary to perform a two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test, for our amhgoodwill impairment test in the fourth quartéffiscal 2014, we performed a quantitative
test for all of our reporting units.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at theoeting unit level. At the beginning of the firsharter of fiscal 2014, we changed our reporting
units. In connection with continued operationalexgies and interdependencies between the Entefpeisers, Storage and Networking
reporting unit and the TS reporting unit within tB& segment, we combined these reporting unitseate the EG reporting unit. As of
October 31, 2014, our reporting units are consistéth the reportable segments identified
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in Note 2, except for ES, which includes two reytunits: MphasiS Limited; and the remainder of ES

In the first step of the goodwill impairmeast, we compare the fair value of each repontinigj to its carrying amount. We estimate the
fair value of our reporting units using a weightiofgfair values derived most significantly from tileome approach and, to a lesser extent, th
market approach. Under the income approach, wenatithe fair value of a reporting unit based @nplresent value of estimated future cash
flows. Cash flow projections are based on managémestimates of revenue growth rates and operatangins, taking into consideration
industry and market conditions. The discount radus based on the weighted-average cost of tagijtested for the relevant risk associated
with business-specific characteristics and the tairg#y related to the reporting unit's abilityewecute on the projected cash flows. Under the
market approach, we estimate fair value based gkenhmultiples of revenue and earnings derived fommparable publicly-traded companies
with operating and investment characteristics sintib the reporting unit. We weight the fair vatiexived from the market approach depen
on the level of comparability of these publiclyeteal companies to the reporting unit. When marketparables are not meaningful or not
available, we estimate the fair value of a repgrtinit using only the income approach. For the Miidimited reporting unit, we utilized the
guoted market price in an active market to estirfatesalue.

In order to assess the reasonablenesg efstimated fair value of our reporting units, wenpare the aggregate reporting unit fair value t
HP's market capitalization and calculate an imptiedtrol premium (the excess of the sum of the nappunits' fair value over HP's market
capitalization). We evaluate the control premiuncbynparing it to observable control premiums fr@oent comparable transactions. If the
implied control premium is not believed to be reeasdae in light of these recent transactions, weakmte reporting unit fair values, which n
result in an adjustment to the discount rate anattoer assumptions. This reevaluation could résudtchange to the estimated fair value for
certain or all of our reporting units.

Estimating the fair value of a reportingtus judgmental in nature and involves the ussighificant estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions include revenue growdh amd operating margins used to calculate peajefature cash flows, risk-adjusted
discount rates, future economic and market conditend the determination of appropriate comparnaibldicly-traded companies. In addition,
we make certain judgments and assumptions in dif@cahared assets and liabilities to individuglaiting units to determine the carrying
amount of each reporting unit.

If the fair value of a reporting unit exdsahe carrying amount of the net assets assigntitit reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired
and no further testing is required. If the fairun@bf the reporting unit is less than its carryamgount, then we perform the second step of the
goodwill impairment test to measure the amounhgidirment loss, if any. In the second step, thentemm unit's assets, including any
unrecognized intangible assets, liabilities and-comntrolling interests are measured at fair vafua hypothetical analysis to calculate the
implied fair value of goodwill for the reporting iiin the same manner as if the reporting unit eisg acquired in a business combination. If
the implied fair value of the reporting unit's gaolllis less than its carrying amount, the diffecens recorded as an impairment loss.

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis,jefiwe performed as of the first day of the fouyttarter of fiscal 2014, did not result in any
impairment charges. The excess of fair value oaetying amount for our reporting units ranged frd8% to approximately 12,000% of
carrying amounts. The Software reporting unit eslowest excess of fair value over carrying amamii8%.
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In order to evaluate the sensitivity of #stimated fair value of our reporting units in goodwill impairment test, we applied a
hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair value of eapbrting unit. This hypothetical 10% decreaselted in an excess of fair value over
carrying amount for our reporting units rangingnfir6% to approximately 10,000% of the carrying amsuvith the Software reporting unit
having the lowest excess of fair value over cagyamount of 6%. The fair value of the Software réipg unit is estimated using a weighting
of both the income and market approaches. Our &oétlusiness is facing multiple challenges inclgdire market shift to SaaS and go-to-
market execution challenges. If we are not sucaessfiddressing these challenges, our projecteehiee growth rates could decline resulting
in a decrease in the fair value of the Softwar@répg unit. The fair value of the Software repogtiunit could also be negatively impacted by
declines in market multiples of revenue for complrgublicly-traded companies, changes in managésiemsiness strategy or significant
declines in our stock price, which could resulamindicator of impairment.

Intangible Asset

We review intangible assets with finiteglé/for impairment whenever events or changes aueistances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverabilibupfinite-lived intangible assets is assesseddanehe estimated undiscounted future cast
flows expected to result from the use and evertisglosition of the asset. If the undiscounted ficash flows are less than the carrying
amount, the finite-lived intangible assets are @®red to be impaired. The amount of the impairnhesg, if any, is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset andiitsdhue. We estimate the fair value of finite-liventangible assets by using an income
approach or, when available and appropriate, usimgrket approach.

Fair Value of Derivative Instrumen

We use derivative instruments to managargety of risks, including risks related to foreigurrency exchange rates and interest rates. \/
use forwards, swaps and options to hedge certadigfo currency and interest rate exposures. Weotloge derivative financial instruments
speculative purposes. At October 31, 2014, thesgnosional of our derivative portfolio was $54.7ibn. Assets and liabilities related to
derivative instruments are measured at fair vadad,were $980 million and $405 million, respectivas of October 31, 2014.

Fair value is the price we would receiveeédl an asset or pay to transfer a liability inoaderly transaction between market participants a
the measurement date. In the absence of activeetsdid the identical assets or liabilities, suamsurements involve developing assumption
based on market observable data and, in the absésoeh data, internal information that is coresistwith what market participants would use
in a hypothetical transaction that occurs at thasueement date. The determination of fair valueroiitivolves significant judgments about
assumptions such as determining an appropriateuwtiscate that factors in both risk and liquiditgmiums, identifying the similarities and
differences in market transactions, weighting thadifferences accordingly and then making the appatp adjustments to those market
transactions to reflect the risks specific to theed or liability being valued. We generally usdustry standard valuation models to measure tt
fair value of our derivative positions. When prigesctive markets are not available for the ideaitasset or liability, we use industry standarc
valuation models to measure fair value. Where apple, these models project future cash flows @wbdnt the future amounts to present
value using market-based observable inputs, inatutiterest rate curves, HP and counterparty cristtit foreign currency exchange rates, ant
forward and spot prices.
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For a further discussion on fair value nieasients and derivative instruments, refer to N6tand Note 11, respectively, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, whiehincorporated herein by reference.

Loss Contingencie

We are involved in various lawsuits, clajimyestigations and proceedings including thosesisting of IP, commercial, securities,
employment, employee benefits and environmentalaersathat arise in the ordinary course of busindssrecord a liability when we believe
that it is both probable that a liability has béseurred and the amount of loss can be reasonakima&ted. Significant judgment is required to
determine both the probability of having incurrelibaility and the estimated amount of the lialilitVe review these matters at least quarterly
and adjust these liabilities to reflect the impafohegotiations, settlements, rulings, advice galeounsel and other updated information and
events, pertaining to a particular case. Baseduomxperience, we believe that any damage amoltaiteed in the specific litigation and
contingencies matters further discussed in Notto1Be Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemt8¢h is incorporated herein by referer
are not a meaningful indicator of HP's potentialbiiity. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. iWever, we believe we have valid defenses
with respect to legal matters pending against evektheless, cash flows or results of operationgddoe materially affected in any particular
period by the resolution of one or more of thesgiogencies. We believe we have recorded adequatésipns for any such matters and, as o
October 31, 2014, it was not reasonably possildeaimaterial loss had been incurred in excedseohinounts recognized in our financial
statements.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For a summary of recent accounting pronenrents applicable to our consolidated financidakstents see Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorpedaterein by reference.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue from our international operatioas historically represented, and we expect wiltioo to represent, a majority of our overall
net revenue. As a result, our revenue growth has bepacted, and we expect will continue to be icgd, by fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. In order to provide a frameworkagzessing performance excluding the impact ofgoreurrency fluctuations, we present the
yearoveryear percentage change in revenue on a constaehcyrbasis, which assumes no change in foreigmiocy exchange rates from
prior-year period. This information is providedthat revenue can be viewed without the effectwdtfiations in foreign currency exchange
rates, which is consistent with how managementugates our revenue results and trends. This constiargncy disclosure is provided in
addition to, and not as a substitute for, the yearyear percentage change in revenue on a GAAB.ather companies may calculate and
define similarly labeled items differently, whichagnlimit the usefulness of this measure for comgpaggurposes.
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Results of operations in dollars and asragntage of net revenue were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Net revenu $ 111,45 100.(% $ 112,29¢ 100.% $ 120,35 100.(%
Cost of sale§? 84,83¢  76.1%  86,38( _ 76.%  92,38:  76.£%
Gross profi 26,61¢ 23.%% 25,91¢ 23.1% 27,97: 23.2%
Research and developme 3,44 3.1% 3,13¢ 2.8% 3,39¢ 2.8%
Selling, general and
administrative 13,35 12.(% 13,267 11.8% 13,50( 11.2%
Amortization of intangible
asset: 1,00( 0.9% 1,37: 1.2% 1,78¢ 1.5%

Impairment of goodwill and

intangible asset®) — — — 18,03t  15.(%
Restructuring charge 1,61¢ 1.5% 99C 0.€% 2,26¢ 1.%

Acquisitior-related charge 11 — 22 — 45 —
Earnings (loss) from
operations 7,18¢ 6.4% 7,131 6.4% (11,059 (9.2%
Interest and other, n (62€) (0.6)% (621) (0.6)% (87€) (0.8)%
Earnings (loss) before
taxes 6,557 5.8% 6,51( 5.8% (11,93) (10.0%
Provision for taxe: (1,544 (1.9% (1,399 (1.2)% (7179) (0.5)%
Net earnings (loss $ 5,01: 45%$ 5,11 4.6%$ (12,650 (10.5%

@ Cost of products, cost of services and financingrast.

@ Fiscal 2012, includes an $8.8 billion goodwill anthngible asset impairment charge associatedtivittAutonomy
reporting unit within the Software segment, an $8ln goodwill impairment within the ES segmeamd a $1.2 billion
intangible asset impairment associated with thenifaqg" trade name within the Personal Systems sdg

Net Revenu
The components of the weighted net revetaage were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013
Percentage Points

Enterprise Service (1.5 1.7
Printing (0.9 (0.5
Enterprise Grou, (0.2 (1.3
Software (0.7 (0.7
HP Financial Service (0.2 (0.2
Corporate Investments/Oth 0.1 0.1
Personal Systen 1.8 (3.0
Total HP 0.9 (6.7
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Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

In fiscal 2014, total HP net revenue dewli®.8% (decreased 0.4% on a constant currencg)lasscompared with fiscal 2013. U.S. net
revenue decreased 3.7% to $38.8 billion, whileree¢nue from outside of the U.S. increased 0.9%r 6 billion. The leading contributors to
the HP net revenue decline were key account rundS and lower Printing supplies volume. Partialffsetting the net revenue decline was
growth in Personal Systems from commercial PCsclvbkperienced growth across all product categaaiesg with growth in consumer
notebooks.

From a segment perspective, the primartofacontributing to the change in HP net revermudi$cal 2014 compared with fiscal 2013
summarized as follows:

. ES net revenue declined due primarily to revenueffuin key accounts, weak growth in new and erggtaccounts, particularly
in EMEA, and contractual price declines;

. Printing net revenue decreased due primarily decline in Supplies;

. EG net revenue decreased due to net revenuieeeatl TS, BCS and Storage;

. Software net revenue decreased due to loweerehue from licenses, support and professionslcssy;

. HPFS net revenue decreased due primarily torlpwefolio revenue from lower average portfolices and lower asset

management activity, primarily in customer buyouts;

. Corporate Investments net revenue increased dibe tgale of intellectual property ("IP"); and
. Personal Systems net revenue increased due tolghowbmmercial PCs, particularly notebooks, alaiily growth in consume
notebooks.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

In fiscal 2013, total HP net revenue dedli6.7% (decreased 5.5% on a constant currency)l@sscompared with fiscal 2012. U.S. net
revenue decreased 4.4% to $40.3 billion, whilereeénue from outside of the U.S. decreased 7.98%2d0 billion. The net revenue decline
was due primarily to declines of approximately 1094, 5% and 3% in our Personal Systems, ES, EGPanting segments, respectively.

From a segment perspective, the primariofacontributing to the change in HP net revermudi$cal 2013 compared with fiscal 2012
summarized as follows:

. Personal Systems net revenue declined due to thieelén the overall PC market as a result of aamer shift, particularly
consumers, to tablet products;

. ES net revenue declined due primarily to netiserrevenue runoff and contractual price declinesngoing contracts due in
part to weak public sector spending and enterpfiglemand;

. EG net revenue declined due to multiple factorduiting competitive pricing challenges in ISS, akeadecline for UNIX
products impacting BCS, declines in TS due in fmlbwer support for BCS products, product transisiin Storage and overall
weak enterprise IT demand,;

. Printing net revenue declined due to unfavorableency impacts, particularly the euro, and aediin supplies and commercial
printers;
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. HPFS net revenue decreased due primarily to loar@at revenue from a decrease in operating leastsasind

. Software net revenue declined due to lower licemskprofessional services revenues from IT/cloudagament and
information management products.

A more detailed discussion of segment reeds included under "Segment Information” below.
Gross Margin

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

HP's gross margin increased by 0.8 pergenpaints for fiscal year 2014 compared with fi2@13. From a segment perspective, the
primary factors impacting gross margin performaagesummarized as follows:

. ES gross margin increased due primarily to ourinaetl focus on service delivery efficiencies, impng profit performance in
under-performing contracts and labor savings &saltrof restructuring;

. Printing gross margin increased due primarily tmfable currency impacts from the Japanese Yenimaed cost structure
improvements and a favorable mix from a higher prtpn of graphics and ink supplies;

. Corporate Investments gross margin increasedaltie sale of IP;

. Software gross margin increased due to the &hifiore profitable contracts and improved workéoutilization in professional
services;

. HPFS gross margin increased due to a higher piortiohrgin, primarily from lower bad debt expenséwer cost of funds and

improved margins in remarketing sales;

. Personal Systems gross margin increased due piyrtmoperational cost improvements, a favorablg aficommercial
products and the sale of IP; and

. EG gross margin decreased due primarily torthyaict of a higher mix of ISS products, lower mibx8&S products and
competitive pricing pressure in ISS and Networking.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

HP's gross margin decreased by 0.2 pergemtaints for fiscal year 2013 compared with fis2@12. From a segment perspective, the
primary factors impacting gross margin performaagesummarized as follows:

. EG experienced a gross margin decline due primarigompetitive pricing pressures in ISS, and lesaer extent, mix impacts
from lower BCS and Storage revenue;

. Personal Systems experienced a gross margimedelttle primarily to unfavorable currency impaaid aompetitive pricing
pressures;

. ES gross margin decreased due to net service revenoff and contractual price declines;

. Software gross margin decreased slightly due tbdrigevelopment costs in IT/cloud management prsgduc
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. HPFS gross margin increased slightly due primaailisigher portfolio margins from a lower mix of apéng leases and higher
margins on early buyouts; and

. Printing gross margin increased due primariljmiprovement in toner gross margins as a resutivér discounting and higher
average revenue per unit ("ARU") in consumer prite

A more detailed discussion of segment gnoaggins and operating margins is included undegh$ent Information” below.
Operating Expenses
Research and Development

R&D expense increased 10% in fiscal 201daaspared to fiscal 2013 with increases across ehohr segments as we make investment
in our strategic focus areas of cloud, security,dzata and mobility.

R&D expense decreased 8% in fiscal 201&aspared to fiscal 2012 due primarily to the ratigration of R&D in EG for BCS, cost
savings from restructuring and higher value add&® Rax subsidy credits. The decrease was partéfiset by increased R&D expense in our
Storage and ISS business units and in Softwaraf@vation-focused spending in the areas of coractgfrastructure and cloud.

Selling, General and Administrative

SG&A expense increased 1% in fiscal 201daamspared to fiscal 2013 due primarily to highempensation costs, litigation expenses ant
higher selling costs from investments in the adfadoud, networking and storage, partially offegtgains from sales of real estate and lower
program spending in marketing.

SG&A expense decreased 2% in fiscal 201®aspared to fiscal 2012 due primarily to cost sgsiassociated with our ongoing
restructuring efforts that impacted all of our segs. Partially offsetting the decline were highmarrketing expenses to support new product
introductions and increased administrative expedsesn part to higher consulting project spending.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense decreased in fiscdd2@ue primarily to certain intangible assets aisged with prior acquisitions reaching the end
of their respective amortization periods.

Amortization expense decreased in fiscalR@ue primarily to the intangible asset impairmebrded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012
related to Autonomy and certain intangible asss$®eiated with prior acquisitions reaching the ehtheir amortization periods.

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In fiscal 2012, we recorded goodwill impaént charges of $8.0 billion and $5.7 billion asated with ES and the acquisition of
Autonomy, respectively. In addition, we recordethngible asset impairment charges of $3.1 billiod $1.2 billion associated with the
acquisition of Autonomy and the "Compagq" trade narespectively. For more information on our impaérhcharges, see Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, widdhcorporated herein by reference.
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Restructuring Charges

Restructuring charges increased in fis6dk2due primarily to higher charges in connectigiin the multi-year restructuring plan initially
announced in May 2012 (the "2012 Plan") and froonaases to the 2012 Plan announced in fiscal ZDddng fiscal 2014, HP increased the
total for positions expected to be eliminated uritler2012 Plan from 34,000 to 55,000 positionshwihiese changes, HP expects to recognize
additional restructuring charges in fiscal 2015.

Restructuring charges decreased in fisgdB2lue primarily to the $2.1 billion charge recddn fiscal 2012 for the 2012 Plan.
Restructuring charges for fiscal 2013 were appraxaty $1.0 billion, which included $1.2 billion oharges related to the 2012 Plan that were
partially offset by a reversal of $190 million @\&rance charges related to our fiscal 2010 E8umsting plan.

Interest and Other, N¢

Interest and other, net expense increag&Y bnillion in fiscal 2014. The increase was duenprily to higher currency transaction losses
partially offset by lower interest expense fronowér average debt balance.

Interest and other, net expense decreas8d3b million in fiscal 2013. The decrease wasetiprimarily by lower currency transaction
losses coupled with lower interest expense dueviel average debt balances and lower investmesedos

Provision for Taxe:

Our effective tax rates were 23.5%, 21.8%@ (6.0)% in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respeltivOur effective tax rate generally differs
from the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% dufatmrable tax rates associated with certain easniram our operations in lower-tax
jurisdictions throughout the world. The jurisdict®with favorable tax rates that had the most Bagrit effective tax rate impact in the peric
presented were Puerto Rico, Singapore, Netherl&tidaa and Ireland. We plan to reinvest certaimieais of these jurisdictions indefinitely
outside the U.S. and therefore have not provid&l tdxes on those indefinitely reinvested earnings.

In addition to the above factors, the dffectax rate in fiscal 2012 was impacted by nonmible goodwill impairments and increases in
valuation allowances against certain deferred sae.

For a reconciliation of our effective tate to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% amthér explanation of our provision for taxes, see
Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statementem 8, which is incorporated herein by referer

Segment Information

A description of the products and servioesach segment can be found in Note 2 to the @mladed Financial Statements in Item 8,
which is incorporated herein by reference. Futim@nges to this organizational structure may résulhanges to the segments disclosed.

Effective at the beginning of the first giea of fiscal 2014, we implemented certain orgatianal changes to align the segment financial
reporting more closely with our current businessdtire. These organizational changes include:

. transferring the HP Exstream business from tbe@ercial Hardware business unit within the Proptsiegment to the Software
segment;
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. transferring the Personal Systems trade and wagrsapiport business from the TS business unit witihinEG segment to the
Other business unit within the Personal Systemsisag

. transferring the spare and replacement pargsastipg the Personal Systems and Printing segnfientsthe TS business unit
within the EG segment to the Other business urhiiwihe Personal Systems segment and the ComrhEiamidware business
unit within the Printing segment, respectively; and

. transferring certain cloud-related incubation dtiég previously reported in Corporate and unalledacosts and eliminations
and in the EG segment to the Corporate Investnssgsient.

In addition, we transferred certain int@sent eliminations from the ES segment and the &Bent to corporate intersegment revenue
eliminations.

HP has reflected these changes to its segmfermation retrospectively to the earliest pdrpresented, which has resulted in the transfe
of revenue among the Printing, Personal SystemsHSGnd Software segments and the transfer oatipgmrofit among the Printing,
Personal Systems, EG, Software and Corporate imegis segments. These changes had no impact pretfieusly reported financial results
for the HPFS segment. In addition, none of thessgls impacted HP's previously reported consolidag¢ revenue, earnings from operatit
net earnings, net EPS or consolidated assets.

Printing and Personal Systems Grot

The Personal Systems segment and therRyistigment are structured beneath a broader Ryimtid Personal Systems Group ("PPS").
We describe the results of the business segmetittWHPS below.

Personal System

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions

Net revenue $ 34,300 $ 32,17¢ $ 35,84

Earnings from operatior $ 127C $ 98C $ 1,72«

Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 3.7% 3.C% 4.8%

The components of the weighted net revetaage by business unit were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013
Percentage Points

Notebook PC: 4.7 (7.8
Desktop PC: 1.1 (2.9
Workstations 0.2 —
Other 0.€ 0.5
Total Personal Systen 6.€ (10.2)
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Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

Personal Systems net revenue increased @@%ased 7.2% on a constant currency basis3éalf2014. While the Personal Systems
business continues to be challenged by the mahif¢t@wards mobility products, the pace of the ®@rket decline is slowing with signs of
stabilization driven by growth in commercial PGs effects of which were partially offset by weassién consumer PCs. The revenue incr
in Personal Systems was due to growth in commergal, particularly notebooks, along with growtltémsumer notebooks. Personal System
experienced revenue growth across all regions yetblible digit revenue growth in EMEA, which exggrted improved demand. The revenu
increase was driven by an 8.2% increase in unitrael the effects of which were partially offsetéb§.5% decline in average selling prices
("ASPs"). The unit volume increase was primarily by growth in commercial notebooks as well asgfile in commercial desktops, consut
notebooks and thin client products. The declina$#s was due primarily to a competitive pricingiemvment and unfavorable currency
impacts, the effects of which were partially offbgta favorable mix of commercial PCs. Net reveftneeommercial clients increased 10.2%
due primarily to the benefits from the delayedaiistl base refresh cycle, the effects of custommégsating from the Windows XP operating
system and growth in all product categories pattlyen by new product introductions, including tHe Elite products. Net revenue for
consumer clients remained flat as growth in consum&ebooks, partly driven by our new product lipéacluding Chromebooks and hybrid
products, was offset by a decline in consumer d@sktFor fiscal 2014, net revenue for Notebook iR€®ased 9%, Desktop PCs increased
3%, Workstations increased 3% and Other net reverweased 16%. The net revenue increase in Othgrdwe to the sale of IP and growth in
mobility products, primarily consumer tablets whighre introduced in the second half of fiscal 2013.

Personal Systems earnings from operatisraspercentage of net revenue increased 0.7 pageepoints for fiscal 2014. The increase wa
driven by an increase in gross margin and a deglimperating expenses as a percentage of netuevéhe increase in gross margin was due
primarily to operational cost improvements, a fale commercial mix and the sale of IP, the effe€twhich were partially offset by
unfavorable currency impacts. Operating expensespascentage of net revenue decreased due pgrt@olr cost structure optimization
efforts, the effects of which were partially off$stincreased research and development investrfantemmercial, mobility and immersive
computing products, as well as higher administeagixpenses driven by lower bad debt recoveriesmapared to fiscal 2013.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

Personal Systems net revenue decreaseth 18&treased 9.0% on a constant currency badispal 2013. The Personal Systems
business continued to experience significant chg#s due to the overall PC market decline as dt refsa customer shift, particularly
consumers, to tablet products. The business ajseriexced broad-based regional demand weaknesisupaty in the EMEA region. The
decline in Personal Systems revenue was drivem8p@adecline in unit volume along with a 3% decliméSPs. The unit volume decrease
was led by declines in consumer and notebook ptedagca result of the market shift to tablet prasiuthe decline in ASPs was due primarily
to a competitive pricing environment. Net revenoiedonsumer clients decreased 19%, while net revéancommercial clients decreased 4%.
Notebook PCs net revenue decreased 15%, while &@§iE&s net revenue decreased 8%. Workstationgverue growth was flat, whi
Other net revenue increased 19%. The net reverueaise in Other was related to increased salegerided warranties and third-party
branded options and sales of consumer tablets.

61




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Corihued)

Personal Systems earnings from operatisraspercentage of net revenue decreased 1.8 pageguaints in fiscal 2013. The decrease wa
driven by a decline in gross margin combined wittirecrease in operating expenses as a percentagg fvenue. The decline in gross ma
was due to unfavorable currency impacts and comiyeepricing pressures. These unfavorable impactgass margin were partially offset by
lower component and warranty costs and a favomaibteof higher-margin commercial products. Operagxgenses as a percentage of net
revenue increased due primarily to the size ofé¢lvenue decline as well as slightly higher R&D soktowever, operating expenses declined
across most other expense categories as a refghefits from our ongoing restructuring efforts.

Printing

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions

Net revenue $ 22,97¢ $ 23,89¢ $ 24,53¢

Earnings from operatior $ 4,18t $ 3,93 $ 3,61-

Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 18.2% 16.5% 14.1%

The components of the weighted net revetamge by business unit were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013
Percentage Points
Supplies 3.3 (1.8
Consumer Hardwatr (0.9 —
Commercial Hardwar (0.7) (0.8)
Total Printing (3.9 (2.6)

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

In fiscal 2014, Printing experienced a dexin revenue and an increase in operating pasfive continued to push our print strategies,
which includes driving high value printer unit pdecents and expanding our graphics products andgedraint services portfolio. Printing
net revenue decreased 3.8% (decreased 3.4% orst@igbourrency basis) for fiscal 2014. The dedimeet revenue was primarily driven by a
decline in Supplies, the effects of which were ipdiyt offset by growth in graphics products and mged print services. Net revenue for
Supplies decreased 5% driven by demand weaknéssénand ink, and a reduction in channel inventorhe fourth quarter of fiscal 2014,
the effects of which were partially offset by grovimn graphics supplies. Printer unit volume remdifiat while average revenue per unit
("ARU") decreased 1%. Printer unit volume was @laé primarily to our continued efforts to targegthivalue areas of the market, which
resulted in a decline in home printer units and-il@lue LaserJet printer units, the effects of whigre offset by increased units in SMB,
multifunction laser and graphics printers. The bhecin ARU was due primarily to increased discongtilriven by competitive pricing
pressures. Net revenue for Commercial Hardwareflatias a 3% increase in printer unit volume wdsaifby a 3% decline in printer ARU.
The unit volume in Commercial Hardware increaseel jplimarily to growth in our multifunction laseripters and graphics printers. The ARU
decline in Commercial Hardware was due primarilya tbecline in
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LaserJet and graphics printers driven by a conipefiricing environment. Net revenue for Consumarddvare decreased 4% driven by a 1%
decline in printer unit volume and a 1% declindRU, along with a decline in other peripheral prigtsolutions. The unit volume decline in
Consumer Hardware was due to lower sales of hoin&eps, the effects of which were partially offegtgrowth in SMB printers. The ARU
decline in Consumer Hardware was due primariyntmeased discounting for SMB printers due to a aitipe pricing environment, the
effects of which were partially offset by a favaiemix of high value home printers.

Printing earnings from operations as a gaiage of net revenue increased by 1.7 percentagss for fiscal 2014 as an increase in gross
margin more than offset an increase in operatingeeses as a percentage of net revenue. The grogmimgrease was due to favorable
currency impacts primarily driven by the Japanesa,Xontinued cost structure improvements and @&e mix from a higher proportion of
graphics and ink supplies, the effects of whichengartially offset by a competitive pricing envirnant. Operating expenses as a percenta
net revenue increased due primarily to higher R&pPemses as a result of our investments in enterprisducts and 3-D printing, the effects of
which were partially offset by reduced marketingenses.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

Printing net revenue decreased 2.6% (deettd% on a constant currency basis) in fiscal 20t8 decrease was driven by unfavorable
currency impacts, particularly weakness in the ganal declines in supplies and commercial printé¢et.revenue for Supplies decreased 3%
due to unfavorable currency impacts and lower vesiof toner and ink supplies. These effects weriaflg offset by growth in large format
printing supplies. Printer unit volumes declined3% while ARU increased by 1%. Printer unit volundesreased largely due to declines in
low-end consumer printers as we continued our fecusigher-value Ink in the Office and Ink Advargéggroducts. The increase in ARU was
driven by a mix shift to high-value consumer pristehe effect of which was partially offset by &y discounting in commercial printers. Net
revenue for Commercial Hardware decreased 3%, whiéshdriven by a 6% decline in ARU that was pditiaffset by a volume increase of
2%. The decline in Commercial Hardware net revemag partially offset by net revenue growth in thepdics services and managed print
services businesses. Net revenue for Consumer laedwmained flat due to a 7% increase in ARUgffect of which was offset by a 5%
reduction in volume. Unit volume and ARU increaséthin high-value consumer printers as a resuttufcontinued focus on those more
profitable printers.

Printing earnings from operations as a @aiage of net revenue increased by 1.8 percentdges in fiscal 2013 due to an increase in
gross margin combined with lower operating expeases percentage of net revenue. The gross magieaise was due to improvement in
toner gross margins resulting from lower discoumtingher ARU in consumer printers, and lower afstales in toner and commercial prin
due to a favorable currency impact from the Japaives). These positive effects were partially offsgtan unfavorable mix of lower-margin
consumer printers. Operating expenses as a pegeeotaet revenue decreased due to lower admitingtyd&R&D and field selling costs as a
result of benefits from our ongoing restructurirfifpes. These effects were partially offset by legimarketing expenses to support new pra
introductions.
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Enterprise Group

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions

Net revenue $ 27,81« $ 28,08: $ 29,64

Earnings from operatior $ 4,006 $ 425¢ $ 5,120

Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 14.0% 15.2% 17.2%

The components of the weighted net revetamge by business unit were as follows for thiefohg fiscal years ended October 31:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013
Percentage Points

Technology Service (1.0 1.3
Business Critical Systen (0.9 (1.9
Storage (0.6) (1.0
Networking 0.3 0.1
Industry Standard Serve 1.3 (1.6)
Total Enterprise Grou (1.0 (5.9

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

EG net revenue decreased 1.0% (decrea%ddh a constant currency basis) in fiscal 2014£@®) we continue to experience revenue
challenges due to market trends, including thestt@m to cloud computing, as well as product azhhology transitions, along with a highly
competitive pricing environment. The decline in B& revenue was due to net revenue declines iBBTS,and Storage partially offset by net
revenue growth in ISS and Networking.

TS net revenue decreased 4% due primaridydontinued reduction in support for BCS, traxditil storage products and lower support in
networking services, partially offset by growthsimpport solutions for converged storage solutionsI&S. BCS net revenue decreased 22% ¢
a result of ongoing pressures from the overall UMiXrket contraction. Storage net revenue decrdas&8o as we continue to experience
multiple challenges including product transitionanh traditional storage products which include tayre, storage networking and legacy
external disk products, to converged solutionschimclude our 3PAR StoreServ, StoreOnce, and Bidtrl products, other challenges
include market weakness in high-end convergedisolsiind sales execution challenges, the effeatshwh were partially offset by revenue
growth in our Converged Storage solutions. Netwagkiet revenue increased 4% due to higher switghtiaduct revenue as a result of growth
in our data center products, partially offset byéo revenue from wireless local area network préglu8S net revenue increased by 3% due
primarily to higher volume and higher average pnites in rack and blade server products drivehiglier option attach rates for memory,
processors and hard drives.

EG earnings from operations as a percerifiget revenue decreased by 0.8 percentage poifissal 2014 due to a decrease in gross
margin coupled with an increase in operating expems a percentage of net revenue. The gross nugine was due primarily to a higher
mix of ISS products, a lower mix of BCS products @ompetitive pricing pressure in ISS and Netwagkipartially offset
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by supply chain cost optimization and improved enahagement in TS. The increase in operating eggess a percentage of net revenue wa
driven by higher R&D investments in storage, netirgy and ISS, partially offset by continued costisgs associated with our ongoing
restructuring efforts.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

EG net revenue decreased 5.3% (decrea®®dah a constant currency basis) in fiscal 2013ptirearily to the macroeconomic demand
challenges the business faced during the fiscal yehlitionally, new product and technology traimsis in Storage and ISS and a competitive
pricing environment contributed to the revenue ideclEG also experienced execution challengedni@dcted revenue growth in fiscal 2013,
although those challenges moderated in the fowrdintgr due to improved sales execution. Each obtistness units within EG experienced
yearoveryear revenue declines in fiscal 2013 except NetimgrtdSS net revenue decreased by 4% due to catimpgtricing and soft demar
Within ISS, we experienced a revenue decline inooue mainstream products that was partially offisetevenue growth in our hyperscale
server products. TS net revenue decreased by 4%dagenue declines in the support and consuliirginesses and, to a lesser extent, to
unfavorable currency impacts. Support revenue dedldue to a reduction in support for BCS produidte consulting revenue decline was a
result of unfavorable currency impacts, the ditasti of a service product line and a shift to manafitable services such as data center and
storage consulting. BCS net revenue decreased%ya®6a result of ongoing pressures from the dealitiee overall UNIX market along with
lower demand for our Itanium-based servers. Stonegeevenue decreased by 9% due to declinesdititraal storage products, which include
our tape, storage networking, and legacy exterisélgtoducts, the effects of which were partiaffiset by growth in Converged Storage
solutions, which include our 3PAR, StoreOnce, Stataal and StoreAll products. Networking revenuaereased by 2% due to higher demanc
for our switching, routing, and wireless produtie effect of which was partially offset by the iagp of the divestiture of our video
surveillance business in the first quarter of il 2.

EG earnings from operations as a percergfget revenue decreased by 2.1 percentage poifissal 2013 driven by a decrease in gross
margin and, to a lesser extent, an increase inatipgrexpenses as a percentage of net revenugrdde margin decrease was due primarily tc
competitive pricing pressures in ISS and, to aglesgtent, pricing pressures in Storage and mixatctgpfrom lower BCS revenue. Operating
expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased the decline in EG net revenue and increasttidelling costs and administrative
expenses. R&D expenses as a percentage of neurdenreased due primarily to the rationalizatibR&D specifically for BCS and a value-
added tax subsidy credit in BCS. EG also benefitmul cost savings resulting from our ongoing restinting efforts.

Enterprise Service

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Net revenue $ 22,39¢ $ 24,060 $ 25,99
Earnings from operatior $ 80 $ 67¢ $ 1,04t
Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 3.€% 2.&% 4.C%
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The components of the weighted net reveaage by business unit were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013
Percentage Points
Infrastructure Technology Outsourci (4.9 (3.7)
Application and Business Servic (2.0 (3.7
Total Enterprise Service (6.9 (7.9

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

ES net revenue decreased 6.9% (decrea®%ddh a constant currency basis) in fiscal 2014oReance in ES remains challenged by the
impact of several large contracts winding down laweer public sector spending in EMEA, particulaiythe United Kingdom, and several
other countries in EMEA. The net revenue decrea$eS was due primarily to revenue runoff in keyaaots, weak growth in new and exist
accounts, particularly in EMEA, and contractuatprdeclines. These effects were partially offsehdlyrevenue growth in our SES portfolio,
which includes information management and analyesurity and cloud services. Net revenue in tftecture Technology Outsourcing
("I'TO") decreased by 8% in fiscal 2014 due to raxerunoff in key accounts, weak growth in new axidtang accounts, particularly in
EMEA, and contractual price declines in ongoingtcacts partially offset by growth in cloud and séigurevenue and favorable currency
impacts. Net revenue in Application and BusinessiSes ("ABS") decreased by 5% in fiscal 2014, thueevenue runoff in a key account,
weak growth in new and existing accounts, partitylia EMEA, and unfavorable currency impacts, it offset by growth in information
management and analytics and cloud revenue.

ES earnings from operations as a percerttfiget revenue increased 0.8 percentage poitfitscial 2014. The increase in operating ma
was due to an increase in gross margin, partidgebby an increase in operating expenses ascamaige of net revenue. Gross margin
increased due primarily to our continued focus emnvise delivery efficiencies, improving profit perfmance in under-performing contracts anc
labor savings as a result of restructuring, paytiafifset by unfavorable impacts from revenue rdimokey accounts and weak growth in new
and existing accounts. The increase in operatipgrses as a percentage of net revenue was prirdexign by the size of the revenue decline
and higher administrative expenses and field gellimsts. The increase in current year adminisgaikpenses was due to the prior-year perioc
containing higher bad debt recoveries and insureemaveries. The increase in selling costs wasdhelt of expanding the sales force cove
as we transition from a reactive sales model tmeerproactive approach.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

ES net revenue decreased 7.4% (decrea®3®ddh a constant currency basis) in fiscal 201¥eRee performance in ES continues to be
challenged by several factors that impact the deneawironment, including weak public sector spegdimthe U.S. and austerity measures in
other countries, particularly in the United Kingdoamd weak IT services spend due to the mixed glalcavery, particularly in the EMEA
region. The net revenue decrease in ES was driaraply by net service revenue runoff, contractpate declines in ongoing contracts and
unfavorable currency impacts. ITO net revenue desgre by 6% in fiscal 2013, due to net service regennoff,
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contractual price declines in ongoing contracts am@dvorable currency impacts, the effects of whigne partially offset by net revenue
growth in security and cloud offerings. ABS neteaue declined 10% in fiscal 2013. The net reveraadirte was due primarily to net service
revenue runoff and unfavorable currency impacts effiects of which were partially offset by revergsewth in cloud and information and
analytics offerings. Revenue in ABS was also neghtiimpacted by weakness in public-sector spending

ES earnings from operations as a percertfiget revenue decreased 1.2 percentage poifiscal 2013. The decrease was due to a
decline in gross margin combined with an increasapierating expenses as a percentage of net revenags margin declined due primarily to
net service revenue runoff and contractual pricgdinies. These unfavorable impacts to gross margire\partially offset by our continued foc
on improving resource management and profit impmasmts on under-performing contracts. Operating es@e as a percentage of net revenu
increased due to higher administrative, marketimjR&D costs. These effects were partially offsetdéduced field selling costs due to lower
headcount-related costs during the year and ogwengs from our ongoing restructuring efforts.

Software
For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Net revenue $ 3,93 $ 4,021 $ 4,171
Earnings from operatior $ 872 $ 86¢ $ 83¢€
Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 22.2% 21.6% 20.(%

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

Software net revenue decreased 2.2% (demulei1% on a constant currency basis) in fischi2Bevenue growth in Software is being
challenged by the overall market and customer ghiaaS solutions, which is impacting growth aeffise and support revenue. In fiscal 2014
net revenue from licenses, support and professemraices decreased by 3%, 2% and 5% respectivblle SaaS net revenue increased by
5%.

The decline in license net revenue wastdube market and customer shift to SaaS solutiwhih resulted in lower revenue from
IT/cloud management and information managementymtsd partially offset by strength in some of oaykocus areas of big data analytics
security. The decrease in support net revenue wasadpast declines in license revenue. Profedssanaices net revenue decreased as we
continue our focus on highenargin engagements. These declines were partitifigtdy higher SaaS revenue due to improving dehfianoul
SaasS solutions in IT/cloud management productssandrity products.

In fiscal 2014, Software earnings from @p@ns as a percentage of net revenue increas@dlpercentage points due to an increase in
gross margin, the effect of which was partiallyseffby an increase in operating expenses as anpageeof net revenue. The increase in gross
margin was due to the shift to more profitable cacts and improved workforce utilization in profiessl services. The increase in operating
expenses as a percentage of net revenue was duwariprito investments in R&D partially offset byer SG&A expenses due to cost savings
associated with our ongoing restructuring effortd anproved operational expense management.
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Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

Software net revenue decreased 3.6% (desmuieai6% on a constant currency basis) in fiscaB2Net revenue from licenses and
professional services decreased by 16% and 13%gategely, while net revenue from SaaS and sugporeased by 10% and 7%,
respectively.

The decline in software revenue was dripemarily by lower license revenue from IT/cloud magement and information management
products, due primarily to a large deal entered intthe prior year and the market shift to Sad8rivfgs. The revenue decline was also due to
lower professional services revenue from IT/cloumhagement and information management products asamage the professional services
portfolio to focus on higher-margin solutions. Taekeclines were partially offset by higher growtlsuipport revenue from our information
management and security products and higher revgnaweth in our SaasS offerings from IT/cloud managetrand information management
products as we shift with the market to providingrmSaa$S offerings.

Software earnings from operations as agrgage of net revenue increased by 1.6 percentzgesin fiscal 2013 due to a decrease in
operating expense as a percentage of net revdraueffect of which was partially offset by a dese@n gross margin. The decrease in gross
margin was due primarily to higher developmenteastiT/cloud management products and the comparatipact of a highly profitable
software deal entered into in the prior year. Thimmreases were partially offset by a lower miloafer-margin professional services revenue.
The decrease in operating expense as a percerftegyenue was driven primarily by lower field sedji costs due to cost savings associated
with our ongoing restructuring efforts.

HP Financial Services

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions

Net revenue $ 3,49¢ $ 3,62¢ $ 3,81¢

Earnings from operatior $ 38¢ $ 39¢ $ 38¢

Earnings from operations as a % of net reve 11.1% 11.C% 10.2%

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

HPFS net revenue decreased by 3.6% (dextéa3% on a constant currency basis) in fiscat2life primarily to lower portfolio revenue
from lower average portfolio assets and lower asggtagement activity, primarily in customer buyouts

HPFS earnings from operations as a pergerafinet revenue increased by 0.1 percentagespioifiscal 2014. The increase was due
primarily to an increase in gross margin, partialfiset by an increase in operating expenses ascaptage of net revenue. The increase in
gross margin was the result of a higher portfolergm, primarily from lower bad debt expense atoveer cost of funds and improved marg
in remarketing sales. The increase in operatinges@s as a percentage of net revenue was due ifyritndrigher go-to-market investments.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

HPFS net revenue decreased by 5.0% (dextéa®% on a constant currency basis) in fiscaB2lile primarily to lower rental revenue
from a decrease in average operating lease aksets,asset recovery services revenue, and unfaleocairrency impacts. These effects were
partially offset by higher revenue from remarketsaes and higher finance income from an increafieance lease assets.
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HPFS earnings from operations as a pergerdinet revenue increased by 0.8 percentagespaifiscal 2013. The increase was due
primarily to an increase in gross margin, the eéftéavhich was partially offset by an increase petating expenses as a percentage of net
revenue as a result of higher IT investments. Tibeease in gross margin was the result of highafgio margin from a lower mix of
operating leases, higher margin on early buyoutd@mner bad debt expense.

Financing Originations

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Total financing origination $ 6,42F $ 5,60: $ 6,59(

New financing originations, which represtir@ amount of financing provided to customersefguipment and related software and
services, including intercompany activity, increhdd.7% in fiscal 2014 and decreased 15.0% inlfd@a3, respectively. The increase in fis
2014 was driven by higher financing associated Wihproduct sales and related services offeringgievthe decrease in fiscal 2013 was
primarily driven by lower financing associated wil? product sales and services offerings, andesser extent unfavorable currency impe

Portfolio Assets and Ratic

The HPFS business model is asset intemsidaises certain internal metrics to measure ifeqpeance against other financial services
companies, including a segment balance sheetslurived from our internal management reportirgiesy. The accounting policies used to
derive HPFS amounts are substantially the samigoae used by HP. However, intercompany loans artdic@accounts that are reflected in
segment balances are eliminated in our Consolidéiteghcial Statements.
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The portfolio assets and ratios derivedhftbe segment balance sheet for HPFS were as fllow

As of October 31

2014 2013

Dollars in millions
Financing receivables, gro $ 6,67C $ 7,15¢
Net equipment under operating lea 2,59 2,37(
Capitalized profit on intercompany equipment tratisas®) 783 71%
Intercompany leasé¥ 2,19¢ 2,202
Gross portfolio asse 12,24 12,44(
Allowance for doubtful accountd 111 131
Operating lease equipment rese 68 76
Total reserve. 17¢ 207
Net portfolio asset $ 12,06¢ $ 12,23
Reserve coverag 1.5% 1.7%
Debt-to-equity ratid® 7.0x 7.0x

@ Intercompany activity is eliminated in consolidatio

@ Allowance for doubtful accounts for financing re@dles includes both the short- and long-term posti

©) Debt attributable to HPFS consists of intercompaayity that is treated as debt for segment remppirposes,
intercompany debt, and borrowing- and funding-eslactivity associated with HPFS and its subsiggriebt
attributable to HPFS totaled $10.7 billion and $1i6illion at October 31, 2014 and October 31, 20&8pectively. HPFS

equity at both October 31, 2014 and October 3132@ds $1.5 billion. We believe the HPFS debt-toiggatio is
comparable to that of other similar financing comipa.

At October 31, 2014 and October 31, 20138 cash balances were $829 million and $697 mijlliespectively.

Net portfolio assets at October 31, 201etrekesed 1.3% from October 31, 2013. The decreamraly resulted from unfavorable currer
impacts, partially offset by new financing volunmeeixcess of portfolio runoff.

HPFS recorded net bad debt expenses amdtimgelease equipment reserves of $40 million, Silon and $62 million in fiscal 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Corporate Investments

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Net revenue $ 30z $ 24 $ 58
Loss from operation $ (199 $ (31€) $ (237
Loss from operations as a % of net revefilie (66.0% NM NM

@ "NM" represents not meaningfi

Fiscal 2014 compared with Fiscal 20

The revenue increase for fiscal 2014 wasptimarily to the sale of IP related to the Pabquasition.

The decrease in the loss from operationfigoal 2014 was due primarily to the sale ofthig benefits of which were partially offset by
higher expenses associated with cloud-related atgwui activities, corporate strategy, HP Labs doth@ alliances.

Fiscal 2013 compared with Fiscal 20

In fiscal 2013, Corporate Investments egenue was primarily related to licensing revemoenfHP Labs. Net revenue decreased from
fiscal 2012 due primarily to lower residual activitom the webOS device business and lower revémone business intelligence products.

Costs and expenses in Corporate Investnagatdue to activities in the segment from residictivity related to the webOS device
business, HP Labs, certain incubation projectamate strategy, and global alliances.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We use cash generated by operations gsrimary source of liquidity. We believe that intatly generated cash flows are generally
sufficient to support our operating businessesitalgxpenditures, restructuring activities, matgrdebt, income tax payments and the pay!
of stockholder dividends, in addition to investngeand share repurchases. We are able to suppl#meshort-term liquidity, if necessary,
with broad access to capital markets and crediittas made available by various domestic andifprdinancial institutions. Our access to
capital markets may be constrained and our cdsbwbwing may increase under certain business, eharkd economic conditions; however,
our access to a variety of funding sources to meetiquidity needs is designed to facilitate cangd access to capital resources under all su
conditions. Our liquidity is subject to variouskssincluding the risks identified in the sectiortiéed "Risk Factors" in Item 1A and market
risks identified in the section entitled "Quaniitatand Qualitative Disclosures about Market Riskltem 7A, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Our cash balances are held in numerousidosathroughout the world, with substantially @fithose amounts held outside of the U.S. We
utilize a variety of planning and financing straeegin an effort to ensure that our worldwide cizshvailable when and where it is needed. Ou
cash position remains strong, and we expect thatash balances, anticipated cash flow generated fperations and access to capital
markets will be sufficient to cover our expectedmterm cash outlays.
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Amounts held outside of the U.S. are gdheutdilized to support non-U.S. liquidity need$th@ugh a portion of those amounts may from
time to time be subject to short-term intercomplays into the U.S. Most of the amounts held oetsifithe U.S. could be repatriated to the
U.S. but, under current law, some would be sulifett.S. federal income taxes, less applicable goréax credits. Repatriation of some fore
earnings is restricted by local law. Except forefgn earnings that are considered indefinitelywested outside of the U.S., we have provided
for the U.S. federal tax liability on these earrsrigr financial statement purposes. Repatriatiariccoesult in additional income tax payments
in future years. Where local restrictions prevanetficient intercompany transfer of funds, oueimtis that cash balances would remain ou
of the U.S. and we would meet liquidity needs tigtoengoing cash flows, external borrowings, or bétle do not expect restrictions or
potential taxes incurred on repatriation of amoinetis outside of the U.S. to have a material eféecour overall liquidity, financial condition
or results of operations.

Liquidity
Our cash and cash equivalents, total dedbaailable borrowing resources were as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
In billions

Cash and cash equivalel $ 151 $ 122 $ 11:

Total debt $ 19.5 $ 22.€ $ 28.4

Available borrowing resourcé¥ $ 176 $ 178 $ 17.4

@ In addition to these available borrowing resourgesare able to offer for sale, from time to tinmepne or more

offerings, an unspecified amount of debt securittesnmon stock, preferred stock, depositary shamedsvarrants under
shelf registration statement filed with the Sedesiand Exchange Commission in May 2012 (the "2BH&If Registratiol
Statement")

Our key cash flow metrics were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
In millions

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 12,33! $ 11,60¢ $ 10,57:

Net cash used in investing activiti (2,799 (2,809 (3,459

Net cash used in financing activiti (6,577) (7,949 (3,860

Net increase in cash and cash equival $ 297 $ 86z $ 3,25¢

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activitieréased by $0.7 billion for fiscal 2014 as comgdcefiscal 2013, due primarily to
improvements in working capital management. Nehgasvided by operating activities increased by$illion for fiscal 2013 compared to
fiscal 2012, due primarily to improvements in waricapital management and a reduction in paymestcéated with webOS contract
cancellations.
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Our key working capital metrics were asdats:

As of October 31
2014 2013 2012

Days of sales outstanding in accounts receiv 44 49 49
Days of supply in inventor 27 24 25
Days of purchases outstanding in accounts pa) (67) (56) (593

Cash conversion cyc 4 17 21

Days of sales outstanding in accounts vatde ("DSO") measures the average number of dayesegeivables are outstanding. DSO is
calculated by dividing ending accounts receivabét,of allowance for doubtful accounts, by a 90-degrage of net revenue. For fiscal 2014,
the decrease in DSO was due primarily to the impactirrency and the expansion of our factoringgpams.

Days of supply in inventory ("DOS") measutke average number of days from procurementiéoo$@ur product. DOS is calculated by
dividing ending inventory by a 90-day average oftaaf goods sold. For fiscal 2014, the increase@8 was due to a higher inventory balance
in Personal Systems due in part to strategic amdraxtd buys.

Days of purchases outstanding in accousmysiple ("DPO") measures the average number of @ayaccounts payable balances are
outstanding. DPO is calculated by dividing endingaunts payable by a 90-day average of cost ofgeofdl. For fiscal 2014, the increase in
DPO was primarily the result of an extension ofrpapt terms with our product suppliers.

The cash conversion cycle is the sum of RB®DOS less DPO. The cash conversion cycle efigtzd 2014 below what we expect to be
a long-term sustainable rate. ltems which may ctheseash conversion cycle in a particular peraditfer from a long-term sustainable rate
include, but are not limited to, changes in busmasx, changes in payment terms, extent of recédgaflactoring, seasonal trends and the tit
of revenue recognition and inventory purchasesiwitie period.

Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities wasfbr fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, dumarily to higher cash utilization for
purchases of property, plant and equipment offgeidsh generated from sales of available-for-saderities. Net cash used in investing
activities decreased by $0.7 billion for fiscal 20ds compared to fiscal 2012, due primarily to Ioimgestments in property, plant and
equipment and higher net sales and maturities aifable-for-sale securities.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities dasegl by approximately $1.4 billion for fiscal 20dsticompared to fiscal 2013. The decrease wa
due primarily to proceeds from the issuance of D@lar Global Notes in January 2014, partiallysetf by higher debt repayments and
repurchases of common stock. Net cash used indingractivities increased by $4.1 billion for fis@®13 as compared to fiscal 2012. The
increase was due primarily to higher maturitieg@lbt and net repayments of commercial paper. Foe information on our share repurchase
programs, see Item 5 and Note 13 to the Consotidaiteancial Statements in Item 8, which are incomped herein by reference.
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Capital Resources

Debt Levels

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
Dollars in millions
Shor-term debr $ 348t $ 597¢ $ 6,647
Long-term debt $ 16,03¢ $ 16,60t $ 21,78¢
Deb-to-equity ratio 0.72> 0.82» 1.25»
Weightec-average interest ra 2.1% 3.(% 3.(%

We maintain debt levels that we establisbugh consideration of a number of factors, intlgadtash flow expectations, cash requirem
for operations, investment plans (including acdiass), share repurchase activities, our cost pitaband targeted capital structure.

Short-term debt and long-term debt decietage$2.5 billion and $0.6 billion, respectivelyr fiiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. The
net decrease in total debt was due primarily taunités of debt. During fiscal 2014, we issued $2ilbon of U.S. Dollar Global Notes under
the 2012 Shelf Registration Statement which matug919 and repaid $4.9 billion of U.S. Dollar GédiNotes. We also issued $11.6 billion
and repaid $11.5 billion of commercial paper irdis2014. Short-term debt and long-term debt deecdy $0.6 billion and $5.2 billion,
respectively, for fiscal 2013 as compared to fi€Hl2. Both net decreases were due primarily tartis of debt and net repayments of
commercial paper. The issuances and repaymentuhercial paper were $16.1 billion and $16.2 hillio fiscal 2013 and $12.2 billion and
$15.0 billion in fiscal 2012, respectively.

During fiscal 2015, $2.5 billion of U.S. [ar Global Notes are scheduled to mature, of wi§i650 million matured in December 2014.
For more information on our borrowings, see Notddlthe Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemt8ch is incorporated herein by
reference.

Our debt-to-equity ratio is calculated las tarrying amount of debt divided by total stodkbos' equity. Our debt-to-equity ratio
decreased by 0.10x in fiscal 2014, due to a deerneat®tal debt balances of $3.1 billion partial§set by a decrease in stockholders' equity by
$0.5 billion at the end of fiscal 2014. Our debetuity ratio decreased by 0.43x in fiscal 2013 ttua decrease in total debt balances of
$5.8 hillion coupled with an increase in stockheflequity by $4.8 billion at the end of fiscal 301

For more information on our borrowings, diste 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statement®em 8, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

Our weighted-average interest rate refldmseffective interest rate on our borrowings pikvg during the period and reflects the effect
of interest rate swaps. For more information onioterest rate swaps, see Note 11 to the Consetidéihancial Statements in Item 8, which is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Available Borrowing Resourct
We had the following resources availablelitain short- or long-term financing if we needigidnal liquidity:

As of October 31, 201+

In millions
2012 Shelf Registration Statem: Unspecifiet
Commercial paper prograr $16,20:
Uncommitted lines of cred $ 1,58

For more information on our available bevritogs resources, see Note 12 to the ConsolidateghEial Statements in ltem
which is incorporated herein by referen

Credit Ratings

Our credit risk is evaluated by major indiegent rating agencies based on publicly availimidemation as well as information obtainec
our ongoing discussions with them. Our credit ggias of October 31, 2014, were as follows:

Standard & Poor's Moody's Investors Fitch Ratings

Ratings Services Service Services
Shor-term debt rating A-2 Prime-2 F2
Long-term debt rating BBB+ Baal A-

After the announcement of our separatio@dtober 2014, our credit ratings were assigneegative outlook by Standard & Poor's Rai
Services and Fitch Rating Services. Additionallygddy's Investors Service placed us under reviewldangrade. In December 2013, Moot
Investors Service affirmed its negative outlookgrssd in November 2012. While we do not have atingadowngrade triggers that would
accelerate the maturity of a material amount ofdmbit, previous downgrades have increased theotbstrrowing under our credit facilities,
have reduced market capacity for our commerciaépapd have required the posting of additionalatettl under some of our derivative
contracts. In addition, any further downgrade toaredit ratings by any of these rating agencieg fugther impact us in a similar manner, a
depending on the extent of the downgrade, coul@ lavegative impact on our liquidity and capitadipion. We can rely on alternative sources
of funding, including drawdowns under our credtiliéies or the issuance of debt or other secwgitinder our existing 2012 Shelf Registration
Statement, if necessary, to offset potential raduastin the market capacity for our commercial pape

75




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Corihued)

CONTRACTUAL AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS
Our contractual and other obligations a®ctober 31, 2014, were as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

1 Year or More than
Total Less 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
In millions

Principal payments on long-term débt $ 18,53¢ $ 2,647 $ 593¢ $ 2,78 $  7,16¢
Interest payments on long-term débt 3,99( 48( 79¢ 601 2,11¢
Operating lease obligatiol 3,001 721 951 534 79t
Purchase obligatior{®) 2,11¢ 1,38: 51¢ 212 —
Capital lease obligatior 48 8 12 7 21
Total ()(5)E) $ 27,690 $ 523 $ 821: $ 4,13¢ $ 10,10:

@ Amounts represent the principal cash paymentsimglad our long-term debt and do not include ariy\falue
adjustments, discounts or premiums.

@ Amounts represent the expected interest paymelatinggto our long-term debt. We have outstandirtgriest rate swap
agreements accounted for as fair value hedgeddvatthe economic effect of changing fixed interatds associated
with some of our U.S. Dollar Global Notes to vat@aimterest rates. The impact of our outstandingrast rate swaps at
October 31, 2014 was factored into the calculabibthe future interest payments on long-term debt.

® Purchase obligations include agreements to purch@ses or services that are enforceable and legadtying on us and
that specify all significant terms, including fixed minimum quantities to be purchased,; fixed, mimin or variable price
provisions; and the approximate timing of the teanti®n. These purchase obligations are relatecipafly to inventory
and other items. Purchase obligations exclude aggats that are cancelable without penalty. Purcbhbbgations also
exclude open purchase orders that are routinegegnaents entered into in the ordinary course ofrtass as they are
difficult to quantify in a meaningful way. Even tingh open purchase orders are considered enforcaathlegally
binding, the terms generally allow us the optiorcdncel, reschedule, and adjust terms based dousiness needs prior
to the delivery of goods or performance of services

Q) In fiscal 2015, HP anticipates making contributiofi$686 million to its non-U.S. pension plans, esfs to pay benefits
of $35 million to its U.S. non-qualified pensioraplparticipants and expects to pay claims of $4lfomiunder its post-
retirement benefit plans. Our policy is to fund pension plans so that we meet at least the minicamtribution
requirements, as established by local governmendifg and taxing authorities. Expected contritngiand payments to
our pension and post-retirement benefit plans xckided from the contractual obligations table lseathey do not
represent contractual cash outflows as they areritbgmt on numerous factors which may result indewange of
outcomes. For more information on our retiremert post-retirement benefit plans, see Note 4 tatesolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8, which is incorpedaterein by reference.

®) We expect future cash payments of $1.8 billiondnreection with our approved restructuring planschtincludes
$1.0 billion expected to be paid in fiscal 2015hatihe remaining approximately $800 million cashments to be made
through fiscal 2021. Payments for restructuringehlager
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excluded from the contractual obligations tableause they do not represent contractual cash wstidmd there is
uncertainty as to the timing of these payments.nkare information on our restructuring activitiseg Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, wiBdhcorporated herein by reference.

®) As of October 31, 2014, we had approximately $3IBbb of recorded liabilities and related interestd penalties
pertaining to uncertain tax positions. These litibg8 and related interest and penalties includeriZlion expected to be
paid within one year. For the remaining amountaneunable to make a reasonable estimate as to celsbrsettlement
with the tax authorities might occur due to theantainties related to these tax matters. Paymédritese obligations
would result from settlements with taxing authesti For more information on our uncertain tax posg, see Note 6 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8chvis incorporated herein by referen

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As part of our ongoing business, we havegadticipated in transactions that generate nedteglationships with unconsolidated entities o
financial partnerships, such as entities oftenrreteto as structured finance or special purpotites) established for the purpose of facilitar
off-balance sheet arrangements or other contrdgtoairow or limited purposes.

We have third-party revolving short-termaicing arrangements intended to facilitate thekimgrcapital requirements of certain
customers. The total aggregate maximum capacitiyeofinancing arrangements was $3.0 billion as c@b@er 31, 2014, including an aggrec
maximum capacity of $1.1 billion in non-recourseeficing arrangements and an aggregate maximumigap&$1.9 billion in partialrecours:
facilities. For more information on our third-pargvolving short-term financing arrangements, se®N to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8, which is incorporated hebgimeference.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

In the normal course of business, we apggad to foreign currency exchange rate and inteasrisks that could impact our financial
position and results of operations. Our risk managy# strategy with respect to these market riskgimzude the use of derivative financial
instruments. We use derivative contracts only toage existing underlying exposures. Accordingly,deenot use derivative contracts for
speculative purposes. Our risks, risk managemeategly and a sensitivity analysis estimating tlieat$ of changes in fair value for each of
these exposures is outlined below.

Actual gains and losses in the future miffgerdmaterially from the sensitivity analyses bagm changes in the timing and amount of
foreign currency exchange rate and interest rateements and our actual exposures and derivativelaae at the time of the change, as well
as the effectiveness of the derivative to hedgedltated exposure.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We are exposed to foreign currency exchaatgerisk inherent in our sales commitments, gdied sales, anticipated purchases and
assets and liabilities denominated in currencibsrathan the U.S. dollar. We transact businesgjmaximately 75 currencies worldwide, of
which the most significant foreign currencies to operations for fiscal 2014 were the euro, thdigripound, Chinese yuan renminbi and the
Japanese Yen. For most currencies, we are a re@veeof the foreign currency and therefore berfedin a weaker U.S. dollar and are
adversely affected by a stronger U.S. dollar re¢atd the foreign currency. Even where we are aetaiver of the foreign currency, a weaker
U.S. dollar may adversely affect certain expengerés, if taken alone.

We use a combination of forward contracis aptions designated as cash flow hedges to pragminst the foreign currency exchange
risks inherent in our forecasted net revenue and,lésser extent, cost of sales and intercompamnsldenominated in currencies other than tf
U.S. dollar. In addition, when debt is denominated foreign currency, we may use swaps to exchémgéoreign currency principal and
interest obligations for U.S. dollar-denominatedoamts to manage the exposure to changes in foceigency exchange rates. We also use
other derivatives not designated as hedging ingrisnconsisting primarily of forward contracts &lye foreign currency balance sheet
exposures. Alternatively, we may choose not to betlg risk associated with our foreign currencyosxpes, primarily if such exposure acts a:
a natural hedge for offsetting amounts denominatékde same currency or if the currency is tooiclift or too expensive to hedge.

We have performed sensitivity analysesfa@abober 31, 2014 and 2013, using a modeling tiecknthat measures the change in the fair
values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse nmar in the levels of foreign currency exchangegaglative to the U.S. dollar, with all
other variables held constant. The analyses cdivef aur foreign currency derivative contractss#f by underlying exposures. The foreign
currency exchange rates we used in performingehsitvity analysis were based on market ratedfeceat October 31, 2014 and 2013. The
sensitivity analyses indicated that a hypothetl€®® adverse movement in foreign currency exchaatgs mwould result in a foreign exchange
fair value loss of $62 million and $80 million at®ber 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013, respectively.

Interest rate risk
We also are exposed to interest rate gkited to debt we have issued and our investmetfofio and financing receivables.

We issue long-term debt in either U.S. afsllor foreign currencies based on market conditadrihe time of financing. We often use
interest rate and/or currency swaps to modify tlhaeket risk exposures in connection with the delatdioieve U.S. dollar LIBOR-based floating
interest expense.
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The swap transactions generally involve the excharidixed for floating interest payments. Howewee may choose not to swap fixed for
floating interest payments or may terminate a pneslly executed swap if we believe a larger proportf fixed-rate debt would be beneficial.

In order to hedge the fair value of cerfaird-rate investments, we may enter into interatt swaps that convert fixed interest returns
into variable interest returns. We may use cash fledges to hedge the variability of LIBOR-basdérn@st income received on certain
variable-rate investments. We may also enter imtierést rate swaps that convert variable rategsteeturns into fixed-rate interest returns.

We have performed sensitivity analysesf@@abober 31, 2014 and 2013, using a modeling tieglenthat measures the change in the fair
values arising from a hypothetical 10% adverse mmerd in the levels of interest rates across thieeeyield curve, with all other variables hi
constant. The analyses cover our debt, investmimagicing receivables and interest rate swaps.ahtadyses use actual or approximate
maturities for the debt, investments, financingereables and interest rate swaps. The discours tested were based on the market interest
rates in effect at October 31, 2014 and 2013. Ensitivity analyses indicated that a hypotheti&@#ladverse movement in interest rates w
result in a loss in the fair values of our debtgistments and financing receivables, net of inteede swaps, of $80 million at October 31, 201-
and $95 million at October 31, 2013.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Hewlett-Packard Company arxidiaries as of October 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statementsroingg, comprehensive income, stockholders' eqaity, cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended October 31, 2014. Ttiraadial statements are the responsibility of thenfany's management. Our responsib
is to express an opinion on these financial statesneased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnilhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Hewlett-Packard Company and subsidiaries at Oct®8begP014 and 2013, and the consolidated resultseaf operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeoli@ct31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generallgepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting OgbtdBoard (United States), Hewlett-
Packard Company's internal control over finana@glarting as of October 31, 2014, based on crigsgfablished in Internal Controlltegratec
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (1992 franmrkjvand our report dated
December 17, 2014 expressed an unqualified opthiereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
December 17, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewlett-Packard Company

We have audited Hewlett-Packard Compamgtsmal control over financial reporting as of Qmo31, 2014, based on criteria establishe
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtry Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@livay Commission (1992
framework) (the COSO criteria). Hewlett-Packard @amy's management is responsible for maintainifegtfe internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofeffiectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control Over FirerReporting. Our responsibility is to expressommion on the company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogietr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &ndbtain reasonable assurance about whethatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detecifauinauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hewlett-Packard Company mi@ined, in all material respects, effective inémwontrol over financial reporting as of
October 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HeRéatkard Company and subsidiaries as of Octobe2®H and 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of earnings, comprehemsteene, stockholders' equity and cash flows foheafdhe three years in the period ended
October 31, 2014 and our report dated Decembe2d14 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
December 17, 2014
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

HP's management is responsible for establisand maintaining adequate internal control diwemcial reporting for HP. HP's internal
control over financial reporting is a process desdjto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedumting principles. HP's internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies anocedures that (i) pertain to the maintenanaeadrds that, in reasonable detail, accuratel
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposgiofnthe assets of HP; (ii) provide reasonablerasse that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stat@sin accordance with generally accepted acaugiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of HP are being made only in accomavith authorizations of management and directbtdRy and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiot&fs assets that could have a material €
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

HP's management assessed the effectivehed®s internal control over financial reporting @ October 31, 2014, utilizing the criteria
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Colrtrintegrated Framework (1992
framework). Based on the assessment by HP's mamagewe determined that HP's internal control divemcial reporting was effective as of
October 31, 2014. The effectiveness of HP's interoatrol over financial reporting as of October, 23014 has been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, HP's independent registered public anting firm, as stated in their report which appearpage 82 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

/sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN /s CATHERINE A. LESJAK

Margaret C. Whitman Catherine A. Lesjak

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
December 17, 201 December 17, 201
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013 2012
In millions, except per share amount:

Net revenue

Products $ 73,72¢ $ 72,39¢ $ 77,881
Services 37,321 39,45 42,00¢
Financing incomt 401 447 462
Total net revenu 111,45: 112,29t 120,35’
Costs and expense
Cost of product: 56,46 55,63: 59,46¢
Cost of service 28,09: 30,43¢ 32,60(
Financing interes 277 312 317
Research and developm 3,44 3,13¢ 3,39¢
Selling, general and administrati 13,35 13,267 13,50(
Amortization of intangible asse 1,00¢ 1,37: 1,78¢
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass — — 18,03¢
Restructuring charge 1,61¢ 99C 2,26¢
Acquisitior-related charge 11 22 45
Total operating expens 104,26! 105,16° 131,41
Earnings (loss) from operatio 7,18t 7,131 (11,057
Interest and other, n (628) (621) (87€)
Earnings (loss) before tax 6,551 6,51( (12,939
Provision for taxe: (1,544 (1,399 (717)
Net earnings (loss $ 501 $ 5,11 $ (12,650
Net earnings (loss) per sha
Basic $ 2.6€ $ 264 $  (6.4)
Diluted $ 262 $ 26z $  (6.4)
Weighted-average shares used to compute net earfoss)
per share
Basic 1,88: 1,93¢ 1,974
Diluted 1,917 1,95( 1,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
Net earnings (loss $ 5,01 $ 5117 $ (12,650
Other comprehensive (loss) income before ta
Change in unrealized gains on availi-for-sale securities
Unrealized gains arising during the per 7 52 25
Gains reclassified into earnin (1) (49) —
6 3 25
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on cash flalgds
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the pe 337 (243) 33¢
Losses (gains) reclassified into earni 151 10€ (399
48¢ (137) (64)
Change in unrealized components of defined beplfits:
(Losses) gains arising during the per (2,75€) 1,95: (2,457
Amortization of actuarial loss and prior servicegfit 25¢ 32¢ 172
Curtailments, settlements and ot 51 25 122
(2,44¢) 2,304 (2,169
Change in cumulative translation adjustm (85) (150 (47)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before ti (2,037)  2,02( (2,249
(Provision) benefit for taxe (66) (239) 18¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of te (2,107%) 1,781 (2,06))
Comprehensive income (los $ 2,91C $ 6,894 $ (14,71)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions, except
par value
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 15,137 $ 12,16
Accounts receivabl 13,83: 15,87¢
Financing receivable 2,94¢ 3,14«
Inventory 6,41¢ 6,04¢
Other current asse 11,81¢ 13,13¢
Total current asse 50,14 50,36
Property, plant and equipme 11,34( 11,46:
Long-term financing receivables and other as 8,45¢ 9,55¢
Goodwill 31,13¢ 31,12
Intangible assel 2,12¢ 3,16¢
Total asset $ 103,20t $ 105,67t
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Notes payable and sh-term borrowings $ 348 $ 597¢
Accounts payabl 15,90: 14,01¢
Employee compensation and bene 4,20¢ 4,43¢
Taxes on earning 1,015 1,20:
Deferred revenu 6,14: 6,471
Accrued restructurin 89¢ 901
Other accrued liabilitie 12,07¢ 12,50¢
Total current liabilities 43,73¢ 45,52
Long-term debt 16,03¢ 16,60¢
Other liabilities 16,30¢ 15,89:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
HP stockholders' equit
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (300 shares aadthmone issuec — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value (9,600 shares aatdriL,839 and
1,908 shares issued and outstanding at Octob&034, and
October 31, 2013, respective 18 19
Additional paic-in capital 3,43( 5,46¢
Retained earning 29,16« 25,56
Accumulated other comprehensive | (5,88) (3,779
Total HP stockholders' equi 26,73: 27,26¢
Non-controlling interest: 39€ 387
Total stockholders' equit 27,12; 27,65¢
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 103,20t $ 105,67¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okt@msolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
In millions

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earnings (loss $ 5012 $ 511 $ (12,65(
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash
provided by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic 4,33¢ 4,611 5,09¢
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass — — 18,03¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 56C 50C 63E
Provision for doubtful accoun 55 61 142
Provision for inventon 211 27¢ 277
Restructuring charge 1,61¢ 99C 2,26¢
Deferred taxes on earnin (34) (410 (717)
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic (58) 2 (12
Other, ne 81 44% 26E

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (net of
acquisitions):

Accounts receivabl 2,017 53C 1,68
Financing receivable 42C 484 (41¢)
Inventory (580 (4) 89C
Accounts payabl 1,912 541 (1,419
Taxes on earning 31C 417 (320
Restructuring (1,50€) (909 (840
Other assets and liabilitic (2,027) (1,039 (2,356
Net cash provided by operating activit 12,33: 11,60¢ 10,57
Cash flows from investing activitie

Investment in property, plant and equipm (3,859 (3,199 (3,706
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 843 653 617

Purchases of available-for-sale securities androthe
investment: (1,08¢) (1,249 (972)

Maturities and sales of available-for-sale seaesidnd
other investment 1,343 1,15: 662

Payments made in connection with business acansiti

net of cash acquire (49 (167) (147
Proceeds from business divestiture, 6 — 87
Net cash used in investing activiti (2,7972) (2,809 (3,459

Cash flows from financing activitie
Short-term borrowings with original maturities lékan

90 days, net 14¢ (159 (2,775
Issuance of del 2,87¢ 27¢ 5,15¢
Payment of dek (6,037%) (5,72 (4,339
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 297 28¢ 71€
Repurchase of common sta (2,729 (1,539 (1,619
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic 58 2 12
Cash dividends pai (1,189 (1,109 (1,015

Net cash used in financing activiti (6,577) (7,949 (3,860

Increase in cash and cash equivali 2,97( 862 3,25¢

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 12,16: 11,30 8,04:

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 15,13! $ 12,16 $ 11,30:
Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Income taxes paid (net of refunc $ 1267 $ 1391 $ 1,75(

Interest expense pa 67¢ 837 85€

Supplemental schedule of nc-cash investing anc
financing activities:
Purchase of assets under capital le $ 115 % 3 % 12

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottEmsolidated Financial Statemel
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Balance
October 31, 201
Net loss
Other
comprehen:
loss
Comprehensive
loss
Issuance of
common stocl
in connection
with employe
stock plans
and othel
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax deficiency
from
employee
stock plans
Cash dividends
declarec
Stock-based
compensatior
expenst
Changes in non
controlling
interest
Balance
October 31, 201
Net earning:
Other
comprehen:
income
Comprehensive
income
Issuance of
common stocl
in connection
with employe
stock plans
and othel
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax deficiency
from
employee
stock plans
Cash dividends
declarec
Stock-based
compensatior
expenst
Changes in non
controlling
interest
Balance
October 31, 201
Net earning:
Other
comprehen:
income
Comprehensive
income
Issuance of
common stocl
in connection
with employe¢
stock plans
and othel
Repurchases of
common stocl
Tax deficiency

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock Accumulated

Additional Other Total HP
Number of Comprehensive  Stockholders' Non-
Par Paid-in Retained controlling
Shares Value Capital Earnings  (Loss) Income Equity Interests Total
In millions, except number of shares in thousand

1,990,500 $ 20 $ 6,837 $ 3526¢ $ (3,499 $ 38,62¢ $ 37¢ $ 39,00¢
(12,650 (12,65() (12,65()
(2,062) (2,067 (2,067
14,717) 14,71))
39,06¢ 682 1 68< 68
(66,73¢) (1,52%) (103) (1,62€) (1,62€)
a7g) a7g) a7g)
(995) (995) (995)
63t 63% 63t
18 18
1,962,83 $ 20 $ 6,45¢ $ 21,52. $ (5,559 $ 22,43t $ 397 $ 22,83¢
5,113 5,113 5,11:
1,781 1,781 1,781
6,894 6,89/
22,95( 21C 2 20¢ 20¢
(77,90%) (1) (1,550) 5 (1,54€) (1,54€)
(149 (149 (149
(1,079 (1,079 (1,079
50C 50C 50C
(1C) (1C)
1,907,88 $ 19 $ 546 $ 2556! $ (3,779 $ 27,26¢ $ 387 $ 27,65¢
5,01: 5,01: 5,01:
(2,10%) (2,109 (2,109
2,91( 2,91(
23,78t 142 1 145 142
(92,38() 1) (2,69¢) (262) (2,957) (2,957



from employee

stock plans (43) (43) (43)
Cash dividends

declarec (2,15 (1,15)) (1,15)
Stock-based

compensatior

expense 56( 56C 56(
Changes in non

controlling

interest 9 9
Balance

October 31,201 1,839,28 $ 18 $ 3430 $ 29,16¢ $ (5,88) $ 26,73. $ 39%€ $ 27,12

The accompanying notes are an integral part oket@@msolidated Financial Statements.
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatio

The Consolidated Financial Statements oelilhe accounts of Hewlett-Packard Company ("HRt)the subsidiaries and affiliates in
which HP has a controlling financial interest othie primary beneficiary. HP accounts for investtaém companies over which HP has the
ability to exercise significant influence but doest hold a controlling interest under the equitytimoel, and HP records its proportionate share
of income or losses in Interest and other, neién@onsolidated Statements of Earnings. HP presentgontrolling interests as a separate
component within Total stockholder's equity in @ensolidated Balance Sheets. Net earnings attbil®ita the non-controlling interests are
eliminated within Interest and other, net in then€aidated Statements of Earnings and are not piedaseparately as they were not material
for any period presented. HP has eliminated adiredmpany accounts and transactions.

Reclassification:

HP has made certain segment and businéssalignments in order to optimize its operatstigicture. Reclassifications of certain prior-
year segment and business unit financial infornnatiave been made to conform to the cu-year presentation. None of the changes impacts
HP's previously reported consolidated net reveaamings from operations, net earnings or net pgsrper share ("EPS"). See Note 2 for a
further discussion of HP's segment reorganization.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementadnordance with United States ("U.S.") generallyeated accounting principles ("GAAP")
requires management to make estimates and assms it affect the amounts reported in HP's Cotateld Financial Statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differariatly from those estimates.

Foreign Currency Translatio

HP predominately uses the U.S. dollarsfuitctional currency. Assets and liabilities deimated in non-U.S. dollars are remeasured int
U.S. dollars at current exchange rates for monetasgts and liabilities and at historical exchanages for nonmonetary assets and liabilities.
Net revenue, costs and expenses denominated -U.S. dollars are recorded in U.S. dollars at miyréfrerage exchange rates prevailing
during the period. HP includes gains or losses ffomign currency remeasurement in Interest andrptiet in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings. Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries desigriegéacal currency as their functional currency, Biftirecords the translation of their assets
and liabilities into U.S. dollars at the balanceettdate as translation adjustments and inclugéss #s a component of Accumulated other
comprehensive loss in the Consolidated BalancetShee

Accounting Pronouncemer

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Starus Board ("FASB") amended the existing accoungtagdards for revenue recognition.
amendments are based on the principle that revemudd be recognized to depict the transfer of jisethgoods or services to customers in al
amount that reflects the consideration to whichehtity expects to be entitled in exchange for ¢hgsods or services. HP is required to adopt
the amendments in the first quarter of fiscal 2@aly adoption is
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegContinued)

not permitted. The amendments may be applied matively to each prior period presented or reteotipely with the cumulative effect
recognized as of the date of initial applicatiof®. id currently evaluating the impact of these ameemts and the transition alternatives on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance eththanges the criteria for identifying a disconéid operation. The guidance limits the
definition of a discontinued operation to the disgloof a component or group of components thaisigoded of or is classified as held for sale
and represents a strategic shift that has, orhaile, a major effect on an entity's operationsfanrahcial results. HP is required to adopt the
guidance in the first quarter of fiscal 2016, watrly adoption permitted for transactions that havebeen reported in financial statements
previously issued.

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new acdagrdtandard requiring the presentation of cemmirecognized tax benefits as reductions to
deferred tax assets rather than as liabilitieeénGonsolidated Balance Sheets when a net opetasiagarryforward, a similar tax loss or a tax
credit carryforward exists. HP is required to adiig new standard on a prospective basis in teeduarter of fiscal 2015; however, early
adoption is permitted as is retrospective applicatHP will adopt the new standard in the firstdisquarter of 2015 on a prospective basis.
Adoption of the new standard is not expected tetmmaterial effect on HP's Consolidated Finargiatements.

Revenue Recognitic
General

HP recognizes revenue when persuasive eedef an arrangement exists, delivery has occunreérvices are rendered, the sales pri
fee is fixed or determinable, and collectibilityresasonably assured. Additionally, HP recognizedware revenue on sales to channel partner
including resellers, distributors or value-addellison providers at the time of delivery when theanel partners have economic substance
apart from HP, and HP has completed its obligatiefeted to the sale. HP generally recognizes nevéor its standalone software sales to
channel partners on receipt of evidence that tftevare has been sold to a specific end user. HRslithe amount of revenue recognized for
delivered elements to the amount that is not cgetihon the future delivery of products or servidesire performance obligations or subject
to customer-specified refund or return rights.

HP reduces revenue for customer and digtitprograms and incentive offerings, including@iprotection, rebates, promotions, other
volume-based incentives and expected returns. Eutarket conditions and product transitions mayirecHP to take actions to increase
customer incentive offerings, possibly resulting@mincremental reduction of revenue at the tineeithentive is offered. For certain incentive
programs, HP estimates the number of customerscteghéo redeem the incentive based on historiga¢eance and the specific terms and
conditions of the incentive.

In instances when revenue is derived fralassof third-party vendor products or services,reifdrds revenue on a gross basis when HP
a principal to the transaction and on a net babisn\HP is acting as an agent between the custamdetha vendor. HP considers several fac
to determine whether it is acting as a principagent, most notably whether HP is the primaiigor to the customer, has established its
own pricing and has inventory and credit risks.
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HP reports revenue net of any taxes cateéiom customers and remitted to government aitid®rwith the collected taxes recorded as
current liabilities until remitted to the relevagdvernment authority.

Multiple element arrangements

When a sales arrangement contains muktiiglments or deliverables, such as hardware andaeftproducts, and/or services, HP alloc
revenue to each element based on a selling préizarichy. The selling price for a deliverable isdzhen its vendor specific objective evidence
("VSOE") of selling price, if available, third pgrevidence ("TPE") if VSOE of selling price is ratailable, or estimated selling price ("ESP")
if neither VSOE of selling price nor TPE is avallabHP establishes VSOE of selling price usingptee charged for a deliverable when sold
separately and, in rare instances, using the pstablished by management having the relevant atythdP establishes TPE of selling price
evaluating largely similar and interchangeable cetitgr products or services in standalone salesndarly situated customers. HP establishe
ESP based on management judgment considering ahfactors such as margin objectives, pricing pcastand controls, customer segment
pricing strategies and the product life cycle. Goeistion is also given to market conditions, sasttompetitor pricing strategies and
technology life cycles. In arrangements with mddtiplements, HP allocates the transaction pri¢eedndividual units of accounting at
inception of the arrangement based on their redagalling price.

In multiple element arrangements that idelsoftware that is more-than-incidental, HP allesdhe transaction price to the individual
units of accounting for the non-software deliveestdnd to the software deliverables as a groug uarelative selling price of each of the
deliverables in the arrangement based on the gqdliice hierarchy. If the arrangement contains ntioa@ one software deliverable, the
transaction price allocated to the group of sofendeliverables is then allocated to each composwftware deliverable.

HP evaluates each deliverable in an arraege to determine whether it represents a sepanéttef accounting. A deliverable constitutes
a separate unit of accounting when it has standalaftue to the customer. For elements with no stané value, HP recognizes revenue
consistent with the pattern of the associated drdivles. If the arrangement includes a customeotiadgd refund or return right or other
contingency relative to the delivered items, areldblivery and performance of the undelivered it&srtonsidered probable and substantially
within HP's control, the delivered element congtisua separate unit of accounting. In arrangenweitttiscombined units of accounting, chani
in the allocation of the transaction price betwelments may impact the timing of revenue recogmitor the contract but will not change the
total revenue recognized for the contract.

Product revenue
Hardware

Under HP's standard terms and conditiorsalaf, HP transfers title and risk of loss to thsteamer at the time product is delivered to the
customer and recognizes revenue accordingly, unlegtemer acceptance is uncertain or significatijations to the customer remain. HP
reduces revenue for estimated customer returree prbtection, rebates and other programs offeneléiusales agreements established by HP
with its distributors and resellers. HP recordereie from the sale of equipment under sales-tygeeteas product revenue at the inception of
the lease. HP accrues the
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estimated cost of post-sale obligations, includitejmdard product warranties, based on historiga¢egnce at the time HP recognizes revenue
Software

HP recognizes revenue from perpetual soéweenses at the inception of the license tesayuming all revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Term-based software license revisngenerally recognized ratably over the termheflicense. HP uses the residual method tc
allocate revenue to software licenses at incepifdhe arrangement when VSOE of fair value forualtlelivered elements, such as posttrac
support, exists and all other revenue recognitiiteréa have been satisfied. HP recognizes revémme maintenance and unspecified upgrade
or updates provided on a when-and-if-availablesestably over the period during which such itemesdelivered.

HP recognizes revenue for hosting or sakwas-a-service ("SaaS") arrangements as the sasvitelivered, generally on a straight-line
basis, over the contractual period of performaficéosting arrangements where software licensesalde HP recognizes the license revenue
according to whether perpetual or term licensesale; when all other revenue recognition critenia satisfied. In hosting arrangements that
include software licenses, HP considers the rightgided to the customer (e.g., ownership of aneg contract termination provisions and the
feasibility of the customer to operate the softyamadetermining when to recognize revenue forlibenses.

Services revenue

HP recognizes revenue from fixed-price suippr maintenance contracts, including extendedamdy contracts and software post-
contract customer support agreements, ratably teecontract period and recognizes the costs adedoivith these contracts as incurred. For
time and material contracts, HP recognizes revasuservices are rendered and recognizes costeyaarthincurred.

HP recognizes revenue from certain fipeide contracts, such as consulting arrangemesitwpek progresses over the contract period
proportional performance basis, as determined éy#icentage of labor costs incurred to date cozdparthe total estimated contract labor
costs of a contract. HP recognizes revenue on4xa contracts for design and build projectsdgsign, develop and construct software and
systems) using the percentage-of-completion metHBduses the cost-to-cost method to measure potgresrd completion as determined by
the percentage of cost incurred to date comparéukettotal estimated costs of the project. Estismafteotal project costs for fixed-price
contracts are regularly revised during the lif@aontract. Provisions for estimated losses ordfixéced contracts are recognized in the perio
when such losses become known. If reasonable diatlleecost estimates for a project cannot be me@eyses the completed contract methoc
and recognizes revenue and costs upon service etapl

HP generally recognizes outsourcing sesviegenue in the period when the service is pravatel the amount earned is not contingel
the occurrence of any future event. HP recogni@esnue using an objective measure of output fdrpnided contracts. Revenue for fixed-
price outsourcing contracts with periodic billingsecognized on a straight-line basis if the sen$ provided evenly during the contract term.
Provisions for estimated losses on outsourcinghgements are recognized in the period when suslesdsecome probable and estimable.

92




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegContinued)
HP recognizes revenue from operating leasasstraight-line basis as service revenue dwerdntal period.
Financing income
Sales-type and direct-financing leases ygeedinancing income, which HP recognizes at coasigates of return over the lease term.
Deferred revenue and deferred costs

HP records amounts invoiced to customeexaess of revenue recognized as deferred reventiléhe revenue recognition criteria are
satisfied. HP records revenue that is earned arayrézed in excess of amounts invoiced on sendoaesracts as trade receivables.

Deferred revenue represents amounts ingaicadvance for product support contracts, sofveaistomer support contracts, outsourcing
startup services work, consulting and integratimjgzts, product sales or leasing income.

HP recognizes costs associated with outsagicontracts as incurred, unless such costsaargidered direct and incremental to the sta
phase of the contract, in which case HP deferstbests during the startup phase and subsequentistiaes such costs over the period that
outsourcing services are provided, once thosesEs\iommence. HP amortizes deferred contract oosisstraight-line basis over the
remaining term of the contract unless facts antaistances of the contract indicate a shorter gésionore appropriate. Based on actual and
projected contract financial performance indicatétB analyzes the recoverability of deferred canttcasts using the undiscounted estimated
cash flows of the contract over its remaining telfrsuch undiscounted cash flows are insufficientegcover the carrying amount of deferred
contract costs and long-lived assets directly aaset with the contract, the deferred contractcast first impaired. If a cash flow deficiency
remains after reducing the carrying amount of teeded contract costs to zero, HP evaluates angireng long-lived assets related to that
contract for impairment.

Shipping and Handling
HP includes costs related to shipping amtling in cost of sales.
Stock-Based Compensation

HP determines stodlased compensation expense based on the measudatefdir value of the award. HP recognizes corsaion cos
only for those awards expected to meet the seandeperformance vesting conditions on a straigtg-tiasis over the requisite service period
of the award. HP determines compensation costeadgregate grant level for service-based awardisigthe individual vesting tranche level
for awards with performance and/or market condgid#P estimates the forfeiture rate based on stetical experience.

Retirement and Pc-Retirement Plans

HP has various defined benefit, other ébatory and noncontributory retirement and posireetent plans. HP generally amortizes
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses on a Btrhige basis over the average remaining estimsgedce life of participants. In some cases,
HP amortizes actuarial
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gains and losses using the corridor approach. &gz Afor a full description of these plans andabeounting and funding policies.
Advertising

Costs to produce advertising are expensédcarred during production. Costs to communieabeertising are expensed when the
advertising is first run. Such costs totaled appnaxely $784 million in fiscal 2014, $878 million fiscal 2013 and $1.0 billion in fiscal 2012.

Restructuring

HP records charges associated with manageapproved restructuring plans to reorganize amaare of HP's business segments, to
remove duplicative headcount and infrastructure@aged with business acquisitions or to simplifisiness processes and accelerate
innovation. Restructuring charges can include sseg costs to eliminate a specified number of eyagls, infrastructure charges to vacate
facilities and consolidate operations, and contracotcellation costs. HP records restructuring ahalmsed on estimated employee termina
and site closure and consolidation plans. HP asdareseverance and other employee separation gnd&s these actions when it is probable
that benefits will be paid and the amount is reabbnestimable. The rates used in determing seweraccruals are based on existing plans,
historical experiences and negotiated settlements.

Taxes on Earnings

HP recognizes deferred tax assets andifiabifor the expected tax consequences of tenmpdalifferences between the tax bases of asse
and liabilities and their reported amounts usingoted tax rates in effect for the year the diffeenare expected to reverse. HP records a
valuation allowance to reduce the deferred taxtageghe amount that is more likely than not tadedized.

HP records accruals for uncertain tax pmsstwhen HP believes that it is not more likelgrtinot that the tax position will be sustained ol
examination by the taxing authorities based ortebknical merits of the position. HP makes adjustséo these accruals when facts and
circumstances change, such as the closing of augix or the refinement of an estimate. The provigor income taxes includes the effects of
adjustments for uncertain tax positions, as welirasrelated interest and penalties.

Accounts Receivab

HP establishes an allowance for doubtfabaats for accounts receivable. HP records a spe&eserve for individual accounts when HP
becomes aware of specific customer circumstanaeh, &s in the case of a bankruptcy filing or detation in the customer's operating results
or financial position. If there are additional chas in circumstances related to the specific custphP further adjusts estimates of the
recoverability of receivables. HP maintains badtdeberves for all other customers based on atyasidactors, including the use of third-
party credit risk models that generate quantitatie@sures of default probabilities based on mdsators, the financial condition of custome
the length of time receivables are past due, trenttse weighted-average risk rating for the pditfomacroeconomic conditions, information
derived from competitive benchmarking, significane-time events and historical experience. The ghastor delinquency status of a
receivable is based on the contractual paymentstefrthe receivable.
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HP has third-party revolving shoetrm financing arrangements intended to facilitheeworking capital requirements of certain custen
These financing arrangements, which in certainscpsavide for partial recourse, result in the tfansf HP's trade receivables to a third party.
HP reflects amounts transferred to, but not ydect#d from, the third party in accounts receivablthe Consolidated Balance Sheets. For
arrangements involving an element of recoursefaineralue of the recourse obligation is measurgdgimarket data from similar transactions
and reported as a current liability in the Consatidl Balance Sheets.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjHP to significant concentrations of credit rsinsist principally of cash and cash equivale
investments, receivables from trade customers anttact manufacturers, financing receivables anmivaléves.

HP maintains cash and cash equivalentssinvents, derivatives and certain other finanaostruments with various financial institutions.
These financial institutions are located in marffedént geographic regions, and HP's policy isglesd to limit exposure from any particular
institution. As part of its risk management proesss$iP performs periodic evaluations of the retatiredit standing of these financial
institutions. HP has not sustained material cledies from instruments held at these financiditinens. HP utilizes derivative contracts to
protect against the effects of foreign currency iamterest rate exposures. Such contracts involeith of non-performance by the
counterparty, which could result in a material loss

HP sells a significant portion of its pratiithrough third-party distributors and resellems, as a result, maintains individually significan
receivable balances with these parties. If thenfiiea condition or operations of these distributarsl resellers' aggregated business deteric
substantially, HP's operating results could be exbhg affected. The ten largest distributor ane@ltesreceivable balances, which were
concentrated primarily in North America and Europal|ectively represented approximately 20% and 2f%ross accounts receivable at
October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. No sing&omer accounts for more than 10% of gross at¢saaneivable. Credit risk with respect
to other accounts receivable and financing recé@gails generally diversified due to the large nundfeentities comprising HP's customer base
and their dispersion across many different indestand geographic regions. HP performs ongoingtaredluations of the financial condition
of its third-party distributors, resellers and atbhastomers and may require collateral, such &rgedf credit and bank guarantees, in certain
circumstances.

HP utilizes outsourced manufacturers aradtadvorld to manufacture HP-designed productsntdly purchase product components from
suppliers and sell those components to its outeoumtanufacturers thereby creating receivable batafrom the outsourced manufacturers.
The three largest outsourced manufacturer recavadiances collectively represented 90% and 82PAPt$ supplier receivables of $1.0 billi
and $1.0 billion at October 31, 2014 and 2013,ee8pely. HP includes the supplier receivables theD current assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets on a gross basis. HP's creditsiicated with these receivables is mitigated whallin part, by the amount HP owes to th
outsourced manufacturers, as HP generally hagga tight to offset its payables to the outsounteshufacturers against these receivables
does not reflect the sale of these components/eniee and does not recognize any profit on thesgooent sales until the related products
sold by HP, at which time any profit is recognizeda reduction to cost of sales.

95




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegContinued)

HP obtains a significant number of compasdérom single source suppliers due to technolaggjlability, price, quality or other
considerations. The loss of a single source supplie deterioration of HP's relationship with mgté source supplier, or any unilateral
modification to the contractual terms under whidh id supplied components by a single source supgidd adversely affect HP's revenue
and gross margins.

Inventory

HP values inventory at the lower of costrarket. Cost is computed using standard cost wdgighoximates actual cost on a first-in, first-
out basis. Adjustments to reduce the cost of iragrtb its net realizable value are made, if regghifor estimated excess, obsolete or impaire
balances.

Property, Plant and Equipme

HP states property, plant and equipmenbst less accumulated depreciation. HP capitatidéitions and improvements and expenses
maintenance and repairs as incurred. Depreciakiparse is recognized on a straight-line basis theeestimated useful lives of the assets.
Estimated useful lives are five to 40 years foldings and improvements and three to 15 years fmhimery and equipment. HP depreciates
leasehold improvements over the life of the leash® asset, whichever is shorter. HP depreciategpment held for lease over the initial term
of the lease to the equipment's estimated residiaé. The estimated useful lives of assets usketlyg0 support a customer services contract
generally do not exceed the term of the customeiract. On retirement or disposition, the asset and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheets wigtgain or loss recognized in the ConsolidatedeBtants of Earnings.

HP capitalizes certain internal and extecoats incurred to acquire or create internalsefeware, principally related to software coding,
designing system interfaces and installation asting of the software. HP amortizes capitalizednmal use software costs using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives ofg¢b#ware, generally from three to five years.

Software Development Costs

HP capitalizes costs incurred to acquirdenrelop software for resale subsequent to eskatdjgechnological feasibility for the software,
if significant. HP amortizes capitalized softwarvdlopment costs using the greater of the strdightamortization method or the ratio that
current gross revenues for a product bear to tia¢ ¢arrent and anticipated future gross revenaethit product. The estimated useful life for
capitalized software for resale is generally thyeers or less. Software development costs inciubdequent to establishing technological
feasibility are generally not significant.
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Business Combinatiot

HP includes the results of operations ofur@d businesses in HP's consolidated resultppotively from the date of acquisition. HP
allocates the fair value of purchase considerdtidhe assets acquired, liabilities assumed, anecoatrolling interests in the acquired entity
generally based on their fair values at the actioistate. The excess of the fair value of purcltasesideration over the fair value of these
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and non-diingganterests in the acquired entity is recor@dsdgoodwill. The primary items that generate
goodwill include the value of the synergies betwgenacquired company and HP and the value ofdfeiged assembled workforce, neithe
which qualifies for recognition as an intangiblsets Acquisition-related expenses and post-aceprisiestructuring costs are recognized
separately from the business combination and greresed as incurred.

Goodwill

HP reviews goodwill for impairment annuadigyd whenever events or changes in circumstand&ste the carrying amount of goodwill
may not be recoverable. While HP is permitted todumt a qualitative assessment to determine whéttseenecessary to perform a two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test, for its ahgoodwill impairment test in the fourth quartéffiscal 2014, HP performed a quantitative
test for all of its reporting units.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at theoeting unit level. At the beginning of its firstigrter of fiscal 2014, HP made a change to its
reporting units. In connection with continued opiersal synergies and interdependencies betweeEnterprise Servers, Storage and
Networking reporting unit and the Technology Seegi¢'TS") reporting unit within the Enterprise GpolEG") segment, HP combined the
reporting units to create the EG reporting unit.oA®©ctober 31, 2014, HP's reporting units are sbast with the reportable segments
identified in Note 2, except for Enterprise Sergi€&ES"), which consists of two reporting units: MysiS Limited and the remainder of ES.

In the first step of the impairment tesB, Ebmpares the fair value of each reporting uniistoarrying amount. HP estimates the fair value
of its reporting units using a weighting of fainwas derived most significantly from the income mggh, and to a lesser extent, the market
approach. Under the income approach, HP estimia¢efir value of a reporting unit based on the gmésalue of estimated future cash flows.
HP bases cash flow projections on managementaas of revenue growth rates and operating margikisg into consideration industry
and market conditions. HP bases the discount ratheweighted-average cost of capital adjustedh®relevant risk associated with business
specific characteristics and the uncertainty reladethe reporting unit's ability to execute on pinejected cash flows. Under the market
approach, HP estimates fair value based on marnkiphes of revenue and earnings derived from cagle publicly-traded companies with
similar operating and investment characteristickhageporting unit. HP weights the fair value ded from the market approach depending or
the level of comparability of these publicly-trademmpanies to the reporting unit. When market caatglas are not meaningful or not
available, HP estimates the fair value of a repgrtinit using only the income approach. For the &8 Limited reporting unit, HP utilized
the quoted market price in an active market toves fair value.

In order to assess the reasonablenesg efstimated fair value of HP's reporting units,ddBpares the aggregate reporting unit fair valu
to HP's market capitalization and calculates ariadgontrol premium (the excess of the sum ofréporting units' fair value over HP's mar
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capitalization). HP evaluates the control premigynmtbmparing it to observable control premiums fr@oent comparable transactions. If the
implied control premium is not believed to be rewsdue in light of these recent transactions, HRakmtes reporting unit fair values, which
may result in an adjustment to the discount ratéarother assumptions. This reevaluation couldltés a change to the estimated fair value
for certain or all reporting units.

If the fair value of a reporting unit exdsahe carrying amount of the net assets assignét reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired
and no further testing is required. If the fairun@bf the reporting unit is less than its carryamgount, then HP performs the second step of the
goodwill impairment test to measure the amountrgddirment loss, if any. In the second step, HP omeaghe reporting unit's assets, incluc
any unrecognized intangible assets, liabilities moa-controlling interests at fair value in a hypetical analysis to calculate the implied fair
value of goodwill for the reporting unit in the sammanner as if the reporting unit was being acquinea business combination. If the implied
fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is letb&n its carrying amount, the difference is reedreds an impairment loss.

Intangible Assets and Lo-Lived Assets

HP reviews intangible assets with finiteeb and long-lived assets for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recblerblP assesses the recoverability of assets lmstak estimated undiscounted future ¢
flows expected to result from the use and everttisglosition of the asset. If the undiscounted fitash flows are less than the carrying
amount, the asset is impaired. HP measures therarabimpairment loss, if any, as the differencénmen the carrying amount of the asset
its fair value using an income approach or, wheailalsle and appropriate, using a market approa€hairortizes intangible assets with finite
lives using the straight-line method over the eated economic lives of the assets, ranging fromtoren years.

Debt and Marketable Equity Securities Investm:

Debt and marketable equity securities @reegally considered available-for-sale and arerntegat fair value with unrealized gains and
losses, net of applicable taxes, in Accumulatedrotbmprehensive loss in the Consolidated BalaheetS. Realized gains and losses for
available-for-sale securities are calculated basethe specific identification method and includedinterest and other, net in the Consolidatec
Statements of Earnings. HP monitors its investrpentfolio for potential impairment on a quarterlgdis. When the carrying amount of an
investment in debt securities exceeds its fairevand the decline in value is determined to berdtien-temporary (i.e., when HP does not
intend to sell the debt securities and it is notarlikely than not that HP will be required to sbié debt securities prior to anticipated recovery
of its amortized cost basis), HP records an impamtcharge to Interest and other, net in the amaoluthte credit loss and the balance, if any, is
recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive lossarConsolidated Balance Sheets.

Derivatives

HP uses derivative financial instrumentgnarily forwards, swaps, and options, to hedge¢adeiforeign currency and interest rate
exposures. HP also may use other derivative ingtnsmnot designated as hedges, such as forwardsaieedge foreign currency balance
sheet exposures. HP
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does not use derivative financial instruments fiErcsilative purposes. See Note 11 for a full deSorippf HP's derivative financial instrument
activities and related accounting policies.

Loss Contingencie

HP is involved in various lawsuits, clainrs/estigations and proceedings that arise in tdeary course of business. HP records a
liability for contingencies when it believes ithsth probable that a liability has been incurred #re amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. See Note 15 for a full description ofHBss contingencies and related accounting gslici

Note 2: Segment Information

HP is a leading global provider of produtéshnologies, software, solutions and servicesdividual consumers, small- and medium-
sized businesses ("SMBs") and large enterprisekiding customers in the government, health andaihn sectors. HP's offerings span
personal computing and other access devices; igagind printing-related products and services;rpnte information technology ("IT")
infrastructure, including enterprise server andagje technology, networking products and solutians, technology support and maintenance;
multi-vendor customer services, including technglognsulting, outsourcing and support servicessacihafrastructure, applications and
business process domains; and IT management seftagplication testing and delivery software, imation management solutions, big data
analytics, security intelligence and risk managenseiutions.

HP's operations are organized into sevgmeats for financial reporting purposes: Persogateéns, Printing, the EG, ES, Software, HP
Financial Services ("HPFS") and Corporate InvestsigP's organizational structure is based on aoenrof factors that management uses to
evaluate, view and run its business operationsghwimiclude, but are not limited to, customer base lromogeneity of products and technolt
The segments are based on this organizationaksteuand information reviewed by HP's managemest&duate segment results.

The Personal Systems segment and therRristigment are structured beneath a broader Ryiatid Personal Systems Group ("PPS").
While PPS is not a reportable segment, HP may geofinancial data aggregating the Personal Systemishe Printing segments in order to
provide a supplementary view of its business.

A summary description of each segment ¥aslo

ThePrinting and Personal Systems Groupisssion is to leverage the respective strengtlis@Personal Systems business and the
Printing business by creating a unified organizattmat is customer-focused and poised to capitalizeapidly shifting industry trends. Each of
the segments within PPS is described below.

Personal Systenmrovides commercial Personal Computers ("PCs")saorer PCs, workstations, thin clients, tabletsilrgbint-of-sale
systems, calculators and other related accessed#gjare, support and services for the commeseidlconsumer markets. HP groups
commercial notebooks, commercial desktops, commletaidlets, workstations and thin clients into coencral clients and consumer notebor
consumer desktops and consumer tablets into comstlimets when describing performance in these etarkDescribed below are HP's global
business capabilities within Personal Systems.
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. Commercial PCsaire optimized for use by customers, including gmise and SMB customers, and for connectivity atwlity
and manageability in networked environments.

. Consumer PCaclude the HP Spectre, HP ENVY, HP Pavilion, HR@hebook, HP Split and HP Slate series of multi-imed
consumer notebooks, consumer tablets, hybrids asktaps.

Printing provides consumer and commercial printer hardwargplies, media, software and services, as weltasning devices. Printir
is also focused on imaging solutions in the comiaénarkets. HP groups LaserJet, large format erinand commercial inkjet printers into
commercial hardware and consumer inkjet printeis @donsumer hardware when describing performanteeise markets. Described below are
HP's global business capabilities within Printing.

. LaserJet and Enterprise Solutiodsliver HP's LaserJet and enterprise productsjcgenand solutions to the SMB and enterg
segments. Managed Print Services provides priingpment, supplies, support, workflow optimizatand security services
for SMB and enterprise customers around the waititizing proprietary HP tools and fleet managemswititions as well as
third-party software.

. Inkjet and Printing Solutiondeliver HP's consumer and SMB inkjet solutions diaaare, supplies, media, and web-connected
hardware and services). Ongoing initiatives angyanms such as Ink in the Office and Ink Advantagg mewer initiatives such
as Instant Ink provide innovative printing soluaim consumers and SMBs.

. Graphics Solutionselivers large format printers (Designjet, Largerat Production, and Scitex Industrial), specigltynting,
digital press solutions (Indigo and Inkjet Webpjesapplies and services to print service providerns design & rendering
customers.

. Software and Web Serviceslivers a suite of offerings, including photo-stge and printing offerings (such as Snapfish),

document storage, entertainment services, web-cteth@rinting, and PC back-up and related services.

TheEnterprise Groupprovides servers, storage, networking and techyadegvices that, when combined with HP's Cloud tsmhg,
enable customers to manage applications acrosg midlid, virtual private cloud, private cloud additional IT environments. Described
below are HP's business units and capabilitiesinvie.

. Industry Standard Serveddfers a range of products from entry-level senthreugh premium ProLiant servers, which run
primarily Windows, Linux and virtualization platfiars from software providers such as Microsoft andwévke and open sourc
software from other major vendors while leveragiB8§ processors from Intel and AMD.

. Business Critical Systeraffers HP Integrity servers based on the Intel®ilien® processor, HP Integrity NonStop solutions
and mission-critical x86 ProLiant servers.

. Storageoffers traditional storage and Converged Storagigisas. Traditional storage includes tape, stonagvorking and
legacy external disk products such as EVA and Xdhv@rged Storage solutions include 3PAR StoreRtoreOnce and
StoreVirtual products.

. Networkingoffers switches, routers, wireless local area netvand network management products that span tizecgater,
campus and branch environments and deliver softdefiaed networking and unified communications dxjiées.
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. Technology Servicgwovides support services and technology consutiptgmizing EG's hardware platforms, and focuses on
cloud, mobility and big data. These services aglable in the form of service contracts, pre-paedofferings or on a
customized basis.

Enterprise Servicegrovides technology consulting, outsourcing andosufpservices across infrastructure, applicationslausiness
process domains. ES is comprised of Infrastructeehnology Outsourcing, Application and BusineswiBes.

. Infrastructure Technology Outsourciniglivers comprehensive services that encompagsdinagement of data centers, IT
security, cloud computing, workplace technologytweeks, unified communications and enterprise serwanagement.

. Application and Business Servideaps clients develop, revitalize and manage thygilications and information assets.

Softwareprovides IT management, application testing antvesl, information management, big data analysesurity intelligence and
risk management solutions for businesses and eigesf all sizes. Our software offerings incllidenses, support, professional services ant
SaaS.

HP Financial Serviceprovides flexible investment solutions, such asileg financing, utility programs and asset managgrservices,
for customers to enable the creation of uniquerteldyy deployment models and acquire complete lUtems, including hardware, software
and services from HP and others. Providing flexfi@evices and capabilities that support the efifildecycle, HPFS partners with customers
globally to help build investment strategies that@ance their business agility and support theiimass transformation. HPFS offers a wide
selection of investment solution capabilities fangle enterprise customers and channel partnergy alith an array of financial options to
SMBs and educational and governmental entities.

Corporate Investmeniacludes HP Labs and certain cloud-related busimesgation projects among others.
Segment Policy

HP derives the results of the business satgrdirectly from its internal management repgrsgstem. The accounting policies HP uses t
derive segment results are substantially the santiease the consolidated company uses. Managensasumes the performance of each
segment based on several metrics, including easrinogn operations. Management uses these resultgari, to evaluate the performance of,
and to allocate resources to, each of the segments.

Segment revenue includes revenues frons salexternal customers and intersegment revehagseflect transactions between the
segments on an arm's-length basis. Intersegmesriues primarily consist of sales of hardware affidvaoe that are sourced internally and, in
the majority of the cases, are financed as opeyétimses by HPFS. HP's consolidated net reverderiiged and reported after the elimination
of intersegment revenues from such arrangements.

HP periodically engages in intercompangiging arrangements that may result in advance gatgnbetween subsidiaries. Revenues
intercompany licensing arrangements are deferrddesognized ratably over the term of the arrangerg the legal entities involved in such
transactions; however, these payments are elindrfeden revenues as reported by HP and its bussegsients. As disclosed in Note 6, during
fiscal 2014, HP executed a multi-year intercompl&@gnsing
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arrangement on which advanced royalty paymentd @f4billion were received in the U.S. from a fogreconsolidated affiliate. Deferred
intercompany royalty revenues of $9.9 billion vii# recognized over the life of the arrangementutinad?029 in the respective legal entities,
but eliminated from both HP consolidated and sedn@renues.

Financing interest in the Consolidated Staints of Earnings reflects interest expense onalrtbutable to HPFS. Debt attributable to
HPFS consists of intercompany equity that is tctatedebt for segment reporting purposes, intereompebt, and borrowing- and funding-
related activity associated with HPFS and its glibges.

HP does not allocate to its segments cedpérating expenses, which it manages at the catptevel. These unallocated costs include
certain corporate governance costs, stock-baseg@usation expense, amortization of intangible asgapairment of goodwill and intangible
assets, restructuring charges and acquisitionetleharges.

Segment Realignment

Effective at the beginning of its first gtea of fiscal 2014, HP implemented certain orgatianal changes to align its segment financial
reporting more closely with its current businesadtire. These organizational changes include:

. transferring the HP Exstream business from the Ceroia Hardware business unit within the Printiegment to the Software
segment;
. transferring the Personal Systems trade andawrisupport business from the TS business uniinvihe EG segment to the

Other business unit within the Personal Systemssat

. transferring the spare and replacement partiadss supporting the Personal Systems and Pristigments from the TS
business unit within the EG segment to the Othsirtass unit within the Personal Systems segmentten@ommercial
Hardware business unit within the Printing segmesgpectively;

. transferring certain cloud-related incubation atitg previously reported in Corporate and unalledacosts and eliminations
and in the EG segment to the Corporate Investnssgsient.

In addition, HP transferred certain intigreent eliminations from the ES segment and the &fngnt to corporate intersegment revenue
eliminations.

HP has reflected these changes to its segmfermation retrospectively to the earliest pdrpresented, which has resulted in the transfe
of revenue among the Printing, Personal SystemsHSGnd Software segments and the transfer otipgrmprofit among the Printing,
Personal Systems, EG, Software and Corporate imegis segments. These changes had no impact pretfieusly reported financial results
for the HPFS segment. In addition, none of thessgls impacted HP's previously reported consolidat¢ revenue, earnings from operatit
net earnings or net EPS.
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Segment Operating Results

Printing and
Personal System:

Personal
Systems

Printing

Enterprise

Group

Enterprise

Services

Software

HP Financial

Services

Corporate

Investments

Total

2014
Net revenue $
Intersegment
net revenue
and othel

33,30«

99¢

$

22,71¢

26(

$

26,80¢

1,00¢

$

In millions

21,29°

1,101

$

3,607

32¢

$

3,41 $

82

30z

$ 111,45

3,77¢

Total
segment
net
revenue $

34,30¢

22,97¢

27,81«

22,39¢

3,93t

3,49t $

30z

$ 115,22

Earnings
(loss)
from
operation  $

1,27(¢

4,18¢

4,00¢

80<

87z

38 §

(19¢)

$  11,32¢

2013
Net revenue $
Intersegment
net revenue
and othel

31,23:

23,68t

211

27,04t

1,03¢

23,04:

1,02(

3,701

32

357C $

59

24

$ 112,29¢

3,59:¢

Total
segment
net
revenue $

32,17¢

23,89¢

28,08:

24,06:

4,021

3,62¢ $

24

$ 115,89:

Earnings
(loss)
from
operation $

98C

3,93¢

4,25¢

67¢

86¢

39¢ $

$ 10,80:

2012
Net revenus $
Intersegment
net revenue
and othel

34,89:

951

24,317

221

28,34¢

1,294

25,09(

902

3,86¢

30¢

3,78 %

35

$ 120,35

3,70¢

Total
segment
net
revenue $

35,84

24,53¢

29,64!

25,99¢

4,171

381¢ $

58

$ 124,06!

Earnings
(loss)
from
operation  $

1,724

$

3,612

$

5,12¢

$

1,04¢

83¢€

38 $

(239)

$ 12,49t

The reconciliation of segment operatinguiitssto HP consolidated results was as follows:

Net Revenue:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014

2013

2012

In mi

llions

Total segment
Elimination of intersegment net revenue and o
Total HP consolidated net reven

Earnings before taxes:;
Total segment earnings from operati
Corporate and unallocated costs and eliminai
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Amortization of intangible asse
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass
Restructuring charge
Acquisitior-related charge
Interest and other, n
Total HP consolidated earnings (loss) before ti

$ 115,22° $ 115,89. $ 124,06!

(3,779 (3,599 (3,709

$ 111,45 $ 11229 $ 120,35
$ 11,32¢ $ 10,80: $ 12,49t
(95%) (786) (787)
(560) (500) (63F)
(1,000 (1,379 (1,789
— —  (18,03Y)
(1,619 (990  (2,266)
(13) (22) (45)

(626) (621) (87€)

$ 655 $ 651 $ (11,93)
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Segment Assets

HP allocates assets to its business segrased on the segments primarily benefiting floenassets. Total assets by segment and the
reconciliation of segment assets to HP consolidasseéts were as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions

Personal Systen $ 12,106 $ 11,69(
Printing 10,06 11,08¢
Printing and Personal Systems Gr 22,167 22,77¢
Enterprise Grou, 27,23t 29,75¢
Enterprise Service 13,47: 16,217
Software 11,57¢ 11,94(
HP Financial Service 13,52¢ 12,74¢
Corporate Investmen 34 10t
Corporate and unallocated ass 15,19: 12,13:
Total HP consolidated asst $ 103,20t $ 105,67¢

@ HP has revised the presentation for the fiscal gaded October 31, 2013 in order to present corbfmiaformation witt
the current year perio

Major Customers
No single customer represented 10% or mabHP's total net revenue in any fiscal year pressn
Geographic Information

Net revenue by country is based upon thesdacation that predominately represents theooust location. For each of the fiscal years of
2014, 2013 and 2012, other than the U.S., no cpuepresented more than 10% of HP net revenue.

Net revenue by country in which HP operatas as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
In millions
u.S. $ 38,80f $ 40,28 $ 42,14(
Other countrie! 72,64¢ 72,01« 78,217
Total net revenu $ 111,45 $ 112,29¢ $ 120,35’

As of October 31, 2014, the U.S., Nethattaand Ireland each represented more than 10% abgeets. As of October 31, 2013, the U.S.
the Cayman Islands and Ireland each representecbi @86re of net assets.
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Net property, plant and equipment by copimtrwhich HP operates was as follows:

u.S.
The United Kingdom.
Other countrie!

Total net property, plant and equipm

Net revenue by segment and business usiawdollows:

As of October 31
2014 2013
In millions

$ 5,66¢ $ 5,54¢
1,05: 1,09(
4,61¢ 4,82
$ 11,34( $ 11,468

For the fiscal years ended October 3

Notebooks
Desktops
Workstations
Other
Personal Systen
Supplies
Commercial Hardwar
Consumer Hardwar
Printing

Total Printing and Personal Systems Gr.

Industry Standard Serve

Technology Service

Storage

Networking

Business Critical Systen
Enterprise Grou,

Infrastructure Technology Outsourci

Application and Business Servic
Enterprise Service
Software
HP Financial Service
Corporate Investmen
Total segment net reven

Eliminations of intersegment net revenue and ¢

Total net revenu

105

2014 2013 2012
In millions

$ 1754 $ 16,02¢ $ 18,83(
13,19; 12,84« 13,88¢
2,21¢ 2,147 2,14¢
1,34¢ 1,15¢ 977
34,30: 32,17¢ 35,84
14,917 15,71¢ 16,15!
571 5,74¢ 5,94¢
2,34t 2,43¢ 2,441
22,97¢ 23,89¢ 24 53¢
57,28: 56,07t 60,38!
12,47« 12,10: 12,58
8,46¢ 8,78¢ 9,152
3,31¢ 3,47¢ 3,81t
2,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,48:
92¢ 1,19( 1,612
27,81« 28,08 29,64
14,03¢ 15,22: 16,17¢
8,36( 8,83¢ 9,817
22,39¢ 24,06 25,99:¢
3,93¢ 4,021 4,171
3,49¢ 3,62¢ 3,81¢
30z 24 58
115,22 115,89 124,06!
(3,779 (3,599 (3,706
$ 111,45 $ 112,29t $ 120,35
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Note 3: Restructuring
Summary of Restructuring Plans

HP's restructuring activities in fiscal 20dummarized by plan were as follows:

As of October 31,

Fiscal 2014 2014
Other Total Total
Balance, Adjustments Balance, Costs Expected
October 31, Cash and Non-Cash October 31, Incurred Costs to Be
2013 Charges Payments Settlements 2014 to Date Incurred
In millions
Fiscal 2012
Plan
Severance
and EER $ 94t $ 1,357 $ (1,239 $ (119 $ 95t $ 4,39 $ 5,00
Infrastructur:
and othel 40 26¢& (20¢€) (2) 98 51t 54C
Total 2012
Plan 98¢t 1,62¢ (1,447 (11€) 1,05: 4,90¢ 5,54(
Other Plans:
Severanci 10 — 3 — 7 2,62¢ 2,62¢
Infrastructur: 122 (6) (62) — 54 1,43¢ 1,43
Total Other
Plans 132 (6) (65) — 61 4,062 4,06¢
Total
restructuring
plans $ 1,117 $ 1,61¢ $ (1,506 $ (11€) $ 1,11¢ $ 8,97C $ 9,60¢
Reflected in
Consolidatet
Balance
Sheets
Accrued
restructuri $ 901 $ 89¢
Other
liabilites $ 21€ $ 21¢€

Fiscal 2012 Restructuring Plan

On May 23, 2012, HP adopted a multi-yeatrteturing plan (the "2012 Plan") designed to difpbusiness processes, accelerate
innovation and deliver better results for customensployees and stockholders. As of October 31328P estimated that it would eliminate
approximately 34,000 positions in connection wite 2012 Plan through fiscal 2014, with a portiothafse employees exiting the company ac
part of voluntary enhanced early retirement ("EERYgrams in the U.S. and in certain other cousitdes of October 31, 2013, HP estimated
that it would recognize approximately $4.1 billimnaggregate charges in connection with the 2042.PI

In fiscal 2014, HP increased the expectadlyer of positions to be eliminated to 55,000 aschiftinued to optimize the workforce and
reengineer business processes to be more comedittl meet its objectives. As a result, as of Qut8h, 2014, HP estimates that it will
recognize approximately $5.5 billion in aggregatarges in connection with the 2012 Plan. As of Bet®1, 2014, HP had recorded
$4.9 billion in aggregate charges of which $4.4dsilrelated to workforce reductions and $515 miilrelated to infrastructure, including data
center and real estate consolidation, and othessité\s of October 31, 2014, HP had eliminated axiprately 40,900 positions for which a
severance payment has been or will be made asfthe 2012 Plan. The severance- and infrastructleged cash payments associated with
the 2012 Plan are expected to be paid out throsghlf2021.
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Other Plans

Restructuring plans initiated by HP in #2008 and 2010 were substantially completed &3cbdber 31, 2014. Severance- and
infrastructure-related cash payments associatddthet other plans are expected to be paid out ¢iirdiscal 2019.

Note 4: Retirement and Post-Retirement Benefit Plasn
Defined Benefit Plans

HP sponsors a number of defined benefisjpanplans worldwide, of which the most significané¢ in the United States. Both the HP
Pension Plan ("Pension Plan"), a defined benefisipa plan under which benefits are based on pdyears of service, and the HP Company
Cash Account Pension Plan ("Cash Account Pensiam'Rlunder which benefits are accrued pursuaatfaymula based on a percentage of
pay plus interest, were frozen effective Janua30D8. The Cash Account Pension Plan was mergedhiatHP Pension Plan in 2005 for
certain funding and investment purposes. Effedetober 30, 2009 the Electronic Data Systems Catjmor ("EDS") U.S. qualified pension
plan was also merged into the Pension Plan. The @&DSion plan was frozen effective January 1, 2009.

HP reduces the benefit payable to certath Employees under the Pension Plan for servimed#993, if any, by any amounts due to the
employee under HP's frozen defined contributionelefd Profit-Sharing Plan ("DPSP"). HP closed tfRSP to new participants in 1993. The
DPSP plan obligations are equal to the plan assets@re recognized as an offset to the Pensionwan HP calculates its defined benefit
pension cost and obligations. The fair value ohasets and projected benefit obligations fottl& defined benefit plans combined with the
DPSP were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013

Projected Projected

Benefit Benefit

Plan Assets Obligation Plan Assets Obligation

In millions

U.S. defined benéfit plar $ 1197¢ $ 13,75¢ $ 10,86¢ $ 11,86¢
DPSP 82¢ 82¢ 837 837
Total $ 12,807 $ 1458 $ 11,700 $ 12,70
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Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

HP sponsors retiree health and welfare fitgplans, of which the most significant are in tHeS. Under the HP Retiree Welfare Benefits
Plan, certain pre-2003 retirees and grandfatheseticpants with continuous service to HP since228fk eligible to receive partially-
subsidized medical coverage based on years ofcgeatiretirement. Former grandfathered employe&igifal Equipment Corporation also
receive partially-subsidized medical benefits #rat not service-based. HP's share of the premistisoapped for all subsidized medical
coverage provided under the HP Retiree Welfare fsriélan. HP currently leverages the employer greaiver plan process to provide HP
Retiree Welfare Benefits Plan post-65 prescriptlarg coverage under Medicare Part D, thereby gitARgaccess to federal subsidies to help
pay for retiree benefits.

Certain employees not grandfathered urtteabove programs, as well as employees hired20@2 but before August 2008, are eligible
for credits under the HP Retirement Medical Savifigsount Plan ("RMSA") upon attaining age 45. Ctediffered after September 2008 are
provided in the form of matching credits on emplygentributions made to a voluntary employee bersfi association. On retirement,
former employees may use these credits for thetn@isement of certain eligible medical expensesudicg premiums required for coverage.

Defined Contribution Plans

HP offers various defined contribution @dar U.S. and non-U.S. employees. Total definadrdaution expense was $573 million in
fiscal 2014, $603 million in fiscal 2013 and $628lion in fiscal 2012. U.S. employees are autorradticenrolled in the Hewlett-Packard
Company 401(k) Plan ("HP 401(k) Plan") when theyetredigibility requirements, unless they declinetiggpation.

The quarterly employer matching contribntion the HP 401(K) Plan are 100% of an employem$ributions, up to a maximum of 4%
eligible compensation.
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Pension and Post-Retirement Benefit Expense

HP's net pension and post-retirement be(@édit) cost recognized in the ConsolidatedeStagnts of Earnings was as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Servicecos $ 19 19 1 $ 306 $ 337 $ 2949%$ 5% 6% 7
Interest cos 56¢ 56C 56€ 737 67€ 69C 32 31 35
Expected
return on

plan asset (811) (84%) (793) (1,240 (1,007%) (81€) (34 (34 (38)
Amortization
and
deferrals:
Actuarial
loss
(gain) 15 77 43 31¢ 341 23t (20 2 3
Prior
service
benefit — — — (23) (27) (24) (412) (67) (79
Net periodic
benefit
(credit)
cost (22€) (207) (183) 20C 32C 37¢ (48) (62 (78)
Curtailmen
(gain)
loss — — — @) 3 4 — (7) (30
Settlement
loss
(gain) 1 12 11 12 18 (18) — — —
Special
terminati
benefits — — 83z 50 31 17 32 (5) 227
Net benefil
(credit)
cost $ (225) $ (195) $ 661 $ 25 $ 366 $ 382 $ (16) $ (74) $ 1i¢

The weighted-average assumptions useddalate net benefit (credit) cost were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
Discount rate 4% 41% 4.8% 3% 3.&&% 4% 3% 3.(% 4.4%
Expected increase in
compensation leve 2% 2% 2% 24% 2.4% 2% — — —
Expected long-term
return on plan asse 7% 7.8% 7.6% 7.% 7.2% 6.4% 8<% 9.(% 10.(%
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Funded Status
The funded status of the defined benefit post-retirement benefit plans was as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos+-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

In millions

Change in fair value of plan
assets
Fair valu—beginning of yea $ 10,86¢ $ 11,53¢ $ 16,08 $ 14,02. $ 39€ $ 39t

Acquisition/addition of plan — — 8 7 — —
Actual return on plan asse 1,64¢ 62¢ 1,81¢ 1,84z 83 32
Employer contribution 27 54 1,01¢ 634 92 10z
Participant contribution — — 64 63 54 72
Benefits paic (55¢) (1,320 (56¢) (509 (167) (20%)
Settlemen (4) (33 (49 (96) — —
Currency impac — — (807) 11€ — —
Fair valu—end of yea 11,97¢ 10,86¢ 17,57( 16,08 45¢ 39¢€
Change in benefit obligatiol
Projected benefit obligation—
beginning of yea 11,86¢ 14,231 19,15: 18,091 867 1,05¢
Acquisition/addition of plan — — 10 14 — —
Service cos 1 1 30¢ 337 5 6
Interest cos 56¢ 56C 737 67€ 32 31
Participant contribution — — 64 63 54 72
Actuarial loss (gain 1,882 (1,579 2,50( 34: 22 (85)
Benefits paic (55¢) (1,320 (56¢) (5049 (167) (20%)
Plan amendmen — — — 6 — —
Curtailment — — (49 13 — —
Settlemen 4 (33 (49 (200 — —
Special termination benefi — — 50 31 32 (5)
Currency impac — — (93E) 17¢€ (5) 3
Projected benefit obligationenc
of year 13,75¢ 11,86¢ 21,22( 19,15: 84C 867
Funded status at end of ye $ (L,77) $ (1,000 $ (3,650 $ (3,069 $ (382 $ (47)

Accumulated benefit obligatic  $ 13,75 $ 11,86 $ 20,207 $ 18,25:
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The weighted-average assumptions useddalate the projected benefit obligations wered®ws:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined Pos-Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
Discount rate 440% 4% 3.2% 3.% 3.€% 3.€%
Expected increase in compensation le' 2% 2.0% 25% 2.4% — —

For the U.S. defined benefit plan, HP addm new mortality rate table in fiscal 2014 tadreteflect expected lifetimes of its U.S. plan
participants. The table used is based on a histaliemographic study of the plans and increasegribjected benefit obligation by
approximately $870 million. The increase in thejgcted benefit obligation was recognized as a@fdtie net actuarial loss as included in the
other comprehensive loss which will be amortizedrdtie remaining estimated life of plan particigafapproximately 26.5 years).

The net amounts recognized for HP's deflmatkfit and post-retirement benefit plans in HRIssolidated Balance Sheets were as
follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos-Retirement

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

In millions

Noncurrent asse $ — $ — $ 421 $ 47¢ $ — $ —
Current liabilities (35) (33) (43) (46) (47 (109
Noncurrent liabilities (1,742 (967) (4,02¢) (3,507) (33%) (362)
Funded status at end of ye $ (1,777 $ (1,000 $ (3,650 $ (3,069 (382 $ (47)

The following table summarizes the pretekactuarial loss (gain) and prior service berrefibgnized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss for the defined benefit and-pEisement benefit plans:

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 201
U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos-Retirement

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Net actuarial loss (gait $ 1,40t $ 542 $ (115
Prior service benef — (18€) (119
Total recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive los $ 1,40t $ 5231 $ (234)
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The following table summarizes the net agal loss (gain) and prior service benefit tha& expected to be amortized from accumulated
other comprehensive loss (income) and recognizedmponents of net periodic benefit cost (creditiry the next fiscal year.

U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined Pos-Retirement

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Net actuarial loss (gair $ 54 $ 452 $ (20
Prior service benef — (22) (20
Total expected to be recognized in net periodi
benefit cost (credit $ 54 $ 43C $ (30

Defined benefit plans with projected benefiligations exceeding the fair value of plan &ssere as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2014 2013
U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Aggregate fair value of plan ass $ 11,97¢ $ 10,86¢ $ 12,70. $ 10,46:
Aggregate projected benefit obligati $ 13,75¢ $ 11,86¢ $ 16,77 $ 14,01(

Defined benefit plans with accumulated ebligations exceeding the fair value of plasets were as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2014 2013
U.S. Defined Non-U.S. Defined
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
Aggregate fair value of plan ass $ 11,97¢ $ 10,86¢ $ 12,57¢ $ 9,92¢
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligat $ 13,75 $ 11,86 $ 15,797 $ 12,708

Retirement Incentive Program

As part of the 2012 restructuring plan, ¢benpany announced a voluntary enhanced earlgmnedint program for its U.S employees.
Participation in the EER program was limited todh@mployees whose combined age and years of s@yimled 65 or more. Approximately
8,500 employees elected to participate in the EEgram and left the company on dates designatedebgompany, with the majority of the
EER participants having left the company on Audist2012 and others exiting through August 31, 20h@ HP Pension Plan was amended
to provide for an EER benefit from the plan foratieg EER participants who were current particigantthe plan. The retirement incentive
benefit was calculated as a lump sum and rangedkeketfive and fourteen months of pay dependingears/of service at the time of
retirement under the program. As a result of teisement incentive, HP recognized a special teation benefit ("STB") of $833 million,
which reflected the present value of all additiomahefits that HP would distribute from the HP Rem®lan. HP recorded these expenses as
restructuring charge. In addition, the HP Pensiam ®as remeasured on June 30, 2012, which resulteal material change to the 2012 net
periodic benefit cost or funded status.
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HP extended to all employees participaiinthe EER program the opportunity to continue theahre coverage at active employee
contribution rates for up to 24 months followingirement. In addition, for employees not grandfathlento certain employer-subsidized
retiree medical plans, HP provided up to $12,008mployer credits under the RMSA. These items teduh an additional special termination
benefit STB expense of $227 million, which was effsy net curtailment gains of $37 million, duenpairily to the resulting accelerated
recognition of the existing prior service bene€fihe entire STB and approximately $30 million inteilment gains were recognized in fiscal
2012. HP reported this net expense as a restragtaharge in the Consolidated Statements of Easning

Fair Value of Plan Assets

The table below sets forth the fair valfiplan assets by asset category within the faue/alierarchy.

As of October 31, 201+«
U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Non-U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Pos-Retirement Benefit Plans
Levell Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total
In millions

Asset
Category:
Equity
securities
u.S. $ 1,781 $ — 3 — $ 1,781 $ 293t $ 30 $ — $ 2,96t $ — $ — 3 — & —
Non-U.S. 1,26¢ — — 1,26¢ 4,05( 74z 8C 4,872 — — — —
Debt
securities
Corporate — 3,28 7 3,29( — 2,93t — 2,93t — 2C — 20
Governmer

@ — 220 — 220 — 1,78 — 178 — 22 - 22
Alternative
Investment:
Private

Equity @ — — 128 128 — 2 51 53 — — 211 27

Hybrids® — — 3 3 114 2.46¢ 43 2,62 — — 1 1
Hedge

Funds® = 34¢ 262 60¢ — 108 28E 38¢ — — - =

Real Estate

Funds — — — — 22( 271 542 1,04( — — — —
Insurance

Group

Annuity

Contracts — — — — — 44 78 i12¢ — — — —
Common

Collective

Trusts and

103-12

Investment

Entities(®) _ 854 _ 854 _ _ _ _ _ 55 _ 55
Registered

Investment

Companies

©) 68 314 - 382 - - - - 86 1 — 87
Cash and

Cash

Equivalents

™ 161 66 — 227 572 — — 572 — 6 — 6

Other(® (24) 95 — 71 79 13C 2 211 @ — )
Total $ 326($ 716.$ 155/ % 11,97 § 7971 $ 8516 $ 1,080 $ 1757 § 82 $ 104§ 27: § 45¢

@ Includes debt issued by national, state and looamments and agencies.

@ Includes limited partnerships such as equity, btyeenture capital, real estate and other similad$ that invest in the U.S. and internationallyevehforeign
currencies are hedged.

©) Includes a fund that invests in both private anblipiequities primarily in the U.S. and the Unit€shgdom, as well as emerging markets across albsecThe
fund also holds fixed income and derivative instemts to hedge interest rate and inflation riskaddition, the fund includes units in transferalgewsities,
collective investment schemes, money market fucatsh and deposit



4)

(©)

(6)

)

®)

Includes limited partnerships that invest both lang short primarily in common stocks and creéiative value, event driven equity, distressed deltmacro
strategies. Management of the hedge funds hasitlity o shift investments from value to growthiategies, from small to large capitalization stoakd bonds,
and from a net long position to a net short positio

Department of Labor 103-12 IE (Investment Entitg¥igination is for plan assets held by two or morelated employee benefit plans which includestédhi
partnerships and venture capital partnerships.

Includes publicly and privately traded Registenegelstment Entities.
Includes cash and cash equivalents such as shortatarketable securities.

Includes international insured contracts, deriatistruments and unsettled transactions.
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Changes in fair value measurements of L8\verl/estments were as follows:

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 201

Pos-Retirement
U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Non-U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Benefit Plans

Debt Alternative Alternative Alternative

Securities Investments Equity Investments Investments
Insurance
Corporate Private Hedge Non Private Hedge Private
u.s. Real Group
Debt  Equity Hybrids Funds Total Equities Equity Funds Hybrids Estate Annuities Other Total Equity Hybrids Total
In millions

Beginning
balance ¢
October !
2013 $ —$1,25($ 2% 112$1,365% 77$ 48% 204% —$ 32t 8l$ 2% 737% 234% 1$23¢

Actual
return on
plan
assets
Relating

to assel

still

held at

the

reportin

date — 92 1 10 102 3 2 14 — 4€ @8 — 57 51 — b1
Relating

to assel

sold

during

the

period — 16¢ — — 16¢ — 2 Q) — — — - 1 21 — 21

Purchases
sales, ani
settlemer
(net) 7 (229 — 14C (80) — (1) 68 43 10¢ 2 — 21€ (35) — (39

Transfers
in and/or
out of
Level 3 — — — — — — — — — 64 8 — 72 — —

Ending
balance ¢
October !

2014 $ 7$1,28¢% 3$ 26:$1,551% 80% 51% 28E$ 43$ 54 $ 79% 2%$1,08:% 271% 1$27

NY

The table below sets forth the fair vali@lan assets by asset category within the fawerdlierarchy.

As of October 31, 201!

U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Non-U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Level1l Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total
In millions
Asset
Category:
Equity
securities
u.s. $ 1711 % — 3 — $ 1,711 $ 2,45 $ 31%$ — $ 2481 % — % — 3 -3 —
Non-U.S. 1,27¢ — — 1,27¢ 4,05¢ 67C 77 4,80¢ — — — —
Debt
securities
Corporate — 3,02¢ — 3,02¢ — 3,347 — 3,347 — 17 — 17
Governmer
@ — 184 —  184¢ — 1751 — 1751 5 17 =
Alternative
Investment:
Private
Equity @) — — 1250 1,25 — 2 48 50 — — 234 234
Hybrids ) — — 2 2 — 122 — 1228 — — 11
Hedge
Funds® — — 112 ilile — 22€ 204 43¢ — — -

Real Estatt



Funds — — — — 47C 237 32t 1,032 — — — —
Insurance

Group

Annuity

Contracts — — — — — 50 81 131 — — — —
Common

Collective

Trusts and

103-12

Investment

Entities(®) - 12% — 123 — — — — — 42 —
Registered
Investment
Companies

®) 61 32¢ — 39¢ — — — — 79 — — 79
Cash and

Cash

Equivalents

™ 11 62 — 73 64€ 4 — 652 — 3 — 3

Other(®) (37) (20 — (57  11C 62 2 174 @) — — @
Total $ 3020% 64813 136:$ 10,86¢$ 7,74:§ 7,60:$ 7375 1608.$ 823 79§ 23t § 30¢

@ Includes debt issued by national, state and loocamments and agencies.

@ Includes limited partnerships such as equity, btyeenture capital, real estate and other similad$ that invest in the U.S. and internationallyevehforeign
currencies are hedge

114




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 4: Retirement and Post-Retirement Benefit Plas(Continued)

@ Includes a fund that invests in both private anbliptequities primarily in the U.S. and the Unit€shgdom, as well as emerging markets across albsecThe
fund also holds fixed income and derivative instemts to hedge interest rate and inflation riskaddition, the fund includes units in transferalgewsities,
collective investment schemes, money market fucelsh and deposits.

@ Includes limited partnerships that invest both lang short primarily in common stocks and creéiative value, event driven equity, distressed deldtmacro
strategies. Management of the hedge funds hasbitlity o shift investments from value to growthiategies, from small to large capitalization stoakd bonds,
and from a net long position to a net short positio

®) Department of Labor 103-12 IE (Investment Entitg¥igination is for plan assets held by two or morelated employee benefit plans which includestédhi
partnerships and venture capital partnerships.

®) Includes publicly and privately traded Registenegestment Entities.

@ Includes cash and cash equivalents such as shorttarketable securities.

®) Includes international insured contracts, derivatinstruments and unsettled transactions.

Changes in fair value measurements of L&usVestments were as follows:

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 201

Pos+-Retirement
U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Non-U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Benefit Plans

Debt Alternative Alternative Alternative

Securities Investments Equity Investments Investments
Insurance
Corporate Private Hedge Non Private Hedge Private
u.S. Real Group
Debt  Equity Hybrids Funds Total Equities Equity Funds Estate Annuities Other Total Equity Hybrids Total
In millions

Beginning
balance
at
October :
2012 $ 1$1,30($ 2$ 65%$1,36¢$ 76$ 21% 235$ 194% 88% 2$614% 23t $ 1% 23¢

Actual
return on
plan
assets
Relating

to

assets

still

held at

the

reportir

date — 9) — 13 4 1 8 — 16 B) — 2C 5 — 5
Relating

to

assets

sold

during

the

period — 142 — — 14Z — — 11 — — — 1 21 — 21

Purchases
sales, an
settlemel
(net) — (189 — 35 (149 — 1¢  (40) 11t 2 — 92 (27) — (27

Transfers
in and/or
out of
Level 3 (1) — — — (1) — — — — — —

Ending
balance
at
October :

2013 $ —$1,25($ 2% 112$1,365$ 77 48$ 204% 32tE$ 8l1$ 2%$73

$ 234% 1823t

The following is a description of the vaioa methodologies used to measure plan assetsr atlue. There have been no changes in the
methodologies used during the reporting period.

Investments in public-traded equity securities are valued using the fpprice on the measurement date as reported sidbk



exchange on which the individual securities arddda For corporate, government and asset-backeddetirities, fair value is based on
observable inputs of comparable market transactieoiscorporate and government debt securitiegtr@h active exchanges, fair value is
based on observable quoted prices. The valuatialterhative investments, such as limited partripssand joint ventures, may require
significant management judgment. For alternativeatments, valuation is based on net asset vaN&\(") as reported by the Asset Manager
and adjusted for cash flows, if necessary. In n@kinch an assessment, a variety of factors arewed by management, including, but not
limited to, the timeliness of NAV as reported b thsset manager and changes in general economimaaRkdt conditions subsequent to the
NAV reported by the asset manager. Depending oart@unt of management judgment, the lack of-term liquidity, and the absence of
guoted market prices, these assets are clasgifieeviel 2 or Level 3 of the fair value hierarchwrther, depending on how quickly HP can
redeem its hedge fund investments, and the extentyoadjustments to NAV, hedge funds are clagkifieeither Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Common collective trusts, intes@st103-12 entities and registered investment eomngs are valued at NAV. The valuation
for some of these assets requires judgment due
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to the absence of quoted market prices, and thtesstsaare generally classified in Level 2 of thevalue hierarchy. Cash and cash equivalent:
includes money market funds, which are valued basedAV. Other assets, including insurance groupuéty contracts, were classified in the
fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level if{puy., quoted prices and observable inputs)ishsignificant to the fair value measure in its
entirety.

Plan Asset Allocations

The weighted-average target and actuat afleeations across the benefit plans at the sgemeasurement dates were as follows:

Non-U.S. Defined Post-Retirement

U.S. Defined Benefit Plan: Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

2014 Plan Assets 2014 Plan Assets 2014 Plan Assets

Target _— Target _— Target _—
Asset Category  Allocation 2014 2013 Allocation 2014 2013 Allocation 2014 2013
Public
equity
securities 31.2% 36.1% 46.8% 48.(% 10.2% 9.5E%
Private/othe
equity
securities 15.8% 12.6% 15.2% 7.% 58.6% 59.1%
Real estate
and othel 0.6% — 71% 7.5% — —
Equity-
related
investmer 47.5% 47.1% 49.2% 67.1% 69.1% 63.2% 71.1% 68.8% 68.6%
Debt
securities 52.5% 49.2% 48.2% 31.€% 27.6% 32.5% 27.(% 27.5% 29.(%
Cash — 3.1% 2.2% 0.7% 3.2% 4.1% 1% 3.7% 2.4%
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

Investment Policy

HP's investment strategy is to seek a ctithgerate of return relative to an appropriatediof risk depending on the funded status of
plan and the timing of expected benefit paymeni® majority of the plans' investment managers eynaltive investment management
strategies with the goal of outperforming the brosatkets in which they invest. Risk managementtirae include diversification across asset
classes and investment styles and periodic rebagtaward asset allocation targets. A number efglans’ investment managers are
authorized to utilize derivatives for investmentiability exposures, and HP may utilize derivatwte effect asset allocation changes or to
hedge certain investment or liability exposures.

The target asset allocation selected foh&aS. plan reflects a risk/return profile HP beéis is appropriate relative to each plan's lighbili
structure and return goals. HP conducts periodietdgability studies for U.S. plans in order to @ebvarious potential asset allocations in
comparison to each plan's forecasted liabilitieds laquidity needs. HP invests a portion of the W&fined benefit plan assets and post-
retirement benefit plan assets in private marketisges such as private equity funds to provideedsification and a higher expected return on

assets.

Outside the U.S., asset allocation dectsane typically made by an independent board stérs for the specific plan. As in the U.S.,
investment objectives are designed to genesdtens that will enable the plan to meet its futnipéigations. In some countries, local regulati
may restrict asset allocations, typically leadiogthigher percentage of investment in fixed inceeeurities than would otherwise be
deployed. HP reviews the investment strategy andiges a recommended list of investment managenrsaoh country plan, with final
decisions on asset allocation and investment masagade by the board of trustees for the speciéin.p
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Basis for Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Rkssets

The expected lorgrm rate of return on plan assets reflects theebegl returns for each major asset class in whielpkan invests and t
weight of each asset class in the target mix. Bgpeasset returns reflect the current yield on gawent bonds, risk premiums for each asset
class and expected real returns which considets@amtry's specific inflation outlook. Because $iiRvestment policy is to employ primarily
active investment managers who seek to outperfoenbbtoader market, the expected returns are adjusteflect the expected additional
returns net of fees.

Future Contributions and Funding Policy

In fiscal 2015, HP expects to contributpragimately $686 million to its non-U.S. pensiomap$ and approximately $35 million to cover
benefit payments to U.S. non-qualified plan pgpacits. HP expects to pay approximately $47 millemnoover benefit claims for HP's post-
retirement benefit plans. HP's policy is to furgdgension plans so that it makes at least the mimirrontribution required by local governmi
funding and taxing authorities.

Estimated Future Benefits Payments

As of October 31, 2014, HP estimates thatftiture benefits payments for the retirementost-retirement plans are as follows:

Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined Pos-Retirement
Fiscal year Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
In millions
2015 $ 801 $ 567 $ 91
2016 58¢ 52¢ 94
2017 613 56( 82
2018 64¢ 60¢€ 71
2019 694 65¢ 68
Next five fiscal years to October 31, 2C 3,85( 3,98( 27¢

Note 5: Stock-Based Compensation
HP's stock-based compensation plans indhantive compensation plans and an employee stothase plan ("ESPP").
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense and Related Intaxigenefits

Stock-based compensation expense and shiing tax benefits were as follows:

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
Stock-based compensation expel $ 56C $ 50C $ 63F
Income tax benefi (179) (15§) (197)
Stock-based compensation expense, net o $ 381 $ 34z $ 43¢

Cash received from option exercises andtages under the Hewlett-Packard Company 2011 BesplStock Purchase Plan (the "2011
ESPP") was $0.3 billion in fiscal 2014, $0.3 biflim fiscal 2013 and $0.7 billion in fiscal 201Zh& benefit realized for the tax deduction from
option exercises in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 $&ismillion, $13 million and $57 million, respectly.

Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plans

HP's stock-based incentive compensatiomsgilaclude equity plans adopted in 2004, 2000 &&b1as amended ("principal equity
plans"), as well as various equity plans assumealihh acquisitions under which stock-based awamrl®atstanding. Stock-based awards
granted from the principal equity plans includenieted stock awards, stock options and performdrased awards. Employees meeting ce
employment qualifications are eligible to receit@ck-based awards.

Restricted stock awards are non-vestek ste@rds that may include grants of restrictedkstoaestricted stock units. Restricted stock
awards and cash-settled awards are generally subjéarfeiture if employment terminates prior teetlapse of the restrictions. Such awards
generally vest one to three years from the dagganit. During the vesting period, ownership of tbgtricted stock cannot be transferred.
Restricted stock has the same dividend and votifigs as common stock and is considered to bedszne outstanding upon grant. The
dividends paid on restricted stock are riorfeitable. Restricted stock units have forfeieatllvidend equivalent rights equal to the dividgadt
on common stock. Restricted stock units do not hlagesoting rights of common stock, and the sharaerlying restricted stock units are not
considered issued and outstanding upon grant. Hesyveliares underlying restricted stock units ackided in the calculation of diluted net
EPS. HP expenses the fair value of restricted sd@ckds ratably over the period during which trerietions lapse.

Stock options granted under the princiggaliy plans are generally non-qualified stock opgiocbut the principal equity plans permit some
options granted to qualify as incentive stock apgiander the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Stockmgtjenerally vest over three to four years
from the date of grant. The exercise price of alstiption is equal to the closing price of HP'kton the option grant date. The majority of
stock options issued by HP contain only servicdingsonditions. However, starting in fiscal 20HE began granting performance-contingen
stock options that vest only on the satisfactiobath service and market conditions prior to thgimtion of the awards.
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Restricted Stock Awart
A summary of restricted stock awards attiis as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Shares Per Share Shares Per Share Shares Per Share

In thousands In thousands In thousands

Outstanding at
beginning of

year 32,26. $ 21 25,53. $ 31 16,81: $ 39

Granted 26,03¢ $ 28 20,707 $ 15 20,31¢ $ 27

Vested (14,259 $ 24 (10,966 $ 33 (8,521 $ 38

Forfeited (3,237 $ 22 (3,01) $ 24 (3,076 $ 34
Outstanding at
end of yea 40,80¢ $ 24 32,26: $ 21 25,53 $ 31

The total grant date fair value of resettstock awards vested in fiscal 2014, 2013 an@ 2@4s $234 million, $247 million and
$229 million, respectively, net of taxes. As of @lmtr 31, 2014, total unrecognized pre-tax stocleth@®mpensation expense related to non-
vested restricted stock awards was $511 milliorickvis expected to be recognized over the remaiwieighted-average vesting period of
1.4 years.

Stock Options

HP utilizes the Black-Scholes-Merton optiting formula to estimate the fair value of #t@ptions subject to service-based vesting
conditions. HP estimates the fair value of stockams subject to performance-contingent vestingditns using a combination of a Monte
Carlo simulation model and a lattice model as ttasards contain market conditions. The weightedayefair value and the assumptions
used to measure fair value were as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 2012
Weighted-average fair vali® $7 $4 $9
Expected volatility® 33.1% 41.7% 41.9%
Risk-free interest rat€) 1.6% 1.1% 1.2%
Expected dividend yiel) 2.1% 3.6% 1.8%
Expected term in yeaf® 5.7 5.9 5.6

@ The weighted-average fair value was based on stptikns granted during the period.

@ For awards granted in fiscal 2014, expected vithafibr awards subject to service-based vesting @gisnated using the
implied volatility derived from options traded orPl4 common stock, whereas for performance-contireysards,
expected volatility was estimated using the histdrvolatility of HP's common stock. For awardsrgeal in fiscal 2013
and fiscal 2012, expectt
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volatility for all awards was estimated using thelied volatility derived from options traded on '"dleommon stock.

©) The risk-free interest rate was estimated baseti@gield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues.

“ The expected dividend yield represents a constaittathd yield applied for the duration of the exggetterm of the
award.

®) For awards subject to service-based vesting, theatgd term was estimated using historical exesnisepost-vesting
termination patterns; and for performance-contingsvards, the expected term represents an outputttie lattice
model.

A summary of stock option activity is as follov

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted- Average Weighted- Average
Remaining Aggregate Remaining Aggregate Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Average Contractual Average Contractual
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value Shares Price Term Value Shares Price Term Value
In In In
thousands thousands thousands
In In In
Inyears  millions Inyears  millions Inyears  millions
Outstanding at beginning
of year 84,04: $ 27 87,29t $ 29 120,24: $ 28
Grantec 9,57t $ 28 25,78t $ 15 7,52¢$ 27
Exercisec (11,145% 18 (10,069% 19 (29,689% 20
Forfeited/cancelled/expir __ (24,619% 31 (18,970% 25 (10,799% 35
Outstanding at end of ye 57,85{ $ 27 429 62¢  84,04: $ 27 39% 305 87,29t $ 29 3.(% 15
Vested and expected to
vest at end of yee 54,16t $ 27 4.1% 571  80,00¢ $ 27 3.7% 274  85,93t$ 29 2£% 15
Exercisable at end of ye 30,45¢ $ 33 23% 197 49,82t$ 33 18% 58 68,431 % 31 1<% 12

The aggregate intrinsic value in the taileve represents the total pre-tax intrinsic vétha¢ option holders would have received had all
option holders exercised their options on thetiasting day of fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012. The egate intrinsic value is the difference
between HP's closing stock price on the last tigadey of the fiscal year and the exercise pricdtiptied by the number of in-the-money
options. The total intrinsic value of options exsed in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $151 mil&86 million and $176 million,
respectively. The total grant date fair value dfimps vested in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 wasrti®on, $64 million and $104 million,
respectively, net of taxes.

120




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
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The following table summarizes significaamges of outstanding and exercisable stock options

As of October 31, 201«

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Shares Remaining Exercise Shares Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Contractual Term Price Exercisable Price
In thousands In years In thousands

$0-$9.99 324 37 $ 7 32: % 7
$1C-$19.99 18,38 5.8 $ 14 3,62( $ 14
$2C-$29.99 21,07: 58 $ 26 9,35¢ $ 25
$3C-$39.99 2,50z 35 $ 36 1,62¢ $ 36
$4C-$49.99 14,91( 04 $ 43 14,87 $ 43
$5C-$59.99 511 23 $ 52 511 $ 52
$60 and ove 142 01 $ 71 142 $ 71
57,85 43 $ 27 30,45¢ $ 33

As of October 31, 2014, total unrecognipesttax stock-based compensation expense relatddk options was $61 million, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averesting period of 2.0 years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

HP sponsors the 2011 ESPP, pursuant tawghigible employees may contribute up to 10% afebeompensation, subject to certain

income limits, to purchase shares of HP's commaockst

Pursuant to the terms of the 2011 ESPP|mmes purchase stock under the 2011 ESPP ategaical to 95% of HP's closing stock price
on the purchase date. No stock-based compensafiemse was recorded in connection with those pseshhecause the criteria of a non-

compensatory plan were met.

Shares Reserved

Shares available for future grant and sheaserved for future issuance under the stockehiasentive compensation plans and the 2011

ESPP were as follows:

Shares available for future gre
Shares reserved for future issua

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
In thousands
246,85. 300,98: 152,83
344,84¢ 417,64: 270,49¢
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Provision for Taxes
The domestic and foreign components ofiagen(loss) before taxes were as follows:

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
U.S. $ 2,565 $ 2,61¢ $ (3,199
Non-U.S. 3,992 3,89: (8,747

$ 655: $ 6,51 $ (11,93))

The provision for (benefit from) taxes armngs was as follows:

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
U.S. federal taxe:
Current $ 381 $ 47 $ 33C
Deferred 21C (66€) 81
Nonr-U.S. taxes
Current 984 1,27¢ 1,13¢
Deferred 42 89 (787)
State taxes
Current 212 57 (47)
Deferred (207) 167 (5)

$ 154 $ 1,397 $ 717

The differences between the U.S. federdugiry income tax rate and HP's effective tax vatee as follows:

For the fiscal years ended October 3

2014 2013 20120

U.S. federal statutory income tax ri 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal tax bel 0.4% 0.1% 0.5%
Lower rates in other jurisdictions, r (12.9% (24.5% 13.9%
Valuation allowanct 1.7% 3.£% (14.0%
Nondeductible goodwil — (40.9%
Uncertain tax position (2.9% 4.1% (1.9%
Other, ne 1.6% 3.(% 0.2%

23.5% 21.5% (6.00%

@ Positive numbers represent tax benefits and negatimbers represent tax expense as HP recordadénax expense
a pretax loss
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The jurisdictions with favorable tax rateat have the most significant impact on HP's éffedax rate in the periods presented include
Puerto Rico, Singapore, Netherlands, China andrtklHP plans to reinvest some of the earningsesfd jurisdictions indefinitely outside the
U.S. and therefore has not provided U.S. taxeosetindefinitely reinvested earnings.

In fiscal 2014, HP recorded $53 millionnaft income tax charges related to items uniqubdqeéar.

In fiscal 2013, HP recorded $471 millionneft income tax charges related to items uniqukegear. These amounts included
$214 million of net increases to valuation allowas\c3406 million of tax charges for adjustmentsrtoertain tax positions and the settlement
of tax audit matters and $47 million of tax charfmsvarious prior period adjustments. In additibli? recorded $146 million of tax benefits
from adjustments to prior year foreign income taegraals and a tax benefit of $50 million arisingrfr the retroactive research and
development credit resulting from the American Taygr Relief Act of 2012, which was signed into lamjanuary 2013.

In fiscal 2012, HP recorded a $1.3 billinnome tax charge to record valuation allowancesestain U.S. deferred tax assets related t
ES segment, which was unique to the year. Otheyuenitems included charges of $297 million for was foreign valuation allowances, as
well as $26 million of income tax benefits relatecadjustments to prior year foreign income taxraals, settlement of tax audit matters, and
miscellaneous other items.

As a result of certain employment actiond eapital investments HP has undertaken, incoora fnanufacturing and services in certain
countries is subject to reduced tax rates, andnmescases is wholly exempt from taxes, through 20Ré gross income tax benefits
attributable to these actions and investments wstienated to be $1.2 billion ($0.61 diluted net ERSiscal 2014, $827 million ($0.42 diluted
net EPS) in fiscal 2013 and $900 million ($0.4@tdit net EPS) in fiscal 2012.

Uncertain Tax Positions
A reconciliation of unrecognized tax betsef$ as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
In millions
Balance at beginning of ye $ 3,482 $ 2,57: $ 2,11¢
Increases
For current year's tax positio 304 29C 20¢
For prior years' tax positiot 59:¢ 997 651
Decreases
For prior years' tax positior (125) (14¢€) (327
Statute of limitations expiratic (46) (11 (€N}
Settlements with taxing authoriti (82) (219) (83)
Balance at end of ye. $ 4,12¢ $ 3,48/ $ 2,57

Up to $2.2 billion, $1.9 billion and $1.4llon of HP's unrecognized tax benefits at OctoB&y 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, would
affect HP's effective tax rate if realized.
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HP recognizes interest income from favaradttiements and interest expense and penaltiesegicon unrecognized tax benefits in
Provision for taxes in the Consolidated StatemehEarnings. HP had accrued $254 million and $18Bam for interest and penalties as of
October 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013, respectively

HP engages in continuous discussion andtiaipn with taxing authorities regarding tax neastin various jurisdictions. HP does not
expect complete resolution of any U.S. Internalé&ee Service ("IRS") audit cycle within the nextr@dnths. However, it is reasonably
possible that certain federal, foreign and statéssues may be concluded in the next 12 montielyding issues involving transfer pricing and
other matters. Accordingly, HP believes it is remsdy possible that its existing unrecognized temdiits may be reduced by an amount up to
$1.4 billion within the next 12 months.

HP is subject to income tax in the U.S. apdroximately 105 other countries and is subcbtitine corporate income tax audits in many
of these jurisdictions. In addition, HP is subjechumerous ongoing audits by federal, state areldo tax authorities. The IRS is conducting
an audit of HP's 2009, 2010 and 2011 income taxmst HP has received from the IRS Notices of Deficy for its fiscal 1999, 2000, 2003,
2004 and 2005 tax years, and Revenue Agent RepiBAR") for its fiscal 2001, 2002, 2006, 2007 ar@D8 tax years. The proposed IRS
adjustments for these tax years would, if sustairelice the benefits of tax refund claims HP Hed for net operating loss carrybacks to
earlier fiscal years and tax credit carryforwammsubsequent years by approximately $445 millinraddition, HP expects the IRS to issue an
RAR for 2009 relating to certain tax positions talm the filed tax returns, including matters retbto the U.S. taxation of certain
intercompany loans. While the RAR may be matenarmount, HP believes it has valid positions sutipgiits tax returns and, if necessary, it
will vigorously defend such matters.

HP has filed petitions with the U.S. Taxutaegarding certain proposed IRS adjustmentsrdégg tax years 1999 through 2003 and is
continuing to contest additional adjustments prepdsy the IRS for other tax years. The U.S. TaxrCaded in May 2012 against HP
regarding one of the IRS adjustments for which IdP filed a formal Notice of Appeal. The Court predimgs are expected to begin in fiscal
2015.

Pre-acquisition tax years of HP's U.S. grotisubsidiaries providing enterprise servicesulgh 2004 have been audited by the IRS, and
all proposed adjustments have been resolved. RARs been received for tax years 2005, 2006, 208 renshort period ended August 26,
2008, proposing total tax deficiencies of $274 imnill HP is contesting certain of these issues.

The IRS began an audit in fiscal 2013 ef2010 income tax return for HP's U.S. group ofglibries providing enterprise services, and
has issued an RAR for the short period ended Oc®he2008 and the period ending October 31, 200pgsing a total tax deficiency of
$62 million. HP is contesting certain of these éssu

With respect to major foreign and statejtaibsdictions, HP is no longer subject to tax auity examinations for years prior to 1999. Hi
subject to a foreign tax audit concerning an irderpany transaction for fiscal 2009. The relevaxinigauthority has proposed an assessmen
of approximately $680 million. HP is contestingstiproposed assessment.

HP believes it has provided adequate resdiar all tax deficiencies or reductions in taxdfis that could result from federal, state and
foreign tax audits. HP regularly assesses theylikatcomes of these audits in order to determireafipropriateness of HP's tax provision. HP
adjusts its uncertain
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tax positions to reflect the impact of negotiatiogsttlements, rulings, advice of legal counsed, @ifer information and events pertaining to a
particular audit. However, income tax audits aresiently unpredictable and there can be no asseithat HP will accurately predict the
outcome of these audits. The amounts ultimatelgt pairesolution of an audit could be materiallyffat&nt from the amounts previously
included in the Provision for taxes and therefbeeresolution of one or more of these uncertaintiesy particular period could have a
material impact on net income or cash flows.

HP has not provided for U.S. federal incaand foreign withholding taxes on $42.9 billionwfdistributed earnings from non-U.S.
operations as of October 31, 2014 because HP isteneinvest such earnings indefinitely outsidéhefU.S. If HP were to distribute these
earnings, foreign tax credits may become availahtier current law to reduce the resulting U.S. inedax liability. Determination of the
amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability rethto these earnings is not practicable. HP williteonindefinitely reinvested earnings of
non-U.S. subsidiaries for which deferred U.S. fatland withholding taxes have been provided whrecess cash has accumulated and HP
determines that it is advantageous for businessatipas, tax or cash management reasons.

Deferred Income Taxes
The significant components of deferredaasets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows

As of October 31

2014 2013
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
In millions
Loss carryforward $ 947¢ $ — $ 9800 $ —
Credit carryforward: 2,371 — 4,261 —
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiar — 7,82¢ — 7,46¢
Inventory valuatior 152 8 12¢ 13
Intercompany transactic—profit in inventory 13€ — 12t —
Intercompany transactic—excluding inventory 4,40: — 1,92 —
Fixed asset 38¢ 74 28¢ 72
Warranty 61€ — 622 —
Employee and retiree benet 2,79( 57 2,35( 11
Accounts receivable allowan: 107 1 18t 1
Intangible assel 212 59¢€ 224 88¢€
Restructuring 354 — 34C —
Deferred revenu 1,14: 12 1,11¢ 19
Other 1,57 1,14¢ 1,44 75¢
Gross deferred tax assets and liabili 23,72: 9,721 22,81¢ 9,23(
Valuation allowanct (11,919 — (11,390 —
Net deferred tax assets and liabilit $ 11,800 $ 9,721 $ 1142¢ $ 9,23(
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Current and long-term deferred tax assaddiabilities included in the Consolidated Balar8ieeets as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Current deferred tax asst $ 2,75¢ $ 3,89¢
Current deferred tax liabilitie (284) (375
Long-term deferred tax asse 74C 1,34¢
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie (1,129 (2,66%)
Net deferred tax assets net of deferred tax |izds $ 2,08 $ 2,19¢

Tax deficits of approximately $43 milliod149 million and $175 million were recorded as suteof employee stock program activity and
exercise of employee stock options, as a decreasteckholders' equity in fiscal 2014, 2013 and20&spectively.

HP periodically engages in intercompangniiging arrangements that may result in advance g@atgnbetween subsidiaries in different tax
jurisdictions. When the local tax treatment of iftercompany licensing arrangements differs fromirth).S. GAAP treatment, deferred ta;
are recognized. During fiscal 2014, HP executediliityear intercompany licensing arrangement onchltadvanced royalty payments of
$10.4 billion were received in the U.S., the resfilivhich was the recognition of net U.S. long-teteferred tax assets of $1.3 billion. The
remaining intercompany royalty revenues of $9.8dwilwill be recognized over the life of the arrangent through 2029 in the respective lega
entities and eliminated in consolidation. The amation expense related to the licensing rights alflo be eliminated in consolidation. The
decrease in deferred tax assets for credit campiats and increase in deferred tax assets forcmtgpany transactions excluding inventory
include the deferred tax attributable to this teanti®n. This results in an increase in long-terrieded tax assets which is presented as a
component of HP's long-term deferred tax liab#itdue to the effects of jurisdictional netting.

As of October 31, 2014, HP had $858 milli$4.2 billion and $29.7 billion of federal, stated foreign net operating loss carryforwards,
respectively. Amounts included in federal net ofirgaloss carryforwards will begin to expire indéd 2021 and amounts included in state and
foreign net operating loss carryforwards will begrexpire in 2015. HP also has a capital lossybamvard of approximately $272 million
which will expire in fiscal 2015. HP has providegaluation allowance of $133 million and $8.7 loiflifor deferred tax assets related to state
and foreign net operating losses carryforwardfeetvely and $104 million for deferred tax assetated to capital loss carryforwards that HF
does not expect to realize.
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As of October 31, 2014, HP had recordeémetl tax assets for various tax credit carryfodsaxs follows:

Initial
Valuation Year of
Carryforward Allowance Expiration
In millions
U.S. foreign tax credit $ 1,321 $ 47 2021
U.S. research and development and other cr 662 — 201¢
Tax credits in state and foreign jurisdictic 394 204 201t
Balance at end of ye. $ 2,371 $ 251
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance
The deferred tax asset valuation allowaare®changes were as follows:
As of October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
Balance at beginning of ye $ 11,39C $ 10,22: $ 09,05i
Income tax expens 184 1,644 86t
Other comprehensive income, currency translati@hcirarges tc
other account 341 (477) 301
Balance at end of ye $ 1191 $ 11,39 $ 10,22

Total valuation allowances increased by3Bs#llion and $1.2 billion in fiscal 2014 and 2018spectively. These increases were
associated primarily with foreign net operatingsies

Note 7: Balance Sheet Details
Balance sheet details were as follows:
Accounts Receivable, N

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Accounts receivabl $ 14,06¢ $ 16,20¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun (232) (332

$ 13,83: $ 15,87¢
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The allowance for doubtful accounts reldtedccounts receivable and changes were as fallows

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012

In millions
Balance at beginning of ye $ 332 $ 464 $ 47C
Provision for doubtful accoun 25 23 10C
Deductions, net of recoveri (125) (15E5) (10€)
Balance at end of ye. $ 232 $ 332 $ 464

HP has third-party revolving sheetim financing arrangements intended to facilitheworking capital requirements of certain custmn
In the second quarter of fiscal 2014, HP expantierkivolving short-term financing arrangements,irgi$1.6 billion of capacity. The
maximum, utilized and available program capacitgiamthese revolving short-term financing arrangesemas as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions

Nor-recourse arrangemen

Maximum program capaci $ 108: $ 764

Utilized capacity®) (619 (314

Available capacity $ 47C $ 45C
Partia-recourse arrangemen

Maximum program capaci $ 1871 $ 631

Utilized capacity?) (1,500 (459

Available capacity $ 377 $ 177
Total arrangement:

Maximum program capaci $ 296( $ 1,39t

Utilized capacity®) (2,119 (76¢€)

Available capacity $ 847 $ 627

@ Utilized capacity represents the receivables solthitd parties, but not collected from the custoimethe third parties.
Transferred trade receivables included in theagtilicapacity that HP has not collected from thadips are as follow:

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Non-recourse arrangemer $ 78 $ 54
Partia-recourse arrangemer 381 11€
Total arrangement $ 45 $ 17z
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The activity related to HP's revolving shierm financing arrangements was as follows:

Inventory

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012

In millions
Balance at beginning of periéH $ 172 $ 228 $ 24t
Trade receivables sof@ 9,621 4,241 3,51(
Cash receipt®) (9,306 (4,308 (3,510
Foreign currency and oth (34 8 (17)
Balance at end of peridd $ 45¢ $ 172 $  22¢

@ Beginning and ending balance represents amountgafiie receivables sold but not yet collected.
@ HP has revised the presentation for the tradevabkis sold and the cash received under the shontfinancing

arrangements for the fiscal years ended Octobe2(®l3 and 2012 in order to present comparablermdtion with the
current year perioc

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Finished good $ 3,97 $ 3,84
Purchased parts and fabricated assem 2,44 2,19¢

$ 6,41 $ 6,04¢

Other Current Assets

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Deferred tax asse—shor-term $ 2,75¢ $ 3,89
Value-added taxes receivak 2,16¢ 2,42¢
Supplier and other receivabl 2,37¢ 2,57¢
Prepaid and other current ass 4,51¢ 4,23¢

$ 11,81¢ $ 13,13t
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Property, Plant and Equipme

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
Land $ 54C $ 62€
Buildings and leasehold improveme 9,04¢ 8,94
Machinery and equipment, including equipment heldéase 16,66 16,56¢
26,25: 26,13!
Accumulated depreciatic (14,917 (14,670

$ 11,34C $ 11,46

Depreciation expense was $3.3 billion, $8libn and $3.3 billion in fiscal 2014, 2013 a@d12, respectively. The change in gross
property, plant and equipment was due primarilguechases of $3.9 billion, which were partiallyseff by sales and retirements totaling
$3.5 hillion. Accumulated depreciation associatéith the assets sold and retired in fiscal 2014 $289 billion.

Long-Term Financing Receivables and Other Assets

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
Financing receivables, n $ 3,61 $ 3,87¢
Deferred tax asse—long-term 74C 1,34¢
Deferred cos—long-term 55 99¢
Other 3,34¢ 3,33:

$ 8,45/ $ 9,55¢

Other Accrued Liabilities

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
Accrued taxe—other $ 2,26¢ $ 2,70¢
Warranty 1,32¢ 1,39(
Sales and marketing prograi 2,98¢ 2,82:
Other 5,49¢ 5,59(

$ 12,07¢ $ 12,50¢
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Other Liabilities

As of October 31

2014 2013

In millions
Pension, po-retirement, and pc-employment liabilities $ 6,37¢ $ 5,09¢
Deferred reveni—Ilong-term 3,931 3,907
Deferred tax liabilit—long-term 1,12¢ 2,66¢
Tax liability—long-term 2,861 2,21:
Other lon¢-term liabilities 2,01( 2,00t

$ 16,30¢ $ 15,89

Note 8: Financing Receivables and Operating Leases

Financing receivables represent sales-ayywkedirect-financing leases of HP and third-partydpcts. These receivables typically have
terms ranging from two to five years and are usuadllateralized by a security interest in the uhdeg assets. Financing receivables also
include billed receivables from operating leasds Tomponents of financing receivables were asvial

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
Minimum lease payments receival $ 6,982 $ 7,50¢
Unguaranteed residual val 23t 252
Unearned incom (547) (604)
Financing receivables, gro 6,67( 7,15:¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun (111) (1317)
Financing receivables, n 6,55¢ 7,022
Less: current portiof) (2,946 (3,149
Amounts due after one year, Bt $ 3611 $ 3,87¢
@ HP includes the current portion in Financing reabies and amounts due after one year, net in Lemytinancing

receivables and other assets in the accompanyingdlidated Balance Shee

As of October 31, 2014, scheduled matwitEHP's minimum lease payments receivable wefellasvs for the fiscal years ended
October 31:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
In millions
Scheduled maturities of
minimum lease paymer
receivable $ 3220 $ 1,95¢ $ 1,112 $ 48 $ 174 $ 34 $ 6,982
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Credit Quality Indicators

Due to the homogenous nature of its leasmgsactions, HP manages its financing receivaiiean aggregate basis when assessing anc
monitoring credit risk. Credit risk is generallywdrsified due to the large number of entities casiipg HP's customer base and their dispersio
across many different industries and geographimnsg HP evaluates the credit quality of an obligblease inception and monitors that credit
quality over the term of a transaction. HP assiigisratings to each lease based on the creditin@shk of the obligor and other variables that
augment or mitigate the inherent credit risk obatipular transaction. Such variables include théeulying value and liquidity of the collater
the essential use of the equipment, the term oletle, and the inclusion of credit enhancements$) as guarantees, letters of credit or sec
deposits.

The credit risk profile of gross financiregeivables, based on internally assigned ratings,as follows:

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
Risk Rating:
Low $ 3,53t $ 3,94¢
Moderate 3,022 3,08¢
High 112 121
Total $ 6,67C $ 7,15¢

Accounts rated low risk typically have #guivalent of a Standard & Poor's rating of BBBhigher, while accounts rated moderate risk
generally have the equivalent of BB+ or lower. H&ssifies accounts as high risk when it consideedfihancing receivable to be impaired or
when management believes there is a significanttesan risk of impairment.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts forfiging receivables is comprised of a general resend a specific reserve. HP maintains
general reserve percentages on a regional basisamed such percentages on several factors, inglednsideration of historical credit losses
and portfolio delinquencies, trends in the ovenadighted-average risk rating of the portfolio, @ntreconomic conditions and information
derived from competitive benchmarking. HP excludesounts evaluated as part of the specific redeone the general reserve analysis. HP
establishes a specific reserve for financing redddas with identified exposures, such as custorafults, bankruptcy or other events, that
make it unlikely HP will recover its investment.rindividually evaluated receivables, HP determitiesexpected cash flow for the receiva
which includes consideration of estimated procdema disposition of the collateral, and calculaé@sestimate of the potential loss and the
probability of loss. For those accounts where a Iesonsidered probable, HP records a specifervesHP generally writes off a receivable or
records a specific reserve when a receivable besd®@ days past due, or sooner if HP determinggttbaeceivable is not collectible.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts reldtefinancing receivables and changes were asistio

Balance at beginning of ye
Provision for doubtful accoun
Deductions, net of recoveri

As of October 31

2014 2013 2012
In millions

$ 131 $ 14¢ $ 13C

30 38 42

(50 (56) (23

Balance at end of ye $ 111 $ 131 $ 14¢
The gross financing receivables and relatledvance evaluated for loss were as follows:
As of
October 31
2014 2013

In millions
Gross financing receivables collectively evaludtgdoss $ 6,37¢ $ 6,77¢
Gross financing receivables individually evaluafedoss 292 38C
Total $ 6,67C $ 7,15¢
Allowance for financing receivables collectivelyadwated for los: $ 922 % 95
Allowance for financing receivables individuallyaduated for los: 19 36
Total $ 111 $ 131

Non-Accrual and Past-Due Financing Receivables

HP considers a financing receivable to &gt pue when the minimum payment is not receivetthéyontractually specified due date. HP
generally places financing receivables on non-ad@tatus, which is suspension of interest accaral,considers such receivables to be non-
performing at the earlier of the time at which fodlyment of principal and interest becomes doulatfuhe receivable becomes 90 days past
due. Subsequently, HP may recognize revenue oraconrl financing receivables as payments arewedgewhich is on a cash basis, if HP
deems the recorded financing receivable to be fidliectible; however, if there is doubt regardthg ultimate collectability of the recorded
financing receivable, all cash receipts are appbetthe carrying amount of the financing receivablbich is the cost recovery method. In
certain circumstances, such as when HP deemsraydeticy to be of an administrative nature, finagcgceivables may accrue interest after
becoming 90 days past due. The non-accrual sthudirmancing receivable may not impact a custosésk rating. After all of a customer's
delinquent principal and interest balances ardeskttiP may return the related financing receivablaccrual status.
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The following table summarizes the agind aon-accrual status of gross financing receivables

As of
October 31
2014 2013
In millions
Billed ()
Current -30 days $ 24z $ 217
Past due 3-60 days 46 50
Past due €-90 days 12 15
Past due >90 day 49 46
Unbilled sale-type and dire«-financing lease receivabl 6,32( 6,82°¢
Total gross financing receivabl $ 6,67C $ 7,15¢
Gross financing receivables on non-accrual st&tus $ 13C $ 19¢
Gross financing receivables 90 days past due dhdgstruing interesf?) $ 162 $ 181
@ Includes billed operating lease receivables arldd#ales-type and direct-financing lease receasbl
@ Includes billed operating lease receivables arldd#nd unbilled sal-type and dire-financing lease receivable

Operating Leases

Operating lease assets included in machiawed equipment in the Consolidated Balance Sheetts as follows:

As of
October 31
2014 2013
In millions
Equipment leased to custom: $ 3971 $ 3,82
Accumulated depreciatic (1,382) (1,452

$ 259 § 2,37

As of October 31, 2014, minimum future ed&iton non-cancelable operating leases relatezhsetd equipment were as follows for the
fiscal years ended October 31:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  Thereafter Total
In millions
Minimum future rentals on no
cancelable operatingleas $ 1,487 $ 95¢ $ 467 $ 15€ $ 50 $ 6 $ 3,12«
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Acquisitions

In fiscal 2014, HP completed two acquisiiavith a combined purchase price of $55 millidnwbich $12 million was recorded as
goodwill and $25 million was recorded as intangidsets related to these acquisitions. In fiscaB2MphasiS Limited, a majority-owned
subsidiary of HP, acquired Digital Risk LLC for $Lillion. HP recorded $112 million of goodwill agd8 million of intangible assets relat
to this acquisition.

Goodwill

Goodwill allocated to HP's reportable segte@nd changes in the carrying amount of goodwélle as follows:

HP

Personal Enterprise 3 Financial Corporate

Systems  Printing Group Services®  software Services Investments Total
In millions

Enterprise

Balance at
October

2012

@) $ 258t $ 2,591 $ 16,82F $ — $8921$ 144 $ — $ 31,06¢
Goodwill

acquired

during

the

period — — — 112 — — — 11z
Goodwill

adjustme — — 39 (15) (81) — — (57)
Balance at

October

2013®

2) $ 258t $ 2,591 $ 16,86¢ $ 97 $ 8,84( $ 144 $ — $ 31,12
Goodwill

acquired

during

the

period — — — — 12 — — 12
Goodwill

adjustme — — 3 — — — — 3
Balance at

October

20140 ¢ 258t $ 2,501 $ 16,867 $ 97 $ 885. $ 144 $ — $ 31,13¢

@ Goodwill is net of accumulated impairment losse$b4.5 billion. Of that amount, $8.0 billion relate the ES segment,
$5.7 billion relates to Software, and the remair$0g8 billion relates to Corporate Investments.

@ Effective at the beginning of its first quarterfisical 2014, HP implemented certain organizatiaanges to align its
segment financial reporting more closely with isrent business structure. As a result of thesarizgtional
realignments, HP transferred $126 million of godtivelated to the transfer of the Printing spard eeplacement parts
business from the EG segment to the Printing segriié8 million of goodwill related to the transfgirthe Personal
Systems spare and replacement parts businessHeBEG segment to the Personal Systems segment)iffiéh of
goodwill related to the transfer of the Personalt&ms trade and warranty support business frorea@eegment to the
Personal Systems segment and $22 million of gobdsidted to the transfer of the HP Exstream bissirieom the
Printing segment to the Software segment. See Rlégea full description of the segment realignnsent

@ Goodwill relates to the MphasiS Limited reportimgjtu



135




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 9: Acquisitions, Goodwill and Intangible Asset (Continued)

Goodwill is tested for impairment at thpoeting unit level. At the beginning of its firstigrter of fiscal 2014, HP made a change to its
reporting units. In connection with continued opiersal synergies and interdependencies betweeEnterprise Servers, Storage and
Networking reporting unit and the TS reporting umithin the EG segment, HP combined these repottinits to create the EG reporting ui
As of October 31, 2014, HP's reporting units anmescxient with the reportable segments identifieNdte 2, except for ES, which includes two
reporting units: MphasiS Limited; and the remaindieES.

Based on the results of its annual impantests, HP determined that no impairment of gab@wisted as of August 1, 2014. However,
future goodwill impairment tests could result ioharge to earnings. HP will continue to evaluatedydll on an annual basis as of the
beginning of its fourth fiscal quarter and wheneseents or changes in circumstances indicate thasebe a potential impairment.

Goodwill impairments
There were no goodwill impairments in fis2@14 and 2013.

During fiscal 2012, HP determined that might indicators of potential impairment existed¢quire an interim goodwill impairment
analysis for the ES reporting unit. These indicatocluded the trading values of HP's stock atithe of the impairment test, coupled with
market conditions and business trends within E®. fair value of the ES reporting unit was basedhenncome approach. The decline in the
fair value of the ES reporting unit resulted framaver projected revenue growth rates and profitigidiivels as well as an increase in the risk
factor that was included in the discount rate usethlculate the discounted cash flows. The ine@ashe discount rate was due to the impliec
control premium resulting from trading values of BtBck at the time of the impairment test. The Itegyadjustments to discount rates causec
a significant reduction in the fair value for th& Eeporting unit. Based on the step one and ste@halyses, HP recorded an $8.0 billion
goodwill impairment charge in fiscal 2012, and thefas no remaining goodwill in the ES reportingt asi of October 31, 2012. Prior to
completing the goodwill impairment test, HP tedtes recoverability of the ES long-lived assets €otihan goodwill) and concluded that such
assets were not impaired.

Also during fiscal 2012, the Software segtriecluded two reporting units, which were Autonpoand the legacy HP Software business.
HP initiated its annual goodwill impairment anafysi the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 and conctutiet fair value was below carrying
amount for the Autonomy reporting unit. The faitueof the Autonomy reporting unit was based onititeme approach.

The decline in the estimated fair valu¢haf Autonomy reporting unit resulted from lower jegied revenue growth rates and profitability
levels as well as an increase in the risk factat was included in the discount rate used to cateuhe discounted cash flows. The increase in
the discount rate was due to the implied contrehpum that resulted from trading values of HP stacthe time of the impairment test. The
lower projected operating results reflected chamg@ssumptions related to organic revenue groatsr market trends, business mix, cost
structure, expected deal synergies and other eaqi@ts about the anticipated short-term and longrtgperating results of the Autonomy
business. These assumptions incorporated HP'ssi;malywhat it believes were accounting impropegtincomplete disclosures and
misrepresentations at Autonomy that occurred podhe Autonomy acquisition with respect to Autondsrpreacquisition business and rela
operating results. In addition, as noted above,ndstimating the fair value of a reporting unit My need to adjust
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discount rates and/or other assumptions in orddetive a reasonable implied control premium whemgaring the sum of the fair values of
HP's reporting units to HP's market capitalizatidoe to the trading values of HP stock at the tihthe impairment test, the resulting
adjustments to the discount rate to arrive at gm@iate control premium caused a significant otida in the fair value for the Autonomy
reporting unit as well as the fair values for Hetlser reporting units.

Prior to conducting step one of the goobiwipairment test for the Autonomy reporting ui® first evaluated the recoverability of the
long-lived assets, including intangible assets. iMnelicators of impairment are present, HP tesig{ived assets (other than goodwill) for
recoverability by comparing the carrying amountanfasset group to its undiscounted cash flows. dtBidered the lower-than-expected
revenue and profitability levels over a sustainedqa of time, the trading values of HP stock and/dward revisions to management's short-
and long-term forecasts for the Autonomy businedsetindicators of impairment for the Autonomy ldihgd assets. Based on the results of
the recoverability test, HP determined that theyiag amount of the Autonomy asset group exceetdegndiscounted cash flows and was
therefore not recoverable. HP then compared the/édiie of the asset group to its carrying amoumet @etermined the impairment loss. The
impairment loss was allocated to the carrying valofethe longlived assets but not below their individual faitues. Based on the analysis,
recorded an impairment charge of $3.1 billion camgible assets, which resulted in a remainingyaagramount of approximately $0.8 billion
as of October 31, 2012. The decline in the faiugalf the Autonomy intangible assets was attridatéibthe same factors as discussed above
for the fair value of the Autonomy reporting unit.

The decline in the fair value of the Autamoreporting unit and Autonomy intangibles, as veslifair value changes for other assets and
liabilities in the step two goodwill impairment tegesulted in an implied fair value of goodwilltstantially below the carrying amount of the
goodwill for the Autonomy reporting unit. As a réistHP recorded a goodwill impairment charge of7#5illion, which resulted in a $1.2 billi
remaining carrying amount of Autonomy goodwill 40ztober 31, 2012. Both the goodwill impairmenagie and the intangible assets
impairment charge, totaling $8.8 billion, were umbd in the Impairment of goodwill and intangibsets line item in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings.

Subsequent to the Autonomy purchase pticeaion period, which concluded in the first quearof fiscal 2012, and in conjunction with
HP's annual goodwill impairment testing, HP idaatfcertain indicators of impairment. The indicatof impairment included lower-than-
expected revenue and profitability levels over stained period of time, the trading values of Hizlstand downward revisions to
management's short- and long-term forecasts foAtitlenomy business. HP revised its multi-year fastdor the Autonomy business, and the
timing of this forecast revision coincided with ttming of HP's overall forecasting process forrafporting units, which is completed each y
in the fourth fiscal quarter in conjunction withethnnual goodwill impairment analysis. The chamgassumptions used in the revised forecas
and the fair value estimates utilized in the impaint testing of the Autonomy goodwill and long-livessets incorporated insights gained fron
having owned the Autonomy business for the precggaar. The revised forecast reflected changeteckta organic revenue growth rates,
current market trends, business mix, cost strucaxgected deal synergies and other expectationg #fee anticipated short- and long-term
operating results of the Autonomy business, drivgilP's analysis regarding certain accounting ippeties, incomplete disclosures and
misrepresentations at Autonomy that occurred podhe Autonomy acquisition with respect to Autonsrpreacquisition business and rela
operating results. Accordingly, the change in Yailues represented a change in accounting esttimateccurred outside the purchase price
allocation period, resulting in the recorded impgnt charge.

Based on the results of the annual impaitrtest for all other reporting units, HP concludledt no other goodwill impairment existed as
of August 1, 2012, apart from the impairment chargiscussed above.
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Intangible Assets
HP's intangible assets are composed of;

As of October 31, 201« As of October 31, 201!
Accumulated Accumulated
Accumulated  Impairment Accumulated  Impairment
Gross Amortization Loss Net Gross Amortization Loss Net
In millions

Customer

contracts

customer

lists and

distributic

agreemer $ 5,28¢$ (3,220 $ (85€)$ 1,205 $ 53218 (2,709 % (85€) $ 1,75¢
Developed

and core

technolog

and

patents 4,26¢ (2,300 (2,139) 827 5,331 (1,96€) (2,13¢) 1,227
Trade name

and trade

marks 1,69 (261) (1,33¢) 96 1,73(C (211) (1,33¢) 1832
In-process

research

and

developrr — — — — 3 — — 3
Total

intangible

asset: $1124¢$  (4,7903% (4,3300%$2,12¢ $1238:$ (4,8803% (4,330 % 3,16¢

For fiscal 2014, $855 million of intangildssets became fully amortized and have been d@iedrfrom gross intangible assets and
accumulated amortization. HP also eliminated giassigible assets and accumulated amortizatiotetta the sale of a portfolio of
intellectual property ("IP") in the first quartef fiscal 2014.

For fiscal 2013, the majority of the de@®& gross intangible assets was related to $tlightof fully amortized intangible assets that
were eliminated from both the gross and accumulatedunts.

In fiscal 2012, HP recorded total intangibkset impairment charges of $4.3 billion, of \wt$8.1 billion was related to the Autonomy
reporting unit as described above. The remaining Billion was related to a change in the Compaading strategy. In May 2012, HP
approved a change to its branding strategy for R@sh has resulted in a more limited and focussalaf the "Compaq" trade name acquired
in fiscal 2002. In conjunction with the change namding strategy, HP revised its assumption akaaseful life of that intangible asset, which
resulted in a reclassification of the asset fronnalefinite-lived intangible to a finite- lived iahgible. These changes triggered an impairment
review of the "Compaq" trade name intangible assatonducting an impairment review of an intangibkset, HP compares the fair value of
the asset to its carrying amount. If the fair vadfieghe asset is less than the carrying amountlifference is recorded as an impairment loss.
HP estimated the fair value of the "Compaq" tradme by calculating the present value of the rogsisiaved that would have been paid to a
third party had HP not owned the trade name. Faligwhe completion of that analysis, HP determitied the fair value of the trade name
asset was less than the carrying amount due phintarihe change in the useful life assumption artbcrease in expected future revenues
related to Compag-branded products resulting fteemtore focused branding strategy. As a resultiddéBrded an impairment charge of
$1.2 billion in the third quarter of fiscal 2012high was included in the Impairment of goodwill anthngible assets line item in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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The weighted-average useful lives of intalegassets are as follows:

As of
October 31, 201«

Weighted-Average
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets Useful Lives

In years

Customer contracts, customer lists and distribugigreement 8
Developed and core technology and pat 8
Trade name and trade ma 7

As of October 31, 2014, estimated futur@dination expense related to finite-lived intarigibssets was as follows:

Fiscal year In millions

2015 $ 872
2016 652
2017 244
2018 147
2019 11C
Thereaftel 10z
Total $ 2,12¢

Note 10: Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that Midae received to sell an asset or paid to traresfability (an exit price) in an orderly transiact
between market participants at the measurement date

Fair Value Hierarchy

HP uses valuation techniques that are baged observable and unobservable inputs. Obseruablits are developed using market data
such as publicly available information and refignet assumptions market participants would use,emnibbservable inputs are developed u
the best information available about the assumptioarket participants would use. Assets and liabsitre classified in the fair value hierai
based on the lowest level input that is signifidarnthe fair value measurement:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in activarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assetfiailities in active markets, quoted prices fdeimtical or similar assets or liabilities in masket
that are not active, inputs other than quoted pribat are observable for the asset or liability ararket-corroborated inputs.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the assdiability.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highgsbrity to observable inputs and lowest prioribyunobservable inputs.
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The following table presents HP's assediliabilities that are measured at fair value ar@urring basis:

As of October 31, 201« As of October 31, 201
Fair Value Fair Value
Measured Using Measured Using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
In millions

Assets
Cash
Equivalents
and
Investments
Time
depositt $ — $ 286 $ — $ 286 $ — $2221$ — $ 27221
Money
market
funds 9,857 — — 9,857 6,81¢ — — 6,81¢
Mutual
funds — 244 — 244 — 313z — 313
Marketable
equity
securities 14 5 — 19 10 5 — 15
Foreign
bonds 9 367 — 37¢ 9 387 — 39¢
Other debt
securities — 1 46 47 — 2 47 49
Derivatives:
Interest rate
contracts — 10& — 10t — 15€ — 15€
Foreign
exchange
contracts — 862 6 86¢ — 284 3 287
Other
derivative — 7 — 7 — 9 — 9
Total
assett $ 9,88( $ 445¢ $ 52 $ 1438 $ 6,83¢ $ 3,377 $ 50 $ 10,26*
Liabilities
Derivatives:
Interest rate
contracts  $ — % 5§ — % 55 $ — $ 107 % — % 107
Foreign
exchange
contracts — 34¢€ 2 35C — 547 2 54¢
Total
liabilitie $ — $ 40 $ 2 $ 408 $ — $ 654 $ 2 $ 65€

For the year ended October 31, 2014, tvere no transfers between levels within the falugdierarchy.
Valuation Techniques

Cash Equivalents and Investments: HEdtine deposits, money market funds, mutual fuatter debt securities primarily consisting
of corporate and foreign government notes and hartts common stock and equivalents. HP valueseggivalents and equity investments
using quoted market prices, alternative pricingrses, including NAV, or models utilizing market @pgable inputs. The fair value of debt
investments was based on quoted market prices delrtlviven valuations using inputs primarily dedvieom or corroborated by observable
market data, and, in certain instances, valuatiodets that utilize assumptions which cannot beadmrated with observable market data.

Derivative Instruments: HP uses forweodtracts, interest rate and total return swapsogtidn contracts to hedge certain fore



currency and interest rate exposures. HP usestigdstandard valuation models to measure fair valieere applicable, these models project
future cash flows and discount the future amoumggrésent value using market-based observablesnimeiuding interest rate curves, HP and
counterparty credit risk, foreign exchange rates, farward and spot prices for currencies and @stierates. See Note 11 for a further discu:
of HP's use of derivative instruments.
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Other Fair Value Disclosures

Short- and Long-Term Debt: HP estimabesfair value of its debt primarily using an exigetpresent value technique, which is based
on observable market inputs using interest rate®itly available to companies of similar credérating for similar terms and remaining
maturities, and considering its own credit riskeTdortion of HP's debt that is hedged is refleatettie Consolidated Balance Sheets as an
amount equal to the debt's carrying amount and &déue adjustment representing changes in thesédile of the hedged debt obligations
arising from movements in benchmark interest raftbe. estimated fair value of HP's short- and leergatdebt was $19.9 billion at October 31,
2014, compared to its carrying amount of $19.5drilht that date. The estimated fair value of HR&t- and long-term debt was $22.7 billion
at October 31, 2013, compared to its carrying arhofifi22.6 billion at that date. If measured at failue in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
short- and long-term debt would be classified inéle of the fair value hierarchy.

Other Financial Instruments: For theabak of HP's financial instruments, primarily acusureceivable, accounts payable and financia
liabilities included in other accrued liabilitighe carrying amounts approximate fair value dutiédr short maturities. If measured at fair value
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, these othemndial instruments would be classified in Levelr2evel 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Non-Marketable Equity Investments and NamaRcial Assets: HP's non-marketable equity stwents and non-financial assets, such ¢
intangible assets, goodwill and property, plant agdipment, are recorded at fair value in the gksio impairment charge is recognized. If
measured at fair value in the Consolidated Bal&teeets, these would generally be classified in L the fair value hierarchy.

In fiscal 2012, HP recognized a goodwilllantangible asset impairment charge of $8.8 ilkssociated with the Autonomy reporting
unit, a goodwill impairment charge of $8.0 billiassociated with the ES reporting unit, and an gitde asset impairment charge of
$1.2 billion associated with the Compag trade narhe.fair value of these reporting units was cféssin Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
due to the significance of unobservable inputs iges using company-specific information. HP udeglihcome approach to measure the fai
value of the ES and Autonomy reporting units. Urttierincome approach, HP calculated the fair vafuereporting unit based on the present
value of the estimated future cash flows. Cash fiowjections were based on management's estimbtesemue growth rates and operating
margins, taking into consideration industry andkeaiconditions. The discount rate used was baseétieoweighted-average cost of capital
adjusted for the relevant risk associated with iess-specific characteristics and the uncertagigted to the business's ability to execute on
the projected cash flows. The discount rate alfeated adjustments required when comparing the aitie fair values of HP's reporting ur
to HP's market capitalization as discussed in NofEhe unobservable inputs used to estimate thedhie these reporting units included
projected revenue growth rates, profitability ahel tisk factor added to the discount rate.

The inputs used to estimate the fair valiughe intangible assets of Autonomy and the "Cagfipeade name were largely unobservable,
and, accordingly, these measurements were clabgifieevel 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fe@ue of the intangible assets for Autonomy
were estimated using an income approach, whichsedon management's cash flow projections of tevgrowth rates and operating
margins, taking into consideration industry andkeaconditions. HP estimated the fair value of't8empag" trade name by calculating the
present value of the royalties saved that would
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have been paid to a third party had HP not ownedride name. The discount rates used in the dhiewcalculations for the Autonomy
intangibles and the "Compag" trade name were basedweighted average cost of capital adjustethrelevant risk associated with those
assets. The unobservable inputs used in thesetiosisianclude projected revenue growth rates, dpgranargins, royalty rates and the risk
factor added to the discount rate. The discouesrednged from 11% to 16%. Projected revenue groatés ranged from (61)% to 13%. The
(61)% rate reflected the significant decline in esed future revenues for Compag-branded produmts fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014 due to the
change in branding strategy discussed in Note 9.

Note 11: Financial Instruments
Cash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale Investments
Cash equivalents and available-for-salestwments were as follows:

As of October 31, 201- As of October 31, 201!
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
In millions

Cash
Equivalent
Time
depositc $ 2,720 $ — % — $ 2,720 $2,207 $ —  $ —  $2,207
Money
market
funds 9,857 — — 9,857 6,819 — — 6,819
Mutual
funds 110 — — 110 13 — — 13
Total cash
equivalent 12,687 — — 12,687 9,039 — — 9,039
Available-
for-Sale
Investmen
Debt
securities
Time
deposits 145 — — 145 14 — — 14
Foreign
bonds 286 90 — 376 310 86 — 396
Other deb
securitie 61 — (14) 47 64 — (15) 49
Total debt
securities 492 90 (14 ) 568 388 86 (15) 459
Equity
securities
Mutual
funds 134 — — 134 300 — — 300
Equity
securitie
in
public
compan 8 7 — 15 5 6 — 11
Total equity
securities 142 7 — 149 305 6 — 311
Total
available-
for-sale




investmentt 634 97 (14) 717  69: 92 (1) 77C
Total cash

equivalent

and

available-

for-sale

investmen $13,327 $ 97%  (14)$13,40:$9,73- % 923%  (15)$9,80¢
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All highly liquid investments with originahaturities of three months or less at the datcqtiisition are considered cash equivalents. As
of October 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013, the oagrgmount of cash equivalents approximated fdinevdue to the short period of time to
maturity. Interest income related to cash, caslivatgnts and debt securities was approximately $tBiéon in fiscal 2014, $148 million in
fiscal 2013 and $155 million in fiscal 2012. Timepbsits were primarily issued by institutions cdesihe U.S. as of October 31, 2014 and
October 31, 2013. The estimated fair value of trelable-for-sale investments may not be represmetaf values that will be realized in the
future.

The gross unrealized loss as of OctobeRB14 and October 31, 2013 was due primarily tdikedn the fair value of a debt security of
$14 million and $15 million, respectively, that Hzeen in a continuous loss position for more thegite months. HP does not intend to sell
this debt security, and it is not likely that HRIWie required to sell this debt security priothe recovery of the amortized cost.

Contractual maturities of investments iaitble-for-sale debt securities were as follows:

As of October 31, 201+«

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
In millions
Due in one yea $ 12¢ $ 12¢
Due in one to five yeal 3 3
Due in more than five yea 36( 43€

$ 49z $ 56¢

Equity securities in privately held comminclude cost basis and equity method investnaardsare included in Long-term financing
receivables and other assets in the Consolidateth8a Sheets. These amounted to $97 million anch@Bbion at October 31, 2014 and
October 31, 2013, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

HP is a global company exposed to foreigmency exchange rate fluctuations and interestaafinges in the normal course of its
business. As part of its risk management stratd§yuses derivative instruments, primarily forwaodtracts, option contracts, interest rate
swaps and total return swaps, to hedge certaimgfoirrency, interest rate and, to a lesser exézntity exposures. HP's objective is to offset
gains and losses resulting from these exposuréslegses and gains on the derivative contracts taskddge them, thereby reducing volatility
of earnings or protecting the fair value of asseis liabilities. HP does not have any leveraged/déves and does not use derivative contract:
for speculative purposes. HP may designate itvave contracts as fair value hedges, cash flodgbe or hedges of the foreign currency
exposure of a net investment in a foreign opergtinat investment hedges"). Additionally, for detiiwes not designated as hedging
instruments, HP categorizes those economic hedgethar derivatives. HP recognizes all derivatharuments at fair value in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. HP classifies caafs flaom its derivative programs as operating atiégiin the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows.

As a result of its use of derivative instients, HP is exposed to the risk that its countégsawill fail to meet their contractual obligatis.
To mitigate counterparty credit risk, HP has a@pbf only entering into derivative contracts withrefully selected major financial institutions
based on their
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credit ratings and other factors, and HP maintdoikar risk limits that correspond to each finahaiatitution's credit rating and other factors.
HP's established policies and procedures for ntitigacredit risk include reviewing and establishlimgits for credit exposure and periodically
re-assessing the creditworthiness of its countermaiaster netting agreements further mitigate tedgposure to counterparties by permitt
HP to net amounts due from HP to counterparty agamounts due to HP from the same counterpartgnoftain conditions.

To further mitigate credit exposure to ceuparties, HP has collateral security agreeméatsatilow HP to hold collateral from, or require
HP to post collateral to, counterparties when aggpesderivative fair values exceed contractualtgldshed thresholds which are generally
based on the credit ratings of HP and its countégsa If HP's or the counterparty's credit ratialls below a specified credit rating, either pi
has the right to request full collateralizatiortloé derivatives' net liability position. Collateialgenerally posted within two business days. The
fair value of derivatives with credit contingenafares in a net liability position was $38 milliand $207 million at October 31, 2014 and
October 31, 2013, respectively, all of which warklyfcollateralized within two business days.

Under HP's derivative contracts, the coypaey can terminate all outstanding trades folloyva covered change of control event affectin
HP that results in the surviving entity being ralbetow a specified credit rating. This credit caggnt provision did not affect HP's financial
position or cash flows as of October 31, 2014 antbler 31, 2013.

Fair Value Hedges

HP issues long-term debt in U.S. dollarselolaon market conditions at the time of financldB.may enter into fair value hedges, such as
interest rate swaps, to reduce the exposure délis portfolio to changes in fair value resultingni changes in interest rates by achieving a
primarily U.S. dollar LIBOR-based floating interastpense. The swap transactions generally invaiweipal and interest obligations for U.S.
dollar-denominated amounts. Alternatively, HP mhgase not to swap fixed for floating interest pagteer may terminate a previously
executed swap if it believes a larger proportioffixafd-rate debt would be beneficial.

When investing in fixed-rate instrument$} khay enter into interest rate swaps that conlierfixed interest payments into variable
interest payments and may designate these swdps galue hedges.

For derivative instruments that are dedigthand qualify as fair value hedges, HP recogntzeshange in fair value of the derivative
instrument, as well as the offsetting change inféirevalue of the hedged item, in Interest andeothet in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings in the period of change.

Cash Flow Hedges

HP uses a combination of forward contracid option contracts designated as cash flow heidga®tect against the foreign currency
exchange rate risks inherent in its forecastedenatnue and, to a lesser extent, cost of salesatipg expenses, and intercompany loans
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. ddfiR's foreign currency cash flow hedges matureegdly within twelve months; however,
hedges related to longer term procurement arrangesnegtend several years and forward contractcmded with sales-type and direct-
financing leases and intercompany loans extentheoduration of the lease or loan term, which tghycrange from two to five years.
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For derivative instruments that are dedigthand qualify as cash flow hedges, HP initiadlgards changes in fair value for the effective
portion of the derivative instrument in Accumulatgtier comprehensive loss as a separate compohstackholders' equity in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and subsequently ségagthese amounts into earnings in the periagthduwhich the hedged transaction is
recognized in earnings. HP reports the effectivgiquo of its cash flow hedges in the same finansiatement line item as changes in the fair
value of the hedged item.

Net Investment Hedges

HP uses forward contracts designated agwmestment hedges to hedge net investments iaiodareign subsidiaries whose functional
currency is the local currency. HP records theatiffe portion of such derivative instruments togetlvith changes in the fair value of the
hedged items in Cumulative translation adjustmera aeparate component of stockholders' equityeirConsolidated Balance Sheets.

Other Derivatives

Other derivatives not designated as hedgistyuments consist primarily of forward contragted to hedge foreign currency-denominate
balance sheet exposures. HP also uses total itams and, to a lesser extent, interest rate swaped on equity or fixed income indices, to
hedge its executive deferred compensation plaiitiab

For derivative instruments not designatetiedging instruments, HP recognizes changesrindhie of the derivative instrument, as well
as the offsetting change in the fair value of thdded item, in Interest and other net in the Cadatdd Statements of Earnings in the period o
change.

Hedge Effectiveness

For interest rate swaps designated avddiie hedges, HP measures hedge effectivenesddaytiofly the change in fair value of the
hedged instrument with the change in fair valuthefderivative. For foreign currency options anchviard contracts designated as cash flow ol
net investment hedges, HP measures hedge effeetisdny comparing the cumulative change in fairevaliuthe hedge contract with the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged iteath of which are based on forward rates. HP neizeg any ineffective portion of the hec
in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings in #meesperiod in which ineffectiveness occurs. Amoextduded from the assessment of
effectiveness are recognized in the ConsolidatateBtents of Earnings in the period they arise.
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Fair Value of Derivative Instruments in the Condatied Balance Sheets

The gross notional and fair value of ddmxainstruments in the Consolidated Balance Shesatsas follows:

As of October 31, 201« As of October 31, 201!
Long-Term Long-Term

Financing Financing
Outstanding Other Receivable: Long- Outstanding Other Receivable: Long-
Current Other Term Current Other Term
Gross and Other Accrued  Other Gross and Other Accrued  Other
Notional Assets Assets  Liabilities Liabilities  Notional Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities
In millions

Derivatives
designat:
as
hedging
instrume
Fair value
hedges
Interest
rate
contrac $ 10,80( $ 33 10z $ — 3 55 § 11,10C $ 31$ 125 $ —$ 107
Cash flow
hedges
Foreign
currenc
contrac 20,19¢ 53¢ 124 131 94 22,46 79 40 341 80
Net
investme
hedges
Foreign
currenc
contrac 1,957 44 47 1C 8 1,92( 30 40 20 12
Total
derivativi
designat
as
hedging
instrume 32,94¢ 58¢€ 273 141 157 35,48: 14C 20E 361 19¢
Derivatives
not
designat:
as
hedging
instrume
Foreign
currency
contracts 21,38¢ 82 32 82 25 16,04¢ 72 26 76 20
Other
derivativi 361 6 1 — — 344 8 1 — —
Total
derivativi
not
designat
as
hedging
instrume 21,74¢ 88 33 82 25 16,39: 80 27 76 20
Total
derivativi $ 546918 674 % 30€ $ 22: $ 182 $ 51,87¢ ¢ 22C $ 232 $ 437 $ 21¢

Offsetting of Derivative Instruments

HP recognizes all derivative instrumentsaaaross basis in the Consolidated Balance ShHéBtsloes not offset the fair value of its
derivative instruments against the fair value aftceollateral posted under its collateral secwaggeements. As of October 31, 2014 and
October 31, 2013,
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information related to the potential effect of HRiaster netting agreements and collateral secagitgements was as follows:

As of October 31, 201«
In the Consolidated Balance Sheet
0] (i) (iii) = (i) ~(ii) (iv) v) (vi) = (iii) -(iv)-(v)

Gross Amounts

Not Offset
Gross Gross
Amount Amount Net Amount Financial
Recognized Offset Presented Derivatives Collateral Net Amount
In millions
Derivative
assets $ 98C $ — % 98C $ 361 $ 452 $ 167
Derivative
liabilites ~ $ 408 $ — $ 40t $ 361 $ 29 15

@ Collateral posted through-use of counterparty cash collate!

As of October 31, 201!
In the Consolidated Balance Sheet
0] (i) (iii) = (i) ~(ii) (iv) v) (vi) = (iii) -(iv)-(v)

Gross Amounts

Not Offset
Gross Gross
Amount Amount Net Amount Financial
Recognized Offset Presented Derivatives Collateral Net Amount
In millions
Derivative
assett $ 45z $ — 3 45z $ 372 $ 30 % 50
Derivative
liabilites ~ $ 65¢ $ — $ 65€ $ 37z $  28Wg 1

@ Of the $283 million of collateral posted, $30 nati was through re-use of counterparty cash cofibterd $253 million
was in cash

Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Consolidé&tatements of Earnings

The pre-tax effect of derivative instrunwand related hedged items in a fair value hedgitagionship for fiscal years ended October 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

(Loss) Gain Recognized in Income on Derivative anBelated Hedged Iterr

Derivative Instrument Location 2014 2013 2012 Hedged ltenr Location 2014 2013 2012
In millions In millions
Interest and other Fixed-rate Interest and other
Interest rate contrac net $ 1 $ (270 $ (13C) debt net $ () $27C $ 134
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The pre-tax effect of derivative instruneeint cash flow and net investment hedging relatigpssfor fiscal years ended October 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Gain (Loss)
Recognized in OCI
on Derivatives Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated OC
(Effective Portion) Into Earnings (Effective Portion)
2014 2013 2012 Location 2014 2013 2012
In millions In millions
Cash flow
hedges
Foreign
currency
contractt $ 59z $ (53) $ 41t Net revenue $ (21) $ 48 $ 42¢
Foreign
currency
contracts (203) (192 (65) Cost of product: (72) (16%) (15)
Foreign
currency
contracts 7 (19 (7) Other operating expens 9 1 (6)
Foreign
currency
contracts (6C) 21 (8) Interest and other, n (50) 10 (3)
Total
currenc
hedges $ 337 $ (24%) $ 33¢ $ (151) $ (10€) $ 39¢
Net investmen
hedges
Foreign
currency
contractt $ 57 $ 38 $ 37 Interestand other, n $ —$ — % —

As of October 31, 2014 and October 31, 2003portion of the hedging instruments' gain aslavas excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness for fair value, cash flow or net istveent hedges. As of October 31, 2012 the portidheohedging instruments' gain or loss
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness wiamaterial for fair value, cash flow or net invasint hedges. Hedge ineffectiveness for fai
value, cash flow and net investment hedges wamatdrial for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012.

As of October 31, 2014, HP expects to &sifg an estimated net Accumulated other comprehemgin of approximately $185 million,
net of taxes, to earnings in the next twelve moathag with the earnings effects of the relate@édasted transactions associated with cash
hedges.

The pre-tax effect of derivative instrungenot designated as hedging instruments on thedlidated Statements of Earnings for fiscal
years ended October 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 wai@ss:

Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivative

Location 2014 2013 2012
In millions
Foreign currency contrac Interest and other,n $ 56 $ 16€ $ 171
Other derivative! Interest and other, n — 11 (32
Interest rate contrac Interest and other, n — 3 13
Total $ 56 $ 18C $ 157
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Notes Payable and Short-Term Borrowings

Notes payable and short-term borrowingduiing the current portion of long-term debt, wassfollows:

2014 2013
As of October 31
Amount Weighted-Average Amount Weighted-Average

Outstanding Interest Rate Outstanding Interest Rate

In millions In millions
Current portion of lon-term debi  $ 2,65¢ 2.2%$% 5,22¢ 2.£%
Commercial pape®) 29¢€ 0.5% 327 0.4%
Notes payable to banks, lines

credit and othef!) 532 4.0% 42€ 1.7%
$ 3,48¢ $ 5,97¢

@ Commercial paper includes $298 million and $327iamland Notes payable to banks, lines of credit ather includes

$404 million and $368 million at October 31, 20b#l@ctober 31, 2013, respectively, of borrowingd &mding-related
activity associated with HPFS and its subsidia
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Long-Term Debt

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions
U.S. Dollar Global Note&"

2006 Shelf Registration Stateme
$500 issued at discount to par at a price of 99&84February 2007 at 5.4%, due March 2 $ 50C $ 49¢
$750 issued at discount to par at a price of 994€82March 2008 at 5.5%, due March 2( 75C 75C
$2,000 issued at discount to par at a price ofé#®%&in December 2008 at 6.125%, paid March Z — 1,99¢
$1,500 issued at discount to par at a price of#3®in February 2009 at 4.75%, paid June Z — 1,50(

2009 Shelf Registration Stateme
$1,100 issued at discount to par at a price of@@8in September 2010 at 2.125%, due Septem|

2015 1,10( 1,10¢
$650 issued at discount to par at a price of 99®iDecember 2010 at 2.2%, due December : 65C 65C
$1,350 issued at discount to par at a price ofZ@@in December 2010 at 3.75%, due Decembel

2020 1,34¢ 1,34¢
$500 issued at par in May 2011 at t-month USD LIBOR plus 0.4%, paid May 20 — 50C
$500 issued at discount to par at a price of 99@iflMay 2011 at 1.55%, paid May 20 — 50C
$1,000 issued at discount to par at a price of38®in May 2011 at 2.65%, due June 2 1,00(¢ 1,00(¢
$1,250 issued at discount to par at a price of@34’in May 2011 at 4.3%, due June 2! 1,24¢ 1,24¢
$350 issued at par in September 2011 at -month USD LIBOR plus 1.55%, paid September 2 — 35C
$750 issued at discount to par at a price of 99®#vSeptember 2011 at 2.35%, due March z 75C 75C
$1,300 issued at discount to par at a price of@®4in September 2011 at 3.0%, due Septembel

2016 1,29¢ 1,29¢
$1,000 issued at discount to par at a price of E#8in September 2011 at 4.375%, due Septem|

2021 99¢ 99¢
$1,200 issued at discount to par at a price of@#8in September 2011 at 6.0%, due Septembel

2041 1,19¢ 1,19¢
$650 issued at discount to par at a price of 99®#6December 2011 at 2.625%, paid Decembet

2014 65C 65C
$850 issued at discount to par at a price of 99480December 2011 at 3.3%, due December : 84¢ 84¢
$1,500 issued at discount to par at a price of®®@in December 2011 at 4.65%, due Decembe;

2021 1,49¢ 1,49¢
$1,500 issued at discount to par at a price of@3®in March 2012 at 2.6%, due September 2 1,50( 1,50(
$500 issued at discount to par at a price of 994/i#LMarch 2012 at 4.05%, due September Z 49¢ 49¢

2012 Shelf Registration Stateme
$750 issued at par in January 2014 at -month USD LIBOR plus 0.94%, due January 2 75C —
$1,250 issued at discount to par at a price of3@®in January 2014 at 2.75%, due January : 1,25( —
17,83° 20,68«
EDS Senior Note&!)
$300 issued October 1999 at 7.45%, due October 313 314
Other, including capital lease obligations, at 8698.30%, due in calendar years 2014-2(94 424 68¢
Fair value adjustment related to hedged 1 12C 147
Less: current portio (2,65%) (5,22€)
Total lon¢-term debt $ 16,03¢ $ 16,60¢
@ HP may redeem some or all of the fixed-rate U.Slab&lobal Notes and EDS Senior Notes at any fim@ccordance with the terms thereof. The U.S.doll
Global Notes and EDS Senior Notes are senior unseéalebt.
@ Other, including capital lease obligations inclu#&23 million and $244 million as of October 3112Gnd 2013, respectively, of borrowing- and fugelielatec

activity associated with HPFS and its subsidiattias are collateralized by receivables and undaglgissets associated with the related capital pechting
leases. For both the periods presented, the cgrayitount of the assets approximated the carryirguatrof the borrowings
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As disclosed in Note 11, HP uses interat&t swaps to mitigate the exposure of its debfgmtto changes in fair value resulting from
changes in interest rates by achieving a prim&fily. dollar LIBOR-based floating interest experisterest rates shown in the table of long-
term debt have not been adjusted to reflect theaahpf any interest rate swaps.

In May 2012, HP filed a shelf registratstatement (the "2012 Shelf Registration Statememit!) the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") to enable the company to ofterskle, from time to time, in one or more offeengn unspecified amount of debt
securities, common stock, preferred stock, depys#aares and warrants.

HP's Board of Directors has authorizediskaance of up to $16.0 billion in aggregate ppatamount of commercial paper by HP. HP's
subsidiaries are authorized to issue up to aniaddit$1.0 billion in aggregate principal amountommercial paper. HP maintains two
commercial paper programs, and a wholly-owned slidngi maintains a third program. HP's U.S. progmovides for the issuance of U.S.
dollar-denominated commercial paper up to a maxiraggregate principal amount of $16.0 billion. HRiso commercial paper program
provides for the issuance of commercial paper datsi the U.S. denominated in U.S. dollars, eurd3ritish pounds up to a maximum
aggregate principal amount of $3.0 billion or tlggigalent in those alternative currencies. The doetdbaggregate principal amount of
commercial paper outstanding under those programsyaone time cannot exceed the $16.0 billion @rigled by HP's Board of Directors. The
HP subsidiary's Euro Commercial Paper/CertificdtBaposit Programme provides for the issuance ofroercial paper in various currencies
of up to a maximum aggregate principal amount @Ub&illion.

HP maintains senior unsecured committedicfacilities primarily to support the issuancecoimmercial paper. HP has a $3.0 billion five
year credit facility that expires in March 2017 anéi4.5 billion five-year credit facility that expires in April 2019. &1$4.5 billion credit facilit
expiring in April 2019 was executed in the secondrter of fiscal 2014 and replaced a previous $4liBn credit facility that was to expire in
February 2015. Both facilities support the U.S. omercial paper program and the euro commercial paqmgram. Commitment fees, interest
rates and other terms of borrowing under the cfaditities vary based on HP's external creditngdi HP's ability to have an outstanding U.S.
commercial paper balance that exceeds the $7iérbdlipported by these credit facilities is subfec number of factors, including liquidity
conditions and business performance. In additios $3.0 billion five-year credit facility was ameatin September 2012 to permit borrowings
in euros and British pounds, with the amounts atde! in euros and British pounds being limitedhi® t).S. dollar equivalent of $2.2 billion
and $300 million, respectively.
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HP's and the HP subsidiary's resourcedadlaito obtain short- or long-term financing wessfollows:

As of
October 31,
2014
In millions
2012 Shelf Registration Stateméht Unspecifiet
Commercial paper prograr $16,20:.
Uncommitted lines of cred $ 1,58

@ HP has the capacity to issue an unspecified anafuadditional debt securities, common stock, prefistock,

depositary shares and warrants under the 2012 Bhgiftration Statemer

The extent to which HP is able to utiline 2012 Shelf Registration Statement and the cogialgraper programs as sources of liquidity

at any given time is subject to a number of fagtorduding market demand for HP securities and m@neial paper, HP's financial
performance, HP's credit ratings and market cambtgenerally.

As of October 31, 2014, aggregate futuréunitées of long-term debt at face value (excludantpir value adjustment related to hedged
debt of $120 million, a premium on debt issuanc&18 million and a discount on debt issuance of ®ilBon) were as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
In millions
Aggregate future
maturities of debt
outstanding including
capital lease
obligations $ 2652 $ 3,027 $ 292( $ 78 $ 2,000 $ 7,18¢ $ 18,57«

Interest expense on borrowings recogningtié Consolidated Statements of Earnings duriadisical years was as follows:

Expense Location 2014 2013 2012
In millions

Financing interes Financing interes $ 277 $ 31z $ 317

Interest expens Interest and other, n 344 42€ 514

Total interest expens $ 621 $ 73¢ $ 831

Note 13: Stockholders' Equity

Dividends

The stockholders of HP common stock aréledtto receive dividends when and as declareHB\s Board of Directors. Dividends
declared were $0.61 per common share in fiscal 26045 per common share in fiscal 2013 and $0e5@pmmon share in fiscal 2012.

152




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 13: Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

Share Repurchase Program

HP's share repurchase program authoriziisdpen market and private repurchase transactinriscal 2014, HP executed share
repurchases of 92 million shares which were sefde®&2.7 billion and included 7 million shares exfed to settle in the first quarter of fiscal
2015. In fiscal 2013, HP executed share repurchafsés million shares which were settled for $1ilidn. In fiscal 2012, HP executed share
repurchases of 67 million shares which were sefde®1.6 billion. The shares repurchased andeskttl fiscal 2014, fiscal 2013 and fiscal
2012 were all open market repurchase transactimef October 31, 2014, HP had remaining authapmadf $4.9 billion for future share
repurchases under the $10.0 billion repurchaseoaa#tion approved by HP's Board of Directors oly 21, 2011.

Taxes related to Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

For the fiscal years endec
October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions

Tax (provision) benefit on change in unrealizechgain available-for-
sale securities

Tax (provision) benefit on unrealized gains arisiliging the perioc $ (1) $ (14) $ 25
(1) (14) 25

Tax (provision) benefit on change in unrealizechgdlosses) on cash

flow hedges
Tax (provision) benefit on unrealized gains (loysessing during th
period (1749 97 (137)
Tax (benefit) provision on losses (gains) reclasgiinto earning: (18) (49 145
(192 48 6
Tax benefit (provision) on change in unrealized ponents of definec
benefit plans
Tax benefit (provision) on (losses) gains arisingr the perioc 181 (25¢) 261
Tax benefit on amortization of actuarial loss andnservice benefi (18) (35) (31
Tax provision on curtailments, settlements andrc (9 (5) (48)
154 (29¢) 182
Tax (provision) benefit on change in cumulativeniation adjustmer (27) 25 (25)
Tax (provision) benefit on other comprehensiveg)jascome $ (66 $ (239 $ 18¢
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Note 13: Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
Changes and reclassifications related to Other Cahensive (Loss) Income, net of taxes

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of ta
Change in unrealized gains on avail-for-sale securities
Unrealized gains arising during the per $ 6 $ 38 $ 50
Gains reclassified into earnin (1) (49 —
5 (12) 50
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on cash flalgés
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the pe 162 (14¢) 19¢
Losses (gains) reclassified into earnifigs 13z 57 (256)
29€ (89 (58)
Change in unrealized components of defined beplfits:
(Losses) gains arising during the per (2,575 1,69¢ (2,196
Amortization of actuarial loss and prior servicaefit (@ 241 291 141
Curtailments, settlements and ot 42 20 74
(2,292)  2,00¢ (1,98))
Change in cumulative translation adjustm (112) (125) (72)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of t $ (2,109 $ 1,781 $ (2,06))

@ Reclassification of p-tax losses (gains) on cash flow hedges into thes@@ated Statements of Earnings was as foll

2014 2013 2012

In millions
Net revenue $ 21 $ (48 $ (429
Cost of product: 71 16E 15
Other operating expens 9 D 6
Interest and other, n 5C (10) 3

$ 151 $ 10€ $ (399

@ These components are included in the computatiobpension and pc-retirement benefit (credit) cost in Note
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The components of accumulated other congpralie loss, net of taxes as of October 31, 208l4changes during fiscal year 2014 were a
follows:

Net unrealized Unrealized Accumulated
gain on Net unrealized components Cumulative other
available-for-sale loss on cash of defined translation comprehensive
securities flow hedges benefit plans adjustment loss
In millions

Balance at beginnin

of period $ 7€ $ (18¢) $ (3,089 $ (582 $ (3,77¢)
Other comprehensiv

income (loss)

before

reclassification: 6 162 (2,539 (112 (2,479
Reclassifications of

(gains) losses intc

earnings (1) 13 241 — 37€
Balance at end of
period $ 81 $ 106 $ (5,37¢) $ (694) $ (5,88))

Note 14: Net Earnings Per Share

HP calculates basic net EPS using netegsr{ioss) and the weighted-average number of slwartstanding during the reporting period.
Diluted net EPS includes any dilutive effect oftriesed stock awards, stock options, performancetawards and shares purchased under t
2011 ESPP.

The reconciliations of the numerators aadaminators of each of the basic and diluted n& &#culations were as follows:

For the fiscal years endec

October 31
2014 2013 2012
In millions, except per share
amounts

Numerator:

Net earnings (lossy) $ 501: $ 511 $ (12,650
Denominator

Weightec-average shares used to compute basic ne: 1,88: 1,93¢ 1,974

Dilutive effect of employee stock pla 30 1€ —

Weightec-average shares used to compute diluted net 1,912 1,95( 1,97¢
Net earnings (loss) per sha

Basic $ 266 $ 264 3% (6.4)

Diluted @ $ 262 $ 262 $ (6.4
Anti-dilutive weighted average optiof® 26 52 57

@ Net earnings allocated to participating securitiese not significant in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 204P. considers
restricted stock awards that provide the holdehwaihon-forfeitable right to receive dividends todarticipating
securities.

@ For fiscal 2012, HP excluded from the calculatiéulituted net loss per share 10 million shares ipidd#ly issuable under
stock-based incentive compensation plans and the 201P E&Rheir effect, if included, would have beeti-dilutive.
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®) HP excludes options where the assumed proceedsditte average market price from the calculatiodilated net EPS
because their effect would be anti-dilutive. Theumsed proceeds of an option include the sum @iiscise price,
average unrecognized compensation cost and exebstefits

Note 15: Litigation and Contingencies

HP is involved in lawsuits, claims, invesiiions and proceedings, including those identifieldw, consisting of IP, commercial,
securities, employment, employee benefits and enmiental matters that arise in the ordinary coafdmisiness. HP accrues a liability when
management believes that it is both probable ttiabdity has been incurred and the amount of ks be reasonably estimated. HP believes
has recorded adequate provisions for any such mmattel, as of October 31, 2014, it was not readpmatssible that a material loss had been
incurred in excess of the amounts recognized irs fiPancial statements. HP reviews these mattdesaat quarterly and adjusts its accruals to
reflect the impact of negotiations, settlementbngs, advice of legal counsel, and other informatand events pertaining to a particular case.
Based on its experience, HP believes that any damampunts claimed in the specific matters discubséav are not a meaningful indicator of
HP's potential liability. Litigation is inherentlynpredictable. However, HP believes it has valiftdses with respect to legal matters pending
against it. Nevertheless, cash flows or resulispafrations could be materially affected in anyipatar period by the resolution of one or more
of these contingencies.

Litigation, Proceedings and Investigatio

Copyright Levies As described below, proceedings are ongointaoe been concluded involving HP in certain Eurapdaion
("EU") member countries, including litigation in eany, Belgium and Austria, seeking to impose odifydevies upon equipment (such as
multi-function devices ("MFDs"), personal computéiBCs") and printers) and alleging that these akvenable producing private copies of
copyrighted materials. Descriptions of some ofdhgoing proceedings are included below. The leatesgenerally based upon the number of
products sold and the per-product amounts of thiedewhich vary. Some EU member countries thatatoyet have levies on digital devices
are expected to implement similar legislation tatda them to extend existing levy schemes, whileesother EU member countries have
phased out levies or are expected to limit the sadpevy schemes and applicability in the digitatdware environment, particularly with
respect to sales to business users. HP, other coespand various industry associations have oppibseextension of levies to the digital
environment and have advocated alternative mode&lsrapensation to rights holders.

VerwertungsGesellschaft Wort ("VG Wort")¢allection agency representing certain copyrightérs, instituted legal proceedings agz
HP in the Stuttgart Civil Court seeking to imposei¢s on printers. On December 22, 2004, the dmid that HP is liable for payments
regarding all printers using ASCII code sold in @any but did not determine the amount payable piridP appealed this decision in
January 2005 to the Stuttgart Court of AppealsMay 11, 2005, the Stuttgart Court of Appeals issael@cision confirming that levies are
due. On June 6, 2005, HP filed an appeal to then@e~ederal Supreme Court in Karlsruhe. On Dece@h2d07, the German Federal
Supreme Court issued a judgment that printers @rsubject to levies under existing law. VG Worpagled the decision by filing a claim with
the German Federal Constitutional Court challengfirggruling that printers are not subject to leviéa September 21, 2010, the Constitutiona
Court published a decision holding that the Geragleral Supreme Court erred by not referring qoeston interpretation of German
copyright law to the Court of Justice of the Eurap&nion ("CJEU") and therefore revoked
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the German Federal Supreme Court decision andteshiiie matter to it. On July 21, 2011, the Gerifaderal Supreme Court stayed the
proceedings and referred several questions to JEJQvith regard to the interpretation of the Euap€opyright Directive. On June 27, 2013,
the CJEU issued its decision responding to thosstiqns. The German Federal Supreme Court subsigaeheduled a joint hearing on this
matter with other cases relating to reprographieeon printers and PCs that was held on Octobe2@®13. The German Federal Supreme
Court issued a decision on July 3, 2014 partialgnging the claim of VG Wort. The German Federgbh®me Court decision provides that
levies are due where the printer is used with adP@ake permitted reprographic copies in a singbegss under the control of the same pe
but no levies are due on a printer for reprograpbjgies made with a "scanner-PC-printer" produeirchThe case has been remitted to lower
courts to assess the amount to be paid per prnier

In September 2003, VG Wort filed a lawsaghinst Fujitsu Technology Solutions GmbH ("Fujljsa the Munich Civil Court in Munich,
Germany seeking to impose levies on PCs. This industry test case in Germany, and HP has agreiei mbject to the delay if VG Wort
sues HP for such levies on PCs following a finalisien against Fujitsu. On December 23, 2004, thumitvh Civil Court held that PCs are
subject to a levy and that Fujitsu must pay €12 glompound interest for each PC sold in Germargeditarch 2001. Fujitsu appealed this
decision in January 2005 to the Munich Court of éals. On December 15, 2005, the Munich Court ofegbpaffirmed the Munich Civil
Court decision. Fuijitsu filed an appeal with thei@an Federal Supreme Court in February 2006. Onli@ct2, 2008, the German Federal
Supreme Court issued a judgment that PCs werehmopopiers within the meaning of the German catriaw that was in effect until
December 31, 2007 and, therefore, were not sutgigbe levies on photocopiers established by that VG Wort subsequently filed a claim
with the German Federal Constitutional Court chrgjlag that ruling. In January 2011, the ConstitadiloCourt published a decision holding
that the German Federal Supreme Court decisioringassistent with the German Constitution and révgithe German Federal Supreme
Court decision. The Constitutional Court also réeditthe matter to the German Federal Supreme @ourther action. On July 21, 2011, the
German Federal Supreme Court stayed the proceeaimbseferred several questions to the CJEU wighneto the interpretation of the
European Copyright Directive. On June 27, 2013 Q8EU issued its decision responding to those guestThe German Federal Supreme
Court subsequently scheduled a joint hearing onrttzdter with other cases relating to reprograjgices on printers that was held on
October 31, 2013. The German Federal Supreme @suktd a decision on July 3, 2014 partially grantire claim of VG Wort. The German
Federal Supreme Court decision provides that lemieslue for audio-visual copying of standing #xd pictures using a PC as the last device
in a single reproduction process under the coutrtthe same person, but no levies are due on aP@prographic copies made using a "PC-
printer" or a "scanner-PC-printer" chain. The daas been remitted to lower courts to assess therantmbe paid per PC unit.

Reprobel, a cooperative society with thinauity to collect and distribute the remunerationreprography to Belgian copyright holders,
requested by extra-judicial means that HP amertdioezopyright levy declarations submitted for etkMFDs sold in Belgium from January
2005 to December 2009 to enable it to collect cighyievies calculated based on the generally higbpying speed when the MFDs are
operated in draft print mode rather than when dpdren normal print mode. In March 2010, HP filethavsuit against Reprobel in the French-
speaking chambers of the Court of First Instand@rafsels seeking a declaratory judgment that pgraght levies are payable on sales of
MFDs in Belgium or, alternatively, that copyrigktles payable on such MFDs must be assessed based
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on the copying speed when operated in the norniratl piode set by default in the device. On Noveni&er2012, the court issued a decision
holding that Belgium law is not in conformity wittlJ law in a number of respects and ordered thalNdyember 2013, Reprobel substantiate
that the amounts claimed by Reprobel are commetgswith the harm resulting from legitimate copyimgder the reprographic exception. HP
subsequently appealed that court decision to thet€of Appeal in Brussels seeking to confirm tiat Belgian law is not in conformity with
EU law and that, if Belgian law is interpreted imanner consistent with EU law, no payments by HPrequired or, alternatively, the
payments already made by HP are sufficient to cgmjtth its obligations under Belgian law. On Octo8, 2013, the Court of Appeal in
Brussels stayed the proceedings and referred deperstions to the CJEU relating to whether thegBel reprographic copyright levies system
is in conformity with EU law.

Based on industry opposition to the examsif levies to digital products, HP's assessmefitise merits of various proceedings and HP's
estimates of the number of units impacted and ti@uaits of the levies, HP has accrued amountsttbatieves are adequate to address the
matters described above. However, the ultimatdutsn of these matters and the associated finhmjaact on HP, including the number of
units impacted and the amount of levies imposedanes uncertain.

Fair Labor Standards Act Litigation HP is involved in several lawsuits in which ghaintiffs are seeking unpaid overtime
compensation and other damages based on alleg#t@ingrious employees of Electronic Data Syst€mporation ("EDS") or HP have been
misclassified as exempt employees under the Faiol&tandards Act and/or in violation of the Califia Labor Code or other state laws.
Those matters include the following:

. Cunningham and Cunningham, et al. v. ElectronicaD@&ystems Corporatida a purported collective action filed on May 10,
2006 in the United States District Court for thai®ern District of New York claiming that curremcaformer EDS employees
allegedly involved in installing and/or maintainingmputer software and hardware were misclassfgeeexempt employees.
Another purported collective actioBteavens, et al. v. Electronic Data Systems Cotmarawas filed on October 23, 2007 in
the same court alleging similar facts. T3teavensase has been consolidated for pretrial purpoststihe@Cunninghantase.

On December 14, 2010, the court granted conditioadification of a class consisting of employee20 legacy EDS job codes
in the consolidate@unninghamandSteavensnatter. On December 11, 2013, HP and plaintiffansel in the consolidated

Cunningham/Steavemsatter, and th&alvamatter described below, mediated these cases andea@ a settlement agreement.
The court preliminarily approved the settlementNwvember 4, 2014. The final approval hearing isesicied for June 8, 2015.

. Salva v. HewletPackard Companis a purported collective action filed on June 2812 in the United States District Court for
the Western District of New York alleging that @éntinformation technology employees allegedly ined in installing and/or
maintaining computer software and hardware werelassified as exempt employees under the Fair L8kwrdards Act. On
December 11, 2013, HP and plaintiffs' counsel enadbnsolidate€Cunningham/Steavemsatter and th&alvamatter mediated
these cases and reached a settlement agreememnbdeonsolidated thBalvamatter into theCunningham/Steavemsatter
and preliminarily approved the settlement on Noven#h 2014. The final approval hearing is schedédedune 8, 2015.
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. Karlbom, et al. v. Electronic Data Systems Corpimmts a class action filed on March 16, 2009 in Catifa Superior Court
alleging facts similar to th€unninghamandSteavensnatters. The parties are currently engaged in d&go

. Blake, et al. v. HewlefPackard Companwas filed as a purported nationwide collective@tion February 17, 2011 in the
United States District Court for the Southern Distof Texas claiming that a class of informatiectinology support personnel
had been misclassified as exempt employees undéiain Labor Standards Act. On February 10, 2012 ptaintiffs filed a
motion requesting that the court conditionally ifgtthe case as a collective action. On July 11,3@he court denied the
plaintiffs’ motion for conditional certification iits entirety. Following the denial of class cectition, the case has continued as
an individual action on behalf of the named pldirstnd one other employee. The parties have reaghedjyreement to resolve
this matter with the two plaintiffs agreeing totketheir individual claims and release any otHaines they may have against
HP. The court approved the settlement on AugusP@®4, and dismissed the case with prejudice oteSder 9, 2014.

. Benedict v. HewletPackard Companis a purported collective action filed on Januaby 2013 in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California alleg that certain technical support employees aflggmvolved in installing,
maintaining and/or supporting computer software/ankardware for HP were misclassified as exempileyees under the Fair
Labor Standards Act. The plaintiff has also alletfet HP violated California law by, among othengs, allegedly improperly
classifying these employees as exempt. On Feb#r014, the court granted the plaintiff's motionconditional class
certification. The parties are engaged in discovery

State of South Carolina Department of 8ldservices Contract Dispute In October 2012, the State of South Carolinpdbgnent of
Social Services and related government agenci€sS%") filed a proceeding before South CarolinddeProcurement Officer ("CPO")
against Hewlett-Packard State & Local Enterpriseiges, Inc., a subsidiary of HP ("HPSLES"). Thepdite arises from a contract between
SCDSS and HPSLES for the design, implementatiomaaidtenance of a Child Support Enforcement andraily Court Case Management
System (the "CFS System"). SCDSS seeks aggregatagés of approximately $275 million, a declaratiwatt HPSLES is in material breach
of the contract and, therefore, that terminatiothefcontract for cause by SCDSS would be appriapréand a declaration that HPSLES is
required to perform certain additional disputed knitrat expands the scope of the original conttaddovember 2012, HPSLES filed
responsive pleadings asserting defenses and sgedymgent of past-due invoices totaling more thad ®illion. On July 10, 2013, SCDSS
terminated the contract with HPSLES for cause, anids termination notice, SCDSS asserted thatIHFSSis responsible for all future federal
penalties until the CFS System achieves federdfication, sought an immediate order requiring HHES to transfer to SCDSS all work
completed and in progress, and indicated thatehiths to seek suspension and debarment of HPSbESBciontracting with the State of South
Carolina. HPSLES is disputing the termination aprioper and defective. In addition, on August 9,2MPSLES filed its own affirmative
claim within the proceeding alleging that SCDSSemiatly breached the contract by its improper teratipn and that SCDSS was a primary
and material cause of the project delays. On Sdpger 2013, the CPO denied SCDSS's motion fonatjue relief seeking immediate
transfer of the system assets to SCDSS and inditlase the CPO would address that request followihgaring on the merits. The hearing on
the merits before the CPO concluded on Februarg@®} and closing briefs were submitted on July2084.
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On August 15, 2014, the CPO agreed to the pajies'request that the CPO not issue an order grdad until the parties, with the guidanc
the mediator, report to the CPO that their ongoiggliation has reached a final impasse.

On September 10, 2014, the parties reaghedjreement in principle to resolve this matter @m December 15, 2014, the parties
submitted a settlement agreement and time and ialatagreement to the CPO for approval.

India Directorate of Revenue IntelligerRm®ceedings On April 30 and May 10, 2010, the India Dirgete of Revenue Intelligence
(the "DRI") issued show cause notices to Hewlettkaed India Sales Private Ltd ("HPI"), a subsidiafyHP, seven thenurrent HP employee
and one former HP employee alleging that HP undémestoms duties while importing products and egaarts into India and seeking to
recover an aggregate of approximately $370 millas penalties. Prior to the issuance of the stause notices, HP deposited approximatel;
$16 million with the DRI and agreed to post a pstial bond in exchange for the DRI's agreemenbteseize HP products and spare parts
and to not interrupt the transaction of businessiByin India.

On April 11, 2012, the Bangalore Commissioof Customs issued an order on the productsegktiow cause notice affirming certain
duties and penalties against HPI and the namediéhdils of approximately $386 million, of which HR&d already deposited $9 million. On
December 11, 2012, HPI voluntarily deposited antamghl $10 million in connection with the produetdated show cause notice.

On April 20, 2012, the Commissioner issaadrder on the parts-related show cause notigenify certain duties and penalties against
HPI and certain of the named individuals of appmadely $17 million, of which HPI had already depedi$7 million. After the order, HPI
deposited an additional $3 million in connectiorthithe parts-related show cause notice so as td aedtain penalties.

HPI filed appeals of the Commissioner'ssostefore the Customs Tribunal along with applbcet for waiver of the pre-deposit of
remaining demand amounts as a condition for hedhie@ppeals. The Customs Department has alsocfite$-appeals before the Customs
Tribunal. On January 24, 2013, the Customs Tribordéred HPI to deposit an additional $24 milligrmimst the products order, which HPI
deposited in March 2013. The Customs Tribunal dilander any additional deposit to be made undep#trts order. In December 2013, HPI
filed applications before the Customs Tribunal #sglearly hearing of the appeals as well as ameide of the stay of deposit as to HP anc
individuals already granted until final dispositiohthe appeals. On February 7, 2014, the apptindtr extension of the stay of deposit was
granted by the Customs Tribunal until disposahefappeals. On October 27, 2014, the Customs Tallmommenced hearings on the cross-
appeals of the Commissioner's orders. The Custaiharal rejected HP's request to remand the mettdre Commissioner on procedural
grounds, and is scheduled to reconvene hearingfseomerits beginning on April 6, 2015.

Russia GPO and Other FCPA InvestigationsThe German Public Prosecutor's Office ("GerfR®") has been conducting an
investigation into allegations that current andvfer employees of HP engaged in bribery, embezzlearehtax evasion relating to a
transaction between Hewlett-Packard ISE GmbH im@ery, a former subsidiary of HP, and the Genems$&gutor's Office of the Russian
Federation. The approximately €35 million transattiwhich was referred to as the Russia GPO deahred the years 2001 to 2006 and was
for the delivery and installation of an IT netwoihe
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German PPO has issued an indictment of four indal&] including one current and two former HP emeés, on charges including bribery,
breach of trust and tax evasion. The German PP@lkasequested that HP be made an associatedtpahty case, and, if that request is
granted, HP would participate in any portion of tloeirt proceedings that could ultimately bear andbestion of whether HP should be sub
to potential disgorgement of profits based on tredaict of the indicted current and former employ@é® Polish Central Anti-Corruption
Bureau is also conducting an investigation intaeptél corruption violations by an employee of HettlPackard Polska Sp. z 0.0., an indirect
subsidiary of HP, in connection with certain pulsictor transactions in Poland. HP is cooperatiitig these investigating agencies.

The DOJ and the SEC also conducted anftigadi®n into the Russia GPO deal and potentidgtions of the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act ("FCPA"). In addition, the same U.S. enforcem@&gencies conducted investigations into certdiempublic-sector transactions in Russia,
Poland, the Commonwealth of Independent Statedvimxico, among other countries. On April 9, 2014, &ffmounced a resolution of the DOJ
and SEC FCPA investigations. Pursuant to the tefrtise resolution of the DOJ and SEC FCPA invesitigaannounced in April 2014, on
September 11, 2014, an HP subsidiary in Russia, B&®lett Packard A.O., entered a guilty plea inthmted States District Court, Northern
District of California, to criminal violations ohe FCPA. HP paid the SEC approximately $31 millamg paid approximately $77 million in
fines and penalties pursuant to its agreementsth@ldOJ. HP also has agreed to undertake cemanplance, reporting and cooperation
obligations.

On December 2, 2014, plaintiffs PetroleesxiManos and Pemex Exploracion filed a complaiaireg HP and HP Mexico in the United
States District Court for the Northern District@élifornia alleging violations of the Racketeerlligihced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RI
Act), fraudulent concealment, tortious interfergraned violations of the California Unfair Compaditi Law in connection with alleged improj
payments provided to Pemex officials by third-pestietained by HP Mexico. These allegations ars® the same subject-matter as a
previously disclosed 2014 Non-Prosecution Agreerbetween HP Mexico and the DOJ and a simultaneeasecand-desist order against HP
issued by the SEC. HP is investigating this cldiowever, HP does not believe that the resolutiothisfmatter will have a material impact on
its financial statements.

ECT Proceedings In January 2011, the postal service of Br&aipresa Brasileira de Correios e Telégrafos ("EQTd)ified an HP
subsidiary in Brazil ("HP Brazil") that it had irdated administrative proceedings to consider whethsuspend HP Brazil's right to bid and
contract with ECT related to alleged improprieiiethe bidding and contracting processes wherelyl@rees of HP Brazil and employees of
several other companies allegedly coordinated thids and fixed results for three ECT contract®007 and 2008. In late July 2011, ECT
notified HP Brazil it had decided to apply the piéra against HP Brazil and suspend HP Brazil'strig bid and contract with ECT for five
years, based upon the evidence before it. In August, HP Brazil appealed ECT's decision. In ApoiL3, ECT rejected HP Brazil's appe
and the administrative proceedings were closed tigtpenalties against HP Brazil remaining in placearallel, in September 2011, HP
Brazil filed a civil action against ECT seekinghtave ECT's decision revoked. HP Brazil also reqgkah injunction suspending the
application of the penalties until a final ruling the merits of the case. The court of first instahas not issued a decision on the merits of the
case, but it has denied HP Brazil's request famictive relief. HP Brazil appealed the denial sfriéquest for injunctive relief to the
intermediate appellate court, which issued a piiakmy ruling denying the request for injunctiveieél
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but reducing the length of the sanctions from fivéwo years. HP Brazil appealed that decision anBecember 2011, obtained a ruling
staying enforcement of ECT's sanctions until alfinbng on the merits of the case. HP expectsdeisision to be issued in 2015 and any
subsequent appeal on the merits to last severed.yea

Stockholder Litigation As described below, HP is involved in varioteckholder litigation matters commenced againstageicurrent
and former HP executive officers and/or certairrenirand former members of HP's Board of Direcitomshich the plaintiffs are seeking to
recover damages related to HP's allegedly inflatedk price, certain compensation paid by HP tadéfendants, other damages and/or
injunctive relief:

. Saginaw Paolice & Fire Pension Fund v. Marc L. Arelseen, et alis a lawsuit filed on October 19, 2010 in the Udittates
District Court for the Northern District of Califola alleging, among other things, that the defetslareached their fiduciary
duties and were unjustly enriched by conscioustyedjarding HP's alleged violations of the FCPA ADgust 15, 2011, the
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit.Narch 21, 2012, the court granted the defendamdtibn to dismiss, and the
court entered judgment in the defendants’ favorcimsked the case on May 29, 2012. On June 28, 20& 3laintiff filed an
appeal with the United States Court of AppealgHtierNinth Circuit. On September 8, 2014, the pi#imbluntarily dismissed it
appeal, which concluded the case.

. A.J. Copeland v. Raymond J. Lane, et al. ("Copelanid a lawsuit filed on March 7, 2011 in the Unite@dt8s District Court fc
the Northern District of California alleging, amoather things, that the defendants breached titiciary duties and wasted
corporate assets in connection with HP's allegeltions of the FCPA, HP's severance payments nuwabfiark Hurd (a former
Chairman of HP's Board of Directors and HP's Chiefcutive Officer), and HP's acquisition of 3PAR.IThe lawsuit also
alleges violations of Section 14(a) of the Seaesittxchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") inremtion with HP's 2010
and 2011 proxy statements. On February 8, 2012jafendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsbit.October 10, 2012, the
court granted the defendants' motion to dismishk ie#ve to file an amended complaint. On Novemb@012, the plaintiff filed
an amended complaint adding an unjust enrichmeithcind claims that the defendants violated Sedt#{n) of the Exchange
Act and breached their fiduciary duties in conrativith HP's 2012 proxy statement. On Decembefd3nd 17, 2012, the
defendants moved to dismiss the amended comp@mbDecember 28, 2012, the plaintiff moved for letovéle a third
amended complaint. On May 6, 2013, the court detiednotion for leave to amend, granted the mottortismiss with
prejudice and entered judgment in the defendaatsrf On May 31, 2013, the plaintiff filed an aplpeith the United States
Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. The appkak been fully briefed, but a date has not yet lseéfor oral argument.

. A.J. Copeland v. Léo Apotheker, et al. ("Copeldhdi$ a lawsuit filed on February 10, 2014 in the ©diStates District Court
for the Northern District of California allegingmang other things, that the defendants used tbeiral over HP and its
corporate suffrage process in effectuating, diyggdrticipating in and/or aiding and abetting vi@as of Section 14(a) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereundsations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Eamde Act and Rule 10b-
5 promulgated thereunder. The complaint asseritmslfor breach of fiduciary duty, waste of corperassets, unjust enrichme
and breach of the duty of candor. The claims arigeof the circumstances at HP relating to its 2848 2014 proxy

162




Table of Contents

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 15: Litigation and Contingencies (Continued)

statements, the departure of Mr. Hurd as ChairnfigddPts Board of Directors and HP's Chief Executfécer, alleged
violations of the FCPA, and HP's acquisition of 3Pkc. and Autonomy Corporation plc ("Autonomy")n ®ebruary 25, 2014,
the court issued an order granting HP's adminig&ahotion to relat€Copeland lito Copeland I. On April 8, 2014, the court
granted the parties' stipulation to stay the aghending resolution a€opeland lby the United States Court of Appeals for the
Ninth Circuit.

. Richard Gammel v. HewleRackard Company, et alis a putative securities class action filed opt&mber 13, 2011 in the
United States District Court for the Central Distiof California alleging, among other things, tfram November 22, 2010 to
August 18, 2011, the defendants violated Secti@(s)land 20(a) of the Exchange Act by concealintene information and
making false statements about HP's business nmibéefiiture of the webOS operating system, and Effttamitment to
developing and integrating webOS products, inclgdire TouchPad tablet PC. On April 11, 2012, tHemtdants filed a motion
to dismiss the lawsuit. On September 4, 2012, thetgranted the defendants' motion to dismissgawe: the plaintiff 30 days
file an amended complaint. On October 19, 2012pthmtiff filed an amended complaint asserting shene causes of action but
dropping one of the defendants and shortening ¢hieg that the alleged violations of the Exchangé dccurred to February 9,
2011 to August 18, 2011. On December 3, 2012, éfiendlants moved to dismiss the amended complamM&y 8, 2013, the
court granted the defendants’ motion to dismigsaith and denied it in part. As a result of the €euuling, the alleged class
period in the action runs from June 1, 2011 to Audi8, 2011. The parties commenced mediation befprévate mediator and
on March 31, 2014, the parties executed a settlestiulation. On September 15, 2014, the countgichfinal approval of the
settlement and HP and certain of its insurers aptoximately $57 million pursuant to the termshaf settlement agreement.
The deadline to appeal the court's grant of fipalraval has passed and the court's judgment isfimaiv

. Ernesto Espinoza v. Léo Apotheker, etaldLarry Salat v. Léo Apotheker, et.a@re consolidated lawsuits filed on
September 21, 2011 in the United States DistrictrCior the Central District of California allegingmong other things, that the
defendants violated Section 10(b) and 20(a) oBkehange Act by concealing material information amaking false statements
about HP's business model and the future of webi@STouchPad and HP's PC business. The lawsuitab¢ge that the
defendants breached their fiduciary duties, wastedorate assets and were unjustly enriched wresnatthorized HP's
repurchase of its own stock on August 29, 2010Jayl 21, 2011. These lawsuits were previously stayending developments
in the Gammelmatter, but those stays have been lifted. The fiffgifiled an amended consolidated complaint orgidst 21,
2013, and, on October 28, 2013, the defendants dilmotion to stay these matters. In an order dagbduary 13, 2014, the co
granted the motion to stay. At the August 11, 26tkdus conference, the stay was lifted. The plsntiformed the court that
they will move forward with their complaint. HPdill a motion to dismiss on November 21, 2014.

. Luis Gonzalez v. Léo Apotheker, et ahdRichard Tyner v. Léo Apotheker, et are consolidated lawsuits filed on
September 29, 2011 and October 5, 2011, respegtimeCalifornia Superior Court alleging, amongetithings, that the
defendants breached their fiduciary duties, wastedorate assets and were unjustly enriched byeading material informatio
and making false statements about HP's businesslrand the future of webQOS, the TouchPad and HP's P
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business and by authorizing HP's repurchase ofaitsstock on August 29, 2010 and July 21, 2011.|&twsuits are currently
stayed pending resolution of tEspinoza/Salatonsolidated action in federal court. The courtlteebtatus conference on
November 17, 2014.

. Cement & Concrete Workers District Council Pendiamd v. HewletPackard Company, et ais a putative securities class
action filed on August 3, 2012 in the United Stddéstrict Court for the Northern District of Califioia alleging, among other
things, that from November 13, 2007 to August 6.®the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(te Exchange Act by
making statements regarding HP's Standards of Bssi@onduct ("SBC") that were false and misleategause Mr. Hurd, wt
was serving as HP's Chairman and Chief Executifie€fduring that period, had been violating theCS&hd concealing his
misbehavior in a manner that jeopardized his comtinemployment with HP. On February 7, 2013, tHerdfants moved to
dismiss the amended complaint. On August 9, 2018¢burt granted the defendants' motion to dismidsleave to amend the
complaint by September 9, 2013. The plaintiff filmdamended complaint on September 9, 2013, andefieadants moved to
dismiss that complaint on October 24, 2013. On AM&014, the court issued an order granting #ierttlants' motions to
dismiss and on July 25, 2014, plaintiff filed ainetof appeal to the United States Court of Appé&aishe Ninth Circuit. On
November 4, 2014, the plaintiff-appellant filed agening brief in the Court of Appeals for the Mit@ircuit.

Autonomy-Related Legal Matters

Investigations As a result of the findings of an ongoing irigestion, HP has provided information to the U.kri®us Fraud Office,
the DOJ and the SEC related to the accounting iprties, disclosure failures and misrepresentatairAutonomy that occurred prior to and
in connection with HP's acquisition of Autonomy. @avember 21, 2012, representatives of the U.SaBemnt of Justice advised HP that
they had opened an investigation relating to AutoypoOn February 6, 2013, representatives of the Sd€ious Fraud Office advised HP that
they had also opened an investigation relatingutoAomy. HP is cooperating with the three invesingpagencies.

Litigation.  As described below, HP is involved in variotackholder litigation relating to, among other tip$n its November 20, 2012
announcement that it recorded a non-cash chargadompairment of goodwill and intangible assetthin its Software segment of
approximately $8.8 billion in the fourth quarteritsf 2012 fiscal year and HP's statements thagdas HP's findings from an ongoing
investigation, the majority of this impairment charelated to accounting improprieties, misrepregams to the market and disclosure failt
at Autonomy that occurred prior to and in connattidth HP's acquisition of Autonomy and the impafcthose improprieties, failures and
misrepresentations on the expected future finapagbrmance of the Autonomy business over the teng. This stockholder litigation was
commenced against, among others, certain currehfommer HP executive officers, certain current &rther members of HP's Board of
Directors, and certain advisors to HP. The pld®iif these litigation matters are seeking to reca@ertain compensation paid by HP to the
defendants and/or other damages. These mattewsittie following:

. In re HP Securities Litigationonsists of two consolidated putative class actfied on November 26 and 30, 2012 in the Ur
States District Court for the Northern District@élifornia alleging, among other things, that fréwmngust 19, 2011 to
November 20, 2012, the defendants violated SecfiOts) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act by conceatiaderial
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information and making false statements relataddR&s acquisition of Autonomy and the financial periance of HP's
enterprise services business. On May 3, 2013 et plaintiff filed a consolidated complaint allegithat, during that same
period, all of the defendants violated Sectiond}jafd 20(a) of the Exchange Act and SEC Rule Xbb5/ concealing
material information and making false statementgted to HP's acquisition of Autonomy and thataiertdefendants violated
SEC Rule 10b-5(a) and (c) by engaging in a "schemdeéfraud investors. On July 2, 2013, HP filada@ion to dismiss the
lawsuit. On November 26, 2013, the court grantepkirt and denied in part HP's motion to dismidsyahg claims to proceed
against HP and Margaret C. Whitman based on allsggdments and/or omissions made on or after Mag@12. The court
dismissed all of the plaintiff's claims that weresbd on alleged statements and/or omissions madedre August 19, 2011 and
May 22, 2012. The plaintiffs filed a motion for stacertification on November 4, 2014 and, on Dea¥mib, 2014, defendants
filed their opposition to the motion. The hearingtbe motion for class certification is scheduledFebruary 20, 2015.

. In re HewlettPackard Shareholder Derivative Litigati@monsists of seven consolidated lawsuits filed beigimon
November 26, 2012 in the United States District i€&ar the Northern District of California allegingmong other things, that
the defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(#)eoExchange Act by concealing material informatmd making false
statements related to HP's acquisition of Autonamg the financial performance of HP's enterpriseices business. The
lawsuits also allege that the defendants breadiedftduciary duties, wasted corporate assetswearg unjustly enriched in
connection with HP's acquisition of Autonomy anddayising HP to repurchase its own stock at allggeflated prices betwe
August 2011 and October 2012. One lawsuit furtfiegas that certain individual defendants engageat iassisted insider
trading and thereby breached their fiduciary dutieere unjustly enriched and violated Sections 25&fd 25403 of the
California Corporations Code. On May 3, 2013, el plaintiff filed a consolidated complaint allegj among other things, t
the defendants concealed material information aadenialse statements related to HP's acquisitidxutdnomy and
Autonomy's Intelligent Data Operating Layer teclogyl and thereby violated Sections 10(b) and 20{#)eExchange Act,
breached their fiduciary duties, engaged in "almismntrol" over HP and corporate waste and wefaatly enriched. The
litigation was stayed by agreement until July 3112 On July 30, 2013, HP filed a motion to furtbtay the litigation until HP
Board of Directors decides whether to pursue arth@tlaims asserted in the litigation or the couldés on HP's motion to
dismiss the consolidated complaint in thee HP Securities Litigatiomatter. The court extended the stay of the litagatintil
June 16, 2014. Lead plaintiff filed a stipulatidnpooposed settlement on June 30, 2014. The cagrhkld hearings on the
motion for preliminary approval of the proposedlsetent, but has not issued a decision. The paatidsother interested parties
have submitted further briefing and await a ruliram the court. The court is also expected to andhe motion to sever filed
an additional derivative action captiong8tkinberg and Vogel v. Apotheker, ettlshit contains substantially similar allegations
and seeking substantially similar relief; the motio intervene filed by the California state cquidintiff Vincent Ho for the
limited purpose of applying for attorneys' fees thotion to intervene filed by Sushovan HussairtHerpurposes of objecting
the proposed settlement and obtaining discoveny;tla@ motion to intervene filed by purported HPrshalder Rodney Cook ft
the purposes of removing the lead plaintiff andilghimself appointed as the lead plaintiff.
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. In re HP ERISA Litigatioronsists of three consolidated putative class iastibted beginning on December 6, 2012 in the Ut
States District Court for the Northern District@élifornia alleging, among other things, that fréwmgust 18, 2011 to
November 22, 2012, the defendants breached tlagicifiry obligations to HP's 401(k) Plan and itdipgrants and thereby
violated Sections 404(a)(1) and 405(a) of the EgdoRetirement Income Security Act of 1974, as atadnby concealing
negative information regarding the financial pemiance of Autonomy and HP's enterprise servicesibasiand by failing to
restrict participants from investing in HP stock Bugust 16, 2013, HP filed a motion to dismissldvesuit. On March 31,
2014, the court granted HP's motion to dismissabi®n with leave to amend. On July 16, 2014 piaéntiffs filed a second
amended complaint containing substantially simaléggations and seeking substantially similar felgethe first amended
complaint. HP moved to dismiss the second amendegblaint and a hearing on the motion is schedweddnuary 23, 2015.

. Vincent Ho v. Margaret C. Whitman, et.é@ a lawsuit filed on January 22, 2013 in CaliferGuperior Court alleging, among
other things, that the defendants breached treicfary duties and wasted corporate assets in ctinnevith HP's acquisition «
Autonomy and by causing HP to repurchase its owcksat allegedly inflated prices between August28td October 2012. (
April 22, 2013, the court stayed the lawsuit pegdiesolution of thén re HewlettPackard Shareholder Derivative Litigation
matter in federal court. Two additional derivatations James Gould v. Margaret C. Whitman, et ahdLeroy Noel v.
Margaret C. Whitman, et aJ.were filed in California Superior Court on Jul,2013 and August 16, 2013, respectively,
containing substantially similar allegations andkseg substantially similar relief. Those actiofsoshave been stayed pending
resolution of thdn re HewlettPackard Shareholder Derivative Litigationatter. If the settlement of the federal derivatese i
approved, it will result in a release of the claiasserted in all three actions other than claimerésd against Michael Lynch, i
former chief executive officer of Autonomy.

. Cook v. Whitman, et ais a lawsuit filed on March 18, 2014 in the Delasv&@hancery Court, alleging, among other thingg, tha
the defendants breached their fiduciary dutiesveasted corporate assets in connection with HP'gisitign of Autonomy. On
May 15, 2014, HP moved to dismiss or stay@oekmatter. On July 22, 2014, the Delaware ChancerytGayed the motion
pending the United States District Court's headngreliminary approval of the proposed settlenietitie In re Hewlett
Packard Shareholder Derivative Litigationatter. If the District Court approves the settlamé will result in a release of all tl
claims asserted in ti@ookmatter other than those asserted against Michaeth,ySushovan Hussain, the former chief financie
officer of Autonomy, and Deloitte LLP.
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Environmental

HP's operations and products are subjecafious federal, state, local and foreign laws @egalilations concerning environmental
protection, including laws addressing the discharfggollutants into the air and water, the manag#raad disposal of hazardous substances
and wastes, the cleanup of contaminated sitegathient of HP's products and the recycling, treatraad disposal of those products. In
particular, HP faces increasing complexity in itsquct design and procurement operations as istgjo new and future requirements relating
to the chemical and materials composition of itspicts, their safe use, and the energy consumasisociated with those products, including
requirements relating to climate change. HP is sidgject to legislation in an increasing numbejudgdictions that makes producers of
electrical goods, including computers and printBrgncially responsible for specified collectigacycling, treatment and disposal of past and
future covered products (sometimes referred tesduct take-back legislation™). HP could incur staimtial costs, its products could be
restricted from entering certain jurisdictions, d@incould face other sanctions, if it were to vielar become liable under environmental laws o
if its products become non-compliant with enviromtad laws. HP's potential exposure includes fimes$ @vil or criminal sanctions, thirgarty
property damage or personal injury claims and clgacosts. The amount and timing of costs to comylls environmental laws are difficult
to predict.

HP is party to, or otherwise involved inpgeedings brought by U.S. or state environmemaheies under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Lial#\ély("CERCLA"), known as "Superfund,” or state lagimilar to CERCLA, and may
become a party to, or otherwise involved in, proaegs brought by private parties for contributiomwards clean-up costs. HP is also
conducting environmental investigations or reméaliet at several current or former operating sitesyeant to administrative orders or consen
agreements with state environmental agencies.

Note 16: Guarantees
Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, HP maye performance guarantees to certain of itatsli€ustomers and other parties pursuant to
which HP has guaranteed the performance obligatbttsrd parties. Some of those guarantees mayabked by standby letters of credit or
surety bonds. In general, HP would be obligategetdorm over the term of the guarantee in the emesgecified triggering event occurs as
defined by the guarantee. HP believes the likelihobhaving to perform under a material guarangeeinote.

HP has entered into service contracts eatiain of its clients that are supported by finagarrangements. If a service contract is
terminated as a result of HP's non-performance ruhgecontract or failure to comply with the terofghe financing arrangement, HP could,
under certain circumstances, be required to acgeitain assets related to the service contrachefiBves the likelihood of having to acquir
material amount of assets under these arrangeriseneisiote.

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, HPrsritg¢o contractual arrangements under which HP aggige to indemnify a third party to such
arrangement from any losses incurred relating écstirvices
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they perform on behalf of HP or for losses aridimmgn certain events as defined within the particalantract, which may include, for example,
litigation or claims relating to past performankd also provides indemnifications to certain vesdaond customers against claims of IP
infringement made by third parties arising from tlemdor's and customer's use of HP's software ptedund services and certain other mat
Some indemnifications may not be subject to maxinhss clauses. Historically, payments made relaiddese indemnifications have been
immaterial.

Warranty

HP accrues the estimated cost of productanties at the time it recognizes revenue. HP gegjan extensive product quality programs
and processes, including actively monitoring anal@ating the quality of its component suppliersyvbueer, contractual warranty terms, repair
costs, product call rates, average cost per aatlent period product shipments and ongoing prothiktre rates, as well as specific product
class failures outside of HP's baseline experiesiftect the estimated warranty obligation.

HP's aggregate product warranty liabilisesl changes during the fiscal years were as fstlow

As of October 31

2014 2013
In millions

Balance at beginning of ye $ 2031 $ 2,17(

Accruals for warranties issut 1,84( 2,007
Adjustments related to pre-existing warrantiesl(iding changes in

estimates 12 4

Settlements made (in cash or in kil (1,92%) (2,147)

Balance at end of ye. $ 1,95 $ 2,031

Note 17: Commitments
Lease Commitments

HP leases certain real and personal prpp@der non-cancelable operating leases. Certaseterequire HP to pay property taxes,
insurance and routine maintenance and include r@ingptions and escalation clauses. Rent expensepyaeximately $1.0 billion in fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012.

Property under capital leases comprisenamily of equipment and furniture. Capital leasseds included in Property, plant and
equipment in the Consolidated Balance Sheets w28 fillion and $437 million as of October 31, 2@ October 31, 2013, respectively.
Accumulated depreciation on the property undertahfgiase was $207 million and $404 million as otdber 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013,
respectively.
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As of October 31, 2014, future minimum kEasmmitments were as follows:

Operating Lease

In millions

Fiscal year
2015 $ 744
2016 55E
2017 41¢€
2018 30¢
2019 237
Thereaftel 804
Less: Sublease rental incol (63
Total $ 3,001

Unconditional Purchase Obligations

At October 31, 2014, HP had unconditionalchase obligations of approximately $2.1 billidinese unconditional purchase obligations
include agreements to purchase goods or serviaeatd enforceable and legally binding on HP aad specify all significant terms, including
fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, fixaihimum or variable price provisions and the appmate timing of the transaction. These
unconditional purchase obligations are relatedgiply to inventory and other items. Unconditiopakrchase obligations exclude agreements
that are cancelable without penalty.

As of October 31, 2014, future unconditiomarchase obligations were as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
In millions
Unconditional purchase
obligations $ 1,38° $ 28¢ $ 22¢ $ 21z $ — $ — $ 2,11¢
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For the three-month fiscal periods
ended in fiscal 201¢

January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31

Net revenue $ 28,15¢ $27,30¢ $27,58: $ 28,40¢
Cost of sale& 21,73¢  20,70¢ 20,97« 21,42¢
Research and developme 811 873 887 87€
Selling, general and administrati 3,21( 3,391 3,38¢ 3,36¢
Amortization of intangible asse 28:¢ 264 227 22¢
Restructuring charge 114 252 64¢ 604
Acquisitior-related charge 3 3 2 3
Total costs and expens 26,157 25,487 26,12} 26,49¢
Earnings from operatior 1,99 1,822 1,45¢ 1,90¢
Interest and other, n (163) (174 (14%) (14¢€)
Earnings before taxe 1,83¢ 1,64¢ 1,31: 1,762
Provision for taxe: (409 (375 (328 (432
Net earning: $ 1,428 $ 1270 $ 98 $  1,33(
Net earnings per shar®

Basic $ 078 $ 067 $ 05 ¢ 0.71

Diluted $ 07£ $ 066 $ 05z ¢ 0.7C
Cash dividends paid per sh: $ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ O0.1¢ $ 0.1€
Range of per share stock prices on the New Yor

Stock Exchang

Low $ 2450 $ 278¢ $ 3121 $ 31.6-

High $ 30.1° $ 339 $ 36.21 $ 38.2F

For the three-month fiscal periods
ended in fiscal 2013

January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31

Net revenue $ 28,35¢ $27,58. $27,22¢ $ 29,13:
Cost of sale& 22,02¢ 21,058  20,85¢ 22,43
Research and developme 794 81t 797 72¢
Selling, general and administrati 3,30( 3,34z 3,27¢ 3,351
Amortization of intangible asse 35C 35C 35€ 317
Restructuring charge 13C 40¢ 81 371
Acquisitior-related charge 4 11 4 3
Total costs and expens 26,607 25,98. 25,37 27,20¢
Earnings from operatior 1,752 1,601 1,85¢ 1,92
Interest and other, n (79 (193 (14¢€) (103
Earnings before taxe 1,57 1,40¢ 1,70¢ 1,82(
Provision for taxe: (34)) (33)) (319 (40€)
Net earning: $ 1232 $ 1077 $ 139 $ 1,41«
Net earnings per shar®

Basic $ 06 $ 05€¢ $ 07z $ 0.74

Diluted $ 06 $ 058 $ 071 ¢ 0.7t
Cash dividends paid per sh: $ 0.1t $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.1t
Range of per share stock prices on the New Yor

Stock Exchang

Low $ 1135 $ 16.0¢ $ 20.1t $ 20.2¢

High $ 174 $ 240t $ 2671 $  27.7¢

@ Cost of products, cost of services and financingrast.

@ Net EPS for each quarter is computed using thehteigaverage number of shares outstanding duratgytharter, while
EPS for the fiscal year is computed using the weidfaverage number of shares outstanding duringehe Thus the
sum of the EPS for each of the four quarters mayquoal the EPS for the fiscal ye
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountas on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the parttipn of our management, including our principad@xtive officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of the design and operation of our disclosomé&ols and procedures, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangeas\ef the end of the period covered by this refibe "Evaluation Date"). Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded as of the Evdioa Date that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective such that the informatédating to HP, including our consolidated sulzsiiis, required to be disclosed in our SEC
reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarizedegpatted within the time periods specified in SE@s and forms, and (ii) is accumulated
communicated to HP's management, including ourcjiréd executive officer and principal financial ic#r, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the parttign of our management, including our principa@@xtive officer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of any changesr internal control over financial reportings(such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occudwihg our most recently completed fiscal quamBarsed on that evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officesricluded that there has not been any change imtaunal control over financial reporting
during that quarter that has materially affectedsa@easonably likely to materially affect, outémal control over financial reporting.

See Management's Report on Internal Contret Financial Reporting and the Report of Indeleen Registered Public Accounting Firm
on our internal control over financial reportingliam 8, which are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporae Governance.

The names of the executive officers of HB their ages, titles and biographies as of the dateof are incorporated by reference from
Part I, Item 1, above.

The following information is included in MHProxy Statement related to its 2015 Annual Meetif Stockholders to be filed within
120 days after HP's fiscal year end of Octobe2814 (the "Proxy Statement") and is incorporatagineby reference:

. Information regarding directors of HP who are stagdor reelection and any persons nominated t@ipecdirectors of HP is ¢
forth under "Proposals to be Voted On—ProposalMNeElection of Directors."

. Information regarding HP's Audit Committee amsignated "audit committee financial experts" isfegh under "Board
Structure and Committee Composition—Audit Committee

. Information on HP's code of business conduct ahigefor directors, officers and employees, alsoviim as the "Standards of
Business Conduct," and on HP's Corporate Governanaielines is set forth under "Corporate GovereaPgnciples and Boa
Matters."

. Information regarding Section 16(a) beneficiahership reporting compliance is set forth undexct®n 16(a) Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance."

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

The following information is included inglProxy Statement and is incorporated herein tgreete:

. Information regarding HP's compensation of its ndmeecutive officers is set forth under "Executdempensation.”

. Information regarding HP's compensation of its ctives is set forth under "Director Compensation Stamtk Ownership
Guidelines."

. The report of HP's HR and Compensation Commigieset forth under "HR and Compensation Commigeport on Executive
Compensation.”

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ovners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter.
The following information is included inglProxy Statement and is incorporated herein tgreete:

. Information regarding security ownership of e@rtbeneficial owners, directors and executiveceff$ is set forth under
"Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Oven@nd Management.”

. Information regarding HP's equity compensatitamg, including both stockholder approved plans ot stockholder approved
plans, is set forth in the section entitled "Eq@tympensation Plan Information."
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transadbns, and Director Independence.

The following information is included inglProxy Statement and is incorporated herein lareete:

. Information regarding transactions with relatedspes is set forth under "Transactions with Rel&esons."
. Information regarding director independence if@eh under "Corporate Governance Principles andrBd/atters—Director
Independence."

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal accountfiegs and services is set forth under "Principalodcting Fees and Services" in the Proxy
Statement, which information is incorporated hetjirreference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(8  The following documents are filed as part of tkEpart:

1. All Financial Statements:

The following financial statements arediles part of this report under Item 8—"Financiat&ments and Supplementary Data."

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 81
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Firarieporting 83
Consolidated Statements of Earnil 84
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc 85
Consolidated Balance She: 86
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fle 87
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Ec 88
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 89
Quarterly Summar 17C
2. Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules are omitted as the requinédrmation is not applicable or the informatiorpigesented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto in Item 8 above.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits filed or furnished witihis Annual Report on Form 10-K (or incorporatedréference to exhibits previously filed or
furnished by HP) is provided in the accompanyingibit Index. HP will furnish copies of exhibits farreasonable fee (covering the expen:
furnishing copies) upon request. Stockholders reguest exhibits copies by contacting:

Hewlett-Packard Company
Attn: Investor Relations
3000 Hanover Street

Palo Alto, CA 94304
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

Date: December 17, 20: HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY

By: /sl CATHERINE A. LESJAK

Catherine A. Lesjak
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constanttappoints Catherine A.
Lesjak, John F. Schultz and Rishi Varma, or anthefn, his or her attorneys-in-fact, for such persoany and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this report and to file the saméd mihibits thereto, and other documents in conaerdtierewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and configrafi that either of said attorneysiaet, or substitute or substitutes, may do or caoide
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SeeariExchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidoelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title(s) Date
/sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer December 17, 2014
Margaret C. Whitmal (Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and
Chief

Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer

/s CATHERINE A. LESJAK
December 17, 2014

Catherine A. Lesjak

/s/ JEFF T. RICCI Senior Vice President and
Controller December 17, 2014
Jeff T. Ricci (Principal Accounting Officer

/sl MARC L. ANDREESSEN

Director December 17, 2014
Marc L. Andreesse
/sf SHUMEET BANERJI
Director December 17, 2014
Shumeet Baner
/s/ ROBERT R. BENNETT
Director December 17, 2014
Robert R. Benne
/s/ RAJIV L. GUPTA
Director December 17, 2014

Rajiv L. Gupta
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Signature

Title(s)

Date

/sl KLAUS KLEINFELD

Klaus Kleinfeld

/sl RAYMOND J. LANE

Raymond J. Lan

/sl ANN M. LIVERMORE

Ann M. Livermore

/sl RAYMOND E. OZZIE

Raymond E. Ozzi

/sl GARY M. REINER

Gary M. Reinel

/sl PATRICIA F. RUSSO

Patricia F. Russ

/sl JAMES A. SKINNER

James A. Skinne

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. (s) Filing Date
3(a, Registrant's Certificate of Incorporatic 1C-Q 001-0442: 3(a) June 12,199
3(b) Registrant's Amendment to the Certificate of Incogpion. 1C-Q 001-0442: 3(b) March 16, 200:
3(c) Registrant's Amended and Restated Bylaws effettomeember 20, 8-K  0010442: 3.1 November 26, 201
2013.
4(a} Senior Indenture between the Registrant and Thé& BANew York S-3 3334134327 49 June 7, 2006
Mellon Trust Company, National Association, as ®sor in interest
to J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Associaformerly known
as Chase Manhattan Bank and Trust Company, Natissaciation),
as Trustee, dated June 1, 2C
4(b) Form of Subordinated Indentul S-3 3333078 4.2  March 17, 200(
4(c) Form of Registrant's 5.40% Global Note due MarcRQ1l,7. 8-K 001-0442: 4.3  February 28, 200
4(d) Form of Registrant's 5.50% Global Note due MarchQ1,8. 8-K  001-0442: 4.3  February 29, 200
4(e) Form of Registrant's 2.125% Global Note due Sep&ertiB, 2015 and  8-K  0010442: 4.3 anc September 13, 2010
form of related Officers’ Certificat 4.4
4(f) Form of Registrant's 2.200% Global Note due Decerhp2015 and 8-K  0010442: 4.1,4.. December 2, 2010
3.750% Global Note due December 1, 2020 and formelafed and 4.:
Officers' Certificate
4(g) Form of Registrant's 2.650% Global Note due Jur916 and 8-K  0010442: 4.4,4.% Junel, 2011
4.300% Global Note due June 1, 2021 and form etedl Officers' and 4.¢

Certificate.
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
4(h) Form of Registrant's 2.350% Global Note due Mdrsh2015, 8K 0010442 4.2,4.3, September 19, 2011
3.000% Global Note due September 15, 2016, 4.375%aENote 44,45
due September 15, 2021 and 6.000% Global Note dpeefber 1t and 4.6
2041 and form of related Officers' Certifica
4(i) Form of Registrant's 3.300% Global Note due Decerah2016, 8-K 0010442: 4.2,4.3 December 12,2011
4.650% Global Note due December 9, 2021 and relaféders' and 4.4
Certificate.
4()) Form of Registrant's 2.600% Global Note due Sepégrb, 2017 8-K 0010442: 4.1,4.2 March 12,2012
and 4.050% Global Note due September 15, 2022ealatkd and 4.3
Officers' Certificate
4(k) Form of Registrant's 2.750% Global Note due Janti4ry019 and 8-K  0010442: 4.1,4.2 January 14,2014
Floating Rate Global Note due January 14, 2019 ealated and 4.3
Officers' Certificate
4(l) Specimen certificate for the Registrant's commonols 8-A/A  001-0442: 4.1 June 23, 200
10(al Registrant's 2004 Stock Incentive Pla S-8 33:-11425: 4.1 April 7, 2004
10(b, Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, amended and reséffttive 10K 0010442 10(b) December 18, 2008
September 17, 2008
10(c, Registrant's Excess Benefit Retirement Plan, anteadd restated 8-K  001-0442: 10.2 September 21, 2006
as of January 1, 2006
10(d, Hewlett-Packard Company Cash Account Restoratian,PI 8-K  001-0442: 99.3 November 23, 200
amended and restated as of January 1, 2(
10(e’ Registrant's 2005 P-for-Results Plan, as amende 1C-K  001-0442: 10(h) December 14, 201
10(f) Registrant's 2005 Executive Deferred Compensatian, Rs 8-K  001-0442: 10.1 September 21, 2006

amended and restated effective October 1, 2C
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
10(g. First Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Exeeuifreferred 10Q 0010442 10(q) June 8, 2007
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(h Employment Agreement, dated June 9, 2005, betwegisRan  10-Q 0010442 10(x) September 8, 2005
and R. Todd Bradley.
10(i)) Registrant's Executive Severance Agreeme 1C-Q 001-0442: 10(u)(u) June 13, 200
10() Registrant's Executive Officers Severance Agreerh 1C-Q 001-0442: 10(v)(v) June 13, 200
10(k) Form letter regarding severance offset for regtddtock and 8-K  001-0442: 10.2 March 22, 2005
restricted units.:
10(l) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Registra2z®4 Stocl 10-Q 001-0442: 10(b)(b) June 8, 2007
Incentive Plan, Registrant's 2000 Stock Plan, asnaled, and
Registrant's 1995 Incentive Stock Plan, as ameh
10(m. Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Registls 2004  10-Q 001-0442: 10(c)(c) June 8, 2007
Stock Incentive Plan.
10(n; Second Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Exechidferrec 10K 0010442 10(I)(N December 18, 2007
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(o; Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Informatand 8-K  0010442: 10.2 January 24, 2008
Proprietary Developments (California
10(p, Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Informatand 10-Q 0010442 10(o0)(0) March 10, 2008
Proprietary Developments (Texas
10(q, Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Registra2®84 Stocl 10-Q 001-0442: 10(p)(p) March 10, 2008
Incentive Plan.’
10(r) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Registls 2004  10-Q 0010442 10(g)(q) March 10, 2008

Stock Incentive Plan.
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
10(s. Form of Stock Option Agreement for Registran084 Stock 10Q 0010442 10(r)(r) March 10, 2008
Incentive Plan.’
10(t) Form of Option Agreement for Registrant's 2000 ktekan.* 1C-Q 001-0442: 10(t)(Y) June 6, 200!
10(u; Form of Common Stock Payment Agreement for Regitra 10-Q 0010442 10(u)(u) June 6, 2008
2000 Stock Plan.
10(v) Third Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execulieéerred 10K 0010442 10(v)(v) December 18, 2008
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(w) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10K 0010442 10(w)(w) December 18, 2008
restricted stock units.
10(x) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10K 0010442 10(y)(y) December 18, 2008
nor-qualified stock options.
10(y) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10K 0010442 10(2)(2) December 18, 2008
restricted stock.
10(z, Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Registis 2004  10Q 001-0442: 10(a)(a)(a) March 10, 2009
Stock Incentive Plan.
10(a)(a First Amendment to the Hewlett-Packard Company Exce 10-Q 0010442: 10(b)(b)(b) March 10, 2009
Benefit Retirement Plan.
10(b)(b] Fourth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execldieferred  10Q 0010442: 10(c)(c)(c) June 5, 2009
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(c)(c. Fifth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execuie¢erred 10-Q 0010442: 10(d)(d)(d) September 4, 2009
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(d)(d Amended and Restated Hewlett-Packard Company 2@k S 8-K  001-0442: 10.2 March 23, 2010
Incentive Plan.’
10(e)(e Form of Stock Natification and Award Agreement favards of 10K  0010442:  10(f)(F)(H) December 15, 2010

restricted stock units.
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
10(f)(f) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wvards of 10K  0010442: 10(g)(g)(g) December 15, 2010
performanc-based restricted units
10(g)(g. Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement fwards of 10K 0010442 10(h)(h)(h) December 15, 2010
restricted stock.
10(h)(h, Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10K 0010442 10()(i)(i) December 15, 2010
nor-qualified stock options.
10(i)(i) Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Informatand 10K 0010442 10G)(H() December 15, 2010
Proprietary Developments (Califor—new hires).*
10(j)(j) Form of Agreement Regarding Confidential Informatand 10K 0010442: 10(k)(k)(k) December 15,2010
Proprietary Developments (Califor—current employees).
10(k)(k) First Amendment to the Registrant's Executive Drefier 10-Q 0010442: 10(o)(0)(o) September9, 2011
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2004.
10(N() Sixth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execubgéerred 10-Q 0010442: 10(p)(p)(p) September9, 2011
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.
10(m)(m Employment offer letter, dated September 27, 20&tween th 8-K  001-0442: 10.2 September 29, 2011
Registrant and Margaret C. Whitma
10(n)(n, Letter Agreement, dated November 17, 2011, amoag th 8-K  001-0442: 99.1 November 17, 201
Registrant, Relational Investors LLC and the ottaties name
therein.*
10(0)(o. Seventh Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Exezutiv 10K 0010442: 10(e)(e)(e) December 14,2011
Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restf¢etive
October 1, 2006.
10(p)(p. Registrant's Severance Plan for Executive Offiasamended 10K  001-0442: 10(g)(q) December 30, 2013

and restated September 18, 201
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
10(g)(g. Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated March 2@] 2, 10Q 0010442: 10(h)(h)(h)  June 8, 2012
between the Registrant and Margaret C. Whitm
10(r)() Second Amended and Restated Hewkaettkard Company 20( 8-K  001-0442: 10.2 March 21, 2013
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended effective Febr2@r2013.*
10(s)(s Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated April 22130 10-Q 0010442: 10(t)(t) June 6, 2013
between the Registrant and John M. Hinshe
10(t)(t) Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated April 22120 10-Q 0010442 10(u)(u) June 6, 2013
between the Registrant and R. Todd Bradl
10(u)(u. Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10Q 001-0442: 10(u)(u) March 11, 2014
restricted stock units.
10(v)(v) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10-Q 001-0442: 10(v)(v) March 11, 2014
foreign stock appreciation rights
10(w)(w) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement fong-term  10-Q  001-0442: 10(w)(w) March 11, 2014
cash awards.
10(x)(x) Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10Q 001-0442: 10(x)(x) March 11, 2014
nor-qualified stock options.
10(y)(y) Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performandgisted 10-Q 0010442: 10(y)(y) March 11, 2014
restricted stock units.
10(z)(z Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10-Q 0010442 10(2)(2) March 11, 2014
restricted stock.
10(a)(a)(a Form of Stock Notification and Award Agreement &wards of 10-Q 0010442: 10(a)(a)(a) March 11, 2014
performanc-contingent no-qualified stock options.
10(b)(b)(b Form of Grant Agreement for grants of performanostingent 10-Q 0010442: 10(b)(b)(b) March 11, 2014
nor-qualified stock options.
10(c)(c)(c Eighth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execubgterred  10-Q 0010442: 10(c)(c)(c) March 11, 2014

Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.

182




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Form

File No.

Exhibit(s)

Filing Date

10(d)(d)(d

10(e)(e)(e

11

12

13-14
1€
18
21

22

24

31.1

31.2

32

101.INS

Ninth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 Execubieéerred 10Q
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.

Tenth Amendment to the Registrant's 2005 ExeciDisferred
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effectiv
October 1, 2006.*:

None.

Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings tceHi
Charges.:

None.

None.

None.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of October 3142
None.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.t
Power of Attorney (included on the signature pa

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14
(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities ExchancteofA1934,
as amended.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14
(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities ExchancteofA1934,
as amended.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigiihancial
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adoptedyauntsto
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002.1

XBRL Instance Document.
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Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Form File No.

Exhibit(s) Filing Date

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRI

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhétr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenirt

*

Indicates management contract or compensat@m, gontract or arrangement.

T Filed herewith.

T Furnished herewitl

The registrant agrees to furnish to the @ssion supplementally upon request a copy of i§)iastrument with respect to lorigrm deb
not filed herewith as to which the total amounseturities authorized thereunder does not exce¥#ddi@he total assets of the registrant an
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and (2) anfteahschedules to any material plan of acquisjtdigposition or reorganization set forth

above.
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Exhibit 10(e)(e)(e

TENTH AMENDMENT TO THE HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY
2005 EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
(Amended and restated effective October 1, 2006)

The Hewlett-Packard Company 2005 ExecuBigéerred Compensation Plan, as amended and restf¢etive October 1, 2006, is hereby
amended, effective as of the date executed betopravide as follows:

1. The definition of "Incentive Awari Article | shall be amended in its entirety tadeas follows:

" 'Incentive Award means an amount payable to an Eligible Employekeiua cash bonus or incentive compensation plaiPodr
an Affiliate that the Committee has deemed eligfbledeferral, including bonuses paid under theREPfan, the PfR Plan, the CPB
Plan, the Hewlett-Packard Financial Services Inger@ompensation Plan, the Shoreline Investmentdgament Company
Performance Incentive Plan, the Hewlett-Packard @omw Client Principal Incentive Plan, and the ahbeaus portion of the Hewlett-
Packard Account Executive Pay for Performance ItieeiPlan. For the avoidance of doubt, the HewRattkard Account Executive

Pay for Performance Incentive Plan shall be comsitlan Incentive Award under this Plan beginninthwhe fiscal year 2014
payment."

This Tenth Amendment to the Hewlett-Packaotnpany 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation iBlaereby adopted this 12th day of
September, 2014.

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY

By: /s/ TRACY S. KEOGH

Tracy S. Keogh
Executive Vice President, Human Resou
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Exhibit 12

HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to &ked Charges(®)

For the fiscal years ended October 3
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
In millions, except ratios

Earnings (loss)
Earnings (loss) before tax $ 6,557 $ 6,51( $ (11,93) $ 8,98. $ 10,97
Adjustments
Non-controlling interests in the
income of subsidiaries with fixed

charges 46 69 10z 75 10¢
Undistributed (earnings) loss of eqt

method investee (5) 4 2 3 12
Fixed charge 1,015 1,162 1,29 1,025 86¢

$ 7,61f $ 7,737 $ (10,53¢) $ 10,08° $ 11,96:

Fixed charges
Total interest expense, including inter
expense on borrowings, amortizatic
of debt discount and premium on al

indebtedness and ott $ 665 $ 76¢ $ 86 $ 551 $ 417
Interest included in rer 352 39¢ 432 47¢€ 451
Total fixed charge $ 1017 $ 1,162 $ 1,297 $ 1,020 $  86¢

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges
(excess of fixed charges over
earnings 7.5x% 6.7x $ (11,839 9.8x 13.8»

@ HP computed the ratio of earnings to fixed chatgedividing earnings (earnings (loss) before tarefusted for fixed
charges, non-controlling interests in the incomeuifsidiaries with fixed charges and undistrib{esttnings) loss of
equity method investees) by fixed charges for #wgogs indicated. Fixed charges include (i) inteeapense on
borrowings and amortization of debt discount omgitem on all indebtedness and other, and (ii) acealsle
approximation of the interest factor deemed tonmduded in rent expens
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Exhibit 21

Principal Subsidiaries of Hewlett-Packard Company
The registrant's principal subsidiaries affiliates as of October 31, 2014 are includethmmlist below.
ANGOLA
—Hewlett-Packard Angola, Ltda.
ARGENTINA
—Hewlett-Packard Argentina S.R.L.
AUSTRALIA
—Hewlett-Packard Australia Pty. Ltd.
—HP Enterprise Services Australia Pty Ltd
—HP Financial Services (Australia) Pty Limited
AUSTRIA
—Hewlett-Packard Gesellschaft mbH
BELGIUM
—Hewlett-Packard Belgium SPRL/BVBA
—Hewlett-Packard Coordination Center SVBA/SCRL
BERMUDA
—High Tech Services Insurance, Ltd.
BOTSWANA
—HP Botswana (Proprietary) Limited
BRAZIL
—Hewlett-Packard Brasil Ltda.
—HP Financial Services Arrendamento Mercantil S.A.
BULGARIA
—Hewlett-Packard Bulgaria EOOD
CANADA
—Hewlett-Packard (Canada) Co.

—Hewlet-Packard Financial Services Canada Comj



CAYMAN ISLANDS

—Compaq Cayman Holdings Company
—Compaq Cayman Islands Vision Company
—Hewlett-Packard G1 SPV (Cayman) Company
CHILE

—Hewlett-Packard Chile Comercial Limitada

—HP Financial Services (Chile) Limitada




CHINA

—China Hewlett-Packard Co., Ltd.
—Hangzhou H3C Technologies Co., Ltd
—Hewlett-Packard (Chongging) Co., Ltd
—Hewlett-Packard Technology (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
—Hewlett-Packard Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
—Shanghai Hewlett-Packard Co. Ltd.
COLOMBIA

—Hewlett Packard Colombia Ltda.
COSTA RICA

—Hewlett-Packard Costa Rica, Limitada
CROATIA

—Hewlett-Packard d.o.o.

CYPRUS

—Hewlett-Packard Cyprus Ltd

CZECH REPUBLIC

—Hewlett-Packard s.r.o.

DENMARK

—Hewlett-Packard ApS

ECUADOR

—Hewlett-Packard Ecuador Cia Ltda.
EGYPT

—Hewlett-Packard Egypt Ltd.

FINLAND

—Hewlett-Packard OY

FRANCE

—Hewlett-Packard France SAS
GERMANY

—Hewlett-Packard GmbH

GHANA

—Hewlet-Packard Ghana Limite



GREECE
—Hewlett-Packard Hellas EPE
GUATEMALA

—Hewlett-Packard Guatemala, Limitada




HONG KONG

—Hewlett-Packard HK SAR Ltd.

HUNGARY

—Hewlett-Packard Magyarorszag Kft.

INDIA

—Hewlett-Packard Globalsoft Private Limited
—Hewlett-Packard India Sales Private Limited
—MphasiS Limited

INDONESIA

—PT. Hewlett-Packard Indonesia

IRELAND

—Hewlett-Packard International Bank Public Limitedr@pany
—Hewlett-Packard Ireland Limited
—Hewlett-Packard (Manufacturing) Ltd.
ISRAEL

—Hewlett-Packard (Israel) Ltd.

ITALY

—Hewlett-Packard Italiana S.r.I.

JAPAN

—Hewlett-Packard Japan Ltd.

—HP Financial Services (Japan) K.K.
KOREA, REPUBLIC OF

—Hewlett-Packard Korea Ltd.

—HP Financial Services Company (Korea)
LATVIA

—Hewlett-Packard SIA

LITHUANIA

—UAB Hewlett-Packard

LUXEMBOURG

—Hewlett-Packard Luxembourg S.C.A.

MACAU



—Hewlett-Packard Macau Limited
MALAYSIA

—Hewlett-Packard (M) Sdn. Bhd.
MEXICO

—Hewlett-Packard Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.




—Hewlett-Packard Operations Mexico, S. de R.L. dé.C.
MOROCCO

—Hewlett-Packard SARL

—HP-CDG IT Services Morocco
MOZAMBIQUE

—Hewlett-Packard Mocambique, Limitada
NETHERLANDS

—Compaq Trademark B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Caribe B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Europe B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Europa Holding B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Indigo B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Nederland B.V.
—Hewlett-Packard Vision B.V.

NEW ZEALAND

—Hewlett-Packard New Zealand

NIGERIA

—Hewlett-Packard (Nigeria) Limited
NORWAY

—Hewlett-Packard Norge AS

PERU

—Hewlett-Packard Peru S.R.L.
PHILIPPINES

—Hewlett-Packard Philippines Corporation
POLAND

—Hewlett-Packard Polska Sp. z o.0.
PORTUGAL

—Hewlett-Packard Portugal Lda.

PUERTO RICO

—Hewlett-Packard Technology Center, Inc.

ROMANIA



—Hewlett-Packard (Romania) SRL
RUSSIA

—ZAO Hewlett-Packard A.O.
SERBIA

—Hewlett-Packard d.o.o. Beograd




SINGAPORE

—Hewlett-Packard Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
—Hewlett-Packard International Pte Ltd
—Hewlett-Packard Singapore (Private) Limited
—Hewlett-Packard Singapore (Sales) Pte. Ltd.
SLOVAKIA

—Hewlett-Packard Slovakia s.r.o.

SLOVENIA

—Hewlett-Packard d.o.0., druzba za tehnoloske resitv
SOUTH AFRICA

—Hewlett-Packard South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
SPAIN

—Hewlett-Packard Espafiola S.L.

SWEDEN

—Hewlett-Packard Sverige AB

SWITZERLAND

—Hewlett-Packard International Sarl
—Hewlett-Packard (Schweiz) GmbH

TAIWAN

—Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd.

TANZANIA

—Hewlett-Packard (Tanzania) Limited

THAILAND

—Hewlett-Packard (Thailand) Limited

TURKEY

—Hewlett-Packard Teknoloji Coztumleri Limited Sirketi
UGANDA

—Hewlett Packard Uganda Limited

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

—Hewlett-Packard Middle East FZ-LLC

UNITED KINGDOM



—Hewlett-Packard Limited
—Hewlett-Packard Manufacturing Ltd
—HP Enterprise Services UK Ltd
UNITED STATES

—3Com International, Inc.




—3Par Inc.

—ArcSight, LLC

—Compaq Computer (Delaware), LLC

—Computer Insurance Company

—Compagq Latin America Corporation

—EDS Global Contracts, LLC

—EDS World Corporation (Far East) LLC

—EDS World Corporation (Netherlands) LLC

—EYP Mission Critical Facilities, Inc.
—Hewlett-Packard Administrative Services LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Asia Pacific Services Corporation
—Hewlett-Packard Bermuda Enterprises, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Brazil Holdings, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P.
—Hewlett-Packard Financial Services Company
—Hewlett-Packard Inter-Americas
—Hewlett-Packard Luxembourg Enterprises, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Products CV 1, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Products CV 2, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard Software, LLC
—Hewlett-Packard State & Local Enterprise Servites,
—Hewlett-Packard World Services Corporation
—Hewlett-Packard World Trade, LLC

—HP Enterprise Services, LLC

—HP Financial Services International Holdings Conypan
—HPFS Global Holdings I, LLC

—HPFS Global Holdings II, LLC

—Indigo America, Inc.

—MphasiS Corporation

—NHIC, Corp.

—~Palm, Inc.



—SafeGuard Services LLC

—Shoreline Investment Management Company
—Tall Tree Insurance Company
—TippingPoint Holdings, Inc.

—TippingPoint Technologies, Inc.




—Vertica Systems, Inc.

—Wendover Financial Services Corporation
—WTAF, LLC

VENEZUELA

—Hewlett-Packard Venezuela, S.R.L.
VIETNAM

—Hewlett-Packard Vietnam Ltd.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

1)
2
3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)

(12)
(13
(19
(19)
(16)
(17)
(19)

(19

(20)
(21)
(22)
(239

(29)

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-8638)gining to assumption of outstanding
options under various Compaq stock ple

Registration Statement (Form S-3ASR No. 333-18)@@rtaining to an unspecified amount of
debt securities, common stock, preferred stockosiggry shares and warran

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1242&M)aining to the Executive Deferred
Compensation Pla

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:--114253) pertaining to the 2004 Stock Incentive F
Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1242#0)aining to the 2000 Employee Stock
Purchase Plai

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-35828)gining to the 2000 Stock Plan and 2000
Employee Stock Purchase Pl

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-22947) pertaining to the 1997 Director Stock P
Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1242#2)aining to the 2005 Executive Deferred
Compensation Pla

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 002-9232t)gining to the Hewlett-Packard Company
401(k) Plan

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 033-314@8)gining to the Employee Stock Purchase
Plan and Service Anniversary Stock PI

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1387#8)aining to the Mercury Interactive
Corporation Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Optian and Systinet Corporation 2001
Stock Option and Incentive Plg

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1314@8)aining to the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan
of Peregrine Systems, Ini

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1298@8)aining to the ApplQ, Inc. 2001 Stock
Option and Incentive Pla

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 338630) pertaining to the Opsware Inc. Amendec
Restated 2000 Incentive Stock PI

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-145%20)aining to the S.P.l. Dynamics
Incorporated 2000 Stock Incentive Pl

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-143@&2)aining to the Arteis Inc. Amended and
Restated 2005 Stock Ple

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-142b&8)aining to the PolyServe, Inc. 2000 Stock
Plan,

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1408&r)aining to the Bitfone Corporation 2001
Stock Incentive Plar

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1533@2)aining to the Amended and Restated
2003 Incentive Plan of Electronic Data Systems G@tion and the 1997 Nonqualified Stock
Option Plan of Electronic Data Systems Corporat

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1494@r)aining to the EYP Mission Critical
Facilities, Inc. 2001 Stock Option and Grant P

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-156®rjaining to the LeftHand Networks, Inc.
Second Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentare

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-166289)aining to the Amended and Restated
3Com Corporation 2003 Stock Pl

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-166p#b)aining to the Amended and Restated
Hewlet-Packard Company 2004 Stock Incentive P

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33B101) pertaining to the Palm, Inc. 2009 Stock)
as amended, and the Amended and Restated Palm9®& Stock Plar
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(29)

(26)

(27)

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1698&8)aining to the Fortify Software, Inc. 2004
Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as amer

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1698@ef)aining to the Amended and Restated
3PAR Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, the 3PARDATAG. 2000 Management Stock Option
Plan, as amended, and the 3PARDATA, Inc. 1999 SRbak, as amende

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-170®£8)aining to the ArcSight, Inc. 2007 Equity



Incentive Plan and the Amended and Restated ArtSigh 2002 Stock Plau

(28) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-173f@)aining to the Hewlett-Packard Company
2011 Employee Stock Purchase P

(29) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1743@&9)aining to the Stonebraker Systems, Inc.
2005 Stock Plar

(30) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1772&8)aining to the Autonomy Corporation plc
2008 U.S. Share Option Plan, the Interwoven, 18@91Equity Incentive Plan, the
Interwoven, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, theidwbven, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan,
Optimost LLC 2006 Equity Compensation Plan, theityetnc. 1996 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan and the Zantaz, Inc. 1998 Stock Plad

(31) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188H@8)aining to the Second Amended and
Restated Hewle-Packard Company 2004 Stock Incentive P

of Hewlett-Packard Company of our reports dateddbdwer 17, 2014, with respect to the consolidateahitial statements of Hewlett-Packard
Company, and the effectiveness of internal corttvelr financial reporting of Hewlett-Packard Compamgiuded in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended October 31, 2014.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
December 17, 2014




QuickLinks
Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Margaret C. Whitman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KHefvlett-Packard Company;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 17, 2014

/sl MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitman
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Catherine A. Lesjak, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KHefvlett-Packard Company;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 17, 2014

/s/ CATHERINE A. LESJAK

Catherine A. Lesjak
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
OF

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Margaret C. Whitman, certify, pursuamtli8 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hewlett-Packaaiany for the fiscal year ended October 31, 201y Eomplies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 and that information contained inrs@mnual Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of Hewlett-Padk@ompany.

December 17, 2014

By: /s MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitman
Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer

I, Catherine A. Lesjak, certify, pursuamtli8 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hewlett-Packard Comptor the fiscal year ended October 31, 2014 fatynplies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934 and that information contained in suectndal Report on Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of Hewlett-Padkaompany.

December 17, 2014

By:  /s/ CATHERINE A. LESJAK

Catherine A. Lesjak
Executive Vice President and Chief Finant
Officer

A signed original of this written statemesadgiuired by Section 906 has been provided to HeWwlgckard Company and will be retained by
Hewlett-Packard Company and furnished to the Seesiitnd Exchange Commission or its staff uponesgu
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